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NEW DOVE BOTTLES - LESS PLASTIC, LOWER COSTS

In 2014 Unilever launched a newly developed The technology represents a breakthrough for
packaging technology for Dove Body Wash bottles Unilever and the industry With up to 59 million
that uses 15% less plastic Projected cost savings for  Dove Body Wash bottles sold across Europe, the
the whole portfolio are €50 millien This 1s another new technology will save approximately 180 tonnes
substantial step towards the USLP target of halving  of plastic a year overatl Afull roll-out across every
Unilever s waste footprint by 2020 Unilever preduct and packaging format could save
up to 27,000 tonnes of plastic per year
The MuCell® Technology for Extrusion Blow

Moulding was created in partnership with two Unilever has waived exclusivity rights from
packaging suppliers - ALPLA and MuCell Extrusion 1 January 2015, so that other manufacturers
By using gas-injection to create gas bubbles in the can also use the technology

muddle layer of the bottle wall, it reduces the density
of the bottte and the amount of plastic required




OUR PURPOSE
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UNILEVER HAS A SIMPLE PURPOSE - TO MAKE
SUSTAINABLE LIVING COMMONPLACE. WE SEE
IT AS THE BEST, LONG-TERM WAY FOR OUR

BUSINESS TO GROW.

Ourclear Purpose helps us to remain
distinct in the eyes of consumers, retailers
and suppliers

It also means we can set an ambitious
Vision - to double the size of the business
whilst reducing our environmental footprint
and increasing our positive social impact

To meet our growth ambition we invest
in people whose talent will help us win
through our brands and innovation,
unrwalled execution in the market place
and a relentless focus on continuous
improvement for greater efficiency

Our environmental and social ambitions

are driven through the Unilever Sustainable
Living Plan [USLP), which has economic
benefits and operates across all our brands,
markets and our entire value chain

Even when markets are tough we cannot
Ighore sustainability If we did, this would
diminish the future resilience of Unilever
for its long-term shareholders

We would miss out on the growing
cansumer preference for geods that do not
darmnage the environment or exploit people
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OUR ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 IS IN TWO PARTS:

OUR STRATEGIC REPORT

The Strategic Report contains information about us, how we make money and
how we run our business Itincludes our strategy, business model, markets and
Key Performance Indicators, as well as our approach to sustainability and risk

GOYERNANCE AND FINANCIAL REPORT

The Governance and Financial Report contains detailed corporate governance
information, how we mitigate risk, our Committee reports and how we remunerate
our Directors, plus our Financial Statements and Notes

ONLINE
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You can find more tnformation about Unitever online at www.umlever.com

For the latest information on the USLP visit www.umlever com/sustathable-living
Our Strategic Report and Governance and Financial Report, along with other relevant
documents, can be downloaded at www unilever com/ara2014/downloads
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QOur entire business would rety on
increasingly rare and expensive raw
materials, pushing up our costs Without
more efficient use of energy our production
costs would increase while we would

miss considerable savings from more
sustainable packaging and less waste

We would also risk the disapproval of
governments, regulators and NGOs,

and our brands - Unilever s crown jewels
- could suffer reputatienal damage,
representing serious economic loss

to the business

That s why sustainaimlity 1s at the heart

of everything we do to ensure we have a
viable long-term business that s attractive
to investors
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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| AM PLEASED TO REPORT THAT 2014 WAS ANOTHER YEAR
OF PROGRESS FOR UNILEVER ACROSS A NUMBER OF FRONTS
DESPITE A DIFFICULT ENVIRONMENT FOR THE BUSINESS.

OVERVIEW

Tough economic and financial headwinds
with continued competitive Intensity made
2014 one of the most challenging years that
the industry and Unilever have faced for
some time A slowdown in the growth of
emerging markets proved a testing
envirenment while consumers in developed
markets continued to show caution Volatile
currencres were a further negative

However, Unilever s business model

and strategy proved robust, delivering a
competitive performance with underlying
sales growth ahead of the market and solid
margin expansion Our growth model 15
based on a leaner, more agile Unilever and
consistency of delivery in this more volatile
market 1s key The Boards remain
convinced that a ctear, purpose-driven
business model s the best way for Unitever
to continue generating sustainable,
long-term returns for all stakeholders,
including our shareholders as proved by a
year of strong, dependable cash flow and
steadily increasing dividends The full year
dwvidend paid in 2014 rose to €112 a ™%
Increase on 2013

HIGHLIGHTS
For me, the Boards highlights of 2014 were

DEEP UNDERSTANDING

OF THE BUSINESS

Investing Iin people and 1n innovation 1s
crucial in this tough environment To that
end, the Boards were pleased to spend time
at Unilever s new state-of-the-art training
facilityin Singapore and to see first-hand
the high-quality innovations being developed
for the Refreshment category at Unilever s
global R&D laboratory in Colworth, UK

The volatile currency environment made our
review of the Group s treasury operations
partcularly pertinent The Boards also spent
time assessing the quality of talent
management and Unilever s competitive
environment Broad exposure to serior
managers in 2014 allowed the Directors to
gain a deeper understanding of the business
and helped in the wider strategy discussions
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STRATEGIC DISCUSSIONS

The Boards held in-depth discussions with
management on strategy and portfolio
development with particular attention to
changing market dynamics especially in
emerging markets Despite the short-term
challenges the Boards believe the growth
story In these markets rernains intact

The challenges in developed markets

are no less mportant, one response to
which I1s our new Baking, Cocking and
Spreading Business Unit in Europe and
North America

The Boards also reviewed the progress
rmade under the Unilever Sustainable Living
Plan [USLP] The Directors are confident
that the USLP remains hugely relevant in
addressing today s global challenges and
will continue to be a long-term driver of
profitable growth for Unilever

BOARD COMPOSITION

AND SUCCESSION

We continue to work on succession planning
for both the Boards and management, and
thorough processes are In place

Our Directors bring complementary and
relevant skills to the Boards Inaddition to
wide global experience, these skills include
expertise on finance and accounting,
consumer markets science and technology,
customers and marketing as well as
government and legal experience

I m delighted that Ferke Sijbesma has
jeined the Boards with effect from

1 Novemnber 2014 Feike who has a wealth
of experience zs a sustainable business
leader and in finance, food and nutritien,
has already added considerably to the
Boards discussions

DIVERSITY

Over 40% of our Non-Executive Directors
are now women This 1s not surprising for
a Group that has long understood the
importance of diversity within the
workforce and wider value chain The
progress made in employee diversity over
recent years has been among the best in
our sector and led to widespread external
recognition

UNILEVER'S AUDITOR

Our shareholders appointed KPMG as our
new auditor at the AGMs in May 2014 and

a smooth and well managed transition has
been completed

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS

Our Board evaluation in 2014 was externatly
facilitated and the results were discussed
at the November 2014 Board meeting

The Boards continue to function well with
good leadership and competent and
engaged members Good progress has
been made on the actions agreed In
previous evaluations The actions agreed by
the Boards in the 2014 evaluation included
the continued focus on averall strategy,
porticlio management, and succession

and induction planning

SHAREHOLDER AND

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

In May 2014 we bought aut certain third
party rights that were convertible in 2038
into aver 70 million PLC ordinary shares
This simplified Unilever’s capital structure
and enhanced core earnings per share
Inaddition 1n 2014 we rolled out a new
employee share scheme to align our
employees interests with those of
sharehelders

Unilever values open, constructive

and effective communication with
shareholders In 2014, | again met with
principal shareholders :n Europe and

the US Together with management

we explained our strategy to shareholders
through meetings, conferences and at our
annual investor event

Inline with the focus on simplification in
the business the Boards have decided to
simplify the 2015 AGMs We will revert

to holding the NV and PLC AGMs on
consecutive days and will host our AGMs at
Unilever offices in the Netherlands and the
UK More information can be found within
the NV and PLC AGM Notices which will be
published on 17 March 2015
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STRATEGIC REPORT

The Boards objective 1s to meet high
standards of disclosure and we constder this
Annual Report and Accounts to provide a farr,
balanced and understandable account of
Unilever s year in 2014 with the infarmation
required to assess performance, business

model and strategy

This 2014 Annual Report and Accounts s
published in a two-part {crmat a stand-
alone Strategic Repori and a separate
Governance and Financial Report

Among many other things, this Strategic
Report explains how Unilever fulfils its core
Purpose of making sustainable Living
commonplace for consumers, socrety and
people and how that delivers sustainable
value for shareholders

Fimally on behalf of the Boards | woultd like
to thank all Unilever s 172,000 employees
for their hard work 1n delivering good
results in a challenging envirenment

Micha®l Treschow
Chairman

Far more information on Board evaluation and
shareholder engagement, see pages 42 and 45 of
the Governance and Financial Report
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please see page 54

ol the Gavernance and Financial

Report
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REVIEW

LRy Y Y T P Ty

UNILEVER CONTINUED TO GROW AHEAD OF ITS MARKETS IN
2014 AND RE-AFFIRMED ITS REPUTATION FOR CONSISTENT
TOP AND BOTTOM LINE GROWTH, ENSURING CONTINUED
RETURNS FOR INVESTORS. PAUL POLMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER, ANSWERS THE KEY QUESTIONS ABOUT 2014.

Q: HOW WOULD YOU SUMMARISE
2014 FOR UNILEVER?

A: In a volatile environment consistency

of resutts s key Our model calls for
consistent, competitive, profitable and
responsible growth With 2 9% underlying
sales growth, and good profit progress

this 1s the fifth consecutive year of top and
bottom line growth This was achieved
despite a challenging external environment

Our business I1s grewing ahead of our
markets with 60% gawning share and we
believe this growth 1s also competitive The
Unilever Sustainable Living Plan {USLP}
helps to ensure growth 1s responsible The
consistency of our delivery 1s underlined by
the fact that our average growth over the
last five years 1s 4 9% makeng us one of the
most reliable performers in our industry

Q: HOW WOULD YOU CHARACTERISE
THE EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT IN
WHICH YOU HAVE HAD TO OPERATE
OVER THE LAST YEAR?

A: Very challenging and among the most
difficult | can remember We certamly
faced more headwinds than taillwinds
For the first ume in many years, for
example, we had to confront the reality
of largely flat developed markets and
markedly slowing emerging markets
Indeed markets slowed from some
35% in 2013 to around 2 5% n 2014

At the same time, the world continued to
be rocked by a combination of geopolitrcal
instability and natural climate-related
disasters that have sadly become the norm

All of these add a cost to doing business,
which I1s why we believe that confronting
these 1ssues and leoking for solutions to
them - rather than just being buffeted by
events - 1s the only long-term wiabte growth
model Agility 1s equally important i this
erwironment and we have worked hard once
again te reduce complexity and evolve the
organisational model for speed and efliciency
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Q: WHAT PLEASED YOU MOST
ABOUT THE COMPANY'S
PERFORMANCE N 2014?

A: The ability to deliver results while
balancing the needs of our multiple
stakeholders The consistency of our
delivery even in these unusually volatrle
and uncertain conditions, helps It reassures
me that the fundamental piltars of the
business are strong and that we have
developed the resttience needed to compete
even in the most difficult circumstances

What pleased me specifically was that we
were able to take the short-term measures
necessary lo respond to events - further
tughtening our belts, for example, and
simplifying the organisation through
intratives like Praject Half for Growth —
while at the same time continuing to invest
in the long-term drivers of growth The
launches of some of our biggest brands into
new markeis - ke Omo in the Gulf, Clear
in Japan or Lifebuoy in China — were graat
examples of this

We also made a number of sirategic
acquisiions over the year to help strengthen
cur partfolio further the Talenti super-
premium ice cream business in North
America for example, and the Qinyuan water
purification business in China, both take us
Into some attractive segments of the market

RESHAPING OUR PORTFOLIO

twas equally delighted by the progress
we made during 2014 in (ncreasing our
proportion of female managers There s
much still to do but beating our stretching
targets and ending the year with women
representing 43 3% of ali managerswasa
great achievement and a real sign of the
commitment felt across Unilever to make
progress in this area Finally we have made
further progress on sustainable sourcing
decoupling growth from environmental
impact and increasing posttive social
impact throughout cur value chain This
has further enhanced our corporate
reputation and lowered risk and costs

Q: WHAT DID ALL THIS MEAN
FOR THE GROUP'S FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE?

A: Weakening consumer demand ceriainly
impacted cur underlying sales growth yet

it provided a great opportunity to accelerate
our efficiency effort Growth was therefore
profitable with an improvement in core
operating marg:n of 0 4 percentage points
driven by strong savings programmes
Tight control of working capital contributed
to another year of healthy cash flow delivery
[maere than €3 1 billion] which - combined
with the improvermnent in operating margen
- contributed to earnings per share [EPS)
growth of 2% [or 11% adjusted for

currency impact]

We continued to reshape our portfolio
in 2014 to ensure resources are best
utilised for growth In June we sold the
Ragu and Bertolli pasta sauces business
in North America for approximately

US $2 15 billion We invested capital

In growth opportunities by acquiring

a majority stake 1n the Ginyuan Group,
aleading Chinese water punfication
business This doubted our size In this
sector, addressing a fast-growing
consumer need and furthering our atm
to grow our business sustainably More
detals of our mergers and acquisitions
activity can be found on page 29
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Q: ARE THERE AREAS IN WHICH
YOU WOULD LIKE TO HAVE SEEN
MORE PROGRESS?

A: Even though we have made significant
strides over recent years (n improving our
organisational agility and our ability to
respond quickly 1o events, there ts still
reom for improvemnent | would Like to have
seen us react a litile quicker for example,
ta the slowdown in a number of markets
parucularly China, where frankly we were
caught off-guard by the speed and scale
of weakening consumerdemand In terms
of our categories all of thern contributed
- albeit in different ways - to the overall
performance of the Group and | have
confidence in the strength and long-term
growth potential of our portfalio

We took steps last year to sharpen the
portfolio even further with a number of
strategic acquisitions and disposal of
non-core brands although there is always
scope to do more and { would like to see the
level of activity accelerate in the year ahead
It1s atso clear that we still need to do more
to get our Foods category growing again,
although we are winning market share

Thus 1s a tough business to be in - with
much of our portfolio in flat or even
declining developed markets - but we have
to do more to leverage the strength of our
wonderful Foods brands and bring back the
growth momenturm By cantrast, while our
Home Care and Refreshment categaries
delivered good or solid growth we need to
increase the levels of cash and profitability
If we are to Invest in the many growth
opportunities These wilt all be priorities

in 2015

Q: HOW DID UNILEVER SERVE
THE INTERESTS OF ITS VARIOUS
STAKEHOLDERS IN 2014?

A: Meeung the diverse interests of multiple
stakeholders is a challenge for a company
of Urulever s size but also a great
opportunity given our Vision to grow in

a sustamnable and socially inclusive way
Once again, we made good progress

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014

INVESTING IN EMERGING MARKETS

Unilever s strategic cormmitment to
ermerging markets continued in 2014
with signmificant investments in brand
launches new production faciliies and
our operations

We underiook major launches of brands
including Lifebuoy into Chuna and Omo

There i1s no doubt that over the lang term
our investors have benefited tfrom their
continued belief in Unilever, with total
shareholder return increasing by a further
18% in 2014 Our employees remain a

key priority of course and, despite the
constrained economic environment, we
did net comprormise on our investments
m training, personal development, safely
and other employee support programmes
lt was heartening to see employee
engagement scares remain at historically
hugh levels in our annual Global Peopie
Survey [GPS], with improvements across
all five metrics

Itis also clear that the demand to Join
Unilever has never been greater We
recewved over 2 million applications

or expressions of interest 1n 2014 and

for the second year runmng Unitever
was ranked the third most in-demand
employer amang jobseekers on Linked|n,
behind anly Apple and Google as more
and more young people want to work for
purpose-driven organssations

into Saud Arabia and the Gulf region
Brazil saw the entry of the Baby Dove
range and Omo stain removers

In China we undertock arge capital
expenditure building a new dry savoury
plant and a new washing powder factory
In Indonesia, large-scale capital
investrnent was made in Siliwangl,
creating a plant for Cikarang Foods,
adding significant capacity to dry and
wel savoury production Inthe
Philippines & new dry savoury factory
was built Detergent and ice cream
factories were built in Africa

We are extending our distribution reach
In the outer Jslands of Indonesta, rural
india and the north and central west of
Brazil, while Singapore continues to be
a major hub for our development of
Uniever people at our Four Acres
training campus

We also made progress in our commitment
to serve a wider group of stakeholders
through the USLP and our Vision of
growing the business while reducing our
envirgnmental footprint and increasing
our posiive socral impact, not only in that
part of the business under our direct
control but throughout the whole value
chain This manifests itself in many
different ways — everything from playing
our partin putting an end to deforestation
to ensuring we embrace and advance
human rights principles throughout the
length of our supply chain You canseea
number of exarnples set out in other parts
of this report

twas pleasing to see our efforts
recoegnised once agatn in 2014 inctuding
regaining sector leadership in the
prestigious Dow Jones Sustainablity
Index [DJSI} and being ranked - for the
fourth year running - as the Number One
Company in the Globescan/SustainAbility
index of leading sustarnability experts
around the world
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of the Governance and Financial
Report

Q: WHAT DO YOU SEE AS THE
PRINCIPAL CHALLENGES FOR
UNILEVER IN THE YEAR AHEAD?

A: Operating w an environment of almast
unprecedented volatility and cornplexity
will remain a big challenge for everyone
Few people predicted that in 2014 we
would see such a sharp slowdown n
some of the major world economies or
the escalation of gecpolitical canflicts

or the outbreak of pandemics Like Ebola
and oil prices ending the year at lass than
US $50a barrel We must be prepared for
a similarly unpredictable year in 2015

The key 15 to have a model that responds
to people s needs and concerns, and an
organisation that Is both resilient and
agile in the face of growing econemic and
geopolitical uncertainty We achieved that
again in 2014 and | want to thank - and
recogrise - the supreme efforts of our
172 000 celleagues and the many more
partners around the world

Q: WHAT IS YOUR OUTLOOK
FOR 20157

A:We expect the econamic pressures

to continue Consumer derand in
emerging markets is Ukely toremain
subdued for some time to come There

is still ittle stgn of a recoveryin Eurape
and, while conditions in North America
have improved, any increase In consumer
dernand 1s likely to be slow and shoppers
will rernain focused on value

We are also prepared for managing

any contimuing volatiity on the world s
currency markets and for what could be
ftuctuations in commodity costs as a
result of the reduction in ol prices At
the same me we expect the levels of
competitive activity - both fram global
competitors and, increasingly, from
local players - to remain hugh in 2015

Despite these pressures, we are confident
that with the many positive changes we
have already made to Unilever we are
well placed to continue delivering our
objectives of volume growih ahead of

our markels, steady and sustarnable
Improvements in core operaling margin,
and strong cash flow

M

Paul Polman
Chref Executive Officer
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OUR PERFORMANCE
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IN 2014, DESPITE A CHALLENGING YEAR FOR OUR INDUSTRY,
WITH SIGNIFICANT ECONOMIC HEADWINDS AND WEAK

MARKETS, WE HAVE DELIVERED COMPETITIVE UNDERLYING
SALES GROWTH AND MARGIN EXPANSION.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Turnover was €48 4 billion down 2 7% with a negative impact irom
foreign exchange of 4 6%, and net acquisitions and disposals of

09% Underlying sales grew 2 9%

Gross margin declined 0 2 percentage points driven by currency-
related cost tncreases in emerging markets, partly offset by
pricing savings and mix such as margin accretive innovations

Core operating margin rose by 0 4 percentage points despite
maintaining brand and marketing investment at 14 8% of turnaver,
as overheads were reduced by 0 6 percentage points

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

+ Underlying sales growth of 2 9% was ahead of our markets
withvolume 10% and price 19%
¢ Emerging markets 57% of our business, grew underlying

salesby 5 7%

* Developed markets reported a decline in underlying sales of
0 8%, with price down 1 3% and volume up 0 5%

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

We report our performance against ten key performance indicators
(KPIs) - four financial and six non-financial - as shown below Our
financial KPls are described in more detail in the Financial review

starting on page 31

. S
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UNDERLYING SALES CORE OPERATING UNDERLYING YOLUME FREE CASH FLOW!
GROWTH? MARGIN# GROWTH#
2014 2014 2014 2014
2.9% 14.5% 1.0% €3.1siLLION
2013 4 3% 2013 141% 2013 2 5% 2013 €39 billion
Underlying sales growth over Core operating margin has Underlying volume growth Overthe last five years
five years has averaged 4 9% steadily increased over five averaged 2 9% over five years Unilever has generated free
years from 13 6% to 14 5% L cash flow of €17 7 biluon
s

. >y

KEY NON-FINANCIAL INDICATORS

¢ ™

MANUFACTURING

2014 2014 2014

@ o ]

92.02xc° 2.0 1.19kc’

2013 98 85kg** 2013 2 12m** 2013 2 Fokg®™

€0, from energy pertonne Water per tonne of production Total waste [sent for disposall

of production pertonne of production
. vy
s ' ™

TOTAL RECORDABLE DIVERSITY ENGAGEMENT

ACCIDENT FREQUENCY

RATE

2014 2014 2014 2014

oa

1.05 57+ 43 75%

2013 1 03" male female 2013 78%

Per 1 million hours worked 2013 58% 2013 42% Overall engagement score

The percentage of persons among managers who
of each sex who were participated tn our Globat

Y y \Umlever managers ) \People Survey in 2014 iy
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T These measures are non-GAAP
measures For further information
about these measures and the
reasons why we believe they are
important for an understanding
of the performance of the
business, please refer to our
comementary on non-GAAP
measures on pages 34 to 35

© PricewaterhouseCoopers [PwC)
assured Fordetails and the basis
of preparation see www unilever
com/ara2014/downloads

P Measured 1 October -
30 September

# Prior year restated toinclude
additional waste identified
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ABOUT US
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THIS SECTION EXPLAINS OUR BUSINESS - HOW AND WHERE WE
MAKE OUR PRODUCTS, HOW WE TAKE THEM TO MARKET AND HOW
WE ENSURE THAT OUR BRANDS REMAIN OUR CONSUMERS’ CHOICE.

1. CONSUMERS

INSIGHTS FOR INNOVATION

Afundamental requirement at Unitever is to
understand our consumers We use focus groups
and quantitative studies and spend time with
consumers In stores and in their homes to find out
what 1s important to them - as citizens as well as
consumers - $o we Can create products they need
and want Unilever carelines are alsc a rich source
of infermation Digital communications and social
media mean we can engage with large numbers of
pecple cons:stently over long periods of time sa we
can immerse ourselves in their day-to-day lives We
can use online search data to identify and anticipate
cture consumer trends and gain a competitive edge

J

—
2. INNOVATION

TECHNCLOGY AT WORK

R&D s an engine of sustainable growth, Unilever
spends around €1 billien on R&D annually Our 4,000
R&D professionals are responsible for bullding brands
through benefit-led innovation, which 1s unlocked
through science and technology This includes looking
at long-term emerging science and transforming
sctence into technologies which are used to design
branded products

4. SOURCING

SUSTAINABLE SOURCING

A dedicated team 1s respansible for Unilever s annual
€35 billion procurement programme, including
agricultural raw matenats In 2014 we rolled out our
Respansible Sourcing Policy {RSP] as part of our
commitment to business integrity openness, respect for
universal human rights and core labour principtes To
ensure that our suppliers embrace the RSP and move up
the continuous imprevement ladder our initial goal 1s for
our key Partner To Win suppliers, approximately 200 large
companiegs, to rmeet mandatory RSP critera by the end of
March 2015 We are also targeting our broader supplier
base to secure continuous IMprovement across the board

By the end of 2014 all palm o1l directly sourced for
Unitever s European Foods business was close to 100%
traceable and certified sustainable {over $8% in December
2014 and on track to be 100% by the end of March 2015)

By leading the industry s efforts to make sustainable palm
ol ubiquitous we help to halt deforestation and mitigate
the risk of rising commodity costs

J

3. COLLABORATION

PARTNER TO WIN

Te meet our Vision we know we must work in
partnership with others, such as suppliers
agencies unwersitles, gavernments and NGOs

The big development for 2014 has been the taunch

of our Partner To Win 2020 programime tc create a
supplier ecosystemwhere partners work with us and
each other to create breakthroughs in products

or packaging to deliver the capacity, Innavation and
sustainable solutions to meet our growth ambition

A great example 1s the new Dove Body Wash bottle
using 15% less plastic [see inside front cover)

8 Strategic Report

LESS PLASTICUSED
Unilever has waived exclusivity
o rights from 1 January 2015 sa that
L o other manutacturers can also use

the technolegy J
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OUR VALUE CHAIN

Unilever svalue chain - the process by
which we create brands, products and
ultimatety shareholder value - begins with
acquiring insight into consumers needs
which vary considerably between developed
and emerging markets

Insight requires close engagement with
consumers often over prolonged periods
and allows us to identify future trends to
gain a competitive edge

That knowledge helps us to target our
subsequent R&0 activities and our
investments in innovation Unilever has
filed more than 200 new patent applicaticns
in 2014 and our Partner To Win 2020
programme also launched in 2014, creates
a new platferm for us to wark with cur
suppliers in the development of product
and packaging innovations that capture
consurmers interest and attention

Bringing these innovations to market

as physical products 1s a core function

of Unilever s supply chain which employs
about 110 000 of our 172,000 pecple

[t also involves working with suppliers
around the world

Unitever itself manufaciures the majority
of its products and we maintain an
international network of 240 manufacturing
sites |n sourcing large amounts of raw
materials we also have a direct impact on
the environment By sourcing sustainably
we can protect scarce resources, ensure
secunty of supply for our business and
reduce price valatility while protecting the
environiment and enhancing people s
lives, which 1s at the heart of our Unilever
Sustainable Living Plan [USLP) More
detail can be found on page 11

By the time manufacturing Is under way
Unilever s marketing teams have worked
with our category experts to define the
complete marketing mix, including
communicailons that makes our brands
come alive Communicating the benefits
of our products and brands to consumers
1s Increasingly complex, with digital
communications and social media creating
new and more direct ways to engage
alongside traditicnal media

Our logistics operations move Unilever
products 1o retailers and our go-to-market
teams ensure that we get enough of the nght
products in the reght price bracket in the
right sales channels for consumers to buy,
be they stores or the fast-growing
e-commerce channet

(
5. MANUFACTURING

GLOBAL SCALE, LOCAL AGILITY

in excess of €400 million

_

We make the majority of what we sell through a network
of more than 240 manufacturing sites around the
world We have invested significantly in our factories in
recent years to create an efficient reliable and more
sustainable network We are now able to maximise the
global scale of our operations, while having the agility
to meet local demands Mare eco-efficient production
1s helping us meet the USLP targets, so by the end

of January 2015, for instance, all our factories had
achieved zera non-hazardous waste to landfill,
producing 140 000 tonnes less waste Since 2008

we estimate that eco-production has avoided costs

8.SALES

.

GO-TO-MARKET EXPERTISE

We work closely with retailers to win i the market place
and make sure that our brands are atways available
properly displayed and in the right price bracket Our
go-to-market capability ensures that we become the
supplier of chaice for our customers and trade partners,
through strong joint business planning and in-store
execution via Perfect Store programmes, to help deliver
sustainable sales growth Thisis essential for us to be
able to add premsum brand extenstons te our product
ranges land product innovaticns on the shelves,

enter new geographies and markets, and build our
distributien strength to reach new consumers

6. LOGISTICS

CENTRALISED LOGISTICS EXPERTISE

How we move products from factories to customers
s the role of our logistics operation We are now
rolling out our global network of logistics centres
that organise movement of goods centrally and
more effictently, delivering savings, reduced stocks,
reduced carbon emissions and iImproved customer
service These operational hubs now allow us to
centralise other services too, including monitoring
orders from customers through to payment

7. MARKETING

GENERATING CONSUMER-LED GROWTH

We spend about €7 billion annually on marketing,
making us one of the world s biggest advertisers
This ensures that our brands and products are
consumers first choice We use multiple media
to achieve cui-through in a highly competitive and
busy werld Traditional media channels continue
to play a big part but digital communications have
revelutionised the way marketing engages with
people, creating entirely new sales and marketing
opportunities We create our own entertainment
content, including Unilever brand advertising, and
this I1s distributed, for example by mobile devices

C0, SAVINGS FROM LOGISTICS
o Improvementin CO, efficiency
since 2010 measured across L In emerging markets J
k o 14 countries

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014
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ABOUT US

CONTINUED

OUR CATEGORIES AND BRANDS

Unilever s portfolio has four categories
Personal Care Foods Refreshment and
Home Care We have 13 brands with sales
of more than €1 billien Brands are our
biggest assei bui also present a risk.f they
do not maintain value and relevance to
consumers That s why innovation and
remaining competitive are crucial We
launched new brands in 2014, backed by
marketing and customer insight, for
example Regenerate, a dental care product
In additten to the Qinyuan and Talents Gelato
& Sorbetto acquisiiions we are also in the
process of acquiring the Camay and Zest
brands, to expand categories and boost
growth To sharpen our portfolio in 2014
we disposed of Slim Fast, Ragu and Bertolli
in North America, and other non-core
Focds brands

4 N [ N

Underlying sales growlh Underlying sales growth

3.5% (0.6) 3.8%

2013 73% 2013 03% 2013 1%

Core vperating margin Core operating margin

2013 17 8% 203 177% 2013 91%

Turnover Turnover Turnover

€17.7 siLLioN €12.4 siLLioN

e A 7

PERSONAL CARE FOODS REFRESHMENT
Underlying sales growth

Core operating margin

18.7% 18.6% 8.8%

€9.2 piLLION

HOME CARE
Underlying sales growth

5.8%

2013 8 0%

Core operating margin
6.3%

2013 6 4%

Turnover

€9.2 BILLION

2013 €8 9 billion

2013 €181 billion LZUH €13 4 billion 2013 €9 4 billion

WHERE WE OPERATE

Unilever s products sell in more than

190 countries and are used by 2 billion
consumers everyday Our businessis
organised across three geographies the
Americas, Europe, and markets comprising
Asia, Australasia Afrrca, Middle East,
Turkey. Russia, Ukraine and Belarus

We also analyse operations by developed
and emerging markets This wide spread
exposes us lo economic and politicat risks
beyond our control However, the diversity
of our portfolio and geographic reach help
mitigate our exposure to any specific risk

10 Strategic Report
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UNILEVER SUSTAINABLE LIVING PLAN

We cannot achieve our Vision to double our size untess we find
new ways to operate that decouple growth from our environmental
impact, while using growth as an enabler for positive social
impact Launched in 2010, the Unilever Sustainable Living Plan
(USLP) 1s our bluepnnt for sustanable growth 1t is helping to drive
profiiable growth for our brands, save costs and fuel innovation

The USLP sets out three big, ambitious goats Underpinning these
goals are nine comritments supported by targets spanning our
social and environmental performance

We are making good progress with our first goal to help more
than a billion people tnprove their health and well-being by
2020 reaching 397 million by the end of 2014 The progress

on cur second goal 1s more mixed We have achieved zero
non-hazardous waste to landiill from our facteries, and continue
to make significant reductions in the greenhouse gas [GHG)

and water impacts of our manufacturing But the consumer
element of our target to halve the water and GHG impacts of

our products remains a challenge Onwaste reduction, new
technology such as the roll-out of cornpressed deodorant sprays
and our new Dove Body Wash bottles has enabled reductions

On our third goal we are also making good progress We are
now sourcing rmore than half our agricultural raw materials
sustainably and have reached around 800,000 smallholder
farmers with help and traiming We have created 70,000 wornen
micro-entrepreneurs distributing our products i India while
making progress on our new commitments to enhance livelihoods

across the value chain

More on our performance against our targets can be found in our
online Sustainable Living Report 2014 to be published 1n May 2015

www unilever com/sustainable-living

the proportien of cur
portfolio that meets
the hughest nutnitionat
standards based on
globally recognised
dietary guidelines This
will help hundreds of

L AROUND 2% SINCE 2010

with the consumer use
of our products by 2020

OUR WATER IMPACT
PER CONSUMER USE
HAS REDUCED BY

By 2020 we will source
100% of our agricultural
raw materials sustainably

55% OF AGRICULTURAL
RAW MATERIALS
SUSTAINABLY

- B
IMPROVING HEALTH REDUCING ENHANCING
AND WELL-BEING ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT LIVELIHOODS
By 2020 we will help more thana By 2020 our goal 1s to halve the By 2020 we will enhance the
million people take action to Improve environmental footprint of the livelihoods of millions of paople
their health and well-being making and use of our products as we grow our business
as we grow our business
g N g ( D
(2.00tRimon | | (4 water 6. SUSTAINABLE 8.opPORTUNITIES |
By 2020 we will double Halve the water associated SOURCING FOR WOMEN

By 2020 we will empower
5 million women

WE TRAINED 70,000
WOMEN MICRO-
ENTREPRENEURS TO
SELL OUR PRODUCTS IN

than a billion people to
improve their health and
hygiene This will help
reduce the incidence of

gas impact of our
products across the
Lfecycle by 2020

assoclated with
the disposat of our
products by 2020

BY MARCH 2015 OUR KEY
STRATEGIC SUPPLIERS
{AROUND 200 LARGE

millions of peaple to SOURCED BY END 2014 LRUR.\\LINDIA BY END 2014

achieve a healthier diet - ’

33% OF OUR PORTFOLIO

BY YOLUME MET

HIGHEST NUTRITIONAL

L STANDARDS IN 2014 . o— -
7. FAIRNESS IN 9. INCLUSIVE
. N —e . THE WORKPLACE | | BUSINESS
1. HEALTH AND 3. GREENHOUSE . | By 2020 we will advance By 2020 we will have a
HYGIENE GASES [ 5. WASTE hurnan rights across our positive impact on the
* operations and extended lives of 5 5 millton people

By 2020 we will help more Halve the greenhouse Halve the waste supply chan

INPARTNERSHIP WITH
OUR AGRICULTURAL
SUPPLIERS AND OTHER
PARTNERS, WE HELPED

life-threatening diseases OUR GREENHOUSE GAS OURWASTE IMPACT PER COMPANIES) WILL MEET 800,000 SMALLHOLDER

like diarrhoea IMPACT PER CONSUMER CONSUMER USE HAS QUR RESPONSIBLE FARMERS GAIN ACCESS
USE HAS INCREASED BY REDUCED BY AROUND SOURCING POLICY'S TOTRAINING AND

AROQUND 397 MILLION AROUND 4% SINCE 2010 12% SINCE 2010 MANDATORY CRITERIA SUPPORT BY END 2014

PEOPLE REACHED BY - - . -\ —

gﬂg %%g"g::::gg Our Nutntion Water and Graenhouse Gases commitments, and Health and Hygiene targets for handwashing and safe drinking

ON HANDWASHING, water are independently assured by PwC For details and the bass of preparation see www unilever com/araz0i4/downioads

SAFE DRINKING
WATER, SANITATION,
ORAL HEALTH AND
LSl:'LF-ESTEEM

Our other commitments and targets are subject to internal vertfication For details of the definitions and reporting periods
used In Lthe preparation of these cammiiments and 1argets see our Sustainable Living Report 2014 to be published in May 2015
at www unilever com/sustainable-living

Our water metric measures the water we add to the product plus the water used by consumers with our products in seven water-
scarce countries From 2014 we are reporting against our five water-using sub-categories (laundry, hair care oral care skin
cleansing and household care} in these countries Of Unilever s 12 sub-categories these five represent 99% of our absolute water
impact [as measured by our metric)

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014
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OUR MARKETS
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UNILEVER OPERATES IN FAST MOVING CONSUMER GOODS
(FMCG) MARKETS WHICH INVOLVE THE MANUFACTURE,
DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING OF BRANDED PRODUCTS
ADDRESSING A BROAD RANGE OF EVERYDAY NEEDS
INCLUDING FOOD, REFRESHMENT AND HOME AND

PERSONAL CARE.

The top 25 compames in the FMCG market
have global sales of appraximately
US $870 bitlion

The market 1s characterised by high levels
of campention between brands and FMCG
companies are amang the world s biggest
advertisers, accounting for about a fifth of
all advertising expenditure

CONSUMER CONFIDENCE

Levels of consumer confidence are critical
to the FMCG market Confidence has
benetited from governments and central
banks around the world engaging invartous
economic support programmes since the
2008 financial crisis

12 Strategic Report

But in 2014 the major trend in global
consumpbion patterns was a marked
slowdown, evidenced by a fall in growth
rates in emerging economies, notably
China, which 1s now growing at its slowest
rate for five years, and Brazil, which s

In recessign

inflation and a nising cost of iving have
squeezed consumers in emerging markets,
while economies only narrowly missed
falling back inte recession in Europe A
small number of major markets, such
asthe USand UK saw better levels of
economic actmty but the outlook for
consumer confidence remains weak

This broad economic trend was reflected
In our markets, which grew at around 2 5%

CHANGING CONSUMER
HABITS: E-COMMERCE

E-commerce, driven by the rapid
take-up of smartphones and tablets,
1 anincreasingly significant
distribution channel In the retail
market, FMCG e-commerce sales are
grawing and account for 1 2% of total
sales, although on current trends this
IS expected to double to 2 4% by 2020

In some developed markets such
as the UK, e-commerce is already
up to 5% of FMCG sales

Online shoppers can be up to 25%
more loyal, while e-commerce

also offers FMCG companies the
opportunity of round-the-clock
shopping, access to new consumers,
impraved margins and easier
product launches

100-.

GROWTH IN THE FMCG E-COMMERCE
CHANNEL BY 2020

POLITICS AND COMMODITIES

The FMCG market s also sensitive to
geopolitical events which can hold back
growth such as the current situation in
Russia and Ukraine where sanctions and
poliical tensions are haveing an impact
on the market

A further area of exposure 15 raw material
and commodity prices, which drive the
industry s cost base Across many
emerging markets, devaluing currencies
have imported inflation Into local raw
matenal production

Elsewhere the oil price has been
trending down, compounding price
deflation in Europe

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014




COMPETITION

Some of the largest FMCG companies,
along with Unilever, nclude Nestlé,
Procter & Gamble LOreal, Danone,

Kraft Foods and Colgate-Patmolive All
have identified emerging markets as a
major growth opportunity in years ta come

0f growing influence in the FMCG markets
are discount stores which are providing
hierce competition 1o the incumbent
supermarket chains, most notably in

the US and Eurape
%
Y 3 0 0
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WORLD POPULATION GROWTH BY 2050

The expecled rise in world population highlights
the fact there wrll be 3 billion middle class
cansumers in the world as a source of growth for
FMCG compantes, but also the pressure being
placed on raw matenials and sustamnamlity

POPULATION TRENDS

The FMCG market s driven in part by
global population trends and demographic
changes within countries

World population 1s expected to rise to

8 billion by 2025 and, by then, mare than

4 billion will be part of the consuming class
For the first ime the number of people with
discretionary income will exceed the number
struggling to meet basic needs - a trend
described by management consultancy
McKinsey as possibly the biggest opportunity
in the history of capitalism

ENVIRONMENTAL PRESSURES
Population growth also places a strain

on the world s natural resources - the raw
materials that the FMCG industry relies
on to make its products

FMCG compantes are among the world s
largest buyers of commodities such as
agricultural products, natural oils and
fats, coflee, lea, paper and board

Cultivation of commodities such as palm oil
has contributed to deforestation which has
been a major factor behind climate change
This in turn has reduced the avartability of
raw matenals, increasing their price and
FMCG production costs

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014

While the world pepulation grew fourfold n
the 20th century, fresh water withdrawals
grew nine limes - which tughlights the threat
of water scarcity to the economic productian
and consumption of consumer goods

Numerous initiatives are under way

led by industry working in partnership

with governments and NGOs to place raw
malenial preduction on a sustainabte footing

Meanwhile, consumer trends are also
shifting towards responsible consumption,
and products defined or labelled as natural,
organic, ecological or {airly traded

Boston Consulting Group estimates that
two thirds of the US grocery sector market
growth comes from the responsible
consumption of products which are now
worth US $400 billion

The segment has grown about 9% a year
over the past three years and, in the UK,
Fairtrade products grew at 14% n 2013
versus overall growth of food spending
of lessthan 5 1%

HEALTH, HYGIENE AND NUTRITION
FMCG product development 15 also reacting
to consumers concerns about their own
health and well-being

Malnutrition ~ under and over nutnition - Is an
1ssue affectng the industry in both emerging
and developed markets This Is creating &
trend toward the manufacture of healthier
food products which either have fortified

THE ROLE OF WOMEN

Womnen play a pivotal rote in the
FMCG market, controlling the
majority of purchasing decisions
The promotion of women s rights
and opportumties has clear
long-term implications for the
FMCG market in terms of product
develapment and innovation
Significant developments such
as the UN s new Sustainable
Development Goals are expected
to accelerate these opportunities

ingredients to iImprove dietary quality or
address other dietary-related complaints
such as unhealthy cholesterol levels

Iniatives such as the UN s new Sustainable
Developrment Goals also have implications
for the industry Governments in emerging
markets, such as India have made
commitments to universal sanitation 1o
improve health and hygiene which will drive
increased use of personal and household
care products

DIGITAL MEDIA AND ADVERTISING GROWTH

FMCG advertising 1s rapidly migrating

o digital platforms, driven by the
take-up of smartphones and tablets
Global digitat advertising 1s estmated at
US $137 5 billton, or a quarter of total
advertising spend

The trend 1s being driven in developed
and also emerging markets where
mobile phones are proving to be one

of the most effective ways of delivering
advertising to indmiduals, particularly
in the most remote rural locations For
instance, large parts of rural India have
no, or very Limited, access to television,

printor radio However mobile phone
penetration and usage is high Asa
result, Unilever has launched Kan
Khapura Mobite Radio Stationin tndia,
which delivers radio content to mobile
phanes through the simple mechanism
of giving @ missed call

This mabile channel provides content
including Bollywaod movie songs,
dialogues and jokes that can be
accessed for free by the mobile user
The contenlis interspersed with
Unitever brand adverusing Data

and analytics are extensively used to
vary content to make it relevant and
interesting The channel reaches
approximately 10 million pecple
without a TVin Bihar and Jharkhand
states, making it one of the largest
media channels in these regions

The channel had 29 5 million users
by the end of December 2014, helping
Increase spontaneous awareness of
Unitever brands

Strategic Report 13




HOW WE CREATE SUSTAINABLE VALUE
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY COME TOGETHER TO
DELIVER VALUE FOR SHAREHOLDERS. HERE WE EXPLAIN
THEIR ELEMENTS AND HOW THEY ARE COMBINED.

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

14 Strategic Report
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OUR CORE PURPOSE

MAKING SUSTAINABLE LIVING COMMONPLACE

Our business model starts with our core Purpose which is a clear
expression of what we believe to be the best long-term way for
Unilever to grow Itis a simple Purpose to help us meet changing
consumer preferences and the challenges of a volatile uncertain,
complex and ambrguous world

R R Y ey T T T Y Y R R T R

KEY INPUTS

BRANDS, OPERATIONS, PEOPLE

Our business model works by combining three key inputs and
filtering them through the tens of the Unilever Sustainable Living
Plan [USLP) Our brands have significant value and succeed
through products that meet the needs of consumers Qur people
identify social and consumer needs to grow our brands, market
therm and manufacture and distribute them Our operations are the
essential supply chain functions and assets of raw material supply,
factones, logisucs, go-to-market expertise and marketing We
invest financial capital to support all these assels and activities

Ly Yy T Y YY)

HOW WE DRIVE PROFIT

PROFITABLE VOLUME GROWTH, COST LEVERAGE +
EFFICIENCY, INNOVATION + MARKETING INVESTMENT
Unilever aims for a virtuous circle of growth Profitable volume
growth is driven by investment in innovation and brands to deliver
products which 2 biltion consumers use every day We can leverage
this scale to spread fixed costs and improve profitability while
further investing in the business Thisinvestment funds R&D

and innovatian to create new and improved products backed by
marketing to create even stronger brands This drives profitable
volume growth and the virtuous circle continues

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014




OUR STRATEGIC FOCUS

OUR
FINANCIAL
GROWTH
MODEL

OUR STRATEGIC
VISION

OUR STRATEGIC
CHOICES

( DOUBLE THE SIZE ( (
OF OUR BUSINESS PERSONAL CARE SALES GROWTH
REDUCE OUR HOME CARE MARGIN IMPROVEMENT BRAND PREFERENCE
ENVIRGNMENTAL FOODS EARNINGS PER SHARE TALENT
FOOTPRINT REFRESHMENT FREE CASH FLOW SUSTAINABILITY
INCREASE OUR POSITIVE EMERGING MARKETS DIVIDENDS
SOCIALIMPACT \ J L
. v | |
' 47 N A r ) a )
OUR STRATEGIC VISION OUR STRATEGIC CHOICES OUR FINANCIAL OUR KEY RISKS
Cur Vision provides These are the choices GROWTH MODEL Our business faces risks
leadership and direction Unilever makes to maximise All our activity combines which we actively mitigate
for Unilever and the people value from our business to deliver the single goal through our various
operating our business model and drive returns to of creating shareholder operations Our success
model We aim to double shareholders We operate value 2014 has witnessed 1s at risk if our brands and
the business with innovative across four categories and challenging econarmic and products do not remain
brands backed by marketing focus resources on growing financial conditions but of value and relevance to
and briliant execution and our brands n each of them we have still detivered a consumers ltisalsoat risk
a best-in-class supply chamn around the world We are competitive performance if we fail to maintain a skitled
We will achieve our social committed to growing in with underlying sales growth workforce Long term,
and envirgnmental ambitions emerging markets which of 2 9% and an improvernent Unilever s at risk if we do not
through the USLP which retain good long-term in core operating marg:n find more sustainable ways
helps to identify areas of growth prospects partly driven by cur cost of doing business to ensure
opportunity for brand-led ) saving Initiatives We growth, mitigate cost
growth, cost savings and continue to be highly cash pressures and support the
future profit generative to help fund good reputation of the Group
J investment and growth with and our brands A rmore
free cash flow remaining comprehensive definition
strong at €3 1 billion We of our principal risks can be
have paid a total dividend found on pages 36 and 37
of £112 per sharen 2014, . J
a 7% increase over 2013
S

( UNILEVER SUSTAINABLE LIVING PLAN

The USLP s our key differentiator - how we wilt achieve sustainable growth by improving J/
the health and well-being of more than a billion peaple, reducing the environmental

footprint of the making and use of our products, and enhancing the Livelihoads of mitlions

of people across our value chain

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014 Strategic Report 15




DELIVERING VALUE FOR
OUR STAKEHOLDERS

THE FOLLOWING PAGES SPELL OUT HOW
UNILEVER HAS PERFORMED FOR THE BENEFIT
OF OUR CONSUMERS, WIDER SOCIETY, OUR
PEOPLE AND OUR SHAREHOLDERS IN 2014.

CUR CONSUMERS

In 2014 many consumers have faced
tough conditions as economic uncertainty
has held back growth around the world,
both in the developed markets and
inemerging markets Meanwhile
consumption continues to be linked to
many of the world s biggest problems

- deforestation, cbmate change, water
scarcity, malnutrition and unhealthy diets

However, each of our categories continues
to iInnovate to meet the challenges posed
by these trends and changing consumer
preferences, such as products that are
sustainably sourced Whether it's laundry
products which use less water or
compressed cans for decdorant packaging
with 25% less aluminium, consumers

are reacting posittvely to our innovations
PAGES18TO 21

SOCIETY
Acting alone Unitever can only do so much
to make sustainable living commoenplace
Acting in partnership with others it can
help bring about transformational change
at a societal level to tackle the world's
major social, environmental and economic
issues By adopting a leadership role,
and working with governments, NGOs,
suppliers and others, we are influencing
change on a bigger scale, with a much
bigger prize for the business on offer
We are deepening our efforts in three
areas where we have scale, influence
and resources to create transformational
change deforestation, sustamnable
agriculture and smallholder farmers,

IT TAKES AVILLAGE and water, sanitation and hygiene
PAGES 22 TO 24

Our Flora Pro activ 1t Takes

AVillage campaign to lower

cholesterol 1s teatured on page 19

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014

DUR PEOPLE

Delivering our business goals requires
Unilever to recrust, develop and retain the
right talent We are determined to help alt
our people to be the best they can be, 1o
help fulfil their potential and the potential
of the business Traiming and development
are crucial at all levels and we strive to
create a working environment that
respects the human rights and interests
of all our employees Ensuring gender
equalty is a fundamental part of our
approach while our Purpose of making
sustanable living commonplaces a
commitment that our peeple can engage
with every day and make a reality through
their work

PAGES 25 TD 27

OUR SHAREHOLDERS

We aim to deliver the best possible
operational performance from the
business to deliver maximum returns to
shareholders The resulting investrment
case of long-term, sustainable growth
and improvement in returns i1s clear

How we manage our portfolio of assets
and finances 1s an important contributor
to sharehoider returns and reflects how
the business 1s changing to meet a more
volatile and uncertan world

PAGES 28 T0O 30
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OUR CONSUMERS

PERSONAL CARE

Personal Care ts Unilever s largest
category |tincludes five of Unilever s 13
€1 billion brands global names such as
Dove, Rexona, Axe, Lux and Sunsilk

Sales of €17 7 bilion 1n 2014 accounted for
37% of Group turnover and 41% of operating
profit The strategic role of the category s
to generate continued excellent returns,
delivering competitive growth while
expanding gross margins to release
further investment for future growth

Qur Personal Care brands serve
consumers across the full range of price
pomts playing to the category s historic
strengths of devetoping markets and
reaching down while very deliberately
adding a2 new dimension to the business
through accessing faster growing
premium segments

We also continue to expand our presence
by taunchuing our brand portfolio in new
geographic markets and by improving our
presence i distribution channels where we
are under-represented Our current focus
I1s the e-commerce channel and specialist
drug stores

In 2014 the global market stowed In this
context, Personal Care achieved 3 5%
growth and continued to gain market share

Many of our leading brands have enjoyed
success Dove, our biggest brand, delivered
another year of strong performance, driven
by double-digit growth in deodorants and
consistent perfermance n skin cleansing,
which is rooted in a successful repeatable
mcdel of compelling communication and
targeted mnovation in bar and body wash

In hair, Dove s success was helped by the
strong start of the Advanced Hair Care
range launched in the US and Europe The
brand s atso building a prermium offering
with, for example, its new Oxygen Moisture
hatr care range in Eurcpe and the launch of
Dove Advanced Care solid deodorant slicks
inthe US

We also made progress against our
Unilever Sustainable Living Plan [USLP]
commitment te Improve opportunities for
women with the Dove Self-Esteem project
which has already reached over 15 million
peaple The brand partnered with the World
Association of Girl Guides and Girl Scouts to
launchthe Free Being Me Girl Guides

REGENERATE - NEW PRODUCTS, NEW MARKETS

18 Strategic Report

badge awarded to giris taking part

in education on common body myths
Also working to improve livelthoods,
Lifebuoy soap continues to drive the
largest handwashing behavioural
change programme in the world having
reached 257 million people in mare than
16 countries between 2010 and 2014

We made less progress on the USLP target
of reducing our water foctprint Research
and development will be critical to finding
commercially viable and sustainable ways
of driving the necessary changes in
consumer behaviour when using our hair
and skin cleansing products

“ens
sat .
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LIFEBUOY GROWTH IN 2014

Lifebuoy enjoyed 15% growth, helped by the
re-launch in South Asia of the core range,

with ANS (Activ Naturol Stueld) - a patented
combination of synergishic naturalingredients -
proven to protect againsl ten infechion-causing
germs We also entered China wilh the brand

in 2014 More detasled coverage of Lifebuoy s
success and its contribution te our USLP can

be found on page 24

Regenerate, a campleiely new Personal Care brand,

was launched in the UK 1n 2014 It s a highly differentiated,
oral care system based on revolutionary science and
market-leading technology

Regenerate s the first dental care system ta regenerate tooth
enamel mineral, reversing the early enamel erosion process
The products work using our patented NR-5 technology and
teok scientists nine years of research across our R&D facilities
in Port Suntight, Milan and Shanghai to master At each use,
the NR-5 specific ingredients combine to {orm a fresh supply
of enamel mineral which wraps and integrates on o teeth

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014




FOODS

Faods 1s a €12 4 bitlion category, home
to Unilever s largest brand, Knorr, and
several €1 bilbon-plus brands including
Hetimann s and Farily Goodness
(Rarma/Blue Band)

The category accounts for 25% of Group
turnover and 45% of operating profit and its
strategic role Is to accelerate growth while
maintaining above average cash and profit
To that end we continued the sale of
non-core businesses, such as Ragu and
Bertolli pasta sauces in North America,
and the meat snacks business under the
Bifi and Peperami brands in Europe, while
posiioning the remaining business for
organic growth and expansion, especially
In emerging markets

While the category improved profitability,
sales were affected by a continued
deterioration in market conditions,
particularly for margarine where the decline
in bread consumption has had an impact

on the spreads markels in Europe and
North America which remarn challenging

The undertying picture saw improved
competitiveness though, with global
market share gains in savoury, dressings
and margarine, as well as strong
performance in our Food Soluticns
business, which1s tocused on serving
professional, sut-of-home channels

In saveury, Knorr continued to expand its
presence in emerging markets accounting
for 50% of sales, with the hrand enjoying
double-digit growth in South Asia, North
Alrica, the Middle East and Turkey Also
brands like Royco and Bango, catering to
local market needs, registered good growth
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Knerr continues to spearhead
the sustainability agenda in
Foods, with more than 0% of
our 13 most used vegetables
sustainably sourced ‘Knorr
Landmark Farms’ use

and promote advanced
sustainable farming
practices, there are 451n
operation globally, almost
twice the number than in
2013, demonstrating the
brand’s commitment to
sustainable agriculture,
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IT TAKES A VILLAGE

Our Foods business plays animportant
rate in delivering the USLP goals,
particularly improving health and
well-being, by delivering commercially
attractwe brands to meet consumer
needs [n 2014 we continued the global
roll-out of the It Takes AVillage imitiative
under leading brands such as Becel and
Flora Pro activ

The campaign shows that, with small
changes to diet and lifestyle, cholesteral
can be significantly reduced in three
weeks and more than 80% of people
who have participated have achieved
this result

Consumers continue to enjoy Knorre
which i1s growing, supparted by its
commitment to sustatnability Qur target
15 to source 100% of our agricultural
raw materials sustamnably by 2020

In spreads, we accelerated the roll-out of
our successful melange range (blends of
vegetable oils and butter], such as Rama
with Butter, into 20 markets

Overall the markets in Europe and North
America remaimned challenging and our
margarine business declined To address
this we announced the creation of a
stand-alone Baking, Coclung and Spreading
Business Unitin these regions, which

will be fully operational by the riddle of
2015 The aimns to return to growth through
greater management focus, speed and
agility in executing the strategy

Growth in dressings was broad-based,
thanks to pasitive contributions from all
key brands and segments mayonnaise,
ketchup and mustard

Z
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HELLMANN’S - AWORLO-LEADING BRARD

Hellmann s, the world s No 1 mayonnaise
brand, kept pushing into new markets,
successfully taunching in Portugal and the
Netherlands We also continued to venture into
new channels and locations with the exclusive
Maille brand, including a new store opening In
New York, the brand s first stand-alone
boutique outside Europe

Strategic Report 19




OUR CONSUMERS

CONTINVED

REFRESHMENT

Refreshment generated €9 2 billion in sates
It includes ice cream brands such as Wall s,
Magnum, Cornetio and Ben & Jerry s, and
tea brands Lipton, Brooke Bond and PG tips
Lipton, Magnum and Heartbrand (Wall s}
are all €1 billion brands

The category accounts far 19% of Group
turnover and 7% of operating profit, and its
strategic role1s to contribute to growth and
improve profitability

Our ice cream brands grew well i 2014,
and ahead of our markets, helped by
emerging couniries, with strang growth
inBrazil Turkey Indonesia South Africa
and the Philippines
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tn 2014 we fulfilled our
commitment to ensure that all
our children’s ice cream brands
were 110 calories or less per
serving, driving growth in Asia,
offering a better choice for
parents and contributing to our
USLP goal of improving health
and well-being
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Narth America s one of the largest
geographues for ice cream where
cansumption s high but the market s
challenging with regronal and local
supermarket brands operating at low
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AISLES OF JOY

prices and low margins Although profitable
growth has been tough, our business has
shown the best iImprovement in several
years We have premiumised the pertfolio,
aided by innovations such as Ben & Jerrys
Cores and Breyers Gelato Towards the end
of 2014 we annaunced the acquisition of
Talenti Gelato & Sorbetto

Eurcpe witnessed poor summer weather but
we managed to grow sales and market share
ina flat market The 25 Year celebration of
Magnum drove growth while innovations
included downsized packs to enter the
snacks market, such as the €1 Cornetto, and
aresponsible approach ta nutrition with all
children s ice creams now 110 calories or
less Magnum also now has more than 70%
of its cocoa sustainably sourced from
Ramforest Alllance certified farmers

Unitever s Atsles of Joy iniiative
based on the Wall s brand, drives
in-home consumption of ice cream
around desserts and special
occasiens |t1s a good exampte of our
go-to-market expertise to ensure that
Unilever brands enjoy best positicning
and visibility in steres which drives
ice cream sales growth

Aisles of Joy has been rolled out
across both developed and emerging
markets In Eurape a partnership with
Carrefour saw 400 stores adopt Aistes
of Joy

Performance in leaf tea was mixed Our
strategy is to (nnovate with premium,
higher quality teas and new formats, such
as capsules Uike those usedin coffee
machines Lipton K-Cup® tea capsules
were launched in 2013 into the US and led
a growth improvement in 2014

Liptonintends io grow all its tea on
Rainforest Alliance certified estates by
2015 Total beverages performance was
lower than expected partly due to the low
momentum of AdeS growth post the
product recaltin 2013

Our recent premium tea acquisition T2
has demonstrated strong growth In
Australia and New Zealand of 26%
Globally retail sales have grown 31%
in a difficult retail emnironment
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Last year we bought T2, a
premium tea brand. In 2014 we
opened T2 stores, which retail
tea and tea ware products, in
Shoreditch, the King's Road and
Westfield in London, and SoHo
in New York, with a further eight
stores planned in the UK in 2015.

L Ny Y F Y Y Y

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014




HOME CARE
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The Cleanipedia online
platform, currently available
in Argentina, Brazil, Indonesia,
India, the UK, Russia and
across the Gulf, leverages the
years of expertence of our
household care brands, such
as Cif, Domestos, Persil, Omo
and Comfort, to provide advice
and solutions for the specific
cleaning and housekeeping
needs of our consumers.
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Home Care s a €9 2 billion category with
nearly 80% of sales coming from emerging
markets, making it well positioned for
tong-1erm growih lts products cover fabric
clearung, with €1 billion brands such as Omo
and Surf, as well as fabric conditioners such
as Comfort, and household care including
Domestos - a praduct which typtfies the
success of Unilever s brands with purpose

Mare on the role Domestos plays in driving
social change 1s on page 24

The category has delivered strong top line
performance consistently, with growth
averaqng 8 1% per annum over the last
four years Evenin the tough operating
conditions of 2014 1t has had an underlying
sales growth of 3 8%, well ahead of the
market The growth has been broad-
based, with our household care business
continuing 1ts streng performance, as we
continued to expand our presence across
markets Laundry also grew strangly, with
our brggest laundry brand Oma entering
the Gulf markets in 2014

Pureit, our water purification business,
continued to make rapid strides, with an
underlying sales growth of 20% The
acquisition of the Qinyuan business adds
to our capabilities in this area, giving us
greater scate and presence in China

However, overall category margins were
under pressure, due to a combination

of competitive battles and currency
devaluation in the emerging markets,
which together had a significant impact
on our costs

ECO-PACKS AND THE ENVIRONMENT
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In laundry, we are rolling out our
concentrated Liquid brands in eco-packs
which drive growth, increase the benefit
we deliver to our consumers and improve
our profitabitity while at the same time
reducing our environmental impact

Eco-packs use less plastic, meamng up
to 70% less plastic used and a 50-85%
reductian in greenhouse gases per
consumer use Simultaneously,

The category s strategic role s to increase
the value it generates for Unitever by
continuing 1o grow ahead of the market
whila increasing our operaling margins
over ime

We are well pasitioned for growth as we
look to cater to the opportunities that
emerge as a result of global trends Qur
footprint and strong competitive positien in
emerging markets are strong taiwinds and
we are identfying segments that emerge
One such segment 1s wash additives, a
segment which 1s already approximately
12% of the fabric cleaning market in some
parts of the developed world and one we
have entered in 2014 1n Brazil

Opportunities to upgrade consumers to
newer benefits and more convenient
formats not only drive growth, but also
Increase our operating margins by
wnproving the muix of products we sell

A continued focus on delivering our
low-cost business model, which unlocks
5avings across our entire operations,
will also contribute to margin expansion
gving us the confidence that we can
deliver on our strategic role of increasing
the value we generate for Unitever
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2014 saw the launch of wash
additives in Brazil, under the
Omo brand name. The product
delivers a significant
improvement in the quality of
wash delivered in a machine,
especially on stain remaoval,
and marks our entry into the
wash additives and ancillaries
segments.
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areduction In plasuic packaging delivers
a signihicant cost saving, allowing us to
pass on lower costs to our consumers
and improve the categary profitability
Overall, eco-packs have a significantly
lower impact on the environment
compared to traditional packaging

Having launched eco-packs in the UK, ltaly

and Switzertand, we are airming to launch
them across Europe in 2015
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SOCIETY

In September 2015 the UN witl agree a

new set of Sustainable Development Geals
In December Paris hosts the next major
UN Cumate Change Summit The close link
between human development and cimate
will focus the world on growth that 1s more
Inclusive, sustained and sustainable

With thus in mind 1n 2014 Unilever examined
where It can bring about improvements
ona larger societal scale by creating
transformational change in key areas
relevant ta qur business These are

+ the elimination of deforestation,

+ championing sustamable agriculture
and the development of smallholder
farmers, and

¢ mproving health and hygiene thraugh
handwashing, safe drinking water
and sanitation

Later in this sectton we have highlighted
new related areas of Unilever activity under
way In 2014 that are of broad benefit to
society, Including our work on behalf of
wormen, which will continue to develop in

the next few years

THE BUSINESS CASE

FOR SUSTAINABILITY

Sustainability 1s an integral part of our
bustness model [t meets growing consumer
preference for responsible cansumption and
retallers own sustainability targets It acis
as a catalyst for innovation thus developing
new markels and 1s aninspiration to
Unilever s current and future employees

Alleviating social problems, such as the
lack of effective sanitation safe drinking
water and related hygiene 1ssues, hetps
comimunities while increasing sales of
brands like Domestos Pureit and Lifebuoy

Access to sustainable and plentiful raw
materials reduces volatulity and mitigates
risk More efficient use of energy and the
development of packaging with less plastic
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further reduces costs Brand reputation is
defended and enhanced

DEFORESTATION - 2014

A DEFINING YEAR

Unilever 1s one of the world s biggest
buyers of palm oil as a raw material for
use tn a number of our Foods and Personal
Care brands Palm oilrs recognised as

one of the four major commodihies driving
deforestation, which contributes up to 15%
of the world s greenhouse gas emissions

We have committed to scurce 100% of
our patm oil sustainably from certified,
traceable sources by 2020 We also set
ourselves the ambition that, by the end
of 2014 all the palm il we buy would

be traceable to known sources On that
ambition we stll have work to do but

we have achieved a sigmificant milestone
in our European Foods bustness

In June 2014 Unilever along with fellow
members of the Consumer Goods Forum,
called on heads of state for a binding global
climate change deal InSeptember 2014 we
helped facilitate the New York Declaration
on Forests at the UN Climate Summit where
more than 170 governments, companies
and NGOs pledged to cut forest toss by hatf
by 2020, end 1t by 2030 and restore 350
rmutlion hectares of degraded land

Also In the same month, Unitever and

the World Resources Institute announced
a partnership aimed at increasing
transparency in agricultural commodity
supply chains This will enable Unilever
and our suppliers to use the Global Forest
Waltch Commaodities platform to monitor
forest cover change around commodity
supply areas and processing facilities
such as patm oil mills

Unilever s work in moving from commutment
ta actionin combating deforestation has
been recognesed In November we were
ranked joint first for corporate action on
tackling deforestation in our sector by COP,
formerly the Carban Disclosure Project

The COP report was produced on behalt

of 2401nvestors, who together represent
US $15 trilion in assets, and analysed the
disclosures of 152 companies from around
theworld |t saild "Companies that regularly
respond to CDP s forests program are

now identifying many more opportunities
available to them, including securing their
supply chan against the risks associated
with deforestation and commodity

sourcing This in turnis helping to secure
shareholder vatye ”

PALM OIL IN FOODS - A UNILEVER BREAKTHROUGH

In 2014 we were able to announce a
significant achievement that by the end of
the year all palm ol directly sourced for
Unitever s European Foods business was
close to 100% traceable and certified
sustamable lover 98% in December 2014
and on track to be 100% by the end of
March 2015)

On a global level Unilever 1s working
hard to drive transparency in the palm

oll supply chain We now have visibility
of about 1,800 crude palm o1l milis,
representing arcund two thirds of all
mills in the global palm ol industry We
can also demonstrate traceability to a
consumer product, which five years ago
appeared unachievable This represents
a considerable breakthrough for
Urulever and the food industry generally

Unilever is determined to work

with the palm oil industry to drive
deforestation out of its supply chain
Knowing the ortgin of palm oil 1s vital
to halt deforestation

We want to build on our progress in
Europe by repeating the achievement
internationally One of the next steps 1s
our new precessing plant in Sey Mangke,
ndonesia The plant s a significant
investment to source palm ol from
known and certified sources for our
global use
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SUSTAINABLE AGRICULTURE

AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF
SMALLHOLDER FARMERS

In 2014 Unilever enhanced its Unilever
Sustainable Living Plan [USLP] by
introducing new pillars to its goal of
enhancing livelihoods These were farness
inthe workplace where we will advance
human rights across our operations and
extended supply chain, opportunities for
women where we will empower 5 rmiltion
women by 2020, and inclusive business,
where we will have a pesitive impact on
the tives of 5 5 million people by 2020

This latter commutrent includes improving
Ivelihoods of smatlholder farmers and

links directly to our USLP goal of reducing
our environmental impact through
sustainable sourcing

Around half of Unilever s raw materials
come from farms or forests so sustainable
agriculture Is a strategic priority

Smallholder farmers produce 70% of the
world s feod and make up 85% of the
world s tarmers Most grow thesr crops on
less than two hectares and are often cut
off from training so lack knowledge of how
10 maximise incomes by improving their
agricultural practices Many of our
smallholder {armers are wornen

Through our own supply chain, our suppliers
and our NGO partners, we are providing
help and traimng to 800 000 smallholders to
enable them to adapt sustainable practices
This helps them to increase yields, increase
profits, invest and become more competitive
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The tax Unilever pays 1s an
important part of its wider
economic impact and plays a
key role in the development of
countries where we gperate.
We are supportive of
international tax reform and
believe public trust in tax
systems for coampanies is
essential. We have published
a set of global tax principles
covering issues including
transfer pricing, use of tax
havens and relationships with
tax authorities that represent
good corporate practice They
also balance the interests of
our vartous stakeholders.
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while Unitever benefits from better yields
sustainably produced crops and security of
raw material supply However, assessing
the impact of our programmes on farmers
tivelihoods ts a complex area and our
challenge 1s te find a practical and
cost-effective means to demonstrate this

Our Unilever Sustainable Agriculture Code
1s used by our own suppliers to drive these
improvements but 1t 1s also a benchmark
for other companies and organisations
encouraging broader change

In February 2014 we signed a five-year
partnership with the International Fund for
Agricultural Development [IFAD] to improve
the livelihoods of smallholder farmers
Signed by IFAD President Kanayo F Nwanze
and our CEQ, Paul Polman, the partnership
aims to help improve food security, by
raising agricultural preductivity and

linking farmers 1o markeats

In January 2014, we signed a partnership
with our supplier Symrise, and overseas
development agency GIZ to source vanilla
from Madagascar The pragramme is set
to benefit 4,000 farmers in 32 villages

In 2014 we published our Respansible
Sourctng Policy [RSP) The RSP embodies
our commitment to conduct business with
integrity, openness, and respect for
urwersal human rights and core labour
principles The RSP breaks new ground by
defrning a continuous improvement ladder
to help our suppliers move from a base
level of do noharm to good practice and
ultimately up to best practice andas such
is intended progressively to replace our
Supplier Code in our dealings with key
suppliers The new code has been

SCIENCE AND
SUSTAINABILITY

Unilever 1s one of the world s biggest
tea suppliers with brands such as
Lipton, PG tips and Brooke Bond We
are helping to safequard the world s
tea supply through an R&D programme
to cultivate sustainable varieties

Our partnership with Nature Source
Genetics uses plant breeding to meet
global demand while supporting
communities that rely on the crop

for income The aim s to enhance
productivity, quality and overall
sustainabrlity, and help stem any
decline in crop diversity that could
bmit its ability to withstand drought,
disease and pests

introduced to the supply base through
communicatians and engagement from
Procurement, and also through targeted
events in cntical markets such as Brazil,
China and Vietnam
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SOCIETY

CONTINUED

DOMESTOS - IMPROVING
SANITATION AND SALES

Domestos has led our efforts on
sanitation in partnership with UNICEF
Our brand, together with the Unitever
Foundation, supports UNICEF s
Comimuruty Approaches to Total
Sanitation {CATS) programme which
aims to eliminate open defecation

by changing peopte s behaviour and
promoting demand for sanitation
Domestos contributed 5% of its
average proceeds from specially
marked bottles on sale In certain
markets to UNICEF Domestos sales
continue to grow strongly and were
up 73%m 2004

WATER, SANITATION AND HYGIENE

In hus first independence Day address in
2014, Narendra Modi, India s new Prime
Minister, made a commiiment that by 2019
every Indian would have access to a toret
The promise highlights that about 2 5 billon
people globally are without access to
adequate sanitation, good hygrene and safe
drinking water There are sull 44 countries
in the world where less than hali the
population has access to adequate
sanitation facilities 800,000 children die
every year from diarrhoea caused by unsafe
water, and poor sanitation and hygiene

Translormational change 1s needed to
combat these issues Unilever 1s uniquely
placed to hetp because of our expertise In
cansumer behavtour change, our global
reach and our portfolio of health and
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hygiene brands, including Domestas,
Lifebuoy and Pureit, our waler purifier
However, bringing about widespread,
sustainable behaviour change is not
something we can do alone sowe need to
waork closely with governments, NGOs,
acadermia and funding partners to increase
our reach and impact

In 2014 we comimitted to help 25 mitlion
people gain improved access Lo a toilet

by 2020 By helping people who don't
have a toilet to get one and by prometing
the benefits of using a clean toilet, we will
open new markets and drive demand for
aur products

Lifebuoy has long champianed the health
benefits of handwashing with scap and
aims to change the hygiene behaviour of

1 bilion consumers across Asia, Africa
and Latin America To achieve this
ambition, we have to find ways to scale up
ocur programmes we need to develop
tower cost, mass-scale behaviour change
approaches and expand our partnerships
and co-mnvestment models Lifebuoy

has enjoyed four years of sequential
deubte-digit sales growth

EMPOWERING WOMEN

Women are the majority of our consumer
base and their purchasing decisions are
pivotal to our growth They are strongly
represented in aur agricultural supply
chains and in the distribution of our brands
to market Atthe same time we are a large
employer and need the best available talent
to succeed in our business goals

But women around the world face
discrimination and disadvantage, lack
access to skills and training, and face
obstacles to economuc participation

Our approach starts with respect for

the reghts of women such as safety,

and extends to their promotion as well

as helping to develop skills and open
opportumities, both in our own aperations,
where 43% of managers are women, and
in our value chamn

To this end we are implernenting the UN
Wornen s Empowerment Principles across
our business These principles reinforce
the direct action we are also taking as

a business
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We believe we can create a
brighter future for our children.
Project Sunlight 1s a growing
community of people who
believe it is possible to build

a world where everyone lives
well and lives sustainably.

The campaign continues to
engage people In programmes
that can help to contribute

to a #brightfuture - almost
180 mullion “acts of sunlight’
were pledged by the end of
December 2014

www projectsunlight com
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Fornstance in Sekondi, Ghana, a
three-day workshop by the Unilever Ghana
Foundation taught 60 women how to think
and act Lke entrepreneurs, coached them
1n bookkeeping procedures, and cash and
working capital management This brings
to more than 700 the number of wormnen
trained in Ghana and supports Unilever s
commitment to empower 5 million
women by 2020

To date we have trained and recruited

mere than 3,400 women from nearly 1,100
villages in Pakustan as part of the Guddi Ba)
[ Good Sister | programme This iniiative
helps increase sales as well as generating
sustainable mcomes for women through
the sale of Unilever hygiene and personal
care brands and through the provision of
beauty services to other local women

In India, recruiting and traiming more
women entrepreneurs (Shakt Ammas)
were central to our rural expansion in
2014, reaching more remote villages

Our programmes also hetp young wormen
and men Our Wall s team has developed a
youth employment programme, known as
Feet on the Street , to help tackle the youth
jobless rate in Europe while driving our
growth agenda by bringing ice cream to
the streets Wall s prowides tools and
egquipment, such as trikes or push carls and
freezers, to enable a micro-entrepreneur
to run his or her own mini-business selling
ice cream and atso to provide young people
with thesr first job experience In Partugal,
Spain and ltaty, 250 seasonal jobs were
also created to enhance livelihoods while
boosting ice cream sales Qurambition 1s la
have 50,000 micro-entrepreneurs by 2020
with a potential contribution to turnover of
more than €160 million
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OUR PEOPLE

To achieve Unilever s Vision of doubling

the size of its business, reducing its
environmental footprint and increasing its
positive social impact we need to ensure
the talent in the business today can realise
these ambitions in future

Some years ago we set three prionities for
the development of our employees around
the world Theywere to

« build depth of capability and teadershup,

» live our values and build a performance
culture, and

= build an agile, flexible and diverse
arganisation

These priorities still underpin everything
we do Our people are also the embodiment
of the Unilever Sustainable Living Plan
[USLP) - without their commutment and
belief, the business could not achieve the
plans three main goals of impreving health
and well-being, reducing our environmentat
impact and enhancing Uivetihoods More
than 75% of employees say they can
contribute to the USLP in their roles and
help realise our Yision
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EMPLOYER OF CHOICE

Umikever 1s the No 1 most sought-after FMCG
employer and is a Top 3 most sought-after
global employer according to Linkedln s Most
i Demand Employers Index 2014
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BUILDING TALENT AND LEADERS

FOR THE FUTURE

Two growth drivers have been implementing
a robust talent and leadership programme
sullable for a business doubling 1n size,

and developing the necessary skills for

the business

We support these with activities that
{ogether develop Unilever s capahility
and leadership, and make it an agile,
flexible and diverse organisation with
the right values and culture

Engagement scores among gur managers
who partictpated in our Global People
Survey {GPS)in 2014 remain very high at
75%, while engagement across our whole
employee population has risen by two
percentage points to 77% since last
measured in 2012

EMPLOYER OF CHOICE
Our status as Employer of Choice in the

FMCG sectoris at an all-time high We enjoy

this status in 32 countries around the world
This compares ta just three in 2009 and 26
in 2013

This independent measure reveals our
success at engaging with future leaders
which has been driven in part by our
Future Leaders League This s a global
cempetition in which universities around
the world send a representalive team

of undergraduates to our Four Acres
campus in Singapore They are each sel
a demanding case study to run one of our
brands, whichin 2014 was TRESemmé,
with a strong sustainability therne

All parttcipants interact with senior
management including our CEQ
Paul Pelman, and receive first-hand
Insights into business and leadershup
They learn what 11 s like to contribute
to a business and build ideas

Future Leaders League started with
teams from ten countries competing
n 2013 In 2014 thiswas ingreased to
teams from 22 countries

UNILEVER 2020

Critical to our success are leaders
equipped to deliver our Vision and USLP
Our new leadership programme, UL2020,
based at the Four Acres site, 1s designed to
meet this need by developing teaders with
the insight and imagination to anticipate
the challenges and opportumities in the
world of 2020

Guided and supported by some of

the world s top thought leaders, UL2020
identifies some of Unilever s most critical
challenges and asks small, diverse
leadership teams to create solutions
These projects, called Purpose to Impact
Initiatives, are structured programmes
that deliver individual and wider business
development consistent with our
commeraial and social aims

Recent prograrmmes have locused an
topics such as the Muslim consumer
opportunity, leveraging mobite for

our business, and Linking business
development and job creation UL2020
15 unlocking groundbreaking ways of
working and new leadership skills,
while delivering results that help to
define our future

UNILEVER HEROQES

Every year, our people nominate
Unilever heroes for work that brings
our Purpose to life Anila Gapal, Global

Social Mission Manager for Lifebuoy,
based in India, 1s a Unilever hero She
15 helping to run the world s largest
handwashing behaviour change
programme that demonstrates how
using soap could help save children
from deadly, but preventable, diseases
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OUR PEOPLE

CONTINUED

PROVIDING FUEL FOR

BUSINESS GROWTH

Key to this initiative has been delivering
the Fit To Win programme Activity has
taken place throughout the business Lo
make 1t leaner, more agile and more
efficient with resources aligned behind
the growth priorities

We continued the implementation of
Project Half for Growth which 1s how we
have been simplifying the organisation
and our work processes it follows the
principle of half the ume, half the pracess,
double the speed

We dentified key internal processes
where time and effort could be reduced

A significant saving was the time spent an
Performance & Develepment Planning
assessments By reducing and simplifying
the number of steps involved, we saved

an estimated 260,000 employee hours

Elsewhere over 2013-14, there has been

a 51% reduction in the number of internal
reports prepared for leadership teams
releasing time to focus on more productsve
activity We also simplified the GPS which
we ask all employees to complete annually
enabling us to cut the time individuals
spent completing the survey significantly

OUR SAFETY RECORD

Curaim s to imprave the safety and
well-being not onty of our emnployees,
but also of the wider commumity in which
Unilever operates, with cur Vision Zero
strategy - zero fatalities, zero injuries,
zero motor vehicle accidents, zero
process inctdents, zero tolerance of
unsafe behaviour and praclices - serving
as our foundation Ta meet our
commitments, we assess and reduce
risk through a variety of programmes,
including our continued work to address
behaviour safety, process safety, safe
travel and construction safety

In 2014, we introduced a step change in
our Safe Travel programme With more
pecple on the road than ever before,
including many i developing countries
where there s a higher risk of car
accidents, we released a revised and
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In 2013 we successfully ran the Winning
Together Carmpargn Lo drive more
inclusive and efficient ways of working
among teams in the organisation Building
on that, 1n 2014 we launched a second
campaign catled Time Saving Idea to
make simplification a habit and
encouraged employees to iry simple
time-saving ideas As a result more than
10,000 1deas were tried and rated by

our employees -

CAPABILITIES FOR THE FUTURE
During 2013-14 we completed 30 Talent
& Organusation assessments in 6%
countries, across four categeries and
three functions, to identify global themes
and risks that need addressing and the
capabilities required

Key 1ssues include replenishing the
talent pipeline as we promote people

We need new talent in the business and
to accelerate their development We need
to improve rmid-career atirition and
fermale attriticn Improved maternity
procgrammes have been introduced to
address this latter 1ssue

Woe also invested in building the
capabilitses of our people across
the business

strengthened travel standard that
Includes programmes and strategies
specifically targeted at high and medium
risk locations By the muddle of 2015,
wewillalso have in place a mandatory
glebal ban anusing all hand-held and
hands-free mgbile phone devices while
driving on company business

This year saw considerable advancement
In our behavioural-based appreach to
health and safety, with B4% of our
manufacturing and 38% of our
non-manufacturing sites now having
rolled out the first phase of the BeSafE
pregramme This includes training

79 master coaches and 91 trainers,

who have i turn trained more than

1.840 employees

2014 also saw some challenges Our
overall safety performance, as measured
by the Total Recordable Frequency Rate
[TRFR), increased slightly from i 03 to
105 per 1 million hours worked due to

a sptke Ininjury rates in the first quarter
of the year With a renewed focus ¢n
safety programmes and initiatives in
co-operatton with our project partners,
injury rates have been brought back
down since the first quarter

The Marketing Fit To Win programme
put i place the DCIT approach which
aims {o drive greater interdependence
and improved collaboration within the
Marketing function All our marketeers
attended DOIT workshops to understand
roles and relationships better This 1s key
to tackling barrers and achieving faster,
brand-led growth

In the supply chain we have taken a
broad approach to building capabilittes
for our employees Thisincludes a

host of skills development programmes
for blue and white callar employees
Tramming in core skidis s mandatory
across 130 roles Skill assessments are
cornpleted every two years and the data
1s used to understand and address
specific gaps across roles, capabilities
and geographies

We also ran a Manufacturing Leadership
Development programme to improve the
skills of our factory leaders who fulfil
pivotal roles
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BESAFE PROGRAMME

By the end of 2014 we had rolled out the first
phase of our BeSafE programme to 84%

of our manufacturing sites and 38% of our
non-rmanufacturing sites globally

DIVERSITY

Women are Unilever s core consumers,
controliing nearly two thirds of consumer
spending, so It s important that we represent
them in our workforce Infact, 2014 marks
five years since we began the process of
building an agile and diverse Unilever and
making sure we have the right gender
balance throughout the orgamisation

By the end of 2014, over 43% of our
managers were women, up from 38%
in 2010 The hard work we are doing to
retain more women in our workforce by
promating flexible working, women s
networks, job shares and maternity and
paternity support s paying benefit and
will remain a focus area

As at 31 December 2014 around 117,559
(68%) of our global workforce of 172,471
employees were male and 54,912 (32%)

female
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However, challenges remain We have not
made sufficient progress among the top
110 executive managers in the business, a
group where just under 20% are women

if you include employees who are statutory
directors of the cerporate entities whose
financialinformation s included in the
Group s 2014 consolidated accounts in
this Annual Report and Accounts, the
number increases to 592 males and 157
(21%] females

A PERFECT VILLAGE

We are pleased though that 3% (five out
of 14] of the Board are fernale which 1s over
40% of the Non-Executive Directors

MENTAL HEALTH AND RESILIENCE
In 2014 we paid particutar attention to
mental health initiatives The rising
incidence of mental iil health in the UK
is reflected in our absence data Helpand
support on nutrition, sleep, exercise and
mindfulness allimprove the day-to-day
well-being of employees A robust
framework with support tools 1s now

in ptace and 15 betng rolled out across
the argamisation

There 1s therefore both a business and a
moral case for ensuring that human rights
are upheld across our operations and our
value chain In giving effect to our Human
Rights Policy Staterment, we continue to
raise awareness, build capacity and engage
with others to address root causes and
provide remed:es where needed

In 2014 we strengthened the enhancing
livebhoods ambition of the USLP An

In 2014 we published our Hurnan Rights integral part of this ts our iImplementation
Policy Staternent which contains over- af the UN Guiding Principle on Business
arching principles which are embedded into and Human Rights and our public reporting
our policies and systems A full versien of on this We also committed ta enhancing
the document can be read at www unilever

com/humanrightspolicystatement

HUMAN RIGHTS

We believe that business can only flourish in
societies where human rights are protected
and respected We recognise that business
has the responsibility to respect human
rights and has the ability to contribute to

a positive impact on human rights

This 1s an area of growing iImportance to
our employees, shareholders, customers,
consumers the communities where we
operate and civil sociely groups

We promote human rights by
upholding values and standards
in our aperations, with suppliers
and through initiatives such as
the UN Global Compact

Ry Y Y R T T Y
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Ateamnin Nigera looked at how to
bring the concept of a Perfect Viltage
to bife in Africa, embracing broad
areas such as water, health, hygiene,
nutrition, women s ermmpowerment and
smaltholder farming They developed
a strategy we can take forward
globally Their work took them from
the classroom to the field as they
brought their pilot pragramme to life

access to training and skilts for women and
to advancing wamen s nghts A key aspect
of this has been cur safety programme for
women and girls, with the involvement of
men and boys, which we have begun at

our tea plantation in Kericho, Kenya, in
response to reperts of sexual harassment
N 2013 The programme 15 being rolled aut
to other locations More information on our
progress on wornen s rights is in the Society
section on pages 22 to 24, with full details
to be published in our Sustanable Living
Report 2014 which will be found on

www unilever com/sustainable-iiving

in May 2015
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OUR SHAREHOLDERS

OUR TRACK RECORD

This Strategic Report lays out how
Unilever s business waorks, the highlights
of 2014 and the underlying importance

of the Unilever Sustanable Living Plan
[USLPY), te ensure that our business will
remain relevant to future generations of
consumers and investors The following
pages reveal how this adds up to
sustainable value for shareholders

Qur financial growth model 1s based on
applying all the levers of value creation
Underiying sales growth core operating
margin improvernent and efficient financial
management all contribute to growthin
earnings per share and free cash flow, from
which we pay dividends to our shareholders
or reinvest in the business We aim for
these dividends to be attractive, grewing
and sustainable over time

Qver the peniod 2010-14 underiying

sales grew by an average of 4 9% per

year, which was ahead of our markets,

and care operating margin grew by an
average of 0 25 percentage points per year
Care earnings per share has grown by an

EMERGING MARKETS
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The USLP 1s embedded into our

business model It helps to drive

long-term shareholder value by

* driving growth through
innovations that bring new
sustainability benefits to
consumers and retailers,

* reducing waste and energy
and thereby saving cost, and

* managing risk in our supply
chain, for example by securing
long-term sustainable
sourcing of materiats

L Y P R N N TN

average of 9% per year al current exchange
rates and 11% per year at constant
exchange rates We have delivered an
average free cash flow of €3 5 billion
DBmwidends have increased by an average

of 8% per year over this ime

At Undever we lock to the future and what the consumer of tomarrow will need
This has inevitably drawn us to Increase our business In emerging markets where
populatien and consurmnption growth offer attractive opportunities In 2014, 57% of
our turnover was generated in emerging markets

These markets also bring challenges Performance can prove volatile as witnessed
in 2014 Economies have slowed and exchange rates have weakened leading to a

reduction in consumer spending

That said, aver time emerging markets have delivered Unilever a source of remarkably
consistent growth Over the past five years, emerging markets have generated
ungerlying sates growth averaging 9% a year

These markels are also among the most sensitive to environmental and social

pressures brought about by growth in poputation and consumption and the activities
of companies such as Unilever That s why our USLP goals are to improve health and
well-being, reduce our environmental ympact and enhance Wwelihoods through direct

action and partnerships

Our efforts have been recognised and Unilever is No 1 in the Dow Jones Sustainability

Index for Food, Beverage & Tobacco

Our average emerging markets growth over
the period was 9%
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TURNOVER FROM EMERGING MARKETS

Underpinning our finanoat perfermance
are our strong brands, with 13 €1 brllion
brands at our core, accounting for 53% of
turnover, and 57% of our business 1s 1n the
emerging markets which offer the greatest
lang-term grawth opparturuty We have

a grow everywhere mindset with action
in place to evelve our brand portfolio into
more premium segments of existing
markets, enter new geographies, and seek
new consurmers to add to the 2 billion we
serve every day

Our growth model 1s enabled by a leaner,
fitter, more agile Unilever, with costs being
reduced through our supply chain efficiency
programmes These have been boosted

by our low-cost business model initiative,
which has delivered €450 million of savings
since 201

Our supply chain was recognised 1n 2014 by
Gartner as Ne 1 1n the FMCG industry and
the overall No 1 suppty chain in Europe Our
go-te-market performance has sharpened
The on-shelf availability of our brands has
wnproved 2 2% w 2014 with more than

8 5 rullton sheps now enrolled in our
Perfect Stores programme

Our award-winning marketing expertise
has positionad us well in the most popular
media channels, be they traditional print
and broadcast, ontine video and social
media, or creating our own content for
distribution through mobile devices in
emerging markets

'. .I-
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PORTFOLIOEVOLUTION

Personal Care 15 now cur Largest category at
37% of sales Unitever has been reclassified

to the Personal Products subsector from the
Food Products subsector by the Industry
Classification Benchmark Panel The
rectassification prowides a more accurate

stock market defirmbion for our business,
reflecting our strategy to evolve the portfolio to
ensure Unilever continues to deliver sustainable
long-term returns for our shareholders
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DEVELOPMENTS IN 2014

Our long-term track record of delvery for
shareholders continued during 2014 despite
same significant challenges in the business
environment These included continued
weak consumer demand in developed
markets, slowing demand in emerging
markets and currency devaluations in rmany
countries The resiience of our bustness
and the broad nature of our brand portfolio
and geographic reach enabled us to deliver
ayear of steady progress in slower markets

In a lower growth environment we

stepped up our cos! savings initiatives

We accelerated Project Half for Growth
which is simpbifying the business and
reducing costs particularly in overheads
As a result we were able to continue to
Invest in sustained brand and marketing
investment and deliver underlying sates
growth ahead of our markets and a further
improvement i core operating margin

We tock action to reshape our portfolio to
ensure we have the night mix of brands to
address growth opportunities today and
inthe future

LR R R T T Y Y Y )

Continuing our policy of enhancing
earnings for shareholders with a
more simple capital structure, we
announced in May 2014 the £715
million purchase of rights left in
farmuly trusts by Lord Leverhulme
These were convertible in 2038
into 70,875,000 Unitever PLC
ordinary shares and were bought
for the equivalent of £10.09 per
share We estimate that
annualised core earnings per
share will be enhanced by 2%

as aresult
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in March 2014 Unilever announced the issuance of our first ever green
sustainability bend which raised £250 million, The fixed rate notes pay
a coupon of 2% and are due for repayment tn 2018 The proceeds are
being deployed on projects which support the achievement of the goals
of the USLP in reductng greenhouse gas emissions, water usage and

production of waste

LA AR Ry TRy e T Y PP T N

In June 2014 we sold the Ragu and Bertolh
pasta sauces business in North America
for approximately US $2 15 billion to
Mizkan Group In Europe we drsposed of
our meat snacks business to Jack Link's
Woe also sold our Royal pasta brand in

the Philippines for US $48 million and

our Slim Fast business in the US

On the acquisition front, in March 2014

we bought a majority stake in the Ginyuan
Group, a leading Chinese water purification
business Qinyuan generated sales of
€163 mitlion in the year to 31 December
2014

In Decemnber 2014 we bought Talent Gelato
& Sorbetto in the US Founded in 2003,
Talenu has grown into the best-selling
packaged gelatoin the US with products
made from the tinest ingredients using
artisanal methods Talent generated sales
of more than US $126 milbon in the year to
31 December 2014 We also commutted to
acquire the skin cleansing brands Camnay,
globally, and Zest outside North America
and the Canbbean Our Mexican market
position will he 3 particular beneficiary

of these deals

We are also taking action to make sure

that we get the most out of our core
business by making sharper choices within
our existing category portfolio and
addressing areas of under-performance
For example we have set a clear target to
double our core operating margin in Home
Care aver the coming years, as this is a
category where profitability is relatively
low We also announced a new stand-alone
business unit for European and North
American spreads, where turnover has
been decliing The new unit, called Baking,
Cooking and Spreading, will be fully in place
by the middle of 2015 It will bring greater
facus, address new grawth oppartunies,
and has a clear abjective to stabilise sales
while mantaining strong cash delivery
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OUR SHAREHOLDERS

CONTINUED

OUR FINANCIAL GROWTH MODEL

Wa continued to detiver shareholder value in 2014, despiie the lower
growth enviranment, as we appled atl the levers of value creation

Underlying sales grew 2 9% driven by a 1 0% improvement in underlying volume and a 1 9% rise in

T 7

UNDERLYING underiying price This growth was ahead of our markets which grew around 2 5% with volumes flat
SALES Broad-based growth in emerging markets across our categeries offset a decline in Europe where
GROWTH sales of margarine were down as consumers spread less
CORE Our core operaling margn increased by 0 4 percentage points largely driven by improvements in
efficiency through our Project Hatf for Growth imtiative, which generated more than €250 mitlion of
OPERATING savings in 2014 and 15 on track to exceed our annualised target of €500 million savings Brand and
MARGIN Marketing Investment was sustained at the level of last year
EARNINGS As aresull of all these actions our core earmngs per share rose to €1 6% anncrease of 2 0%
This was despite currency translation headwinds of close to 9% At constant exchange rates EPS
PER SHARE arem by 1%
Free cash flow was €3 1 billion in 2014 compared with €3 ¢ bitlion 11 2013 This measure excludes the
cash preceeds from disposals but includes tax on disposal prohits which was €0 8 billion Adjusting
FREE for that, tree cash flow would be €3 9 bithien Our cash performance was underpinned by our
CASH FLOW contimued focus on capnal discipiine Our netl capital expenditure of €2 D bituion or 4 2% of wrnover

reflects the investment sn capacity to support our growing business and was consistent with 2013
Working capital also ended the year in Line with the prior year

—t

DIVIDENDS

In April Unilever anncunced an increase in the quarterly
dwidend to €0 2850 giving a total payout durtng 2014 of
€112 per share Dhvidends increased by 7% i 2014
Dividends have increased by an average of 8% per year
in the last live years

s

SHARE PRICE

Our NV shares closed more than 11% higher than the prior year
while PLC shares closed 6% higher Over the period 2010-14
our NV share price has grown 43% while PLC shares have
grown 2% Total Sharehalder Return, which includes the
intrease in both the share price and the dividends, was 18%

n 2014 ana 79% over the last five years

4 —

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

We continued to follow our financial strategy of maintaining a strong balance

sheet, equivalent to a strong single A credit rating This provides the financial
flexibility to fund investments in the business and acquisitions, and at the

same time allows pur weighted cost of capital to benefit from the lower cost

of debt compared with equity
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 2014

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 2014

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Turnover at €48 4 billion decreased 2 7%, including a negative impact from both foreign exchange,
af 4 6%, and acquisians net of disposals of 0 9% Underlying sales growthwas 2 9% (2013 4 3%,
balanced between volume growth of 10% (2013 2 5%) and pricing of 19% (2013 1 8%} Emerging
markets, consistent at 57% of total turnover, were down 2 2% at reported exchange rates with
underlying sales growth of 5 7% versus B 7% in the prior year Developed markets underlying sales
declined by 0 8% Globally, our markets grew by around 2 5% with flat volumes

Core operating margin was up 0 4 percentage pasnts to 14 5% Gross margin declined by 0 2
percentage points to 41 4% This was driven by increased costs in emerging markets, {argety currency
related, partly offset by pricing, savings and margin-accretive innovation Commodity costs increased
around 4%, al constant exchange rates, as devaluing currencies have imported inflation inte local raw
material production partially of fset by cost savings

Significant effictencies in the cost of producing advertising allowed us to increase our share of
spend while maintaining brand and marketing investment at 14 8% Overheads were reduced by
0 6 percentage points largely due to saving inttiatives such as Project Half for Growth and some
favourable one-off items such as property sales in India

Operating profit was €8 0 bithion, compared with €75 bultion in 2013, up 6% The increase was driven
by non-core items which were a net credit of €960 million (2013 €501 million} Inciuded within
non-core items was the gain on disposal of the Ragu and Bertolll pasta sauces bustness and the
Bift and Peperami brands We sold the Slm Fast business and recognised an impairment charge

of €305 million on the related assets within non-core iterms

Highlights for the year ended 31 December

2014 m3 %

change

Turnover € rmithon) 48,436 49797 27
Operating proft (€ mullion) 7,980 7517 3
Core operating proht [€ rmillion]* 7,020 7014 -
Profit before tax [€ mutlion) T.646 7114 7
Net profit (€ million) 5,515 5263 )
Dituted earnings per share [€] 179 166 8
Core earnings per share [€]* 1.61 158 2

The cost of financing net borrowings in 2014 was €383 miltion versus €397 mullion 1n 2013 The average
Interest rate on borrowings was 3 5% and the average return on cash deposits was 3 8% Pensions
financing was a charge of €94 m:llion versus a charge of €133 million in the prior year

The effective tax rate was 28 2%, higher than 24 4% 1n 2013 due to the impact of bustness disposals
Qur longer term expectation remains around 26%

Net profit from joint ventures and associates together with other income from non-current
Investments, contributed €143 miltion compared to €127 millign in 2013 Diluted earnings per share
for the full year was up 8% at €179 Care earaings per share were €1 61, up 2% from €1 5811 2012
after a 9% currency headwind

The independent auditors’ reports issued by KPMG Accountants N V. and

KPMG LLP, on the consolidated results of the Group, as set out in the financial
statements, were unqualified and contained no exceptions or emphasis of matter
For more details see pages 79 to 83 of the Governance and Financial Report

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS The critical accounting policies and those that are most significant in
connection with our financial reporting are set out 1n note 1 on pages 88 and 89
of the Governance and Financial Report and are consistent with those applied
in 2013
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* Certain measures used in our reporling are not defined under IFRS For further information about these measures,
please refer to the commentary on non-GAAP measures on pages 34 and 35
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 2014

CONTINUED
FQoDs

PERSONAL CARE 2014 2013 % 2094 2013 %

Change Change
Turnover (€ million} 17,739 18,054 {18) Turnover (€ miltion] 12,361 13 426 179)
Operating profit (€ mullion] 3,259 3078 59 Operaling profit [€ million) 3,607 3064 177
Core operaling profit {€ mitton} 3,325 3,206 37 Care operating profa 1€ million} 2,305 2377 {30
Core operating margin (%) 18.7 178 09 Core cperating margin (%] 1846 177 09
Linderlying sales growth (%} 3.8 73 Underlying sales growth (%) {0.8) 03
Underlying valume grawth (%] 1.2 55 Underlying volume growth (%] (1.1) ns&l ,
Effect of price changes [%) 2.3 17 Effect of price changes (%] 0.4 09

KEY DEVELOPMENTS

» Personal Care delivered another year of underlying growth although
exchange rate movements {5 0%} ted to turnover decreasing onlast
year Underlying sales growth, at 3 5%, remained above our markets
which slowed to around 3% for the year Volurme growth was lower
than the previous year due to the slowdown of global markets and
high competitive intensity Growth benefited from a strong set of new
product kaunches such as the Dove Advanced Haw Series and
compressed decdorants in Europe

« Core operating profit unproved by €119 million over the prior year
despite a €300 milbon reduction from exchange rate movemnents
Underlying sales growth contributed €189 mullion while improved
margin added €230 mithlon Margin improvement was driven by
our savings programmes an improved mix from margin accretive
mnovation and savings in the cost of producing advertising which
1s highest in Personal Care

KEY DEVELOPMENTS

* Foods turnover declined primarily due to exchange rate
movements {3 9%) and business disposals 13 %) including the
Ragu and Bertolll pasta sauces business Savoury and dressings
beth grew but spreads declined due to lower consumer demand
for margarine 1n Europe and North America We gained market
share in margarine but this was insufficient to offset the decline
of the category which also saw price deflationn a betugn
commodity cost environment

* Coreoperating profit was €72 million lower than the prior
year after a €95 million adverse impact from exchange raies,
areduction of €105 million irom disposals and a €23 miallion
reduction from declining underlying sales Improved margin
added €152 million griven by savings in supply chain costs
and our overheads reduction programme particularly in
Eurcpe where we have a large Foods business

REFRESHMENT HOME CARE
20%4 paalk! % FLN14 2003 %
Change Change
Turnover [€ million] 9,172 9369 21 Turnover [€ millran} 9,164 8944 24
Operaling profil [€ mitlion) 538 851 (368l Operating profil (€ miilion] 876 524 99
Core operating profit (€ mullion) 8n 856 {53l Core operating profit [€ million) 5§79 577 03
Core operating margin [%l a8 91 (03 Core operating margin [%] 63 b4 1]
Underlying sates growth [%) s 11 Underlying sales growth (%) 5.8 80
Undertying volume grawth [%) 20 (18] Underlying volurne growth [%) 2.4 57
Effect of price changes (%] 18 29 Effect of price changes %) 34 21

KEY DEVELOPMENTS

* Refreshment turnover declined due to exchange rate movements
[4 6%) and business dispesals {1 6%], prienarily Shm Fast offset by
acquisiions of 0 4% primarily Talenti Gelato & Sorbetto Underlying
sales growth was driven by good volume growth in ice cream due to
a strong innovation programme The more premium brands ke
Ben & Jerry s and Magnum grew particularly well Cornetto also
had a strong year with multi-media advertising building the core
brand and new smaller products launched at lower price points
Tea grew, with a better performance n the US offsetting weaker
sales in Russia and Poland

« Core operating profit was €45 million lower than the prior year
due to underlying sales growth which added C80 million oftset by
a €73 milbon adverse impact of exchange rates and 2 €41 million
reduction due to disposals Margins declined reducing profit by
€11 mullion, as higher dairy and chocolate prices were not fully
recovered by pricing and savings
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KEY DEVELOPMENTS

+ Home Care turnover showed strong underlying growth, supported
by the impact of the Qinyuan acquisition 1n March of 1 8% but this
was partially ofiset by exchange rate movements {4 8%) Thisis
the result of a strong portfolio of brands across price points,
the depth of our distribution and sustained ivestment in product
performance We have successlully extended the Omo brand into
Saudi Arabia and the Guli and we have launched a range of Omo
stain removers and pre-treaters in Brazil

¢ Core operating profit at 579 milion was broadly unchanged
on last year after an adverse €84 million from exchange rates
was offset by underlying sales growth adding €100 mullion with
acquisions adding C5 mitlion Decreasing margin reduced profit
by €19 mullion as gross margins were impacted by cost increases
from weaker currencies in emerging markets which were not fully
offset by pricing and savings There was a strong improvement in
the second half of the year, which was boosted by gatns from
property sales in India
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CASH FLOW
Net cash flow from operating
activities and free cash flow
were down by €0 8 bitlion mawnly
due to tax on disposal profits
which were €0 8 bilion versus
€0 2 billion1n 2013 Year-end
working capital was in ine with
the prior year Our net capital
expenditure of €2 0 billion or
4 2% of turnover, reflects the
investrment in capacity to
support our growing business
Cmilion  Erillion
2014 2013
Operating profit 7,980 7517
Depreciation, amertisation and itmpairment 1,432 1151
Changes in working capital 8 200
Pensions and similar obligations less payments 1354) [383)
Provisions less payments 32 126
Elimination of [profits)/losses on dispasals 11,440] [725)
Nan-cash charge for share-based compensation 188 228
Other adjustments 38 {15)
Cash flow from oparating activities 7.854 8099
Income tax paid (2311) (1805)
Net capital expenditure (2,045] (2027
Net interest and preference dividends paid {398) lan)
Free cash flow 3,100 3856

Net cash flow [used inj/from investing activities (341 (1161
Net cash flow lused in)/from financing activities  15,190) (5 390

The net outflow from investing activities was €0 8 bilhon lower
than the previous year While net capitat expenditure and interest
were broadly unchanged, the net inflow of acquisitions disposals
and other investing activittes increased €0 8 billion compared with
2013 The increase was principally driven by the disposal of the
Ragu and Bertolli pasta sauces business partially offset by the
acquisition of Qinyuan and Talenu Gelato & Sarbetto

Net cash outflow from financing activittes was €0 2 billion lower
than the prior year Of the €5 2 tullion outflow, €3 2 billlon was used
to fund eur dvidend payments and €0 ? billion to purchase the
rights left in trust by the first Viscount Leverhulme The prior year
included €2 5 billsion in relatton to the acquisition of an tincreased
stake in Hindustan Unilever Limited as well as an Increase in
borrowings of €1 3 bilbion, which was flatin 2014

BALANCE SHEET
In the year to December 2014 Unitever s combined market
capitalisation rose from €83 8 bitlion to €93 ¢ bilbon

Goodwill and intangible assets increased by €1 3 billion mainly due
to business acguisitions and currency movements All material
goodwill and indefinite-life intangible assets have been tested for
impairment An impairment charge of €0 3 billion was recognised
assets related to the Shim Fast business as part of the disposal
tncreases in ather nan-current assets of €1 0 billion were driven
by capital expenditure and favourable currency movements
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Cmilllen € million

2014 2013
Goodwill and intangible assets 22,174 20904
Other non-current assets 13,506 12 487
Current assels 12,347 12122
Total assets 48,027 45513
Current Llabilities 19,642 17382
Mon-current liabibities 14,122 13315
Total biabilities 33,784 30 698
Shareholders eguity 13,651 14 344
Non-controlling interest 612 4N
Total equity 14,263 14 815

Total liabilities and equity 48,027 45513

Current assets were up E0 2 bitllion largely due to the impact

of currency Cash and cash equivalents on the batance sheet
amounted to €2 2 latlion cormpared to €2 3 bilion at the end of
2013 Closing net debt was €9 9 bullien versus €8 5 billsion as at 31
December 2013 The increase was driven by payment of dwidends,
the repurchase of the Leverhulme Estate shares and adverse
currency movements, offset by free cash flow generated by
operations and net cash inflow from acquisitions and disposals

Current Liabitities were €2 3 bilion higher mainly driven by
anincrease In current financial liabihities of €1 4 illion due
to bonds maturing in 2015 and by the impact of currency and
other underlying movernents of €0 9 billion

Non-current liabilities [excluding pensions] were broadly flat with
increases as a result of currency offset by a decrease in financial
tiabiliies due to the bond movements noted above Buring the year
the following bonds matured and were repaid [1) US $750 mullion
3 65%, () Renrmunbi 300 mullion 1 15%, and (in) £350 milion 4 00%
On 20 February 2014, we ssued Renrmunbi 300 million 2 95% fixed
rate notes due February 2017 On 19 March 2014 we tssued

£250 million 2% fixed rate notes due December 2018

The net movement in assets and Uabilities for all penston
arrangements during the year was as follows

€ millien

2014

1 January 1,977
Current service cost {259)
Employee contributions 16
Actual return on plan assets (excluding interest) 1,316
Net interest cost (94
Actuanal loss (3,028)
Employer contributions 537
€urrency retranslation a7l
Cther movements!! 53
31 December [3,571)

" Qther mavemenls relate to special termination benefits past service costs
including losses/(gains] on curtaitment, settlements and reclassification
of benefits For more detail see Governance and Financial Report note 4B
onpage 946

The overall net Liabtlity for all pension arrangements was

€3 & billion at the end of 2014, up €1 6 billon from the end of 2013
The increase In the net obligation reflects the impact of changes
in actuarial assumptions largely due to decreases in the discount
rates, partially oftset by returns on plan assets Cash expenditure
on pensions was E0 7 billion, the same as in the prior year
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 2014

CONTINUED

FINANCE AND LIQUIDITY

We concentrate cash in (he parent and central finance companies
for maximum flexibility These cornpanies provide loans o our
subsidiaries that are also funded through retained earnings and
third-party borrowings We maintain access to global debt
markets through an infrastructure of short and long-term debt
programmes We make use of plain vanilla derivatives, such

as interest rate swaps and foreign exchange contracts, to help
mitigate risks Mare detail is provided on pages 114 10 119 of our
Gavernance and Financial Report

Appraximately €17 billron [or 81%] of the Group s cash and cash
equivalents are held in foreign subsidiaries which repatriate
distributable reserves on a reqular basts For most countres this
15 dene through dividends free of tax In a few countries we face
cross-border foreign exchange controls and/or other legal
restriciiens that inhibit our ability to make these balances available
tn any means for generat use by the wider business The amount of
cash hetd in these countries was €452 mition (2013 €243 mutlion,
2012 €220 mullion} The cashwill generally be tnvested or held

in the relevant country and, given the other capiial resources
available te the Group, does not significantly affect the abity

of the Group to meet its cash obligations

We closely monitor all our exposures and counter-party limits
Unilever has commutted credit facilities in place for general
corporate purposes The undrawn bilateral comrmutted credit
faciliies in place on 31 December 2014 were US $6,550 million

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Due Duemn Duen Due in

wathin 1-3 3-5 over

€ rithon Total 1year years years  Syears
Total contractuatl

obligations™ 19,015 6812 4016 2423 5564

" tacluded within total contractual obligations are long-term debt, interest
on financial babilities, operating lease obligations, purchase obligations
{or row and packing matenals and fimished goods, finance leases and other
{ong-term abligations (not including pensions)

Further details are set out in the Governance and Financial Report
in the following notes to the consolidated financial statements note
10 on pages 109 and 104 note 15C on pages 112and 113, and note
200n pages 124 to 125 Uniever is satisfied thatits financing
arrangements are adequate (o mee! 1ts working capital needs for
the foreseeable future In relation 1o the facilities available to the
Group, borrowing requirements do not fluctuate materially during
the year and are not seasonal

AUDIT FEES

Included within operating profitis €14 mithion (2013 €21 miltion)
paid to the external auditor, of which €14 million (2013 €14 million)
related to statutory auds services Remuneration of the external
auditer in respect of 2014 was payable to KPMG while m respect

of 2013 1t was payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers

NON-GAAP MEASURES

Certain discusstons and analyses set out in this Annual Report

and Accounts mclude measures which are not defined by generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP] such asIFRS We believe
this information, aleng with comparable GAAP measurements,

1s useful to Investors because it provides a basis for measuring

our operating performance, ability to retire debt and invest In

new business opporiumities Cur managerment uses these financial
measures, along with the most directly comparable GAAP financial
measures, in evaluating our operating performance and value
creation Non-GAAP financial measures should net be considered
inisolation from, or as a substitute tor, financial information
preserted in compliance with GAAP Nen-GAAP financial

34 Strategic Report

measures as reported by us may not be comparable with
similarly titled amounts reported by other companies

In the following sections we set cut our definitions of the
foltowing non-GAAP measures and provide reconcitiations
te relevant GAAP measures

underlying sates growth,

underlying volume growth,

core operating profit and core operating margin,
core earnings per share [core EPS)

free cash ftow, and

net debt

* & B 8 ¢ @

UNDERLYING SALES GROWTH (USG]

Underlying sales growth [USG] refers to the increase in turnover
for the pertod, excluding any change in turnover resutting from
acquisitions, dispesals and changes i currency The impact of
acquisitions and disposals is exctuded from USG for 3 penod of
12 calendar months from the applicable closing date Turnover
frarmn acquired brands that are launched 1n countries where they
were not previously sold ts included in USG as such turnover is
rmore attributable to our existing sales and distribution network
than the acquisition itself

The reconcilation of USG to changes in the GAAP measure
turnover is as follows

TOTAL GROUP 204 2013
vs2013 vs 2012
Undertying sales growth {%) 29 43
Effect of acquisitions (%) 0.4 -
Effect of disposals (%} 13 (11
Eftect of exchange rates %) 14 &) 159
Turnover growth (%) (2.7 (30)
PERSONAL CARE 2014 2013
vs 2013 vs 2012
Underlying sales growth (%) 35 73
Effect of acquisttions (%) - -
Effect of disposals (%] {0} @2
Etfect of exchange rates (%) {5.0) (6 8]
Turnover growth (%)% (18) 02
FOODS 2014 2013
vs 2013 vs 2012
Underiying sales growth [%j &) 03
Effect of acquisitions (%] - -
Effect of disposals (%] (3.4 (37
Etfect of exchange rates (%] (351 (38
Turnover growth (%)% (7.9 (70
REFRESHMENT 2014 2013
vs 2013 vs 2052
Underlying sales growth (%] 38 1
Effect of acquisitions (%) 0.4 01
Effect of disposals (%) & -
Eflect of exchange rates (%) (4.6) &7
Turnover growth (%]® 2.1 (37
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HOME CARE 2014 2013
vs 2013 vs 20012
Undertying sales growih (% 58 B0
Effact of acquisitions (%} 1.8 01
Effect of disposals (%] - -
Effect of exchange rates (%I 4 8) (8 &)

Turnover growth (%W 2.4 {12]

" Turnover growth 1s made up of distinct individual growth componenls
namely underlying sales, currency impact acquisitions and disposals
Turnover grawth 18 arcived at by multiplying these indvedual compenents
on a compounded basis as there ts a currency impact on each of the other
components Accordingly turnover growth is more than just the sum of
the mdmdual components

UNDERLYING YOLUME GROWTH (UVG]

Undertying volume growth [UVG) 1s part of USG and means, for the
apphicable penod, the increase in turnover 1n such perned calculated
as the sum of () the increase Iin turnaver attributable to the votume
of products sotd, and [i] the increase in turnover attributable to the
compasition of preducts sold during such period UVG therefore
excludes any impact to USG due to changes in prices

The relationship between the two measures 15 set out below

2014 2013

vs 2013 vs 2012

Underlying volume growth |%] 10 29
Efiect of price changes (%] 19 18
Underlying sales growth (%] 29 43

CORE OPERATING PROFIT AND CORE OPERATING MARGIN
Core operating profit and core operating margin mean operating
profit and operating margin, respectively, before the impact of
business disposals, acquistion and disposal related costs,
impairments and other one-off items, which we collectively term
non-core Items, due o their nature and frequency of occurrence

The reconciliation of core operating profit to operating profit
15 as follows

Emildon € million

2014 2012

Operating prohit 27,580 7517

Acquisition and drsposal related cost 97 112

[Gan)/loss on disposal of group companies 1,392} (733

Imparments and other one-off items 335 120

Core operating profit 7,020 7,016

Turnover 48,636 49,797
Operating margmn 156 5% 151%
Core operaling marg:n 14.5% 14 1%

Further details of non-core items can be found tn note 3 on page 92
of the Governance and Financial Report

CORE EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group also refers to core earnings per share {core EPSI

In caleulating core earnungs. net profit attinbutable to shareholders
equity 1s adjusted to elmnate the post tax impact of nan-core
items Refer to note 7 on page 102 of the Governance and Financial
Repart for recanciliation of core earnings ta net profit attributable
to shareholders equity
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FREE CASH FLOW (FCF)

Within the Unilever Group, free cash flow [FCF]1s defined as cash
flow from operating activities, less income taxes paid, net capital
expenditures and net interest payrnents and preference dividends
paid It does nol represent residual cash flows entirely available
for discretionary purposes for example, the repayment of principat
amounts borrowed i1s not deducted from FCF Free cash flow
reflects an addiional way of viewing our hquidity that we betieve
15 useful to investors because 1t represents cash flows that could
be used for distribution of dividends, repayment ot debt or to tund
our strategic inttiatives, ncluding acquisitions «f any

The reconciliation of FCF to net profitis as follows

Cmillon € millicn
2014 2003
Net prefit 5,515 5263
Taxation 21 1851
Share of net proiit of joint ventures/associates
and other tncome from non-current Investments {143} 127)
Nel finance costs 477 530
Depreciation amortisation and imparment 1,632 1154
Changes in working capital 8 200
Pensions and similar obligations less payments (364} [383)
Provisions less payments 32 126
Etmination of [protitsiflosses an disposals 1,460) 1725
Non-cash charge for share-based compensation 188 228
Other adjustments 38 {15)
Cash flow from operating activities 7,854 8,099
Income tax pad 2,311 11805
Net capital expenditure (2,045]  (2,027)
Net interest and preference dividends paid (398) [411)
Free cash flow 3,100 3855
Net cash flow [used m)firom investing activities (341) (11481
Net cash flow [usedinlfirom hinanoing actmties {5,190 {5350}

NET DEBT

Net debt 1s defined as the excess of total financial labiities,
excluding trade and other payables, over cash cash equivalents
and current financial assets, excluding trade and other recevables
It 1s 8 measure that provides valuable additonal information on the
summary presentation of the Group s net financial Llabilities and 1s
a measure In common yse elsewhere

The reconciltation of net debt to the GAAP measure total financial
Liatlities 1s as follows

Cmillion € mullion
2014 2013
Total financial Labilties (12,7221 (11501
Current financiat Liabilives 15,538) 14 010)
Non-current financial labilities (7186) {7.421)
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 2,151 2,285
Cash and cash equivalents as per
cash flow statement 1,910 2044
Add bank overdralis deducted therein 241 241
Other current financial assets 671 760
Net debt 9,9000 (B 456}
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OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS

Our business 1s subject to risks and uncertainties On the following pages we have identified risks that we regard as the most relevant
to our business These are the risks that we see as material to Unilever's business and performance at this time There may be other
risks that could emerge In the future Further details of risks and mitigating factors can be found on pages 49 t0 53

pages 49 to 53 of the Governance and Financial Report

PRINCIPAL RISK L DESCRIPTION OF RISK 3 i
BRAND PREFERENCE

As a branded goods business, Consumer tastes, preferences and behavigurs are constantly changing and Unilever s ability
Unilever’s success depends on the to anticipate and respond to these changes and to continue to differentiate our brands and
value and retevance of our brands products s vital o our business

and products to consumers across
the world and on our ability to
innovate and remain competitive

We are dependent an creating innovative products that continue to meet the needs of our
consumers If we are unable to innovate effectively, Unilever s sales or margins could be
materially adversely affected

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

Unilever’s strategic investment Unilever s growth and profitatality are determined by our portfolio of categories geographies and
choices will affect the long-term channels and how these evalve over time Il Unilever does not make eptimal strategic investment
growth and profits of our business decisions then opportunities for growth and improved margin could be missed

SUSTAINABILITY

The success of our business depends  Unilever s Vision to double the size of our business while reducing our environmental footprint

on finding sustainable solutions to and Increasing our positive soctal impact will require more sustainable ways of doing business

support long-term growth This means reducing our environmental footprint while increasing the positive social benefits of
Unilever s activities We are dependent on the efforts of partners and various certification bodies
to acheeve our sustainability goals There can be no assurance that sustainable business
solutions will be developed and failure to do so could limit Unitever s growth and profit potential
and damage our corporate reputation

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

Successful customer relationships Maintaining strong relationships with our customers is necessary for our brands te be well
are vital to our business and presented to our consumers and available for purchase at all times

continued growth The strength of our customer relationships alsa alfects our ability to obtain pricing and

secure favourable trade terms Urslever may nat be able te maintain strong relationships with
customers and failure to de so could negatively impact the terms of business with the af{ected
customers and reduce the availability of our products to censumers

TALENT

A skilted workforce i1s essential Our ability to attract, develop and retain the right number of appropriately qualified people is

for the continued success of our critical If we are lo compete and grow effectively

business This 1s especially true in our key emerging markets where there can be a high level of
cempetiion for a imited talent pool The loss of management or other key persoanel or the
inability to1dentify, atlract and retain qualified personnel could make it difficult to manage the
business and could adversely aifect operations and financial results

SUPPLY CHAIN

Our business depends on purchasing  Our supply chain network 15 exposed te potentially adverse events such as physical disruptions

materials, efficient manufacturing environmental and industrial accidents or bankruptcy of a key supplier which could impact our

and the timely distribution of ability to deliver orders te our customers

products to our customers The cost of our products can be significantly affected by the cost of the underlying commodities and

materials from which they are made Fluctuauons inthese costs cannot always be passed on to the
consumer through pricing

SAFE AND HIGH QUALITY
PRODULTS
The quality and safety of our products ~ The risk thal raw materials are accidentally or maliciously contaminated throughout the supply

are of paramount importance for our chain or that other product defects occur due to human error, equipment failure or other factors
brands and our reputation cannot be excluded

SYSTEMS AND INFORMATION

Unilever s operations are We interact electronically with customers, suppliers and consumers in ways which place ever
increasingly dependent on greater emphasis on the need for secure and reliable |T systems and infrastructure and careful
IT systems and the management management of the information that 1s in our pessession

of information Disruption of our [T systems could inhibit our business operations 1n a number of ways Including

disruption to sates production and cash flows, ulumately impacung our resulis

There 1s also athreat frem unauthorised access and misuse of sensitive Information Unilever s
information systems could be subject to unauthonised access or the mistaken disclosure of
information which disrupts Unilever s business and/or leads to loss of assets
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PRINCIPAL RISK _

BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION

Successful execution of business
transformation projects 1s key to

delivering their intended business

benehts and avoiding disruption
to other business activities

EXTERNAL ECONOMIC AND
POLITICAL RISKS AND
NATURAL DISASTERS

Unilever operates across the globe
and 1s exposed to a range of external

economic and political risks and

natural disasters that may affect the

execution of our strategy or the
running of aur aperations

TREASURY AND PENSIONS

Unilever ts exposed to a variety of
external financial risks in relation

to Treasury and Penstons

ETHICAL

Acting inan ethical manner,
consistent with the expectations
of customers, consumers and
other stakeholders, 15 essential

for the protection of the reputation

of Unilever and its brands
LEGAL AND REGULATORY

Compliance with laws and
regulations is an essential part
of Unilever s business operations
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DESCRIPTION OF RISK

Unilever is continually engaged in major change projects, including acquisions and disposals
and outsourcing, to drive continuous improvement 1n our business and 1o strengthen our
portfolio and capabilities

Fallure 1o execute such transactions or change projects successfully or performance 1ssues
with third party oulsourced providers on which we are dependent could resultin under-delvery
of the expected benefits Furthermore disruption may be caused in other parts of the business

Adverse economic conditions may result in reduced consumer demand for our products
and may affect one or mere countries within a region, or may extend globally

Government actions such as fiscal stimulus ¢hanges lo taxatron and price controls can impact
on the growth and profitabibiy of our local operations

Soctal and poliscal upheavals and natural disaslers can disrupt sales and operations

In 2014, more than half of Unilever s turnover came from emerging marketsincluding Brazil
India, Indonesia Turkey, South Africa, China, Mexico and Russia These markets offer greater
growth opportunities but also expose Unilever to economic political and social volatility in
these markets

Changes to the relative value of currencies can iluctuate widely and could have a significant
impact on business results Further, because Unilever caonsoirdates its financial statements in
euros It 1s subject to exchange r1sks associated with the translation of the underlying net assets
and earnings of its foreign subsidiaries

We are also subject to theumposition of exchange contrals by individual countries which
could Limit our ability to import materiats pa:d i foreign currency or to remit dividends to
the parent company

Currency rates along with demand cycles, can also result in significanl swings in the prices
of the raw materials needed to produce our goods

Unilever may face lquidhty risk, 1e difficulty in meeting ts obligations, associated with

s financial labiies A matenal and sustained shortfallin our cash flow could undermine
Unilever s credit rating, impair investar confidence and alse restrict Unilever s ability to
raise funds

We are exposed to market interest rate fluctuations on our floating rate debt Increasesin
benchmark interest rates could increase the interest cost of our floating rate debt and increase
the cost of future barrowings

Intimes of financial market valatility we are also potentially exposed to counter-party risks with
banks, suppliers and customers

Certain businesses have defined benefit pension plans most now closed to new employees,
whuch are exposed to movements in mterest rates fluciuating values of underlying invesiments
andincreased Lfe expectancy Changes inany or all of these inpuis could polentially increase
the cost to Unitever of funding the schemes and therefore have an adverse impact on profitability
and cash flow

Unilever s brands and reputation are valuable assets and the way in which we operate, contribute
lo society and engage with the world around us 1s always under scrutiny both internally and
externally Despite the commitment of Unitever to ethical business and the steps we take

lo adhere to this commitment there remarms a risk that activities or events cause us to fall

short of our desired standard resutng in damage (o Unilever s corporate reputation and
business results

Unilever is subject to local regional and global laws and regulations in such diverse areas

as product safety product claims, trademarks, copyright, patents, competition employee
health and safety the environment corporate governance, listing and disclosure, employment
and laxes .

Failure to comply with laws and regulations could expose Unilever Lo civil and/ar criminal actions
leading to damages, fines and cruminal sanctions against us andfor our employees with possible
consequences for our corporate reputation

Changes to laws and regulations could have a material impact on the cost of doing business
Tax in particutar, 1s a complex grea where laws and their interpretation are changing reqularly
leading to the risk of unexpected tax exposure
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SUMMARY REMUNERATION REPORT

CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

lam pleased to report that our Remuneration Palicy was adopied
at the 2014 NV and PLC AGMs with strong levels of support and
remains unchanged for 2015

REMUNERATION POLICY - AVAILABLE ON OUR WEBSITE
To simplify this year s report we have chosen not to repeat our
Remuneration Policy, which 1s available on our website To reflect
the reward decisions taken for 2015 by the Compensation
Commuittee we have updated the supporting information in the
remuneration policy table and other contextual information

www unilever com/ara2014/downloads

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND REMUNERATION
QUTCOMES FOR 2014

ANNUAL BONUS - AYEAR OF RESILIENT PERFORMANCE
During the year Unilever faced an increasingly challenging
external environment In addition to flerce competition, we also
saw weakening consumer demand across many parts of the
world and increasing external volatiity The business responded
to the combination of these events with resitience by heightening
focus on cost control and margin impravement Although our
overall underlying sales growth lowered to 2 9% we continued to
outperfiorm our markets as we have done consistently since

Paul Polman s appointment as CEO Through rigeraus controt of
overheads, we delivered a core operating margin tmprovement of
0 4 percentage points despite adverse currency movements With
the quality of these results in mind, the Committee exercised its
Judgemnent to uplift the annual bonus outcome from 68% to 80%
of target and decided to pay a benus of 132% of salary [66% of
maximum] to the CEQ, Paul Polman, and a bonus of 88% of salary
[59% of maximum] to the CFO Jean-Marc Huet The Commuttee
believes that these awards farrly reflect the performance
delivered 1n 2014 This consistency in performance delivery, now
established over the last six years shows that Unilever 1s building
amore resilient cempany We are better able to withsland the
challenges of anincreasingly uncertain business environment
because we are moving towards a business model with long-term
sustainability at its core

GSIP AND MCIP - STRONG FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
OVER THE LAST THREE YEARS

Over the past three years Unilever has again delivered very
strong financial performance Underlying sales growth during
this period was 4 7% per annum Core operating margin
improvement over the period was an average of 0 37 percentage
peints per year, demonstrating management s drive for consistent
top and bottom Une growth Unilever has also generated very
strong operating cash in the period, with cumulative operating
cash flow of £15 5 billion Total shareholder return [TSR] over this
three-year period was below the performance of our peers, and
as a result, no part of the GSIP and MCIP awards related to TSR
will vest The Committee believes the outcomes of the long-term
share incentive plans represent a fair reflection of Unilever s
underlying perfermance over the last three years On the basis

of this performance, the Commtttee determened that the GSIP
awards to the end of 2014 together with MCIP awards, which were
granted to Executive Directors for the first time 1n 2012 will vest
at 121% of initial award levels [ie 61% of maximum for GSIP and
B1% of maximum awards for MCIP, which 15 capped at 150%]
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS TURN DOWN SALARY INCREASES
FOR 2015

In our 2011 Directors Remuneration Report, the Committee
drew shareholders atiention to our concern that the CEQ s salary
was positioned at the lower end of market practice compared

to similar sized UK and European companies Aithat time the
Committee stated that it would look to make further increases,
as appropriate, to address this over the next few years Since
then, largely at the CED and CFO s own insistence, we have
consistenily awarded less of a salary increase than we believed
was menited by the performance of the Executive Directors
Having held their salaries steady for longer than intended and
inview of the sustained track recard cf performance delivery,
the Committee recommended, and the Boards approved salary
increases for the CEQ and CFO with effect from January 2015

In making these recommendations the Committee considered
the strong performance of Unilever and alignment, both to
increases in pay for the broader employee population and
externally The CEQ and CFO have turned down the salary
increases reccmmended by the Commuttee for 2015

STRATEGIC LINKAGE OF REWARD TO BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE

As in previous years the Committee continues to use
performance-based incentives to drive the business towards
delivering sustainable long-term value for shareholders For
2015, the Commuttee has decided to focus en the importance of
cash generation in an envirenment of lower global growth rates
by replacing underlying valume growth with growth in free cash
flow (FCF) as a performance measure for the annual bonus,

In alignment with our strategy as set out earlier in this Report
FCF 1s a widely reported metric used o evaluate Unilever s
in-year performance For our shareholders, cash i1s an important
driver of value creation, allowing us to pay attractive and
sustainable dividends while continuing to invest in the business

The performance measures for our long-term share incentive
plans remain unchanged for the 2015-2017 performance cycle
Even though FCF 15 cur primary cash measure we use operating
cash {low [OCF] as the cash measure in our long-term incentive
plans as it better represents underlying long-term performance
at constant exchange rates To better describe long-term
management performance OCF is also adjusted to exclude the
impact of cash inflows and outflows resulting from M&A activity
and the impact of pensian contributiens and interest costs on
external borrowings

For reasons of commercial sensitivity, our practice is to disclose
the target ranges for performance measures together with the
outcomes of iIncentive plans at the end of the respective
performance period

In 2015 the Commuttee plans to undertake a further review of cur
remuneration framework to ensure that it continues te be fully
aligned with Unilever s business strategy and enables us to
respond quickly to the rapidly changing markets in which we
operate Specifically, we will be looking for opportunities to
simplify reward arrangements and also to strengthen the linkage
between executive pay and the creation of sustainable longer-
term shareholder value To the extent that changes are proposed,
the Commuttee will consult with key shareholders to get their
feedback in advance of recommending changes to shareholders

Paul Walsh
Chairman of the Campensation Committee
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The following sets out how Unilever s Remuneration Policy to be found at www unilever com/ara2014/downloads, was implemented in 2014
Further details of remuneration can be found on pages 62 to 77 of the Governance and Financial Repori

SINGLE FIGURE OF REMUNERATION IN 2014 FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS [AUDITED)
The table below shows a single figure of remuneration far each of our Executive Directors for the years 2013 [restated to reflect the final
value ot GSIP performance shares on the date of vestung) and 2014

Paul Potman Jean-Marc Huet
CEQ [UK] CFO (UK}
(€ 000) (€ 000)

2013 2013
2014 [Restated) 2014 [Restated]
{A) Base salary! 1,25% 1189 B8S B4l
[B] Fixed allowances and other benefits @ 787 700 377 594
(C) Annual bonus 1,652 1864 778 879
Long-term ncentives [D] MCIP matching shares - [required by UK lawl 1,803 nfa 370 n/a
[E] GSIP performance shares - {required by UK law] 3923 3798 3,022 2,630
Long-term incentives [sub-totall 5,724 3798 3,392 2,630
[Fl Conditional supplemental pension @ 145 138 n/a n/a
Total remuneration paid - [required by UK law] (A+B+C+D+E+F] 2561 7 489 5,432 4946
(G] Share awards [required by Dutch law] 1 4,206 4 069 2,249 2652
Total remuneration pard = {reguired by Dutch law] (A+B+CoFeG) 8,041 7960 4,209 4966

Where relevant, amounts for 2014 have been translated into euros using the average exchange rate over 2014 (€1 =£0 8071, excluding
amounts In respect of long-term incentive plans which have been translated into euros using the exchange rate at vesting date [€1 =

€0 7383] Ameunts for 2013 have been translated into euros using the average exchange rate over 2013 [€1 = £0 8492], excluding amounts
in respect of GSIP which have been translated into euros using the exchange rate at vesting date (€1 = £0 8351)

" Salary set in sterling and paid in 2014 CEO - €1 010 000 and CFO - £714 000

ncludes the fixed allowance medical insurance cover and actual tax return preparation costs, provision of death-in-service benefits and administration
payment to protect against difference between employee social secunity ebligations in country of residence versus UK [not applicabte to Jean-Marc Huet]
and Paul Polman s notional gain due to exercising his options under the Unilever 2005 Share Save Plan

¥ Conditional supplemental pension provision agreed with Paul Polman on hiring which s conditional on his remaining in employment with Unilever to age 60 and
subsequently retiring from active service or his death or total disability prior to retirement This was €117,123 based on 12% of a capped salary of £976 028 for 2014

¥l As per the Dutch reguirements these costs are non-cash costs and relate to the expenses recogrised for the period following IFRS 2 Thisis based on share
prices on grant dates a 98% adjustment factor far GSIP shares and MCIP matching shares awarded in 2014, 2043 and 2012

SINGLE FIGURE OF REMUNERATION IN 2014 FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (AUDITED)
The table below shows a single figure of remuneration tor each of our Non-Executive Directors for the years 2013 and 2014

204 2013
Total Total
Fees™ Benefits™ remuneration Feesh! Benefitgh remuyneration
Non-Executive Director €000 €000 € 000 € 000 €000 € 00g
Michael Treschow!d 454 3 657 637 1 638
LauraCha m - 101 62 - 62
Louise Fresco¥! 113 - 13 106 - 106
Ann Fudge 1m " 112 103 17 120
Charles Golden® 42 - 42 101 14 115
Byron Grotet! 125 - 125 127 2 129
Mary Ma 107 - 107 64 - 66
Sunil Bharti Mittal®! - - - 32 - 32
Hixonia Nyasulu 107 - 107 102 12 14
Sir Malcolm Rifkind 0 - m 103 - 103
John Rishton 107 - 107 13 - 13
Feike Sybesma 15 1 16 n/a nfa nfa
Kees Storm™ 196 3 199 191 - 191
Paul Walsh® 13 2 115 19 - 119
Total 1,882 20 1.902 1815 46 1861
W This inctudes fees receved from both NV in euros and PLC in sterting for 'Chose not to put himself forward for re-election at the May 2014 AGMs
both 2013 and 2014 respectively Includes basic Non-Executive Director fee 1 Chair Audit Committee
and Commiites chawrmanship and/or membershup 9 Chose not to put himsetl! forward for re-election at the May 2013 AGMs
" The anly benelit received relates to travel by spouses or partners where My ice-Chairman and Chair of the Nominating and Corporate Governance
they are invited by Unilever Committee
K Chairman Y hair Campensation Committee

'#Chair Corporate Respensibility Committee
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS

Date Voting Record date Voung and Reqistration date
NV 130pm 29 April 2015 1 April 2015 22 April 2015
PLC 130pm 30 April 2075 - 28 April 2015

QUARTERLY DIVIDENDS

Dates listed below are applicable to all four Unilever listings [NV ordinary shares PLC ordinary shares, NV New York shares

and PLC ADRsl

NV NY and PLC ADR NV and PLC
ex-dividond date

ex-dividend date Record date Paymentdate

Quarterly dividend announced with

the Q4 2014 results 20 January 2015
Quarterly dindend announced with

the Q1 2015 results 16 April 2015
Quarterly dividend announced with

the Q2 2015 results 23 July 2015
Quarterly didend announced with

the Q3 2015 resutts 15 October 2015

4 February 2015 5 February 2015 6 February 2015

22 April 2015

5 August 2015

11 March 2015

23 April 2015 24 April 2015 3 June 2015

& August 2015 7 August 2015 9 September 2015

28 October 2015 29 October 2015 30 October 2015 9 December 2015

PREFERENTIAL DIVIDENDS - NV

ed Ex-dividend date Record date Paymentdate
6% and 7% 23 July 2015 & August 2015 7 August 2015 9 September 2015
CONTACT DETAILS WEBSITE

Unilever NV and Unilever PLC

100 Victoria Embankment

Londen EC4Y 0DY

United Kingdom

Institutional Invesiors telephone +44 (0§20 7822 4830
Any queries can alsa be sent to us electronically via
www unilever corm/resource/contactus

Private Shareholders can email us at

shareholder services@unilever com

SHARE REGISTRATION

THE NETHERLANDS

SGG Netherlands NV

Claude Debussylaan 24

1082 MD Amsterdam

Telephone +31(0)20522 2555
Telefax +31 (0120 522 25 00
Website WWW Sgggroup com
Email registers@sgggroup com

UK
Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 677

Telephone +44 (01870 600 3977

Telefax +44 (01870 703 6101

Website www Investorcentre co uk/contactus
Ernail webcorres@computershare co uk
us

American Stock Transier & Trust Company
Operatians Center

4201 15th Avenue

Brookiyn, NY 11219

Tolt-free number  +1 {800) 937-5449

Direct diat +1 718921 8124
Email DB@amstock com
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Shareholders are encouraged to visit our website www unilever com
which has a wealth of information about Unilever

There 1s a section designed specifically for investors at

www unilever com/investerrelations [t includes detailed coverage
of the Unilever share price our quarterly and annual results
performance charts, financial news and investor relations
speeches and presentaticns 1t also includes conference and
investor/analyst presentations

You can also view this year s Annual Report and Accounts, and prior
years Annual Review and Annusl Report and Accounts documents,
at www unilever com/investorrelations

PLC shareholders can elect to receive their shareholder
cammunications such as the Annual Report and Accounts

ana other shareholder documents electronically by registering
at www unilever corn/shareholderservices

PUBLICATIONS

The Strategic Reportis only part of the Annual Report and Accounts
2014 and together with the governance section of the Gavernance and
Financial Report, constitutes the report of the Directors within the
meaning of Section 2 391 of the Duich Cwl Code Copies of the
Sirategic Repert the Governance and Financial Report, and the public
documents referred to below can be accessed direcily or ordered
through www unilever com/investorrelations

UNILEVER ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

The Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014 comprises the
Straiegic Report and the Governance and Financial Report whichis
available in English with iguresin euros I forms the basis for the
Form 20-F that s filed with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission, which 1s also available free of charge at www sec gov

QUARTERLY RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENTS
Available in English with figures in euros

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014




CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This document may contain forward-loeking statements including forward-leoking slatements within the meaning of the United States Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Words suchas will aim expecls anuicipates intends looks, believes wision, or the negative of these lerms and olher
similar expressions of future performance or resulis and their negalives are inlended to identify such forward-loeking stalements These forward-looking
siaternenis are based upon current expecialions and assumplions regarting anucipaied developrnenis and other Jaciors affecung the Group They ate not
historical facts nor are they guaraniees of future performance

Because these forward-locking statements involve risks and uncertainiies there are Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially
{rom those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements Among other risks and uncertainties the matersal or principal factors which cause
actual results to differ materially are Unilever s global brands not meeting consumer preferences, Unilever s ability to innovate and remain competitive
Unulever sinvestment chorces in its portfolio management, inabrbity to find sustainable solutions to suppert long-term growth customer relabionships the
recrullment and retention of talented employees disruptions in our supply chain the cost of raw materiais and commoedities the production of safe and high
quality products secure and reliable IT infrastructure successful execution of acquisitions divestitures and business transfoermation projects econormic
and political risks and natural disasters financial fisks failure 10 meet igh and ethucal standards, and managing regulatory tax and legal matters Further
details of potential risks and uncertainties affecting the Group are described in the Group s filings with the London Stock Exchange Eurgnext Amsterdam and
the US Securitres and Exchange Commissien, including in the Group s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the Annual
Report and Accounts 2014 These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this decument Except as required by any applicable law ar
regulation the Group expressly disclaims any obligation or undertakeng to release publicly any updates or revisions to any ferward-looking statements
contained herein to reflect any change in the Group s expectations with regard thereto or any change In events conditions or circumstances on which any
such statement s based

This document 1s not prepared in accordance with US GAAP and should not therefare be relied upon by readers as such The Group 5 Annual Repori on
Form 20-F far 2014 15 separately fled with the US Securities and Exchange Cammussian and 1s available on our carporate website www unilever com

Inaddition a printed copy of the Annual Report on Form 20-F 15 available, free of charge upon request to Unilever Investor Relations Department
100 Victoria Embankment London EC4Y ODY, United Kingdom

This report comprises regulated information within the meaning of Sectrens * 1and 5 25¢ of the Act on Financial Superwision ["Wet op het financteel toezicht
(Wi |1n the Netherlands

The brand names shown in this report are lrademarks owned by or Licensed to companies wilhin the Unilever Group

References in this document to informalion on websiles [and/or sociat media siles) are included as an aid Lo their location and such information 1s not
ncorporaled in and daes not lorm part of the Annual Report and Accounts 2014 or Annual Report on Form 20-F with the exception of lhe explanations and
disclaimers which can be accessed via KPMG s website www kpmg cem/uk/audiiscopeukeo2014b, which is incorporated into the Auditor s Repart tn the
Annusl Report and Accounis 2014 as if set outin full
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Designed and produced by Unitever Communications in canjunction with Addison Group at www addison-group net

Photography by Samue! Clusegun Ajay) Angga Ara Oliver Edwards, igor Emmerich, Philip Gatward Angelo Glampiccolo, Michael Heffernan Frans Lemmens
Awtloke Chris Moyse Suwit Ngaokaew Muhittin Tuyluce Rian ArdiWakito Maruin Wanyorke Jessie Watford Aht Yomyal, Yan Zhen The Pack Shot Company
and from the Unilever image library and content hub

Printed at Pureprint Group SO 14001 FSC® certified and CarbonNeutral®

Thus document s printed on Amadeus 100% Recycled Sk Thase papers have been exclusively supplied by Denmaur Independent Papers which has ofiset the
carbon produced by the production and delivery of them to the printer

These papers are 100% recycled and manufactured using de-inked post-consumer waste Allthe pulpis bleached using an elemental chlorine free process
[ECF] Printed jn the UK by Pureprint using its alcofree® and pureprint® environmental printing technology Vegetable inks were used throughout Pureprint is
a CarboniNeutral® company Both the manufaciuring mitt and the printer are registered to the Environmental Management System 150 14001 and are Forest
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I you have finished with this document and no longer wish Lo retain it please pass it on to other interested readers or dispose of it In your recycled paper
waste Thank you
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FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ABOUT
UNILEVER, PLEASE VISIT OUR WEBSITE:

WWW.UNILEVER.COM

BRINGING SANITATION TO THE WORLD'S POOREST CONSUMERS

In India around 400 million people, like Saritadevi [pictured®), do not have access to a toilet In
theuwr house, leaving them no choiwce but to use local fields Unilever s commutted to helping
25 million people gain Improved access to a toilet by 2020, by promoting the benefits of using
clean toilets and making toilets accessible

We are worlung with multiple partners, including UNICEF, to create sustainable approaches to
better sanitation by promoting good hygiene practices to improve the health and well-being of
communities and helping to create demand for access 1o toilets

We are also working with Water & Sanitation for the Urban Poor [WSUP] to develop innovative
sanitation businesses and promote hygiene communications te millions of the poorest
consumers in Ghana, Bangladesh, Kenya and Zambia

And we are providing support through the Domestos Toilet Academy, a market-based model that
improves sanitation in India and Vietnam By the end of 2014 there were ten Domestos Toilet
Academies open, eight in India and two in Vietnam The Academies train entrepreneurs to form
businesses supplying, installing and maintaining hygienic toilets The imtiative will train 250
entrepreneurs and supply 51,000 toilets by the end of 2015

*The photograph of Saritadevi was taken for WSUP by Atul Loke

UNILEVER N.V.

Head Office and Registered Qffice
Weena 455, PO Box 760

3000 DK Rotterdam

The Netherlands

T+31[0110 217 4000

F+31[(0110217 4798

Commercial Register Rotterdam
Number 24051830

UNILEVER PLC
Head Office

100 ¥ictoria Embankment
London EC4Y ODY

United Kingdom
T+44(0]20 7822 5252

F +44 (0120 7822 5951

Registered Office
Unilever PLC

Port Sunlight

Wirrat

Merseyside CHé2 42D
United Kingdom

Registered in England and Wales
Company Number 41424
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OUR ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 [S IN TWO PARTS:

OUR STRATEGIC REPORT

The Strategic Repert contains information about us, how we make money and how we run our business It includes our strategy, business
model, markets and Key Performance Indicators, as well as our approach Lo sustainability and risk

GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL REPORT

The Governance and Financial Report contains detailed corporate governance information, how we mitigate risk, our Committee reparts
and how we remunerate our Direclors, plus our Financial Statements and Notes

ONLINE

AR R L A e S S L L I T I I I T

You can find more information about Unilever online at www unilever com
Far the latest information on the USLP visit www.unilever.com/sustainable-living

Our Strategic Report and Governance and Financial Report, along with other retevant documents, can be downloaded at
www unilever.comfara2014/downloads




CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE OF UNILEVER

ABOUT UNILEVER

Unilever NV INV) and Unilever PLC [PLC) together with their group
companies have, since the Unilever Group was formed in 1930,
operated as nearly as practicable as a single econormic entity This
1s achieved by special provisions in the Articles of Association of NV
and PLC, together with a series of agreements between NV and PLC
which are together known as the Foundation Agreements [described
below] These agreements enable Unilever to achieve unity of
management, operations, shareholders rights, purpose and
mission and ¢an be found on our website

The Equalisation Agreement makes the economic pesition of the
sharehaiders of NV and PLC, as far as possible, the same as if
they held shares in a single company The Equalisation Agreement
regulates the mutual rights of the sharehelders of NV and PLC
Under the Equalisation Agreement, NV and PLC must adopt the
same financial periods and accounting policies

The Deed of Mutuat Covenants provides that NV and PLC and their
respective subsidiary comparies shall co-operate in every way for
the purpese of maintaining a common operating policy They shall
exchange all relevant nformation about their respective businesses
- the intention being to create and maintain a common cperating
platform for the Group throughout the world The Deed also contains
provisions for the allocation of assets between NV and PLC

Under the Agreement for Mutual Guarantees of Borrowing
between NV and PLC, each company will, if asked by the
other, guarantee the borrowings of the other and the other s
subsidiaries These arrangements are ysed, as a matter

of financial policy for certain stgntficant borrowings They
enable lenders 1o tely on our cominned financial sirength

NV s Articles of Association contan, amaong other things the
objects clause, which sets out the scope of activities that NVis
authorised to undertake They are drafted to give a wide scope
and provide that the primary objectives are to carry on business
as a holding company, to manage any companies inwhich it has
an interest and to operate and carry inio effect the Equalisation
Agreement At the 2010 PLC AGM the shareholders agreed that
the gbjects clause be removed from PLC s Articles of Associatien
so that there are no restrictions on 1ts objects

Each NV ordinary share represents the same underlying
economic interest in the Unilever Group as each PLC ordinary
share However, NV and PLC remain separate legal entities with
different shareholder constituencies and separate stock exchange
listings Shareholders cannot convert or exchange the shares of
one for the shares of the other

www.unitever com/legalstructure

BOARDS

The Boards of NV and PLC have ulimate responsibility for the
management general affairs, direction performance and long-
term success of our business as a whole The Boards are gne-tier
boards, the sarne people are on both Boards and the respensibility
of the Directors is colleclive, taking into account their respective
roles as Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors During
2014, Unilever continued to have two Executive Directors the Chief
Executive Officer {CEQ] and Chief Financiat Officer [CFO), who are
atso members of the Umiever Leadership Executive [ULE) and are
futl-time employees of Umlever The majority of the Directors are
Non-Executive Directors who essentially have a supervisory role

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Alist of our current Directors, their roles on the Boards, their
dates of appointments and their other major appoiniments 1s set
out on page 54

The Boards have delegated the operational running of the Group
to the CEQ with the exception of the following matters which are
reserved far the Boards structural and constitutional matters,
corporate governance, approval of dividends approval of overall
strategy for the Group and approval of significant transactions or
arrangementsn relation to mergers, acquisitions joint ventures
and disposals capwtal expenditure, contracts, tigation, financing
and pensions The CEQ 1s responsible to the Boards and 15 able
to delegate any of his powers and discretions which he does to
members of the ULE The ULE 1s chaired by and reports to the
CEQ The biographies of ULE members are on page 55

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Boards have established four Board Commuttees the
Audit Committee, the Compensation Commuttee, the Corporate
Responsiility Committee and the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee The terms of reference of these
Commuttees can be found on our website and the reports of
each Commuttee can be found on pages 56 to 77 Attendance
tables can be found within each Commuttee Report

www unilever com/committees

THE GOVERNANCE OF UNILEVER

Further details of the roles and responstbilities of the Chairman,
Vice Chairman, CEO and other corporate officers and how our
Boards effectively operate as one board, govern themselves and
delegate thetr authorities are set out in the document entitled
The Governance of Unilever, which can be found on our website

The Governance of Unilever also describes the Foundation
Agreements Directors appointment, tenure, induction and
traiming, Directors ability to seek independant advice at Unilever s
expense and details about Beard and Management Comrmittees
{including the Disclosure Committeel

www umltever com/corporategovernance

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS

BOARD MEETINGS

A minuimum of five face-to-face meetings are planned throughout
the calendar year to consider, for example the half-year and
full-year results announcements of the Group and the Annual
Report and Accounts Other Board meetings and telephone
conferences are held to discuss matters that arise as well as
Group strategic 1ssues Meetings of the Boards may be held
either in London or in Rotterdam or such other locations as the
Boards think fit, with one or two off-site Board meetings a year
The Chairman sets the Boards agenda, ensures the Directors
recelve accurate, timely and clear information, and promotes
effective relationships and open communication between the
Executive and Non-Executive Cirectors

Governance a




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

In 2014 the Boards met physically in January, March, May, July,
September and November and considered important corporate
events and actions, such as

« developing and approval of the overall strategy,

+ oversight of the performance of the business,

» review of risks and internal risk management and

conirol systems,

authorisation of major transactions

declaration of dividends

convening of shareholders meetings,

nomunations for Board appointments

review of Directors remuneration policy,

review of the functioning of the Boards and thewr Committees and
review of corporate responsibility and sustainability,

tn particular the Unilever Sustainable Living Plan

e o & » o o @

ATTENDANCE

The following table shows the attendance of Directors at Board
rmeetings In 2014 If Directors are unable to attend a Board meeting
they have the opportunaty beforehand to discuss any agenda tems
with the Chairman Attendance 1s expressed as the number of
meetings attended out of the number eligible to be attended

Main Basrd
Michael Treschow®! w7
Kees Storm® &/7
Paul Polman' W7
Jean-Marc Huett! "
LauraCha %7
Louise Fresco 77
Ann Fudge W7
Charles Golden®! 3/3
Byron Grote W
Mary Ma Vi
Hixorma Nyasulu W7
Sir Malcolm Rifkind &7
John Rishton W
Feike Sybesmat! 11
Paul Walsh 7

' Chairman

™ Vice-Chairman/Senior Independent Direcior

I Execytive Directer

W Retired from the Boards on 14 May 2014

le Appointed to the Boards with effect from 1 November 2014

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MEETINGS

The Nen-Executive Directors meet as a group, without the
Executive Directors present, to consider specific agenda items
set by them, usually four or five times ayear In 2014 they met five
umes The Charrman, or in his absence the Vice-Chairrman/Senior
Independent Director chairs such meetings

BOARD EVALUATION

Each year the Boards formally assess their own performance
with the aim of helping to improve the effectiveness of both the
Boards and the Committees and at teast once every three years
an imdependent third party facibitates the evatuation The
evaluation consists of individual interviews with the Directors
by the Chairman and also, every three years, by the external
evaluator These interviews complement our annual process of
completion by all Direclors of three Tull and confidential ontine
evaluatton questionnaires on our Boards CEQ and Chairman
The detarled Board questionnaire invites comments on a number
of key areas including Board responsibility operations,
effecuveness, rraiming and knowledge

42 Governance

Asin 2011 Mr J de Leeuw anindependent external censultant,
faciltated the 2014 Board evaluation MrJ de Leeuw has no other
cennection with the Unitever Group The Chairman s Statement on
page 2 describes the key actions agreed by the Baards follawing
that evaluation

page 2 of the Stralegic Report

In addstion to the evaluation of the Boards effectiveness, each
year the Chairman conducts a process of evaluating the
performance and contribution of each Director which includes
a one-to-one pertormance and feedback discussion with each
Director The evaluation of the performance of the Chawrman is
led by the Vice-Chairman/Senior Independent Dhrector and the
Chairman leads the evaluation of the CED, both using bespoke
questiannaires Committees of the Boards evaluate themselves
annually under supervision of their respective Chairmen taking
inta account the views of respective Committee members and
the Boards

APPOINTMENT

In seektng to ensure that NV and PLC have the same Directors,
the Articles of Association of NV and PLC contain provisions
which are designed to ensure that both NV and PLC shareholders
are presented with the same candidates for election as Directors
Anyone being elected as a Director of NV must also be elected as
a Director of PLC and vice versa Therefore, if an indwidual fails
o be etected to both companies he or she will be unable to take
his or her place on ether Board These provisions of the Articles
cannot be changed without the permission, In the case of NV,

of the holders of the NV special ordinary shares and, i the case
of PLC, of the holders of the PLC deferred stock

The report of the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Commuttee INCGC) on pages 60 and 6t describes the work

of the NCGC in Board appointments and recommendations

for re-glection In addition, shareholders are able to nominate
Directors The procedure for shareholders to nominate Directors
¢an be found in the Appeintment pracedure for NV & PLC
Directors document under download limks on our website

To do so they must put a resolutton to both the NV and PLC

AGMSs in ine with local requirernents Dhrectars are appointed

by shareholders by a simple majority vote at each AGM

www unilever com/boardsofunilever

DIRECTOR INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Al Directors recewve induction on joining the Boards and the
Chairman ensures that ongoing tratrung 1s provided for Directors
by way of site visits, presentations and circulated updates at [and
between] Board and Board Committee meetings on, amang other
hings, Unilever s business, environmental, social and corporate
governance, regulatory developments and mvestor relations
matters Details of the training provided to the Directors m 2014
can be found in the Chairman s Statement on page 2

page 2 of the Strategic Report

INDEPENDENCE AND CONFLICTS

As the Non-Executive Directors make up the Commuttees of

the Boards, it 15 important that they can be constdered to be
independent Each year the Boards conduct a thorough review

of the Non-Executive Directors, and their related or connected
persons relevant relationships reterencing the criteria set out

i The Gavernance of Unilever which s derived from the relevant
best practice guidelines i the Netherlands, UK and US

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014




The Boards currently consider all our Non-Executive Directors
to be independent of Unitever Furthermore, the Boards have
deterrmined that Byron Grote s current position of serving on the
audit cormmittees of more than three public companies does not
impair his alibity to effectively serve on the Audit Commitiee

We attach special importance to avoiding conflicts of interest
between NV and PLC and their respective Directors The Boards
ensure that there are effective procedures in place to avond
canflicts of interest by Board members |f appropriate,
authornisation of situational conflicts 1s given by the Boards ta the
relevant Director The authorisation includes conditions relating
to keeping Urilever infarmation confidential and to the Director s
exclusion from receiving and discussing relevant information at
Board meetings Situational conflicts are reviewed annuatly by the
Boards as part of the determination of Director independence In
between those reviews Directors have a duty to inform the Beards
of any relevant changes to the situation A Director may not vote
on or be counted in a quorum n retation to, any resolution of the
Boards in respect of any situation inwhich he or she has a conflict
of interest The procedures that Unilever has put n place to deal
with conflicts of interest operate effectively

Unilever recognises the benefit to the individual and the Group
of senior executives acting as directors of other companies but,
to ensure outside directorships of our Executive Directors do
not invelve an excessive commitment or conflict of interest, the
number of outside directorships of listed companies 15 generally
Limited to one per Executive Director and approval is required
from the Chairman

INDEMNIFICATION

The terms of NV Directors indemnification are provided forinNV s
Articles of Association The power to indemnify PLC Directorsis
provided for in PLC s Articles of Association and deeds of indernnity
have been issued to all PLC Directors Appropriate qualifying third
party directors and officers lability insurance was in place for all
Unilever Owecters thraughaut 2014 and s currently i force

In addition PLC provides indemnities (including, where
applicable, a qualifying pension scheme indemnity provision}

to the Directors of three subsidianes which each acts as trustee
of a Unitever UK pension fund Appropriate trustee Lrability
Insurance Is also in place

OUR SHARES
NV SHARES

SHARE CAPITAL

NV s 1ssued share capital on 31 December 2014 was made up of

« €274356,432 split into 1,714,727.700 ordinary shares of
€016 each,

« €1,028,568 splt inte 2,400 ardinary shares numbered 1 to
2,400 known as special shares and

= €81,454 014 split into two classes (6% and 7%) of cumulative
preference shares [financing preference sharesi*

* These shares are included within Liabilities (note 15C)

LISTINGS

NV has listings of shares and depositary receipts for shares on
Euronext Amsterdam and of New York Registry Shares on the
New York Stock Exchange

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014

YOTING RIGHTS

NV shareholders can cast one vote for each €0 16 nominal capital
they hold Therefore, the voting rights attached to NV s
outstanding shares are split as follows

Total number of votes % of issued capitat
1714727700 ordinary shares 1,714,727, 7004 7689
2 400 special shares 6,428,550 0.29
161,060 6% cumulative
preference shares 431,409,276™ 19.34
29000 7% cumutative
preference shares 77,678,313 3.48

As at 31 Decernber 2014

b 141 540 629 shares were held in treasury and 12 348 368 shares were
held to satisfy ebligations under share-based incentve schemas

37 679 &% cumulative preference shares were held in treasury

k7542 7% cumulative preference shares were held in treasury

The special shares and the shares under (a}, [b] and (¢] are not voted on

SHARE ISSUES AND BUY BACKS

NV may 1ssue shares not yet tssued and grant rights to subscribe
for shares onty pursuant to a resolution of the General Meeting
ar of anather corparate bedy designated for such purpose by a
reselution of the Generat Meeting At the NV AGM held on

14 May 2014 the Board was designated as the corporate body
authorised to resolve on the 1ssue of, or on the granting of nghts
to subscribe tor, shares not yet 1ssued and to restrict or exclude
the statutory pre-emption rights that accrue to shareholders
upon tssue of shares, on the understanding that this authority is
limited to 10% of the 1ssued share capitat of NV, plus an additianal
10% of the issued share capital of NV in connection with or on
the accasion of mergers acquisitions or strategic altiances

At the 2014 NV AGM the Board of NV was also authorised to cause
NV to buy back its own shares or depositary receipts thereof,

with a maximum of 10% of issued share capital either through
purchase on a stock exchange or otherwise, at a price excluding
expenses, not lower than €0 01 [one euro cent] and not higher
than 10% zbove the average of the closing price of the shares on
the Eurcnext stock exchange in Amsterdam for the five business
days before the day on which the purchase i1s made

These authorrties expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the
2015 NV AGM ar the close of business on 30 June 2015 {the last
date by which NV must hald an AGM 1n 2013] Such authorities are
renewed annually and authority will be sgught at NV 5 2015 AGM

During 2014 Unilever group companies purchased 7,304 993 NV
New York Regrstry Shares, each representing ane NV ordinary
share with a nominal value of €0 16 for €227 5 mutbion to facilitate
grants made in connectron with its employee compensation
programmes This represents 0 4246% of the called-up share
capital of NV No NV 6% cumulative preference shares nor NV 7%
curnulative preference shares were purchased by Unitever group
companies during 2014 Further information on this and on NV
shares held by an employee share trust can be found in note 4 to
the consolidated accounts on pages 98 and 99

NV SPECIAL ORDINARY SHARES

The NV spectal ordinary shares may only be transferred to one
or more other holders of such shares The joint holders of these
shares are NV Etma and United Holdings Limrted, which are
subsidiaries of NV and PLC respectively The Boards of NV Elma
and United Holdings Limited comprise the members of the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Comrmittee

TRUST OFFICE

The Foundation Unilever NV Trust Office {Stichting
Administratiekantoor Unslever N V 15 a trust office wath a board
independent of Unilever As part of its corporate abjects, the Trust
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Difce 1ssues depositary receipts in exchange for the NV ordinary
shares and NV 7% preference shares These depositary receipts
are listed on Euronext Amsterdam as are the NV ordinary and 7%
preference shares themselves

Holders of deposttary recespts can under all circumstances
exchange their depositary receipts for the underlying shares land
vice versal and are entitled to dividends and all economic benefits
on the undertying shares held by the Trust Office There are no
Limitations on the holders voting rights, they can attend all
General Meetings of NV, either personally or by proxy and have
the right to speak The Trust Ctfice only votes shares that are not
represenied at a General Meeting The Trust Office votes in such
away as it deems to be in the interests of the holders of the
depositary receipts This voting policy 15 lawd down in the
Conditions of Administration that apply to the depositary receipts

The Trust Office s shareholding fluctuates daily lts holdings
on 21 December 2014 were 1,331,829.935 NV ordinary shares
[77 £7%) and 9,776 NV 7% cumulative preference shares (33 71%]

The members of the board at the Trust Office are Mr J H Schraven
fchairman), Mr P P de Kening, Ms C M S Smuts-Nusteling and
Mr A A Olyslager Prof Emeritus Or L Koopmans retired on

11 February 2015 The Trust Office reports pertodically onits
activities Further information on the Trust Office, inctuding its
Articles of Association and Conditions of Administration, can be
found on its websile

Urutever considers the arrangements of the Trust Ofiice to be
appropriate and in the interests of NV and its shareholders given
the size of the voung nights atlached to the financing preference
shares and the relatively low attendance of holders of ordinary
shares at the General Meelings ot NV

www administratiekantoor-unilever nl
PLC SHARES

SHARE CAPITAL

PLC s issued share capital on 31 December 2014 was made up of

» £40,760,420 split into 1,310,156,361 ordinary shares of 3'/p
each, and

« £100,000 of deferred stock of £1 each

LISTINGS
PLC has shares listed on the Londan Stock Exchange and, as
American Depositary Receipts, on the New York Stock Exchange

VOTING RIGHTS

PLC shareholders can cast one vote for each 3'/sp nominal capital
they hold This means that shareholders can cast one vote for each
PLC ordinary share or PLC American Depositary Receipt of Shares
Therefore the total number of voting rights attached to PLC s
outstanding shares 1s as follows

up to a maximum of £13,300,000 norminal value [which at the time
represented approximately 33% of PLC s 1ssued ordinary share
capitall and to disapply pre-emption rights up to approximately 5%
of PLC s 1ssued ordinary share capital

in addition, at PLC's 2014 AGM the PLC Board was authorised by a
resolution of PLC to make market purchases of its ordinary shares,
up to a maximurmn of 128 345,000 shares representing just under
10% of PLC sissued ordinary share capital and within the limits
prescribed in the resolution until the earlier of the cencluston of
PLC s 2015 AGM and 30 June 2015 These authorities are renewed
annually and authority wilt be sought at PLC 5 2015 AGM

During 2014 Unilever group companies purchased 6,058,733 PLC
American Depositary Receipt of shares, each representing one PLC
ordinary share with a normuinal value of 3'/+p for €201 07 million

to facilitate grants made tn connection with its employee
compensation programmes This represents 0 462% of the
called-up share capital of PLC Further information an this and on
PLC shares held by an employee share trust can be found in note 4
to the consolidated accounts on pages 98 and 99

PLC DEFERRED STOCK

The joint holders of the PLC deferred stock are NV Elma and United
Holdings Lirmited, which are subsidiartes of NV and PLC respectively
The Boards of NV Elma and United Holdings Limited comprise the
members of the Norminating and Corporate Governance Commitlee

OUR SHAREHOLDERS

SIGNIFICANT SHAREHOLDERS OF NV

Asfar as Unilever s aware the only holders of more than 3%

of, or 3% of voting rights attributable to, NV s share capital on

31 Oecember 2014 [apart from the Foundation Unilever NV Trust
Office, see pages 43 and 44, and shares held in treasury by NV,
see page 43}, are ING Groep NV UING], ASR Nederland NV [ASR)
and BlackRock, Inc [BlackRock] as indicated in the table below

Total number of % of relevant

Shareholder Class of shares shares held class

ING ordihary shares 5,653,749 0.33
7% cumulative

preference shares 20,645 T1.28
&% curmnulative

preference shares 74,088 £6.0

ASR ordinary shares 3,169,339 0.18
6% cumulative

preference shares 46,000 28.56

BlackRock ordinary shares 66,568,832 3.88%

Total number of votes % of issued capital
1,310 154 36t ordinary shares 1,310,156,35611! 99.76
£100 000 deferred stock 3,214,285 024

B Of which 26 696 994 shares were held by PLC n treasury and 7507715
shares were held by NV group comparnues or by share trusts as at
31 December 2014 These shares are not voted on

SHARE ISSUES AND BUY BACKS

The PLC Board may. subject to the UK Companies Act 2004 and the
passing of the appropriate resolutions st a General Meeting, 1ssue
shares within the lmits prescrtbed within the resolutions AtPLC s
2014 AGM the PLC Directors were authorised to issue new shares,

[¥A Governance

btRepresenting 2 8% capital interest and 3 71% voting rights in the NV
share capital

As far as Unilever 1s aware, no disclosable changes in interests
In the share capital of NV have been notified to the AFM between
1 January 2015 and 25 February 2015 [the latest pracucable
date for inclusion in this reportt Between 1 January 2012 and

25 February 2015, ING, BlackRock and ASR have held more than
3% in the share capital of NV Deutsche Bank, Bank of America
Corporattan and UBS AG also held more than 3% in the share
capital of NV however, during this period, and as notitied, these
holdings reduced to below the 3% reporting threshaold
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SIGNIFICANT SHAREHOLDERS OF PLC

As far as Unilever 1s aware, the onlty holders of more than 3% of,

or 3% of voting rights attributable to, PLC s share capital on

31 December 2014 lapart from deferred stock held by Naamlooze
Venngotschap Elma and Unrted Holdings Limited, see page 44, and
shares held in treasury by PLC, see page 44}, are BlackRock, Inc
and the Leverhulme Trust as indicated in the table below

Tatalnumber of % of relevant

Shareholder Class of shares shares held class
Naamlooze

Vennoatschap

Elma deferred shares 50,000 50
Urited Holdings

Limited deferred shares 50,000 50
BlackRock ordinary shares 71,832,960 55
The Leverhulme

Trust ordinary shares 48,531,182 6.3

No disclosable changes i interests in the share capital of

PLC have been notified to PLC between 1 January 2015 and

25 February 2015 [the latest practicable date for inclusion in this
report] Between 1 January 2012 and 25 February 2015 Legal &
General Group ple, BlackRock and the Trustees of the Leverhulme
Trust and the Leverhulme Trade Charities Trust have held more
than 3% of, or 3% of voting rights attributable to, PLC s ordinary
shares During this period, and as notified these holdings
reduced to below the 3% reporting threshald

During 2014 the trustees of the Leverhulme Trust and the trustees
of the Leverhulme Trade Charities Trust {comprising the same
individuals [together the Trustees]) together held 70,564,764
ardinary shares amounting to 5 5% of the voting rights of PLC

On 31 December 2014 the Leverhulme Trust and the Leverhulme
Trade Charities Trust became charitable incorporated
orgarusations As a consequence of these changes, the balance

of shares held by the Trustees has reduced to zero and only the
Leverhulme Trust has a disclosable interest as shown in the

table above

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Unilever values open, constructive and elfective communication
with our shareholders Our shareholders can raise 1ssues directly
with the Chairman and, if appropriate, the Vice-Chairman/Senior
independent Director The CFQ has lead responsibility for investor
relations, with the active invalvemen; of the CEO They are
supported by our Investor Relatrons department which organises
presentations for analysts and investors These and other
matenals (eg an Introduction to Unilever and AGM materials)

are generally made available on our website

Principal shareholders the Executive Directors iwestor relations
programme continued (n 2014 with meetings in nine mayor cities
tn Europe, North America and Asia In all, they met more than %0
investors during these readshows {n addition, the Chairman
maintained contact with principal shareholders with one to one
and group governance and strategy meetings in the UK and the
Netherlands i June and 1n the US in September

Quarterly announcements brieftngs on quarterly results are
given via teleconference and are accessible by telephone or via
our website

Annualinvestor seminar this annual event was held m our
London offices in December 2014 1t focused on Driving Profitable
Growth and Agility and mcluded presentations on brands, R&D
and supply chain The evenl was atlended by members of the
Unilever Leadership Executive and other senior management

The slides shown and an audio-recording of the presentations

Unitever Annual Report and Accounts 2014

were made available and can be accessed on our website This
allows those investors not attending 1n person to access the
information provided at the event

Investor conferences the Executive Directors and members of
the Investor Relations team alse meet a large number of investors
at the industry conferences they attend ln 2014 the conferences
that were attended by Unitever representatives included broker
spenscored conferences in London, Parts, Brussels, San Francisce
and Singapere

Feadback from shareholders we maintain a frequent dialogue
with our principal shareholders and reqularly collect feedback

In addition, in 2014 we asked a cross section of investors to
participate in a detailed perceptian study We use this feedback
to help shape our wnwestor pregramme and futlure shareholder
communications Private shareholders are encouraged to give
feedback via shareholder services@unitever com The Charrman,
Executive Directors and Chairmen of the Commuttees are also
generally available to answer questions from the shareholders
at the AGMs each year

Board awareness the Boards are briefed on investor reactions
to the Group s quarterly results announcements and are briefed
on any issues raised by shareholders that are relevant to their
responsibilities

worw unibever com/investorrelahions

GENERAL MEETINGS

Both Unilever NV and Unulever PLC hold an AGM each year

At the AGMs the Chairman gives his thoughts on governance
aspects of the preceding year and the CEQ gives a detailed review
of the performance of the Group over Lhe last year Sharchelders
are encouraged to attend the relevant meeting and to ask
gueshions ai or i advance of the meelng Indeed, the question
and answer session forms an important part of each meeting
The external auditors are welcomed to the AGMs and are entitled
to address the meetings

The 2014 AGMs were held in London and in Rotterdam in May and
the topics rarsed by shareholders included Non-Executive
Directors shareheldings, Non-Executive Director successton
planming, the PLE Dividend Remvestment Plan, the NV Cumulative
Preference shares, the terrmination of the certification of the

NV shares and how Unilever s values are reflected across its
brand portfolio

VOTING

Sharehelders can vote in person or by proxy Similar
arrangements apply to holders of depositary receipts issued
for NV shares and the holders of NV preference shares

The Trustees of the PLC employee share trusts may vote or
abstasn in any way they think fit and i doing so may take into
account both financial and non-financial interests of the
benehiciaries of the ernployee share trusts or their dependants
Historically the Trustees tend not to exercise this right

The shares held by NV and PLC in treasury are not voted on
Mare information on the exercise of veting rights ¢an be found
in NV's and PLC s Articles of Association and in the respective
Notices of Meetings, all of which can be found on our website

www unilever com/corporategovernance

www.unilever com/agm
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SHAREHOLDER PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS

Shareholders of NV may propose resotutions if they individually
or together hold at least 1% of NV s issued capitalin the form of
shares or depositary receipts issued for NV shares Shareholders
who together represent at least 10% of the 15sued capital of NV
can also requisition Extraordinary General Meetings to deal with
specific resolutions

Shareholders of PLC may propose resolutions if they individually
or together hold shares representing at least 5% of the totat voting
rights of PLC, or 100 shareholders who hold on average £100 each
i nominal value of PLC share capital can require PLC to propose
a resolution at a General Meeting PLC shareholders holding in
aggregate 5% of the 1ssued PLC ordinary shares are able to
convene a General Meeting of PLC

REQUIRED MAJORITIES

Resolutions are usually adopted at NV and PLC General
Meetings by an absolute majority of votes cast, unless there are
other reguirements under the applicable laws or NV sor PLC s
Articles of Association For example, there are special
requirements for resolutions relating to the alteration of the
Articles of Associatian, the liquidation of NV or PLC and the
alteration of the Equalisation Agreement

A proposal to atter the Articles of Asseciation of NV can enly

be made by the NV Board A proposal to alter the Articles of
Association of PLC can be made either by the PLC Board or by
requisition of shareholders in accordance with the UK Companies
Act 2006 Unless expressly specified to the contrary in PLC s
Articles of Association, PLC s Articles of Association may be
amended by a special resolution Proposals to alter the provisions
inthe Articles of Association of NV and PLC respectively relating
to the unity of management require the prior approval of meetings
of the holders of the NV special ardinary shares and the PLC
deferred stock The Articles of Association of both NV and PLC
can be found on our website

www unilever com/corporategovernance

RIGHT TO HOL.D SHARES

Unilever s constitutional documents place no lirmitations on the
right to hold NV and PLC shares There are no limitations on the
right to hold or exercise voting rights on the ordinary shares of
NV and PLC imposed by Dutch or English law

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE

GENERAL

We conduct our operations in accordance with internationally
accepted principles of good governance and best practice,
whilst ensuring compliance with the corporate governance
requirements applicable in the countries in which we operate
Unilever is subject to corporate governance requirernents
{legislation codes and/or standards) in the Nethertands, the
UK and the US and in this section we report on our compliance
against these

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Under the European Takeover Directive as implemented inthe
Netherlands and the UK, the UK Companies Act 2006 and rutes of
the US Securities and Exchange Cornmission, Unilever is required
to provide infermation on contracts and other arrangements

[1)) Governance

essential or material to the business of the Group Other than the
Foundation Agreements referred to on page 41, we believe we do
not have any such contracts or arrangements

THE NETHERLANDS

NV compties with almost all of the principles and best
practice provisions of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code
[Dutch Codel which 1s available on the Comrrussie Corporate
Governance s website

www commissiecorporategovernance nl

Statements required by the Dutch Code and explanations cf the
NV compliance position are set out below

Non-Financial Performance Indicator: In determuning the level
and structure of the remuneration of the Executive Directors,
among other things, the results, the share price performance
and non-financiat indicators relevant to the long-term objectives
of the Company, with due regard for the risks to which variable
remuneration may expose the enterprise, shall be taken inta
account [bpp Il 2 3)

Unilever places a great deal of importance on corporate
responsibility and sustainabtlity and 15 keen to ensure focus on key
financial performance measures which we believe to be the drivers
of shareholder value creation and relative total sharehalder return
Unilever therefore believes that the interests of the business and
shareholders are best served by inking our long-term share plans
te such measures as described above, and which are further set
out in the Directors Remuneration Report, and has therefore not
included a nen-financial performance indicator

Risk Management and control: With regard to financial reporting
risks, as advised by the Audit Committee (as described inits

report on pages 56 and §7, the NV Board believes that the risk
management and control systems provide reasonable assurance
that the financial statements do not contain any errors of matersal
impertance and the risk management and control systems have
warked properly in 2014 (bpp 11 5] The statements in this
paragraph are not statements in accordance with the requirements
of Section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Dxley Act of 2002

Retention Period of Shares: The Dutch Code recommends that
shares granted to the Executive Directors without financial
consideration shall be retained for @ period of at least five years
or until at least the end of the employment, if this periad 1s shorter
bpp i 2 8

Our remuneration policy requires Executive Directors to build and
retain a persanal shareholding in Unilever In additian, Executve
Directors are required te hold 100% of the shares needed to
matntain their minimum sharehalding requirement until 12 months
after they leave Untlever and 50% of these shares for 24 months
after they teave Unitever

Severance Pay: |t is our policy 1o set the level of severance
payments for Directars at no more than one year s salary,

unless the Boards, on the recommendation of the Compensation
Commuitlee find this manifestly unreasonable given circumstances
or unless otherwise dictated by applicable law [bpp 112 8}

Financing Preference Shares. The voting rights of the 6% and 7%
cumulative preference shares 1ssued by NV are based on their
norminal value, as prescribed by Dutch law NV agrees with the
principle in the Dutch Code that the voting rights of any newly 1ssued
preference shares should be based on therr economic value rather
than on their norminal vatue (bpp IV 1 2}, but cannot uniaterally
reduce voting rights of tts outstanding preference shares
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Anti-takeover constructions and control over the company:
NV confirms that it has no anti-takeover constructiens, in the
sense of constructions that are intended solely, or primartly to
block future hostile public offers for its shares [bpp IV 3 11)
Nor does NV have any constructions whose specific purpose
15 to prevent a bidder, after acquiring 75% of the capital, from
appointing or disrmissing members of the Beard and subsequently
altering the Articles of Association The acquisition through a
public offer of a majority of the shares in a company does nat,
under Dutch law, preclude the continued rsght of the board of
the company to exercise Its powers

Corporate Governance Statement: NV is required to make a
statement concerning carporate governance as referred toin article
2a of the decree on additional reguirermnents for annual reports
{Vaststellingsbesluit nadere veorschriften inhoud jaarverslag) with
effect from 1 January 2010 {the Decree] The information required to
be included in this corporate governance statement as described in
articles 3, 3a and 3b of the Decree can be found on our website

www unilever com/corporategovernance

THE UNITED KINGDOM

PLC, being a company thatis incorporated in the UK and bisted

on the Londen Stock Exchange, 1s required to state how it has
apptied the main principles and how far it has comptied with the
provisicens set out in the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code
(UK Codel which s available on the Financial Reporting Council s
(FRC) website In 2014 PLC complied with all UK Code provisions

www frc org uk

Risk Management and Control: Our approach to risk managerment
and systems of sinternal control isin lne with the recormendations
n the report on [nternal Control - Rewised Guidance for Directors
on the UK Combined Code [The Turnbull gutdance] Itis Unilever s
practice to bring acquired companies withun the Group s
governance procedures as soon as Is practicable and in any event
by the end of the first full year of operation

Greenhouse Gas [GHG) Ermussions: As part of our Unilever
Sustawnable Living Plan (USLPY, we have set ambitious
eco-efficiency targets which include carbon dioxide [CO,)
emissions from energy used 1n manufacturing as wetl as water
and waste and targets for the new factories we are building

In line with the Compamies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors Report] Regulations 2013 our greenhouse gas
performance Is set out below We have used the Greenhouse Gas
(GHG) Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
[GHG Protocoll to calcutate emissions of carbon dioxide from the
combustion of fuels and the operation of facilsties [Scope 1] and
from purchased electricity, heat, steam and cooling [Scope 2} for
our manufacturing facilities

Carbon emtssion factors are used to convert energy used in
manufacturing to emissions of CO, Carbon ermussion factors for
fuels are provided by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC)

Carbon ermission factors for electricity reflect the country or
sub-region where each manufacturing site 1s located and are
provided by the International Energy Agency (IEA] and {ocal
regulatory authorities, for example the United States
Environmental Pretection Agency [US EPA} We have selected
an intensity ratio based on production, this atigns with our
long-standing reporting of manufacturing performance

The GHG data relates to emissions during the 12-month period
from 1 October 2013 to 30 Septembar 2014 This period 15 different
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from that for which the remainder of the Directors’ Report s
prepared [which s the calendar year 2014)

Emissions of C0, from manufacturing (tonnes),
1 October 2013 to 30 September 2014 (1 October 2012
to 30 September 2013}

929 360 tonnes CO, [t 013 690 tonnes CO,)
919,803 tonnes €O, (93% 457 tonnes CO,)
1,849,163 tonnes CO,* {1 953,147 tonnes C0,
9193 kg CO, per tonne of production”

[98 85 kg CO, per tonne of production’}

Scope 1

Scope 2
Total Scope 1 & 2
Intensity ratio

Ermussions data includes material sources of Scope 1and 2
emissi0ns that have been subject to external assurance, e
ermissions cf CO, from energy used in manufacturing Emissions
from the combustion of biogenic fuets (biomass, fuel crops etc) at
our manufacturing sites are reported separately to other Scope 1
and 2 emissions, as recommended by the GHG Protocol, and
excluded fram our intensity ratio calculation

Our GHG data does not Include minor emisstons sources that are
beyond our boundary of financial control or that are not material
For example, emissions of CQ, from energy used in our offices
and warehouses are excluded, although we continue to drive
improvemnents in these areas through our USLP targets The data
atso excludes Scope 3 emissions lincluding consumer use of our
products| which we report as part of our USLP [see below]

One of the three big goals of the USLP 15 to halve the
environmental footprint of the making and use of our products by
2020 [see page 11] This is expressed on a per consumer use basis
- te a single use, portion or serving of a product and measures
the GHG emissians associated with the lifecycle of a product from
raw materials to manufacturing to consumer use and disposal

To calculate this we consider emissions spanning Scopes 1, 2 and
3 See page 11 and our online Unilever Sustainable Living Report
2014 [to be published in May 2015 for further detail

page 11 of the Strategic Report
www unilever com/sustainable-living

Progress During the Year Total Scape 1and 2 emussions during
the reporting peried have demonstrated sigruficant reductian
compared to the previous reporting period They have also
decreased significanily compared to the 2008 baseline year of the
target to reduce GHG tn manufacturing in the USLP [2008 baselinel

Absolute emissions reduced by 5 3% compared o the previous
12 months (a reduction of 7 0% per tonne of productian] and by
aver 930,000 tonnes* {37% per tonne of production*] compared
to the 2008 baseline Some of the biggest contributers to our
reductions in CO;, emissions from energy used in manufacturing
during the reporting year were

« energy savings through adoption of a wide range of
technologies, behavigurs and the sharing of best practice
Energy use reduced by 7 2% per tonne of produchion during the
reperting period compared to the previous 12 months, and

= anvestment in cost-effective renewable energy technologies
At the end of the calendar year, the number of manufacturing
sites that use either renewable fuels or other renewable
energy generated on site increased to 50 out of our total of 247

" PwC assured For further details and the basts of preparation see our website

www unilever com/ara2014/downloads
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Employee Involvement and Communication. Unilever s UK
cotmpames mantan formal processes to inform, consult and
inwolve employees and their representatives A National
Consultative Forum comprising employees and management
representatives meets regularly to provide a lorum for discussing
1ssues relating to all Unilever sites in the United Kingdom

We recognise collective bargaining on a number of sites and
engage with employees wia the Sourcing Unit Forum, which
includes national ofhicer representation from the three
recognised trade uigns A European Works Council, embracing
employee and management representatives from countres
within Europe, has been in existence for several years and
provides a forum for discussing 1ssues that extend across
national boundaries

The Directors Reports of the United Kingdom gperating
companies contain more details about how they have
communicated with thetr employees during 2014

Equal Opportunities and Diversity: In accordance with our
Code of Business Principies, Unilever aims o ensure that
applications for employment from everyone are given full and
fair consideration and that everyone is given access to training,
development and career opportunities Every effort ts also made
to retrain and support employees who become disabled while
working within the Group

independent Auditors and Disclosurae of Information to
Auditors: To the best of each of the Directors knowledge and
belief, and having made apprapriate enguiries, all infarmation
relevant to enabling the auditors to provide their opinions on
PLC s consolidated and parent company accounts has been
provided Each of the Directors has taken all reasonable steps
lo ensure thewr awareness of any retevant audit infermation
and to establish that Umitever PLC s auditors are aware of any
such information

THE UNITED STATES

Both NV and PLC are listed on the New York Stock Exchange
[NYSE] As such, both companies must camply with the
requirements of US legislation, such as the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, regulations enacted under US securities laws and the
Listing Standards of the NYSE that are applicable to foreign
private 1ssuers, coples of which are avatable an their websites

WWW secC gov
WWW hyse com

We are substantially compliant with the Listing Standards of the
NYSE applicable to forergn private 1ssuers except as set out below

We are required to disclose any significant ways in which our
corporate governance practices differ from those typically
fotlowed by US companies listed on the NYSE Qur corporate
governance practices are primanily based an the requirements
of the UK Listing Rules, the UK Code and the Dutch Code but
substantially canfarm to those required of US cormparnues listed
onthe NYSE The only significant way in which our corporate
governance practices differ from those followed by domestc
compantes under Section 303A Corporate Governance Standards
of the NYSE 1s that the NYSE rules require that shareholders must
be given the epporiumity (o vote on atl equity-compensation plans
and material revisions thereto, with certain limited exemptions
The UK Listing Rules require shareholder approval of
equity-compensation plans only if new or treasury shares are
1ssued for the purpose of satisfying obligations under the plan or
if the plan s a tong-term incentive plan in which a director may
participate Amendments to plans approved by shareholders
generally only require approval if they are to the advantage of the

48 Gavernance

plan participants Furthermore, Dutch law and NV s Articles of
Association require shareholder approval of equity-campensation
ptans only if the Executive Directors are able lo participate in such
ptans Under Dutch law, sharehotder approval 1s not required for
material revisions to equity-compensation plans uniess the
Executive Directors participate in a plan and the plan does not
contain \s own procedure for revisions

Attention 1s drawn to the Report of the Audit Committee on pages
56 and 57 |n addition, further details about our corporate
governance are provided iy the document entitled The
Governance of Untlever which can be found on our website

All senicr executives and semor financial officers have declared
their understanding of and compliance with Unilever s Code of
Business Principles and the related Code Policies No waiver
from any provision of the Code of Business Principles or Code
Policies was granted in 2014 to any of the perscns falling within
the scope of the SEC requirements Qur Code of Business
Principles can be found on our website

WWW unilever.com/corporategovernance

Risk Management and Control Following a review by the
Disclosure Committee, Audit Committee and Boards, the CEQ
and the CFO cancluded that the design and operation of the
Group s disclosure controls and procedures, including those
defined in the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 -
Rule 132 - 15{el, as a1 31 December 2014 were effective, and that
subsequently untit 3 March 2015, the date of the approval of the
Annual Report and Accounts by the Boards, there have been no
significant changes in the Group s internal controls, or in other
factors that could significantly affect those controls

Umitever s required by Secvion 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 to report on the effectiveness of 1ts internal control
over financial reporting This requirement will be reported on
separately and will form part of Unilever s Annual Report on
Form 20-F
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RISKS

OURRISK APPETITE AND
APPROACH TO RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management 1s integral to Unilever s strategy and to the
achievement of Unilever s long-term goals Our success as an
orgamsation depends on our ability to identify and exploit the
opportuniies generated by our business and the markets we
aren In doing this we take an embedded approach to risk
management which puts risk and opportunity assessment

at the core of the leadership team agenda, which is where

we believe it should be

Unilever adopts a rnisk profile that is aligned to our Vision to double
the size of our busiess while reduicing our envircnmentat foatprint
and mcreasing our posttive secial iImpact Qur availlable capital and
other resources are applied to underpin our prioriies We aim to
maintain a strong single A credit rating on a long-term basis

Qur approach to risk management 1s designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that our assets are
safeguarded, the risks facing the business are being assessed and
mitigated and all information that may be required to be disclosed
1s reported to Undever s senior management including, where
appropriate, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

ORGANISATION

The Unilever Boards assume overall accountability for the
management of risk and for reviewing the effectiveness of
Unilever s risk management and internal control systems

The Beards have established a clear organisational structure
with well defined accountabilities for the principal risks that
Unilever faces in the short, medium and long term This
organisational structure and distribution of accountabilities

and responsibilities ensures that every country in which we
operate has specific resources and processes for risk review
and risk mitigation This1s supported by the Unitever Leadership
Executive, which takes an active responsibility for focusing on the
princtpal areas of risk to Unitever The Boards regularly review
these risk areas including constderation of envirgnmental, social
and governance matters, and retain responsibility for deterrmining
the nature and extent of the significant risks that Unileveris
prepared to take to achieve Its strategic objectives

FOUNDATION AND PRINCIPLES

Unilever s approach to domng business is framed by our Purpose
Our Code of Business Principles sets out the standards of
behavtour that we expect all employees te adhere to Day-to-day
responsibility for ensuring these principles are applied
throughout Unilever rests with semior management across
categories, geographies and funchians A network of Code
Oificers and Commuttees supports the activities necessary to
communicate the Code, deliver training, matntain processes and
procedures lincluding support lines) to report and respond to
alleged breaches, and to caplure and communicate tearnmgs

We have a framework of Code Policies that underpin the Code
of Business Principles and set out the non-negotrable standards
of behaviour expected from all our employees

For each of our principal risks we have a risk management
framework detailing the controls we have in place and who Is
responsible for both managimng the overall risk and the individual
controls miligating that risk

Unitever s functional standards define mandatory requirements

acress a range of specialist areas such as health and safety,
accounting and reporting and financial risk management
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PROCESSES

Unilever operates a wide range of processes and activies
across allits operations covering sirategy, planning, execution
and performance management Risk management is integrated
nto every stage of this business cycle These procedures are
farmalised and documented and are increasingly betng
centrabised and autornated into transactional and other
information technology systems

ASSURANCE AND RE-ASSURANCE

Assurance on compliance with the Code of Business Principles
and all of our Code Policies 15 abtained annually from Unilever
management via a formal Code dectaration In addition, there

are specialist compliance programmes which run during the year
and vary depending on the business priorities These specialist
cempliance programmes supplement the Code dectaration

Our Corporate Audit function plays a vital role in providing to both
management and the Boards an objective and independent review
of the effectivenaess of risk management and internal controt
systems throughout Unulever

BOARDS® ASSESSMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORKS

The Boards, advised by the Committees where appropriate,
regularly review the significant rnisks and decisions that could
have a material impact on Unilever These reviews consider the
levet of risk that Unilever s prepared to take tn pursuit of the
business strategy and the effectiveness of the management
contrels in place to mitigate the risk exposure

The Boards, through the Audit Committee, have reviewed the
assessment of risks, internal controls and disclosure controls
and procedures in operation within Unilever They have also
considered the effectiveness of any remedial actions taken for
the year covered by this report and up to the date of its approval
by the Boards

Details of the activities of the Audit Commutiee in relation to
this can be found in the Report of the Audit Commitiee on pages
56to 57

Further statements on compliance with the specific risk
management and control requirements in the Dutch Carporate
Governance Code, the UK Corporate Governance Code, the US
Securites Exchange Act [1934] and the Sarbanes-0xley (2002)
Act can be found on pages 46 47 and 48

PRINCIPAL RISK FACTORS

Our business is subject to nsks and uncertainties On the fotlowing
pages we have idenuified the risks that we regard as the most
relevant to our business These are the risks that we see as most
matertal to Unilever s business and performance at this time There
may be ather risks that could emerge in the future We have also
commaented below an certain mitigating actions that wa believe
help us to manage these risks However, we may not be successful
in deploying some or all of these mutigating aclions If the
crcumstances in these risks oceur or are not successfully
mutigated, our cash flow operating results, inancial posttion,
business and reputation could be materially adversely affected
Inaddition, risks and uncertainties could cause actual results to
vary from those described, which may include forward-looking
statements, or could impact an our ability to meet our targets or
be detrimental to aur profitability or reputation
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RISKS CONTINUED

DESCRIPTION OF RISK

BRAND PREFERENCE

As a branded goods business, Unilever s success depends on

the value and relevance of our brands and products to consumers
across the wortd and on our ability to innovate and remain
competitive

Consumer lastes, prelerences and behaviours are constanily
changing and Unilever s abtlity t¢ anticipate and respond to Lhese
changes and to continue to differentiate our brands and products
15 vital to our bustness

We are dependent on crealing innovalive products thal conlinge
lo meel the needs of our consumers |f we are unabte to Innovale
effectively, Unitever s sales or margins could be materially
adversely affected

WHAT WE ARE DOING TO MANAGE THE RISK

We continuously monitor external market Urends and coltate
censumer customer and shopper insight in order to devetop
category and brand strategies

Our strategy focuses oninvesting in markets and segments which
we dentify as attractive because we have already buillt or are
confident that we can build competitive advantage

Our Research and Development funclion actively searches for ways
inwhich to translate the trends in consumer preference and Lasle
into new technolagies for incorporation into fulure products

Qur innovatton management process deploys tools technologies
and resources to convert category strategles into projects and
category plans, develop products and relevant brand
communication and successlully roll out new products

to our consumers

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

Unilever’s strategic investmaent choices will affect the long-term
growth and profits of our business

Unilever s growth and profitability are determined by our portfolio
of categories geographies and channels and how these evolve
over ime |f Unilever does not make optimal strategic investment
decistons then opportunities for growth and tmproved margin
could be missed

Qur Compass strategy and our business plans are destgned to
ensure that resources are prioritised towards those categories
and markets having the greatest long-term potential for Unilever

Our acquisition activity ts driven by our portfolio strategy with
a clear defined evaluation process

SUSTAINABILITY

The success of our business depends on finding sustatnable
solutions to support long-term growth

Unulever s Vision to double Lhe size of our business while reducing
aur environmental footprint and intreasing our positive social
impact will require moere sustainable ways of deing business

This means reducing our enviranmental footprint while increasing
the positive social benefits of Undever s activities We are dependent
on the eiforts of partners and vanous certification bodies to achieve
aur sustainabiity goals There can be no assurance that sustainable
business solutions will be developed and failure to do so could

Lt Unilever s growth and prohit potential and damage our
corporate reputation

The Unilever Sustainable Living Plan sets clear long-term
commitments lo improve heallh and well-being, reduce
environmental impaclt and enhance liveltheods Underpinning
these are targets in areas such as hygiens, nutrtion, sustainable
sourcing, farrness in the workplace opportunities for women and
inclusive business as well as greenhouse gas emissions, water and
wasle These targets and more sustainable ways of operating are
being integrated into Unilever s day-to-day business

Progress lowards the Unilever Sustainable Living Plan s monitered
by the Unilever Leadershup Executive and the Boards The Unilever
Sustainable Living Plan Council, comprising six external specialists
In sustainability guides and critiques the development of our sirategy

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

Successful customer relationships are vital to our business and
continyed growth

Marintaining strong relationships with our customers 1s necessary
for our brands to be well presented to our consumers and available
for purchase at all imes

The strength of our customer relationships also affects our ability
to abtain pricing and secure favourable trade tarms Unilever may
not be able to maintarn strong relationships with customers and
faiture to do so could negatively impact the terms of business with
the affected customers and reduce the avatlabiity of our products
lo consumers
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We build and maintain trading relationships across a broad
spectrum of channels ranging from centrally managed
multinational customers through to small traders accessed
via distributors in many developing countries

We develop joint business plans with our key customers that inctude
detarled investment plans and custorner service objectives and we
regularty monitor progress

We have developed capabilities for customer sales and oullet design
which enable us to find new ways to improve custamer performance
and enhance our customer relationships
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DESCRIPTION OF RISK

TALENT

A skilled workforce 15 essential for the continued success
of our business

Our ability te attract, develop and retain the right number of
appropriately qualified people 1s cnitical if we are to compete
and grow effectively

This 1s especially true in our key emerging markets where there
can be a high level of competition for a imited lalent pool The loss
of management or other key personnet or the inability lo idenuly,
attract and retain qualified personnel could make it difficult to
manage the business and could adversely affect cperalions and
financial results

WHAT WE ARE DOING TO MANAGE THE RISK

Resource commitiees have been established and implemented
throughout our business These committees have responstbilily
fordentifying future skills and capability needs developing career
paths and identifying the key talent and teaders of the future

Wa have anntegrated management develapment pracess which
includes regular performance reviews underpinned by a common
set of leadership behaviours, skills and competencies

We have targeled programmes Lo altracl and retain top talent
and we aclively monitar our perlarmance in relaining latent
withun Unilever

SUPPLY CHAIN

Qur business depends on purchasing materials, efficient
manufacturing and the timely distribution of products
to our customers

Qur supply chain network 1s exposed to potentially adverse

events such as physical disruptions erwvironmental and industral
acaidents or bankruptcy of a key supplier which could impact

our ability to deliver orders to our customers

The cost of our products can be signsficantly affected by the cost
of the underlying commodities and materials from which they
are made Fluctuations in these costs cannot always be passed
on 1o the consumer through pricing

We have contingency plans designed to enable us to secure
alternative key material supplies at short notice, to transfer
or share production between manufacturing sites and to use
substitute materials in our product farmulations and recipes

These contingency plans also extend to an ability to intervene
directly to support a key supplier should 1t for any reason find itself
in difficulty or be at risk of negatively affecting a Unilever product

We have policies and procedures designed to ensure the health
and safety of our employees and the products in our faciliies and
to deal with major incidents or crises including business continuity
and disaster recovery

Commodity price risk s actively managed through forward buying
of traded commodilies and other hedqing machamsms Trends are
monitored and modelled regularly and integrated into our
forecasting process

SAFE AND HIGH QUALITY PRODUCTS

The quality and safety of our products are of paramount
importance for our brands and our reputation

The risk that raw malerials are accidentally or malictously
contaminated throughout the supply chain or that other product
delects occur due to human error equipment {ailure or other
factors cannol be excluded

Qur product quality processes and controls are comprehensive,
from product design to customer shelf They are verilied annually
and regularly monitored through perfarmance indicators that drive
continuous improvernent activities Our key supplters are externally
certified and the quality of material received 1s regularty manitored
to ensure that it meets the rigerous quality standards that our
products demand

In the event of an incident relating to the safety of our consumers
ar the quality of our praducts, incident management teams are
activated in the affected markets under the direction of our product
quality science, and communications experts, to ensure timely and
effective market place action

SYSTEMS AND INFORMATION

Unilever's operations are increasingly dependent on IT systems
and the management of information

We interact electronicalty with customners, suppliers and consumers
in ways which place ever greater emphasis on the need for secure
and reliabte |T systems and infrastructure and careful management
ol the informalion that 1s in our possession

Disruption of our IT systerns could inhibil our business operations
In & number of ways inctuding disruption to sales, production and
cash flows ulumately impacting our results

There s also a threat from unauthorised access and misuse of
sensitive information Unidever s information systems could be
subject to unauthortsed access or the rmistaken disclosure of
information which disrupts Urilever s business and/or leads to
loss of assels
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Hardware that runs and manages core operatng data 1s fully
backed up with separate contingency systems to prownde real
time back-up operations should they ever be required

We maintain 2 global system for the control and reporting of
access to our critical IT systems Thisis supported by an annual
programme of testing of access controls

We have policies covering the protection of both business

and personal information, as well as the use of IT systems and
appbications by our emplayees Qur employees are tramed to
understand lhese requirements

We have standardised ways of hosttng information on our public
websites and have systems in place to monitor compliance with
appropriate privacy laws and regulations, and with our own policies
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RISKS CONTINUED

DESCRIPTION OF RISK

BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION

Successful execution of business transformation prejects s
key to delivering thetr intended business benefits and aveiding
disruption to other business activiies

Unilever 1s continually engaged in major change projects incltuding
acquisiions and disposals and outsourcing to drive continuous
improvement in our business and o sirengthen our portfolio and
capabiihies

Faiture lo execule such transaclions or change projects
successiully, or performance issues with third party oulsourced
providers on which we are dependeni, could resullin under-delivery
of the expecied benefits Furthermore, tsruption may be causedin
other parts of the business

WHAT WE ARE DOING TO MANAGE THE RISK

Al acquisiions disposals and global restructuring projects

are sponsored by a member of the Unilever Leadership Executive
Regular progress updates are prowwded to the Unilever
Leaderstip Executive

Sound project disciplines are used in all merger, acquisitions,
restructuring and outsourcing projects and these projects are
resourced by dedicated and appropriately quatified personnel

The performance of third parly outsourced providers is kept under
constant rewiew with potential disruptton bmited to the time and
cost required lo insiall alternative providers

Umilever also monitors the volume of change prograrmmes under
way 1n an effort to stagger the impact on current operations and
to ensure minimal disruptien

EXTERNAL ECONOMIC AND POLITICAL RISKS AND
NATURAL DISASTERS

Unilever operates across the globe and 1s exposed to arange

of external economic and political risks and npatural disasters
that may atfect the execution of our strategy or the running of
our operations

Adverse economic conditions may result in reduced consumer
demand for our products, and may affect ene or more ccuntries
within a region, or may extend globally

Government actions such as hiscal stimulus, changes to taxation
and price conkrols can impact on the growth and profitaality
of our tocal operations

Socral and poliicat upheavals and natural disasters can disrupt
sales and operations

In 2014 more than half of Usulever s turnover came from emerging
markels including Braail, India Indonesia Turkey South Africa,
China, Mexico and Russia These markets ol fer grealer growth
opportunilies but alsc expose Unilever Lo econemic political

and social valatlity in these markets

The breadth of Unilever s portfolio and our geographic reach
help to mitigate our exposure to any particular localised risk
te an extent Our flexible business model allows ws to adapt
our portfolio and respond quickly to develop new olferings
that surt consumers and customers changing needs during
economic downturns

We regularly update our forecast of business results and cash
Hlows and where necessary, rebalance investment prionities

We have continuity planning designed to deal with crisis
management in the event of political and social events and
natural disasters

We believe that many years of exposure to emerging markels
have given us experience operating and developing our business
successiully during periods of economic pelitical or social change

TREASURY AND PENSIONS

Unilever 1s exposed to a vartety of external financlal risks in
relation to Treasury and Penstons

Changes Lo the relative value of currencies can fluctuate widely
and could have a significant impact on business results Further
because Unitever consolidates its financial statements in euros it
15 subject to exchange resks associated with the translation of the
underlying net assets and earnings of its foreign subsidiaries

We are also subject to the imposition of exchange controls by
individual countries which coutd birmit our ability to impert materials
pard in foreign currency or ta rernit dividends to the parent company

Currency rates, along with demand cycles, can also result in
significant swings in the prices of the raw materiats needed
ta produce our goods

Unilever may face iquidity risk, te difficulty in meeting its obligations,
associated with its financial labitiies A material and sustatned
shortfall m our cash ftow could undermine Unilever s credit rating
rmpair investar conldence and also restrict Unilever s ability Lo

raise funds
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Currency exposures are managed within prescribed timits and by
the use of forward foretgn exchange contracts Further, operating
companies borrow in local currency except where inhibited by
tocal regulations, lack of local hiquidity or local market conditions
We also hedge seme of our exposures through the use of foreign
currency borrewing or forward exchange contracts

Our interest rate management approach aims to achieve an optimal
balance between fixed and floating rate intereslt expasures on
expected net debt

We seek to manage our Liquidity requirements by maintaining
access to global debl markets through shori-term and long-term
debt programmes In addition we have hugh committed credit
facilivies for general corporate purposes

Group treasury regularly monitors exposure to aur banks, tightening

counter-party Lrmits where appropriate Unilever actively manages
its banking exposuras on a dally basis
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DESCRIPTION OF RISK

We are exposed to market interest rate fluctuations on our floating
rate debt increases i benchmark interest rates couid increase
the interest cost of our floating rate debt and increase the cost

of future borrowings

In imes of financial market volatibily, we are also potentially exposed
10 counter-party risks with banks suppliers and custorners

Certam businesses have defined benefit pension ptans, most now
closed Lo new employees, which are expesed to movements in
interest rates, fluctuaung values of underlying invesiments and
increased life expectancy Changes in any or all of these inpuls
could polentially iIncrease the cos! to Unilever of funding the
schemes and therefore have an adverse impact on profitability
and cash flow

WHAT WE ARE DOING TO MANAGE THE RISK

We regularly assess and monitor counter-party riskin our
customers and lake appropriate action to rnanage our exposures

Qur pension envestment standards require us to invest across
arange of equities, bonds property alternative assets and cash
such that the failure of any single investment will not have a material
npact on the overalt value of assets

The majority of our assets, including those hetd in our paoled
investment vehicle Univest, are managed by external fund
managers and are regularly monitored by pension trustees
and central pensions and investment teams

Further information on financial instruments and capital
and treasury risk management s included in niote 14 en pages
114 to 119

ETHICAL

Acting i an ethical manner, consistent with the expectations
of customers, consumers and other stakeholders, is essential
for the protection of the reputation of Unilever and its brands

Unilever s brands and reputation are valuable assets and the
way in which we operate contribute to society and engage with
the world arcund us 1s always under scrutiny both internally
and externally Despite the commitment of Unilever to ethical
business and the steps we {ake to adhere to this commitment,
there remains a rtsk that activities or events cause us ta fatl
short of our desired standard, resulting in damage to Unilever s
corporate reputation and business results

Our Code of Business Principles and our Code Policies govern the
behaviour of our employees, suppliers, distributors and other third
parties who work with us

Our processes for identifying and resolving breaches of our Code of
Business Principles and our Code Policies are clearly defined and
regularly communicated throughout Unilever Data relaung to such
breaches s reviewed by the Unilever Leadership Executive and by
relevant Board committees and helps to determine the allocation
of resources for future policy development process improvement
training and awareness inihatives

LEGAL AND REGULATORY

Compliance with laws and regulations is an essential part
of Unilever's business operations

Umlever 1s subject to local, regional and global taws and regutations
in such diverse areas as product safety, producit claims, trademarks
copynght, patents, competition, employee health and safety, the
environment, corporate governance, iisting and desclosure
employment and taxes

Failure to comply with laws and requlations could expose Unilever
to civil and/or crirminal actions leading to damages, hines and
criminal sanctions against us and/or our employees with possible
consequences for our corporate reputation

Changes to laws and regulations could have a material impact

on the cost of daing business Tax, in particular 1 a complex area
where laws and their interpretation are changing regularly leading
to the risk of unexpected tax exposure
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Unilever 1s committed to complying with the laws and regulations
of the countries nwhich we operate In spectalist areas the relevant
teams at global, regional or local levels are responsible for setling
detalled standards and ensuring that all emptoyees are aware

of and comply with requlattons and Laws specific and relevant

to their roles

Our legal and regulatory specialists are heavily involved in
monitoring and reviewtng our practices to provide reasonable
assurance that we remain aware of and in Uine with all relevant
laws and legal obligations

We have a Tax Risk Framework in place which sets out the

controls establtished to assess and monitor tax risk for direct
and ndirect taxes

Governance 53




BIOGRAPHIES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MICHAEL TRESCHOW
Chairman

KEES STORM
Vice-Chairman and Senior
Independent Director

PAUL POLMAN
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director

JEAN-MARC HUET
Chief Financral Officer
Executive Director

Nationality Swedish Age 71 Male
Appointed Chairman May 2007
Committee membership Nominating
and Corporate Gavernance
Compensation

Key areas of expertence Consumer
science & technology

Current external appointments

ABB Group (INED] ElLully and Company
|European Advisory Board member]
Pravious relevant experience
Telefgnakiiebolaget L M Ericsson
[Chawrman) AB Electrolux {Chairman]
Confederation of Swedish Fnterprise
[Chairman] AB Electrolux (CEO]

Nationality Duich Age 72 Male
Appointad May 2004

Commities membership

Norminating and Corporate Governance
[Chairman] Compensation

Key areas of experience Finance
Current external appointmeants
Anheuser-Busch InBevs A [Chairman)
Baxter tnteraational Inc (Board
member] Pon Hotdings BY
[Vice-Chairman Supervisory Board)
Confederation of Netherlands Industry
and Employers [VNO-NCWI] [Member)
Pravicus relevant experience AEGON
NV {Charrman Executive Board)

Nationality Dutch Age 58 Male
Appointed CEQ January 2009
Appointed Owector Octaber 2008

Key areas of experiance

Finance consumer sales & marketing
Current external appointments

The Dow Chemical Company NED)
World Business Council for Sustainable
Development [Charman Executive
Committee) UN Global Compact [Board
member] UK Business Ambassador
Previous relevant experience

Practer & Gamble Ca [Group president
Furope! NestleS A [CFD) Alcon Inc
|Director}

Nationality Dutch Age 45 Male
Appeinted CFO February 2010
Appointed Diractor May 2010

Key areas of experience

Finance consumer

Currant external appointments

Delta Topca Lrmited [NED] Heineken
NV [Supervisory Board member]
Previous relevant experience
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (EVP and
CFOJ] Mead Johnson Nutrition [NED)
Royal Nurmico NV {CFQI, Goldman Sachs
International [Investment Banking|

LAURA CHA
Nen-Executive Directer

PROFESSOR LOUISE FRESCO
Non-Executive Director

ANN FUDGE
Non-Executive Director

DR BYRON GROTE
Non-Executive Director

Nationality Chinese Age 65 Female
Appointed May 2013

Commuittes membership Corporate
Respensibility

Key arsas of experience

Finance government legal & regulatory
aftairs

Current external appoiniments

HSBC Haldings ple (Independent NED)
China Telecorm Corporation Lirnited
[Independent NED) The Horgkoeng and
Shanghal Banking Corporation
INon-executive deputy Charmant
Foundaton Asset Management AB
[Seniorinternational adwser)

Previous relevant experience
Securities and Futures Commission
Hong Keng China Secunities Regulatory
Commission

Nationality Dutch Age 43 Female
Appointed May 2009

Committea membership

Corporate Respansibility (Chairman]
Key areas of experiance

Science & technology academia
Current external appotntments
‘Wageningen UR {President of the
Execulive Board)

Previous relavant experience
Agriculture Department of the UN s Food
and Agricultyre Organisation [Assistant
derector-general for agriculture)

Nationality American Age 43 Female
Appointed May 2009

Committee membership Compensation
Key areas of axperience Consumer
sales & marketing

Current external appeintments
Novartis AG [NED| General Eleciric Co
{NED} US Programs Adwsory

Panel of Gates Faundation [Chairman)
Previous relevant experience
Marnioti International [NED) Young &
Rubicam [Chairman and CEQJ

Nationality American/British

Age b Male

Appointed May 20046

Committee membership

Audit [Chairman)

Key areas of experience Finance
Current external appointments
Angle American ple INED Standard
Chartered Bank INED] Akzo Mobei NV
ISupervisory Board member)
Previous relevant experience BP plc
ICFOl UK Business - Government
Forum on Tax and Globalisation
(Member] LK Gavernrment s Public
Services Productivity Panel (Vice-
Chairman]

MARY MA
Non-Executive Director

HIXONIA NYASULU
Non-Executive Direcior

SIRMALCOLM RIFKIND
Non-Executive Director

JOHN RISHTON
Non-Executive Director

Nationality Chinese Age 62 Female
Appointed May 2013

Committee membarship Audit

Key areas of axperience

Finange consumer science &
technology

Current external appointments
Boyu Capntal [Chairman] MXZ
investmeni Limwied (Direcied] Lenove
Group Limited INED] Securities and
Futures Comimission in Hang Kong
{NEDI Stetux Holdings Internatronal
Limited [NED|

Previous relevant experience

TPG Capuat [Partner] TPG China
ICo-Chairmanl

Nationality South Alrican

Age 60 Female

Appointed May 2007

Committee membership Audit

Kay areas of experience

Sales & marketing

Current external appointments Sasol
0iL{Pty] Limited {Directer] Sequel
Property fnvestrments {Benehioary}
Previous relevant experience Sasal
Ltd [Chairmanl Ithala Developrment
Finance Cerporation [Chairman)
Nedbank Limited (Deputy Chairman]
AViLtd (NED)

Nationality British Age 68 Male
Appointed May 2010

Commttiee membership Nominating
and Corporate Governance

Key areas of experience Government
legal & regulatery affarrs

Current external appointments
Adam Smith International [NED]
Alhance Medicat Holdings Limted
INED] Member of UK Parliament
Previous relavant experience

Queen s Counsel Servedn

Cabinets of Margaret Thatcher

and John Major last position

bewg that of LIK Faraign Secretary
Continental Farmers Group plc [NED|

Nationality British Age 57 Male
Appuointed May 2013

Committee membership Audit

Key areas of experience

Finance sales & marketing

Current external appolntments
Rolls-Royce Holdings ple [CEO}
AeroSpace and Defence Trade
Orgamsauon {ASD) iBoard menber)
Previous relevant experience

Royal Ahold NV [CEQ President and
CFD) ICA AB[NEDI Allied Domecq ple
INED) British Airways plc [CFO)

FEIKE SIJBESMA
Non-Executive Director

PAUL WALSH
Non-Executive Director

Nationality Dutch Age S5 Male
Appeinted Novernber 2014

Key areas of experience

Finance consumer science &
technology

Current external appointments

Royal DSM NV [CLO and Lhairman]
De Nederlandsche Bank IMember]
CEFIC [European Lhemical Industry
Councit) [Board member]

Previous relevant axperience
Supervisory board of DSM Netherlands
[Charrmanl Bulch Genomics initiative
INGIN {Member] Uniersity Utrecht
[Board member] Dutch Cancer Institute
[NKI/avL] (Board member)

Nationality British Age 59 Male
Appointed May 2009

Commiitee membership Compensatien
[Chairmanl

Key areas of experience Finance
consumer sales & markeling

Current external appeintments
Campass Group pic [Chairman) FedEx
Corparation inc (NED] Avant
Commumications Group ple INEDH Ontex
[Chairman| Urited Spirs Limited (NED)
RMZ2INED)

Previous relevant experience

Diageo ple (CED) Centrica plc INED]
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UNILEVER LEADERSHIP EXECUTIVE (ULE)
FOR PAUL POLMAN AND JEAN-MARC HUET SEE PAGE 54

DOUG BAILLIE
Chief Human Rescurces
Offtcer

DAVID BLANCHARD
Chief R&D Officer

KEVIN HAVELOCK
President Refreshment

ALAN JOPE
President Personal Care

Nationality British Age 59 Male
Appointed Chiaf HR Officer in
February 2011

Appolinted to ULE as President

of Western Europe in May 2008
Joined Unilever 1978

Previous Unilever posts include
Hindustan Unilever Limited {CEQ)
South Asta [Group VP Alrica Middle
East and Turkey [Group VP)
Current external appointments
Synergos (Board member|

Nationality British Age 50 Male
Appointed to ULE February 2013
Jowned Unilever 1984

Previous Unilever posts include
Unilever Research & Development
[SVP) Unilever Canada Inc [Chairmanl
Facds America [SYP Marketing
Operations| Global Dressings [VP R&D)
Margarine and Spreads [Director of
Product Development]

Current external appointments Ingleby
Farms and Forests [NED)

Nationality 8ritish Age 57 Male
Appointed to ULE Novernber 2011
Joined Unilever 1985

Pravious Unilever posts include
FRALIB France [President Directeur
Génerall Unilever Arabia [Chairman)
Unilever UK [Charrman) Unilever USA
[President]

Current External Appointments Pepsi/
Lipton SV ([Co Chairman)

Nationality British Age 50 Male
Appointed to ULE November 2011
Joined Unilever 1985

Previous Unilever posts Include
Unilever Russia Africa and Middle East
{President] Unilever North Asia
(President] SCC and Dressings (Global
Category Leader] Home and Personal
Care business in North America
|President)

KEES KRUYTHOFF
President North America

NITIN PARANJFPE
President, Home Care

ANTOINE DE SAINT-AFFRIQUE
President, Foods

PIER LUIG] SIGISMONDI
Chief Supply Chain Officer

Nationality Dutch Age 46 Male
Appointed to ULE Novernber 2011
Jained Unilever 1993

Prevlous Umilever postsinclude Brazil
[EVP) Unilever Foads Soulh Africa
[CED] Unitever Bestfoods Asia [SVP and
Board memter]

Current external appointments
Enactus |Worldwide Board member{
USA Grocery Manufacturing Association
[Board member]

Nationality Indian Age 51 Male
Appatnted to ULE October 2013

Joined Unilever 1987

Previous Unilever posts include
Hindustan Unilever Limited {CEQ)
Home and Personal Care India
|Executive Directer] Home Care [VP]
Fabric Wash (Category Headl Laundry
and Household Cleaning Asia [Regional
Brand Director)

Current external appointmants
Bhawishya Alliance Child Nutrition
Insuiatives [Director]

Nationality French Age 5) Male
Appointed te ULE November 2011
Firstjoned Unilever 1989 until 1997
re-joined Unitever 2000

Previaus Unllever posts include Skin
category [EVP] Unilever Central and
Eastern Europe [EVP}

Current external appointments
Conseiller du Commerce Exterieur de la
France Essilor(nternational INEDI

RITVA SOTAMAA
Chief Legal Officer

KEITH WEED
Chief Marketing and
Communications Officer

JAN ZIJDERVELD
President, Europe

Natiopality Finnish Age 51 Female
Appointed ta ULE February 2013
Previous postsinclude Siemens

AG - Siemens Healthcare GC)

General Electric Company - GE
Healthcare [various posstions including
GE Healthcare Systems (GCT
Instrumentarium Corporation [GC)

Nationality British Age 53 Male
Appointed to ULE April 2010

Joined Unilever 1983

Previous Unilever posts include Global
Home Care and Hygiene [EVP) Lever
Faberge [Chairman] Hair and Oral Care
[5vPI

Current external appeintments Sun
Produets Corporation [NED)
Collectively Limited [Chairman)
Business n the Commurnity
International Board [Board member)
World Economic Forum Consumer
Industry [Board member]

Nationality Dutch Age 50 Male
Appeinted to ULE February 2011

Juined Unilever 1988

Previous Undever posts include South
East Asia and Australasia (EVP] Unilever
Middle East North Africa {Chatrmanl
Nordic ice cream bustness [Chawrman]
Current external appointments

AIM [Board member] FoodDrinkEurope
[Board member] Pepsi/Lipton JVY [Board
merber] ECR Europe [Efficient
Consumer Response! [Board member
and Co-Chairmazn|

Key

NED Non-Execulive Direclor
EVP Execulive Vice President
SVP  Senior Vice Preswdent
VP  Vice President

GC  General Counsel
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Nationality ltaltan Age 49 Male
Appointed to ULE September 2009
Previous postsinclude Nestle Mexico
VP Operations and R&D] Mestle 5 A
AT Kearney [VP Operations|

Current external appointments Rexel
S A [NEDI
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REPORT OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE

ATTENDANCE
Byron Grote 7/8
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Mary Ma 8/8
Hixonia Nyasulu 8/8
John Rishton B/8

This table shows the membership of the Committee legether with therr
allendance at meetngs during 2014 If Directors are unable to altend
ameeling Lhey have the opporiunity beferehand to discuss any agenda
Iterms with the Comrittee Chairman Attendance 1s expressed as the
number of meetings attended out of the number eligible to be attended

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2014

« Review of the Annual Report & Accounts
= Oversight of transition to the new
external auditors
¢ Review of management s improvements to
reporting and internal control arrangements
* Review of Unilever s major change programmes
+ Review of IT secunity and data privacy

PRIORITIES FOR 2015

* Ongoing assessment of new regulatory
requirements for audit committees with respect
to reporling and governance

+ Review of Unilever s major change programmes

» Review of non-financial KPls

* Review of IT secunity and resilience

» |mpact of new global tax regulations

MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE

The Audit Cornmitiee 1s comprised only of independent
Non-Executive Directors with a minimum requirement of three
such members It s chaired by Byron Grote The other members
are Mary Ma, Hixonia Nyasulu and John Rishten For the purposes
of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Byron Grote ts the Audst
Commiltee s financial expert The Boards have satisfied
themselves that the current members of the Audit Committee

are competentin financial matters and have recent and relevant
experience Other attendees at Commitiee meetings lor part
thereof] were the Chief Financial Officer, Cheef Auditar, Group
Controller, Chief Legal Officer, Group Secretary and the external
auditor Throughout the year the Commuttee members periodically
mel without others present and also held separate private
sessions with the Chief Financial Officer Chief Auditor and the
external auditor allowing the Commuttee to discuss any issues

1In more detal directly

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The role and responsibilities of the Audit Comruttee are set out
inwritten terms of reference which are reviewed annually by
the Commuttee taking into account relevant legislation and
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recommended good practice The terms of reference are contained

within The Governance of Unilever which s available on our

website at www unilever com/corporategovernance The

Committee s responsibilities include, but are not Limited to,

the following matters with a view 1o bringing any relevant issues

to the attention of the Boards

+ Oversight of the integrity of Unilever s financial staterments,

» Review of Unilever s quarterly and annual financizl statements
lincluding clanty and completeness of disclosurel, and
approval of the quarterly trading staternents for quarter 1 and
quarter 3,

e QOversight of sk management and internal control arrangements,

« (Qversight of compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

« QOversight of the external auditors performance, objectivty,
qualifications and independence, the approval process of
non-audit services, recornmendation to the Boards of their
nomination for sharehotder approval, and approval of their
fees, refer to note 25 on page 128,

* The performance of the internal audit function, and

= Approval of Unilever Leadership Executive [ULE] expense
policy and review of Executive Director expenses

In order to help the Commuttee meet its aversight responsiblities,

each year management organise knowledge sessions for the

Commitiee on subject areas within thetr remit In 2014 sessions

on corporate governance and reporting updates and cyber

security were held

HOW THE COMMITTEE HAS DISCHARGED ITS RESPONSIBILITIES
During the year the Commitiee s principal activilies were as follows

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee reviewed the quarterly financial press releases

together with the associated internal quarterly reports from the Chief

Financial Officer and the Disclosure Commuttee, and with respect

to the half-year, and full-year resulis the external auditors reports,

prior to their publication They atso reviewed the Annual Report

and Accounts and Annual Report on Form 20-F These reviews

incorporated the accounung pelicies and significant judgements

and estimates uncerpinning the financial statements as disclosed

within note 1 on pages 88 and 8% Particular attention was paid to the

following sigruficant 1ssues in relabion to the financial statements

« Revenue recogmtion - estimatien of discounts, incentives on
sales made duning the year, refer to note 2 on page 90,

« [irect tax provisions and contingencies, refer o note 6 on pages
10010 102,

» [|ndirect tax provisions and contingencies, refer ta note 19 on
page 123

The external auditors have agreed the list of significant 1ssues

discussed by the Audit Commutiee

For each of the above areas the Comrmittee considered the key
tacts and judgements outlined by managerment Members of
management attended the section of the meeting of the Commuliee
where their item was discussed 1o answer any questions or
challenges posed by the Commuttee The issues were also
discussed with the external auditor and further information can

be found on page 80 The Commiitee was satisfied that there are
relevant accounting policies in place in retation to these significant
1ssues and management have correctly applied these policies

At the request of the Board the Committee considered whether
the 2014 Annual Repart and Accounts was fair balanced and
understandable and whether it provided the necessary
information for shareholders to assess the Group s performance,
business model and strategy The Commitiee were satisfied that,
taken as a whole the 2014 Annuat Report and Accounts is farr,
balanced and understandable
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS

The Commuttee reviewed Unilever s overall approach to risk

management and centrol, and Its processes outcomes and

disclosure It reviewed

« the Controller s Quarterly Risk and Control Status Report,
including Code of Business Principles cases relating to frauds
and financial crnimes and significant complaints recesved through
the Unilever Code Support Line,

+ the 2014 caorparate risks for which the Audit Committee had
oversight and the prepesed 2015 corporate risks dentified
by the ULE,

* management simprovements to reporting and internat financiat
control arrangements,

» processes related to cyber security, information management
and privacy,

s tax planning, insurance arrangements and related
risk management,

= treasury policies, including debt 1ssuance and hedging, and

« litigation and regutatory investigations

The Committee reviewed the application of the requirements
under Section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 with
respect tointernal controls over financial reporting In addition,
the Committee reviewed the annual financiat plan and Unilever s
dividend policy and dividend proposals

Duning 2014 the Committee oversaw the independent assurance
waork that s performed on a number of our Unilever Sustainable
Lwing Plan {USLP] metrics [selected on the basis of their
materiality to the USLPI

In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in relation to risk
management, internal control and the financial statements, the
Comruttee met regularly with semtor members of management
and s fully satisfied with the key jJudgements taken

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Committee reviewed Corporate Audit s audit plan for the year
and agreed 1ts budget and resource requirements |t reviewed
interim and year-end summary reports and management s
response The Committee carried out an evaluation of the
performance of the internal audit function and was satishied with
the effectivaness of the function The Committee met
independently with the Chief Auditor during the year and
discussed the results of the audits performed during the year

AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

KPMG, Unilever s external auditors and independent registered public
accounting firm, reported in depth to the Commuttee on the scope and
outcome of the annual audit, including their audit of internat controls
over financial reporting as required by Secticn 404 of the US
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Their reports included accounting
malters, governance and control, and accounting developments

The Committee held independent meetings with the external
auditors during the year and reviewed, agreed discussed and
challenged their audst plan, including thewr assessment of the
financial reporting risk profite of the Group The Commuttee
discussed the views and conclusions of KPMG regarding
management s treatment of significant transactions and areas
of judgement during the year and KPMG confirmed they were
satisfied that these had been treated appropriately in the
financial statements

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

As a result of the tender performed 1n 2013, shareholders approved
the appoitrent of KPMG as the Group s external auditor at the
2014 AGMs 1n May and throughout the year the Comimittee oversaw
and helped facilitate a smooth transiuon from the former auditors
The Commuittee has approved the extension of the current external
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audit contract by one year, and recommended to the Boards the
re-appointment of the external auditors On the recommendation
of the Committee the Directors will be proposing the re-
appointment of KPMG at the AGMs tn April 2015

Both Umilever and KPMG have safeguards in place to avoid the
possibility that the auditors objectivity and independence could be
compromised, such as audit partner rotation and the restriction
on non-audit services that the external auditors can perform as
described below The Committee reviewed the report from KPMG
on the actions they take to comptly with the professional and
regulatory requirements and best practice designed to ensure
thewr independence from Urilever

Each year, the Committee assesses the effectiveness of the
external audit process which includes gaining feedback from key
stakeholders at all levels across Unilever

The Committee also reviewed the statutory audit, audit related and
non-audit related services provided by KPMG and compliance with
Unilever s documented approach, which prescribes in detail the
types of engagements, listed below, for which the external auditors
can be used

« statutory audit services including audit of subsidiaries,

* audit related engagements - services that involve attestation,
assurance or certification of factual infermation that may be
required by external parties

+ non-audit related services - work that our auditors are best
placed to undertake, which may include
- tax services - all significant tax work is put to tender,

- acquisition and disposal services, including related due
diligence, audits and accountants reports, and
- internal control reviews

Several types of engagements are prohibited, including

» bookkeeping or similar services,

* systems design and ymplementation related to financial

information or risk management,

valuation services,

actuarial services

internal audit,

broker, dealer, investment adviser or investment bank

services,

legal services,

» design and/or iImptementation of risk management processes
and systems and

s staff secondments to a management function

All audit related engagements over €250,000 and non-audit
related engagements over €100,000 required specific advance
approval by the Audit Comrmuttee Chairman The Commuttee
further approved all engagements below these levels which have
been authorised by the Group Controller These authorities are
reviewed regularly and, where necessary, updated in the light of
internat developments, external developments and best practice

EVALUATION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

As part of the external Board evaluation carried out 1n 2014,

the Boards evaluated the performance of the Commuttee The
Committee also carried out an assessment of its own
performance Each concluded that the Commuttee s performing
effectively Nevertheless, the Committee agreed that to enhance
its effectiveness It would seek opportunities for all Committee
members to visit a key accounting and reporting centre

Byron Grote

Chairman of the Audit Commutiee
Mary Ma

Hixonia Nyasulu

John Rishton
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REPORT OF THE CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE

ATTENDANCE
Louise Fresco 44
Chairman of the Corporate
Responsibility Committee
LauraCha 414
Charles Golden 2/2

Thus table shows the mermnbership of the Commitiee together with their
allendance at meetings during 2014 I Directors are unable 1o allend
ameeting they have the opporiunily belorehand to discuss any agenda
nems with the Committee Chairman Attendance is expressed as the
number of meetings attended out of the number ehgible to be attended

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2014

¢ Scrutiny of Unilever s Code of Business
Principles and Unilever s new Responsible
Sourcing Policy

» Review of progress an the Unilever Sustainable
Living Plan

s Product quality and food safety

PRIORITIES FOR 2015

Compliance with Code of Business Principles,
particularly by third parties

The Unilever Sustainable Living Ptan
progress cn delivering the Plan

Product quality and safety

Corporate reputation

»
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TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Corporate Responsibility Commuttee oversees Unilever s
conduct as a responsible multinational business The Commuttee
1s also charged with ensuring that Unilever s reputation1s
protected and enhanced A key element of the Commullee s role
1s the need to wentify any external developments which are likely
to have an influence upon Unitever s standing \n soctety and to
bring these to the attention of the Boards

The Commuttee currently comprises two Non-Executive
Birectors Louise Fresco who chairs the Committee, and Laura
Cha The Chief Marketing & Cemmunications Officer attends the
Committee s meetings Charles Golden retred as a Non-
Executive Director of Unilever at the 2014 AGMs 1n May

The Commuttee s discussions are informed by the perspectives
of the Group s two sustainability leadership groups, bath of which
are chaired by the Chief Marketing & Communications Qfficer
The first1s the Unilever Sustainable Living Plan Council {formerly
called the Undever Sustainable Development Groupl - a group

of experts from cutside the Group who advise Unitever s sentor
leadership onits sustainability strategy The second 1s the
Unilever Sustainable Living Plan Steering Team - the group

of Unilever 5 senior executives who are accountable for driving
sustainable growth The insights from these groups help to

keep the Boards informed of current and emerging trends

and any potential risks anising from sustamnability 1Issues

During 2014 the Commuttee reviewed its terms of reference of the
Commuttee and on the recommendation of the Commutlee, the
Boards approved minar changes to the terms

The Committee s terms of reference and details of the Unilever
Sustainable Living Plan Council are available on our website at
www unilever com/corporategovernance and

www unilever com/sustainable-living/governance respectively

MEETINGS

Meetings are held quarterly and ad hoc as required The Committee
Chairman reports the conclusions to the Beoards Four meetings
were held in 2014 Following the Committee s terms of reference,
Unilever s corporate nsks and the 3+1 goals set for individual
committees, the Committee works to a structured agenda,
enabling members to focus in detail on the responsibilities
assigned to them

The agenda covers the Code of Business Principles [the Codel and
liugation as well as occupational safety, preduct safety and quality,
the Unilever Sustainable Living Plan [USLP} and corporate
reputation as well as a range of strategic and current 1ssues

CODE OF BUSINESS PRINCIPLES

The Commuttee 1s responsible for the oversight of the Code and
associated Code Policies which set out the standards of conduct
we expect of our employees

The Committee ensures that the Code and Code Policies
remain fit for purpose and are appropriately applied The
Audit Commuttee also considers the Code as part of its rermut
lo review risk management
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The Committee maintains close scrutiny of the mechanisms

{or compliance with the Code and Code Policies as ongoing
compliance s essential lo promote and protect Unilever s
values and standards, and hence the good reputation of the
Group At each meeting the Committee reviews the completion
of investigations into non-compliance with the Cede and Code
Policies and progress on traiming programmes as well as any
trends which may emerge from reports of Code non-compliance

Third parties compliance with the Code 1s essennat for the
protection of the reputation of Unilever and its brands This
was a priority for the Committee in 2014 and remains high
onits agenda for 2015

LITIGATION REVIEW

The Chief Legal Officer reports to the Commuttee on Utigation and
regulatory matters which may have a reputational impact inctuding
environmental 1ssues, bribery and corruption comphliance and
competition law compliance For further information on legal
proceedings please see note 20 on page 125

SAFETY

The Committee reviews a scorecard anatysis of progress

on occupational safety and product safety and quality at each
meeting These quarterly scorecards are complemenied by
regular in-depth discussions to reassure comritiee members
thal systems and processes remain robust

Occupational safety, particularly road salety, remains a high
prionty for Unilever and the Comwmittee noted considerable
effort has been made to counter a slight dip in performance
at the beginning of 2014

Having discussed Unitever s policies and pracesses for product
safety, including incident management, members considered
that Unilever adopts a systematic approach that focuses

on prevention

UNILEVER SUSTAINABLE LIVING PLAN

The USLP is at the heart of Unilever s Vision to double the size of its
business while reducing its envtronmental footprint and increasing
its positive social impact By making sustainability integral to how
Unilever does business, the USLP provides the differentiator in
Unilever s business model Given its strategic importance, the
Commuttee monitors progress on the USLP and reviews any
potential risks that could affect Unilever s reputation

One of the Commuttee s ongoing priorities i1s to ensure that delvery
of the USLP 1s maintained through appropriate business strategles

The USLP was launched at the end of 2010 and much has been
learned in implementing the plan since then In 2014 Unilever
reviewed its strategy and approach to focus its attention on the
areas that matter most to the business and where its contribution
can achreve the greatest impact on society

Animportant outcome of this review 1s the expansion of the
Enhancing Livetihoods pillar of the USLP to embrace commitments
on fairness in the workplace, opporturities for women and inclusive
business The promation of human rights is an important
component in these new commitments and the Commuttee studied
the implications of the UN Guiding Principles on Human Rights

It also welcomed the launch of Unilever s new Responsible
Sourcing Policy as a crucial step i promoting human rights with
Usnlever s suppliers [see page 8]
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The Commuttee also discussed Unilever s ambitions to achieve
systemic change in areas that support ils business priorities
Unilever has defined three areas where it has the scale and
resources to create transformational change |t 15 deepening

its efforts towork towards elirinating deforestation from supply
chains, championing sustainable agnculture and the development
of smallholder farmers and improving hygiene through
handwashing, safe dninking water and samitation

FURTHER ITEMS

Other discussions during the year facused on obesity progress en
alternatives to animal testing and consumer confidence in the use
of chemicals The systems and processes n place for managing
Issues such as these were also scrutinised as they are essential
in helping to mamtain Unilever s good reputation

EVALUATION OF THE CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
COMMITTEE

As part of the external Board evaluation carried out in 2014,

the Boards evaluated the performance of the Committee

The Commiltee alsa carried out an assessment of its own
performance Each concluded that the Committee is performing
etfectively The Committee agreed that the structure of its
meetings and its focus on priority topics were working well and
should be continued

Laouise Fresco
Chairman of tha Corporate Responsibitity Committee
LauraCha

Further details on the USLP can be found in Unilever s online Sustainable
Living Report 2014 to be published in May 2015

www unitever com/sustamable-living
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R

EPORT OF THE NOMINATING AND

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

&0

COMMITTEE MEMBERS, MEMBERSHIP STATUS
AND ATTENDANCE

ATTENDANCE
Kees Storm Wi
Chairman of the Neminating and

Corporate Governance Committee

Sir Malcolin Rifkind "
Michael Treschow 77

This table shows the membership of the Commiltee together with ther
altendance at meetings during 2014 1 Bhrectors are unable to attend
ameeting they have the oppertunity beforehand to discuss any agenda
items with the Commuttee Chairman Attendance is expressed as the
number of meelings attended oul of the number eligible to be attended

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2014

« Director and Unilever Leadership
Executive Succession Planning
» External Board evaluation

PRIORITIES FOR 2015

¢ Recommendations for new Non-Executive
Directors

» Planning for Chairman succession

» Monitoring of emerging Corporale Governance
developments

» Active participation in relevant Corporate
Governance consultations

Governance

ROLE AND MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commuttee 1s
responsible for evaluating the balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge on the Boards and for drawing
up selection criteria, ongoing succession planning and
appotntment procedures It also has oversight of all matters
relating to corporate governance and brings any issues in this
respect to the attention of the Beards

The Comrmuttee s terms of reference are set out in The
Governance of Unilever which can be found on our website
at www unilever com/corporategovernance During the year,
the Committee reviewed the Committee s terms of reference
to ensure they remained in line with relevant corporate
governance guidelines and to determine whether its
responsibilities are properly described The amended terms
became effective on 1 January 2015

The Committee 1s comprised of two Non-Executive Directors and
the Chairman The Group Secretary acts as secretary to the
Commutiee Other attendees at Committee meetngs i 2014

lor part thereof] were the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief HR
Officer and the Group Secretary

In 2014 the Commuittee met seven imes Atthe start of the year
the Commuttee considered the results of the Commuttee s annuat
self-evaluation for 2013 and used these to help creale an annual
plan for meetings for 2014

APPOINTMENT AND RE-APPOINTMENT CF DIRECTORS
Re-appointment. Non-Executive Directors normally serve for

a maximum of nine years The schedule the Commitlee uses

for orderly succession planning of Non-Executive Directors can
be found cn our website at www unilever com/committees All
existing Executive and Non-Executive Directors, unless they are
relinng, submit themselves for evaluation by the Committee every
year An Executive Director stops holding executive office on
ceasing to be a Director The Chairman will inform the Committee
of the outcomes of his discussions with each Director on individual
perfarmance Based upon the evaluation of the Boards, its
Committees and the continued good performance of individual
Chrectors, the Commuttee recammends to each Board a list of
Directors for re-election at the relevant company s AGMs in 2014,
Charles Golden decided not to put humself lorward for re-election
at the 2014 AGMs in May 2014 The Committee proposed the
normination of all other Directors Directors are appointed by
shareholders by a simple majority vote at the AGMs

Appointment: Where a vacancy arises on the Boards, the
Committee may seek the services of specialist recrutment firms
and other external experts to assist in finding individuals with
the appropriate skills and expertise The Committee reviews
candidates presented by the recruitment firm, or recommended
by Directors and members of the Unilever Leadership Executive
[ULE], and all members of the Commuttee are involved in the
interview process before making their recommendations Lo the
Boards for approval The Commuttee also recommends to the
Boards candidates for election as Chairman and Vice-Chairman/
Senior Independent Director

When recruiting the Commitiee will take into account the profile
of Unilever s Boards of Directors set outin the The Governance
of Unilever whichs in line with the recommendatiens of applicabte
governance regutations and best practice Pursuant to the profile
the Boards should comprise a majority of Non-Executive Directors
who are independent of Urulever, free from any conflicts of
interest and are able to allocate sufficient tme to perform their
responsibiliies effectively With respect to composition and
qualities, the Boards should be in keeping with the size of Unilever,
its portfolio, culture and geographical spread and its status as a
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listed company The objective pursued by the Boards 1s 1o have a
variety of age, gender, experuse, social background and
nationality and wherever possible the Boards should reflect
Unilever s consumer base and take into account the foolprint and
strategy of the Group

In 2014, the Commuttee engaged the services of Russell Reynolds
Assoclates an executive search agency, to assist with the
recruitment of a new Non-Executive Director Russell Reynolds
Associates, who also assist Unilever with the recruitment of
seniar executives, helped to identify Feike Sijbesma as a potential
candidate The Commuttee recommended to the Boards that Feike
Sijbesma be nominated as a new Non-Executive Director at the
2044 AGMs In May 2014 the AGMs resolved to appoint Feike and
his appomtment took effect on 1 November 2014 Feike1s a
leading business figure and brings significant additional expertise
to the Boards, including in the important areas of food, nutrition
and sustainability

Succession planming: In consultation with the Commiuttee, the
Boards review both the adequacy of succession planning
processes and the actual succession planning at each of Board
and ULE level

The Commitiee, on behalf of the Boards, continued during 2014
to constder succession planning for the Boards given that Byran
Grote and Kees Storm [Vice-Chairman/Senior independent
Director] are expected la retire at the AGMs in May 2015 and
Michael Treschow (the Chairman), and Hixeria Nyasulu are
expecled to retire in May 2016 The Committee actively engaged
with the Boards in 2014 on potential Non-Executive Director
candidates and on the prohle of a future Chairman

In addition, during 2014, the Committee consulted with the Chief
Executive Officer an the selection criteria and appointment
procedures for senior management changes including changes
to the ULE

DIVERSITY POLICY

Unilever has long understood the impartance of diversity within
our workforce because of the wide range of consumers we
connect with glabally This goes night threugh our orgamisation,
starting with the Boards The Boards feel that gender s only
ane part of diversity, and Unilever Direciors will continue to

be setected on the basis of their wide-ranging experience,
backgrounds, skills, knowledge and insight

Unilever s Board Diversily Policy, which 1s reviewed by the
Commuttee each year can be found on our website at

www unilever com/boardsofunilever The Commuttee also
reviewed and considered relevant recommendations on diversity
and remains pleased that over 40% of our Non-Executive
Directors are women

EVALUATION

As part of the external Board evaluation carried out in 2014,

the Boards evaluated the performance of the Commiitee

The Commiltee also carried out an assessment of its own
performance, Each concluded that the Committee s performing
eifectively Nevertheless, the Committee agreed thal, to enhance
its effectiveness, it would give fuller feedback to the Boards on the
appointment process of Non-Executive Threctors and arrange for
the external recruitment firm used to present to the Boards

Kees Storm

Chairman of the Norminating and Corporate
Governance Committee

Sir Malcolm Rifkind

Michael Treschow
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PROFILE OF UNILEVER'S BOARDS OF DIRECTORS

DESIRED EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE
In view of Urilever s objectives and activities, it 1s important
that the Boards have suffictent financial literacy, have at least
one financial expert and are composed in such a way that the
fallowing expertise and experience are present in one or
mere of its members
« Executive management experience and knowledge of
corporate governance 1ssues at matn board level with
a company comparable in size and international spread
of activities with multiple stock exchange listings
* Understanding of human resources and remuneration
in large tnternational companies,
+ Experience in financial administration, accounting policies
and internal control
¢ Risk management of multinat:onals with share listings,
¢ Understanding of the markets where Unilever 1s active,
¢ Expertence in and understanding of the fast-moving
consumer goods [FMCG) market,
* Knowledge of marketing and commercial expertise,
* Awareness of corporate social responsibility issues, and
+ Experience with R&D in those fields where Unilever
15 active

PROFILE

This profite guides the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Commuttee and the Boards on the occasion
af the namination of Directors It is reviewed and updated
by the Boards pericdically

Governance




DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
REPORT

COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE

ATTENDANCE

Paul Walsh 5/5
Chairman of the Compensation Committee (previousty catled
the Comnpensation and Management Resources Commuitteel

Ann Fudge 5/5
Kees Storm 415
Michael Treschow 5/5

Thus table shows the atiendance of Directors at Commitiee meetngs held
in the year ended 31 December 2014 Il Direclors are unabte to aliend a
meeting, they have the opportunity beforehand to discuss any agenda
iterns with the Committee Charrman Attendance is expressed as the
number of meetings attended out of the number eligible 1o be attended

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2014

» No changes have been made to the remuneration
policy during the year

¢ The Committee approved the implementation
and roti-out of the new global employee share
plan SHARES for employees below
management level

* The Committee reviewed the remuneration
framework and concluded that it continues
to serve Unilever wall, particularly in light
of the strong level of shareholder support
for Unilever s remuneration policy at the
2014 AGMs

s Review of the global reward structure for
Unilever s Top 100 executive management
population below Executive Director level, two
years after implementation, has proven that
it 1s delivering effectively against the objectives
that had been set for it

PRIORITIES FOR 2015

+ Further review and shaping of Unilever’s future
reward framework to ensure that it rematns
aligned with strategy and tong-term shareholder
value creation

s Review of relative competitive position of reward
levels for Unilever s “Top 100 execulive
management population

« Review of progress n implementing SHARES

FORMAT OF THE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT
QOur Directors Remuneration Reportis splitinto the
following sections

= Chairman’s letter - page 62 to 63

= Remuneration Principles - page 63 to 64
« Annual Remuneration Report - page 6510 77

Governance

CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

t am pleased to report that our Remuneration Policy was adopted
at the 2014 NV and PLC AGMs with strang levels of support and
rematns unchanged for 2015

REMUNERATION POLICY - AVAILABLE ON OUR WEBSITE
To simplify this year s report we have chosen not to repeat our
Remuneration Policy which ts available on our website Toreflect
the reward decisions 1aken for 2015 by the Compensation
Committee we have updated the supporting information in the
remuneration policy table and other contextual information

www unilever comy/ara2014/downloads

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND REMUNERATION
OUTCOMES FOR 2014

Annual bonus - a year of resilient performance

During the year Unilever faced an tncreasingly challenging
external environment In addition to fierce competition, we also
saw weakening consumer demand across many parts of the
world and increasing external volatiity The business responded
to the combination of these events with resilience by heightening
focus on cost control and margin improvement Although our
overall underlying sales growth lowered to 2 9% we continued to
outperform our markets, as we have done consistently since

Paul Polman s appomntment as CEO Through rigorous control of
overheads we delivered a core aperating margin improvement of
0 4 percentage points despite adverse currency movements With
the quality of these results in mind, the Commutiee exercised its
judgement to uplifi the annual bonus cutcome from 68% to 80%
of target and decided to pay a bonus of 132% of salary [66% of
maximum)] to the CEQ, Paul Polman, and a bonus of 88% of salary
(59% of maximum| to the CFO, Jean-Marc Huet The Commuttee
believes that these awards fairly reflect the performance
delivered in 2014 This consistency in performance delivery, now
established over the last six years, shows that Unilever s building
a more resilient company We are better able to withstand the
challenges of an increasingly uncertain business environment
because we are moving towards a business model with long-term
sustanability at its core

GSIP and MCIP - strong financial performance over the last
three years

Over the past three years, Unilever has again delivered very
strong financial performance Underlying sales growth during
this period was 4 7% per annum Core operating margin
improvement over the pertod was an average of 0 37 percentage
points per year demonstrating management s drive for consistent
top and bottorn Line growth Unilever has atso generated very
strong operating cash in the period, with cumulative operating
cash flow of €15 S billion Total shareholder return {TSR] over this
three-year pericd was below the performance of our peers, and,
as a result, no part of the GSIP and MCIP awards related to TSR
willvest The Commutlee believes the outcomes of the long-term
share incentive plans represent a fair reflection of Unitever s
underlying performance over the last three years Onthe basis

of this performance, the Committee deterrmined that the G5IP
awards to the end of 2014 together wath MCIP awards, which were
granted to Executive Directors for the first ime in 2012, will vest
at 121% of initial award levels lie 61% of maximurm for GSIP and
81% of maxwnum awar ds tor MCIP, which 15 capped at 150%}
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS TURN DOWN SALARY INCREASES
FOR 2015

In our 2011 Directors Remuneration Report the Commuttee
drew shareholders attention to our concern that the CEQ s salary
was pasitioned at the lower end of market practuice compared

to ssimilar sized UK and European comparues At that time the
Committee stated that it would look to make further increases
as appropriate, to address this over the next few years Since
then, largely at the CED and CFO s own insistence, we have
consistently awarded less of a salary increase than we believed
was merited by the performance of the Executive Directors
Having held their salaries steady for longer than intended and

in view of the sustained track record of performance delivery,
the Committee recommended, and the Boards approved, salary
increases for the CEQ and CFO with effect from January 2015

In making these recommendations the Commuttee considered
the strong performance of Unilever and alignment, both to
increases 0 pay for the broader employee poputation and
externalty The CEQ and CFO have turned down the salary
Increases recommended by the Commuttee for 2015

STRATEGIC LINKAGE OF REWARD TO BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE

As in previous years, the Committee continues to use
performance-based incentives to drive the business towards
delivering sustainable tong-term value for shareholders For
2015, the Committee has decided to focus on the importance of
cash generation in an environment of lower global growth rates
by replacing underlying volume growth with growth in free cash
flow [FCF) as a performance measure for the annual banus, In
alignment with cur strategy as set out in the Strategic Report
[www unilever com/ara2014/downloads) FCF is a widely reported
metric used to evaluate Unilever s in-year performance For cur
shareholders, cash 1s an important driver of value creation,
allowing us to pay attractive and sustainable dwidends while
continuing to invest in the business

The perfermance measures for our long-term share incentive
plans remain unchanged for the 2015-2017 performance cycle
Even though FCF 1s our primary cash measure, we use operating
cash flow [OCF) as the cash measure in our long-term incentive
plans as it better represents underlying long-term performance
at constant exchange rates To better describe long-term
management performance, OCF 1s also adjusted to exctude the
impact of cash inflows and cutflows resulting from M&A activity
and the impact of pension contributiens and interest costs on
externat borrowings

Far reasons of commercial sensitivity, our practice s to disclose
the target ranges for performance measures together with the
outcomes of incentive plans at the end of the respective
performance period

In 2015 the Committee plans to undertake a further review of our
remuneration framework {0 ensure that it continues to be fully
aligned with Unitever s business strategy and enables us to
respond quickly 1o the ramdly changing markets in which we
operate Specifically, we will be looking for opportunities to
simplify reward arrangements and also to strengthen the linkage
between executive pay and the creation of sustainable fonger-
term shareholder value To the extent that changes are proposed,
the Comrittee witl consult with key shareholders to get their
feedback in advance of recommending changes to sharehalders

Paul Walsh
Chairman of the Compensation Commuttee
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REMUNERATION PRINCIPLES

SUPPORTING THE DELIVERY OF OUR STRATEGY THROUGH
REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

Our business vision s to double the size of Unitever white
reducing our ervironmental footprint and increasing our positive
social impact through a focus on our brands, our operations and
our people, and the Unilever Sustainable Living Plan {USLP)
Remuneration 15 one of the key tools that we have as a business
to help us to motivate our people to achieve our goals

Qur remuneration arrangements are designed to support our
business vision and the implementation of our strategy The key
elements of our remuneration package for Executive Directors
are summarised below

FIXED PERFORMANCE-RELATED
ELEMENTS ELEMENTS
Fixed allowance Longer-tarm Longer tarm
Base salary and sther Annual bonu s MCIP g!3&‘;"-‘
benefits
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
REPORT cONTINUED

PAYING FCR
PERFORMANCE

ALIGNING
PERFORMANCE
MEASURES
WITH STRATEGY

DELIVERING
SUSTAINABLE
PERFORMANCE

ALIGNMENT
WITH
SHAREHOLDER
INTERESTS

PAYING
COMPETITIVELY

PREVENTING
INAPPROPRIATE
RISK-TAKING

&4 Governance

THE PACKAGE HAS BEEN DESIGNED BASED ON THE FOLLOWING KEY PRINCIPLES

The focus of our package 15 on variable pay based on annual and long-term performance Performance-
related elements are structured so that target levels of reward are competitive, but Executive Directors
can only earn tugher rewards if they exceed the ongoing standards of performance that Unilever requires

The performance measures for our annual and long-term plans have been selected to support our
business strategy and the ongoing enhancement of shareholder value throeugh a focus en increasing
sales, improving margin cash generation and returns for shareholders

Acknowledging that success s not only measured by delivering financiat returns, we also consider
the quality of performance in terms of business results and leadership, including corporate social
responsibility and progress against the USLP, when determiming rewards

To ensure that remuneration arrangements fully suppert our sustamnability agenda, the personal
performance goals under the annual banus include USLP targets

The majority of the package for our Executive Directors 1s delivered in Unilever shares to ensure that
the interests of executives are aligned with shareholders interests This s further supported by
significant shareholding requirements, ensuring that a substantial portion of each Executive Director s
personal wealth s linked to Unilever s share price performance

Non-Executive Directors are also encouraged to build up their personal holding of Unilever shares
to ensure alignment with shareholders interests

The overall remuneration package offered to Executive Directors should be sufficiently competitive to
attract and retain highly experienced and talented individuals, without paying more than Is necessary

The Committee believes that Unilever s risk management process provides the necessary control to
prevent (nappropriate risk-taking When the Committee reviews the structure and levels of performance-
related pay for Executive Directors and other members of the Unilever Leadership Executive {ULE), it
constders whether these might encourage behaviours that are incompatible with the long-term interests
of Unilever and 1its shareholders or that may raise any environmental, social or governance risks Where
necessary, the Committee would take appropriate steps to address this
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ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

The following sets out how Unilever s Remuneration Policy, which 1s available on our website, will be implernented in 2015 and how it

was implemented in 2014

www unilever com/ara2014/dowaloads

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY IN 2015 FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ELEMENTS OF REMUNERATION

DESCRIPTION

Inits 2011 Report the Committee signalled its concern that the CEO s
salary was positioned at the lower end of market practice cornpared to
similar sized UK and European companies The Committee expressed
Its intention to make further increases, as appropriate to address this
over the next few years Having held thewr salares steady for longer
than intended and n view of the sustained track record of performance
delivery, the Commmuittee recommended and the Boards approved
salary increases for the CEQ and CFO with eftect from January 2015

In making these recommendations the Committee considered the
strong performance of Untlever and alignment, both to increases n
pay for the broader employee population and externally The CEO and
CFD have turned down the salary increases recommended by the
Comrmuttee for 2015

FIXED ELEMENTS AT AGLANCE
OF REMUNERATION
BASE SALARY Salary effective from 1 January 2015
+ CEO €1,010,000 [unchanged from
2014)
» CFO£714 000 funchanged from 2014}
FIXED ALLOWANCE Fixed allowance for 2015

» CEQ-E250000
e CFO-£220000

The CFO s atlowance has been reduced
from £260,000 in 2014 to reflect the final
stage of the phasing-out of his annual
housing allowance

A fixed allowance not linked to base salary s provided as a simple,
compelitive alternative to the provision of itemised benefits and pensions

OTHER BENEFIT « Amounts for other benelits are not
ENTITLEMENTS known until the year end

PERFORMANCE ELEMENTS OF REMUNERATION

in line with Unilever s Remuneration Policy Executive Directors will be
provided with death, disability and medical insurance cover and actual
tax return preparation costsin 2015

www unilever comfara2014/downloads

In{ine with the commtments made to the current CEQ on recruitment
and mcluded in the Remuneration Policy Unilever also pays the CEQ s
social secunty obligations in his country of residence to protect him
against the ditference between employee social security obligations
i hus country of residence versus the UK

Condltional supplemental pension

The CED also receves a conddional suppiemental pension accrual to
cempensate him for the arrangements forfeited on leaving his previous
employer The CEO will receive a contribution to his supplementat
pension of 12% ot the lower of his actual base satary over the year and
tis 201 base salary (£920 000] plus 3% per annum The cap for 2015
has been kept at £976 028 with a maximum cantribution of £117 123

This supplemental pension accrual is conditional on the CEO remaming
1n emnployment with Unilever to age 60 and subsequently retiring from
aclive service or his death or lotal disabitily prior to relirement

The actual targets for the annual bonus and the three business-focused performance measures for the MCIP and GSIP awards to be
made 1n 2015 have not been disclesed up front The Beards deem this to be commercially sensitive information as targets could reveal
information about Unilever s business plan and budgeting process to competitors, which could be damaging to Unilever s business
imerests and therefore to shareholders Where appropriate, targets will be disclosed in the Directors Remuneration Report following

the end of the respective performance period

Performance measures are selected to align with Unilever s clearly stated growth ambition and our long-term business strategy
Unilever s primary business objective is lo generate a sustainable improvement in business performance through increasing
underlying sales while steadily improving core operating margins and cash flow

The measures chosen for the annual and long-term incentives support the delivery of this objective Performance measures focus
management an the delivery of a combination of top-line revenue growth and bottom-line profit growth that Unilever believes will budd
shareholder value over the longer term The use of a performance measure based on totat shareholder return measures Unilever s

success relative to peers

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
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PERFORMANCE
ELEMENTS OF
REMUNERATION

ANNUAL BONUS » CEO-target 120% of base salary
maximum 200% of base salary

« CFO - target 100% of base salary,
maximum 150% of base salary

AT A GLANCE

DESCRIPTION

The performance measures for 2015 will be

Underlywng sales Free cash (low {V4) Core oparating
growth ['4] -I- + margin
improvement ()

In additton when determining annual bonus awards the Committee will
also consider personal performance and the quality of results in terms
of both business results and leadership including corporate sociat
responsibility and progress agasnst the delivery of USLP goals

The Committee determined that free cash flow would replace underlying
volume growth as a performance reasure for 2015 This change will
assist Unilever in focusing on cost reduction and rmproving cash
generation, as well as top-line growth, in a challenging market
environment Underlying volume growth will ramain a factor thatis
considered by the Commiltee as part of the quality of results assessment

MCIP 2015 ¢ Outof their annual bonus awards
Executive Directors are required to
invest 25% of thesr gross bonus and
may invest up to 60% of theirgross
bonus in the MCIP (invesiment shares
which are held in the indwdual s name)

* Theyare awarded an equal number
of MCIP matching shares

*  Maxmum vesting for matching shares
15 150% of the initial award

¢ The maximum award of matching
shares for the CEQ and CFO [as a
percentage of base salary at grant]
assuming maximum bonus maximum
deferrat under the MCIP would be
180% of base salary and 135% of base
salary respectively

Matching shares awarded under the MCIP 1n 2015 will be subject to the
same measures as GSIP awards made in the year Further details of the
performance measures are disclosed below

The Commitiee considers that using the same perfermance measures
across both the MCIP and GSIP s appropriate as the performance
measures used reflect our key strateqic goals and maintain the
alignment of our incentive plans to delivering our clearly staled growlh
ambitions Given that we use four different performance measures, the
Camrmitiee believes that the proportion of remuneration linked to each
performance measure IS net excessive

GSIP 2015 AWARDS » Target award 200% of base salary
for the CEO and 175% of base salary
for CFO
«  Maximum vesting of 200% imtal award
*  Maxmum vesting of 400% of base
salary for the CEQ and 350% of base
salary tor the CFO

Pertormance targets are assessed over a three-year pericd

Performance measures for 2015 awards

Underlying Gore operating Cumulative Retative lotal

sates growth + margin operating cash sharehelder

{25%)w improvement flow (25%]' return (258%™
[25%]%

Both performance conditions
must reach threshold
performance, befere any
payout in respect of either
measure 1s made

 For the three business-focused measures 25% of target awards vest for achieving threshold periormance 200% of target awards vesl [capped at 150%

under the MCIPI for maximum performance
b For the relative TSR measure Unilever s TSR 1s measured agamsl a comparalol

r group ¢f other consumer goods companies TSR measures the return

received by a shareholder capturing both the ingrease in share price and the value of dividend income (2ssuming dvidends are reinvested] The TSR results
are measured on a common currency basis to betler reflect the shareholder experience

The current TSR peer group is as follows

Avan Colgate-Palmolive Henkel
Belersdorf Danone Kao

Campbell Soup General Mills Kellogg s
Coca-Cola Estée Lauder Kimberty-Clark

LOreal Reckitt Benckiser
Nesile Shiseado
PepsiCo

Procter & Gamble

The TSR comparator group consists of 18 compantes [19 including Unitever} No shares in the portion of the award subject to TSR vestif Unilever s ranked
below position 10 1n the peer group at the end of the three-year period 50% vests if Unilever is ranked 10th 100% vests if Unilever 15 ranked 7th and 200%
[150% under the MCIP] vests if Unilever 1s ranked 3rd or above Straight-line vesting occurs between these points The Committee may change the TSR
vesting levels set out above if the number of comparies in the TSR comparator group changes
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ULTIMATE REMEDY/MALUS

Grants under the GSIP and MCIP are subject to uttimate remedy Upon vesting of an award, the Committee shall have the discretionary
power to adjust the value of the award if the award, in the Committee s opinion taking all circumstances inte account, produces

an unfair result In exercising this discretion, the Committee may take into account Unilever s performance against non-financial
measures The Committee wall only adjust the value of a vesting GSIP and MCIP award upwards after obtaiming shareholder consent
With effect frem the 2015 GSIP and MCIP awards, the Cammittee may apply malus to reduce an award or determine that it will not vest
or only vest in partin the event of a significant downward restatement of the financial results of Unilever, gross miscanduct or gross
negligence, material breach of Unilever s Code of Business Principles or any of the Unilever Code Policies or conduct by the individual
that results in significant losses or serious reputational damage to Unilever With effect from the 2015 annual bonus (based on 2014
performance} the annual bonus will also be subject to malus on the same grounds as apply for GSIP and MCIP awards

CLAW-BACK

The Coammittee has discretion to rectaim or claw-back some or all of the value of awards of perfermance-related payments to Executive
Directors in the event of a significant downward restatement of the financial results of Unilever This includes the annual banus together
with any awards that have been made and/or vested shares under the Share Matching Plan, the GSIP and the MCIP This claw-back may

be effected up to two years from vesting by reducing cutstanding awards or requiring the return of the net value of vested awards to Unitever

In 2014, the Commuttee did not reclaim or claw-back any of the vatue of awards of performance-related payments to Executive Directors

SINGLE FIGURE OF REMUNERATION AND {MPLEMENTATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY IN 2014 FOR EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (AUDITED]

The table below shaws a single figure of remuneration for each of our Executive Directors, for the years 2013 (restated to reflect final value
of GSIP performance shares on the date of vesting) and 2014

Paul Peiman Jean-Marc Huiit
CEO{VUK) CFOIUK]
€ 000} (€ ogo)
2013 2013
2014 |Restated) 2014 |Restated|
(Al Base salary 1,251 1189 B85S 841
[Bl Fixed allowances and other benefrts 787 700 377 594
(C] Annual bonus 1,652 1864 778 879
(D) MCIP matching shares -

[required by UK Law) 1,803 n/a 370 nfa

Long-term incentives (E) GSIP performance shares -
(required by UK law] 3,923 3798 3,022 2,630
Long-term incentives {sub-total) 5,726 3798 3,392 2,630
[F1Conditional supplemental pension 145 138 n/a nfa
Total remuneration pard - (required by UK law) (A+B+C+D+E+F) 9,541 7489 5,632 4944
(Gl Share awards [required by Dutch law] 4,206 4069 2,249 2 652
Total remunesation paid - [required by Dutch Law) (A+B+C+F+G) 8,041 7940 4,289 4966

Where relevant, amounts for 2014 have been translated into euros using the average exchange rate over 2014 (€1 = £0 8071), excluding
amounts In respect of long-term incentive plans which have been translated into eures using the exchange rate at vesting date

(€1 = £0 7383} Amounts for 2013 have been translated into euras using the average exchange rate over 2013 (€1 = £0 8492), excluding
amounts in respact of GSIP which have been translated into euros using the exchange rate at vesting date (€1 = £0 8351)

We do not grant our Executive Directors any personal loans or guarantees
ELEMENTS OF SINGLE FIGURE REMUNERATION 2014

(A) BASE SALARY (AUDITED)

Salary set in sterling and pasd in 2014

« CEOQ-£1,010,000
e CFO-£714,000
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(B) FIXED ALLOWANCE AND OTHER BENEFITS (AUDITED)

For 2014 this comprises PastPalman  Jean-Marc Huit
CED (UK) CFO(UK)
{1 em

2014 2014

Fixed allowance 250,000 260,000

Medical insurance cover and actual tax return preparatton costs 54,637 35,765

Provision of death-in-service benefits and administration 10,901 8,174

Unilever 2005 Share Save Plan® 11,848 nfa
Payment to protect against difference between employee sotial security obligations in country of residence

versus UK 307,899 nfa

Total 435,305 303,239

' The numbers in this table are quoted In sterling and have been translated into euros for the single higure of rermuneration table above using the average
exchange rate over 2014 of €1 = £0 8071

"7 On 25 November 2014 Paul Polman exercised s 1 042 options under the Unilever 2005 Share Save Plan The option price at grant was E14 92 and the closing
share price on the exercise date was £26 31 50 bus nolional gain on exercise was £11,848

3 In 2013 the Dutch government applied an additional crisis tax charge of 16% aver 2013 taxable income of ermployees above €150 000 This tax charge for
Unilever NV for Paul Polman over 2013 was E148 969 This taxis an expense to the employer and therefore nol included in the table above and 1s no longer
applicable in 2014

(C) ANNUAL BONUS (AUDITED]

Annual bonus 2014 actual outcomes

+ CEQ-£1,333,200 [which 15 4% of maximum, 132% of base salary)
+ CFO - £628 320 (which ts 59% of maximum, 88% of base salary)

This includes cash and shares invested under the MCIP See below for details

Performance against targets:

2014 has been a year of resilient performance in the face of stitf competition and a deteriorating economic envirgnment 1n many of the
markets in which Unilever operates

Al the beginning of the year the Committee set stretching performance targets, against which management has made solid progress
despite declining growth rates during the year across many of the rarkets in which Unitever sells its products Underlying sales growth
was 2 9% and underlying volume growth was 1 0% Although these results are towards the lower end of the performance range, Unilever
has continued o grow ahead of 1ts markets Improvement in core operating margin compared with 2013 was 0 4 percentage points

The Committee considered this to be an outstanding performance, especially given unfavourable movements in exchange rates over the
course of 2014 Ta achieve this result, underlying core operating rmargin growth at constant exchange rates has been 0 8 percentage points
reflecting strong discipline in controlling costs

In view of the high quality of results achieved over the course of the year the Committee exercised its judgement to raise the overall
Group bonus score from 68% to 80% of target (40% of maximum] The Commuittee considered this to be a fairer representation of the
performance delivered by the executive team during 2014 In the past five years, including 2014, the Commuttee has exercised its
discretion o adjust the formulaic outcome of the annual bonus calculation downwards three times and upwards twice

In determining bonus outcomes for Paul Polman the Committee also considered his strong personal performance and leadership in
driving Unilever to a more agite and resilient business as well as his personal leadership m driving towards a more responsible long-term
sustainable business model, taking the needs of multiple stakeholders into account, driving diversity and making Unilever the chorce tor
tatent in the majority of its markets As a consequence of that review, Paul Polman was awarded a personal performance muttiplier of
138% This resulted in Paul Polman receiving a bonus of 132% of his base salary This is calculated as follows
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Target bonus 120% of X Unilever’s 2014 % Personal performance __ £1,333,200
base salary =£1,212,000 performance ratio = 80% multiplier = 138% — [132% of base salary)

In determiming benus outcomes for Jean-Marc Huel the Committee atso considered his personal performance and teadership, inctuding
the management of Unilever s financial risk expesure and driving enterprise wide efficiencies As a consequence of that review, Jean-Marc
Huel was awarded a personal performance multiplier of 110% This resulted in Jean-Marc Huet receving 2 bonus of 88% of his base
salary This s calculated as follows

Target bonus: 100% of X Unitever's 2014 X Personal performance __ £628,320
hase salary = £714,000 performance ratio = 80% muttiplier = 110% — [88% of base salary)

MCIP 2015 AWARDS (BASED ON 2014 ANNUAL BONUS QUTCOMES)
0On 13 February 2015, Paul Polman invested 0% (£799.920) and Jean-Marc Huet invested 25% [£157,080) of therr 2014 bonus in MCIP
investment shares Paul Polman elected to invest fully in NV shares Jean-Marc Huet elected to receive a 50/50 mix of PLC/NV shares

They each received a corresponding award of performance-related MCIP matching shares [awarded in the same form as the investmant
shares] MCIP matching awards are subject to the same performance measures as GSIP awards Further information on matching
awards is set out on page 65 to 66

(DI MCIP - UK LAW REQUIREMENT (AUDITEDI

2014 QUTCOMES )

This includes MCIP matching shares granted on 17 February 2012 (based on the percentage of 2011 bonus that Executive Directors had
invested in Unilever shares] based on performance in the three-year period to 31 December 2014 which vested on 17 February 2015

The values included in the single figure table for 2014 are calculated by multiplying the number of shares granted on 17 February 2012
{including additional shares in respect of accrued dividends through to 31 December 2014} by the level of vesting [121% of target awards)
The share prices on the date of vesting of NV €37 04 and PLC £28 01 have been translated inta eurss using the exchange rate on the date
ofvesting €1 =£07383

The award was based on the same performance targets as the GSIP and performance against targets is outlined in section E below
(E) GSIP ~ UK LAW REQUIREMENT (AUDITED]

2014 OUTCGMES

This includes GSIP performance shares granted on 17 February 2012 based on performance in the three-year percd to 31 December
2014 which vested on 17 February 2015

The values included in the single figure table for 2014 are calculated by multiplying the number of shares granted on 17 February 2012
(inctuding addimional shares in respect of accrued dividends through to 31 December 2014) by the level of vesting (121% of target
awards] The share prices on the date of vesting of NV €37 04 and PLC £28 01 have been translated into euros using the exchange rate
on the date of vesting €1 =£07383

The award was equally based on the perfarmance measures cutlined :n the table below

Performance against targets

Unilever Annua! Report and Accounts 2014 Governance &9




DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
REPORT cONTINUED

At the outset of the 2012-2014 perfermance period, the Commuttee set demanding performance ranges for the long-term incentive
plans, as shown in the table above Over the past three years, Unilever has delivered very strong hinancial performance against these
ranges Underlying sales growth during the period was 4 7% per annum and core operating margin improvernent of 0 37 percentage
points per annum over the period demonstrate management s commitment to delivering consistent top and bottom line growth
Unilever has also generated very strong operating cash flow of €15 5 billion over the period Total shareholder return over the period
was below the performance of our peers, consequently no part of this element of the award wilt vest The Commuttee considers that
these outcomes are a fair reflection of Unilever s performance over the period and determined that GSIP awards granted to Executive
Directors 1n 2012 will vest at 121% of the tnitial award level [1e 61% of maximura] The Committee alse determined that MCIP awards
granted to Executive Directors in 2012 witl vest at 121% of initial award levels [vesting capped at 150% - 12 81% of maximum awardsl

The 2011 GS{P performance shares higure, included in the single figure remuneration in respect of 2013, has been restated to reflect
the actual number of shares that vested and the market value of the shares on the date of vesting of 14 March 2014 [PLC £23 69 and NV
€27 70! and have been translated into euros using the exchange rate on the date of vesting €1 = £0 8351 The figure included in the 2013
Directors Remuneration Report was estimated based on the average share price for the period from 1 October 2013 to 31 December
2013 as the vesting date was post the publication of the 2013 Annual Report and Accounts The actual vatues at the vesting date were
Paul Polman €3,798,141 lestimated as €3.849.000) and Jean-Marc Huet €2,630,022 lestimated as €2,665,000)

(F] CONDITIONAL SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION (AUDITED)

CEQ Paul Polman

Conditional supplemental pension prevision agreed with Paul Polman on hiring, which 1s conditicnal on his remaining in employment
with Unilever to age 60 and subsequently retiring from active service or tus death or total disability prior to retirement This was
£117.123 based on 12% of a capped salary of £976.028 for 2014

CFO: Jean-Marc Huet
Jean-Marc Huet does not receive a conditional supplemental pension

(G) SHARE INCENTIVES - DUTCH LAW REQUIREMENT (AUDITED)

As per the Dutch requirements, these costs are non-cash costs and relate to the expenses recognised for the period foltowing IFRS 2 This s
based on share prices on grant dates, a 98% adjustment factor for GSIP shares and MCIP matching shares awarded in 2014, 2013 and 2012
OTHER IMPLEMENTATION INFORMATION FOR 2014

SCHEME INTERESTS AWARDED IN THE YEAR (AUDITED)

PLAN BASIS OF AWARD MAXIMUM FACE THRESHOLD PERFORMANCE DETAILS OF
VALUE OF VESTING [% OF PERIOD PERFORMANCE
AWARDS TARGET AWARD) MEASURES
MCIP Based on the level of CEO Four equally weighted 1 January 2014 - Subject to four equally
Conditional 2013 bonus paid in 2014 €1 400 994 long-term 31 December 2016 weighted performance
matching invested by the CEQ perfermance measures
share award and CFO CFO measures For the . Undert
made on 14 The following numbers 1] three business nl o h
February 2014 f raste h gha £277562 tocused metrics, 25% . Ea es growl
of matc mg Sd refd of the larget award ore operating
\;:vege awa;OeM '.’_:‘ vests for threshold margin improversent
ebruary perfermance For the * gperatmg cash
CEO TSR measure 50% af ow and
the target awards vest * Relatwe total
PLC -0 for threshold shareholder return
NV - 41 775 perfermance Further detasis are set
ko suton page 65 te &6
PLC-4038
NV -4 034
Maximum vesting
results in 150% of
larget awards vesling
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PLAN BAS{S OF AWARD MAXIMUM FACE THRESHOLD PERFORMANCE DETAILS OF

VALUE OF VESTING {% OF PERIOD PERFORMANCE
AWARDS TARGET AWARD) MEASURES
GSIP The CEQ received a CEC: As opposite As opposite As opposite
Condit; 1 target award of 200% 5
s::r; ::::rd of base salary £4 007 G95"
made on 14 CEO: CFO:
February 2014
PLC - 47 700 £2 478 622%
NV - 43 700

The CFO receiveda
target award of 175%
of base salary

CFO
PLC - 27,031
NV - 27031

Maxirmum vesting
results in 200% of
target awards vesung
which translates to a
maximum vesting of
400% of base salary for
the CEQ and 350% cf
base salary for the CFO

4 Under MCIP, Executive Directors are able to choose whether they inwvest in PLC or NV shares or a 50/50 mux Executive Directors recerve a corresponding
number of performance-related malching shares Malching shares will be awarded in the same form as the investment shares [ie in PLC or NV shares ora
50/50 mix] On 14 February 2014 the CEDnvested 60% (947 205) and the CFO wnvested 25% {£186,533) of their 2013 bonus in MCIP investment shares The
CEQ elected toinvest fully i NV shares The CF0 elecled to receive a 50/50 rix of PLC/NV shares

% The face values inctuded in this Lable are calculaled by multiplying the number of shares granted on 14 February 2014 by the shara price on that day of PLC
£23 4% and NV €27 70 respectively, assurming maximum performance and therefore maximum vesting of 200% for GSIP and 150% for MCIP and then
translating into sterling using an average exchange rate over 2014 of €1 = £0 8071

=1 The actual targets for the three business-focused performance measures for the 2014 MCIP and GSIP awards have not been disclosed up front as the Boards
deem this to be commercially sensitive information as targets could reveal infermation about Unilever s business plan and budgeting process to competiters
which could be damaging lo Unilever s business interests and therefore to shareholders Targets will be disclosed in the Directors Remuneration Report
following the end of the relevant performance period

MINIMUM SHAREHOLDING REQUIREMENT AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SHARE INTERESTS [UNAUDITED}
The table below shows the Executive Directors share ownership agamnst the mimmum shareholding requirements as at 31 December
2014 and the interest in NV and PLC ordinary shares of Executive Directors and their connected persons as at 31 December 2014

When calculauing an Executive Director s personal shareholding the foltowing methodology 1s used

» Base salary at the date of measurement

* Shares in erther Unilever PLC or Unilever N'V {or a combination of both] will qualify provided they are personally owned by the
Executive Director or by a member of his immediate] farmuly [ connected person )

* Shares purchased under the MCIP from the annual bonus will qualify as from the mement of purchase as these are held
in the individual s name and are not subject to further restrictions

* Shares acquired under a restricted stock arrangement witl qualify on a net of tax basis

= Shares awarded on a conditianal basss by way of the GSIP, or the MCIP, will not qualify until the moment of vesting lie once the
precise number of shares 1s lixed after the three-year vesting period has elapsed)

+ The shares will be valued on the date of measurement, or if that autcome fails the personal shareholding test, on the date of acquisition
The share price for the relevant rmeasurement date will be based on the average closing share prices and the euro/sterling/US dollar
exchange rates from the 60 calendar days prior to the measurement date

Executive Directors are required to hold shares to the value of 100% of their shareholding requirement for 12 manths post cessation
of employment at Unilever, and 50% of these shares for 24 months post cessation of employment with Unitever

AlLULE members are required to build a sharehotding of 300% of base salary This requirement is 150% of base salary for the Top 100
management layer below ULE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE OWNERSHIP [AUDITED)

Shares held as at Shares held as at
Sharw ownetship Actual share 1 January 2014™ 31 Decernher 2014
guideline as % of Have guidelines ownershiplasa%
basesalary bean met? of hase sataryl! NY PLC NV PLC
CEOQ: Paul Polman 400 yes 2004 310,572 266,566 486,191 287,296
CFO. Jean-Mar¢ Huet 300 yes 871 86,620 84,853 118,050 118,559

“I Caleutated based on the minimum shareholding requirements and methodology set out above and the base salaries as ncluded for the CED and CF0 in the single figure
NV shares are ordinary €0 16 shares and PLC shares sre ordinary 3'4p shares
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
REPORT coNTINUED

On 13 February 2015, Paul Palman and Jean-Marc Huet invested 60% and 25% respectively of their annual bonus earned in respect of
2014 and paid 1n 201510 the MCIP This resulted in 29,128 NV investment shares for Paul Polman and 2,839 NV and 2,839 PLC investment
shares for Jean-Marc Huet They each recewved a corresponding award of performance-related NV and PLC shares under the terms of
the MCIP

The 17 February 2012 MCIP and GSIP grants vested on 17 February at 121% In accordance with Unilever s Remuneration Policy

twww unilever com/ara2014/downtoads) Paut Potman elected for share choice and chose to receve his shares in the form of 100% NV
shares Therefore onvesting his PLC awards were cancelled and converted as 24,744 NV shares for MCIP and 53,847 NV shares for
GSIP resulting in a total vesting for his MCIP award of 48,675 NV shares and 105,926 NV shares for his GSIP award For Jean-Marc Huet
this resulted in 4,914 NV shares and 4 960 PLC shares under MCIP and 40,125 NV shares and 40,496 PLC shares under GSIP

The vating rights of the Oirectors wha hold interests in the share capital of NV and PLC are the same as for other holders of the class
of shares indicated None of the Directors [Executive and Non-Executive] or other executive officers shareholdings amounts to more
than 1% of the 1ssued shares in that class of share, excluding the holdings of the Leverhulme Trust and the Leverhulme Trade Charities
Trust, which arount to 5 5% All shareholdings in the table above are beneficial In addition, 68,531,182 shares are held by the
Leverhulme Trust and 2,035,582 shares are held by the Leverhulme Trade Charities Trust, of which Paul Polman ts a director and 1s
therefore treated as interested in those shares

INFORMATION IN RELATION TO OUTSTANDING SHARE INCENTIVE AWARDS

As at 31 December 2014, Paul Polrman held awards over a total of 392,921 shares which are subject ta performance conditians
Jean-Marc Huet held awards over a total of 202,142 shares which are subject to performance conditions There are no awards of shares
without performance conditions and no awards in the form of options

SHARE MATCHING PLAN (AUDITED)

Balance of Condltional Batance of

conditional shares sharesvested conditional shares at

at § January 2014 In 2014 31 December 2014

Share type Ro.of shares No of shares Price at award No of shares

Paul Pelman NV 9,932 92,932 €2159 0
PLC 9,932 9,932 £18.35 1

Jean-Marc Huet NV 5,047 5,047 €2159 0
PLC 5,047 5,047 £18.35 0

= Each award of matching shares s conditional and vests three years after the date of the award subject (o continued employment and maintenance of the
underlying bonus shares These awards were not subject to further performance conditions

> Awarded on 14 March 2011 and vested on 14 March 2014

' Awarded on 14 March 2011 and vested on 14 March 2014

There are ng further outstanding awards under this plan and no further awards will be granted

MANAGEMENT CO-INVESTMENT PLAN [AUDITED]
The following conditional shares were granted during 2014 and were outstanding at 31 December 2014 under the MCIP

Balance of Balance of
conditional shares Conditional shares cohditional shares
at 1 January 2014 awarded in 2014 at 31 December 2014

Performance period Dividend shares

Share 1January2014to  Priceat  accrued during

type Orlginal awerd 31 Docember 2014 award the year

Paui Polman NV 42,719 £1,775 €21.70 2,688 87,182
PLC 42912 0 - 1,488 44,600
Jean-Marc Huet NV 9,218% 4,036 €27.70 447 13,701
PLC 9,259 4,036 £23.4% 4BO 13,775

*Each award of conditional matching shares vests three years after the date of the award subject to performance condilions [further detasts can be found
on pages 45 to 66] Awards are all subject to continued employment and maintenance of the underlying investment shares Under MCIP, Executive Directors
are able lo choose whether they invest in PLC or NV shares or a 50/50 mux Executive Directors receive a corresponding number of performance-related
malching shares Matching shares will be awarded in the same form as the investment shares lie in PLC or NV shares or a50/50 mix) On 14 February 2014
Paul Polman and Jean-Marc Huet invested in the MCIP 0% and 25% respectively of their annual bonus earned during 2013 and paid in 2014 and recerved a
corresponding award of maiching shares which will vest, subject to performance on 14 February 2017

% Thas includes 17 772 NV and PLC shares granted on 17 February 2012 and 641 NV shares and 704 PLC shares from reinvested dividends acerued in 2012 and 644
NV shares and 727 PLC shares from reinvesled dividends accrued in 2013 These shares were subject to performance conditions over Lhe three-year pertod lo
31 December 2014 and 121% of the award vested on 17 February 2015 This also includes 22 999 NV and PLC shares granted on 18 February 2013 and 643 NV
shares and 708 PLC shares from reinvested dividends accrued in 2013 These shares will vest, subject to performance conditions, on 18 February 2014

" This inctudes 3 649 NV and PLC shares granted on 17 February 2012 and 132 NV shares and 145 PLC shares from reinvested drvidends accrued in 2012 and 136
NV shares and 149 PLC shares from reinvested dividends accrued in 2013 These shares were subject to performance conditions over the three-year period to
31 December 2014 and 121% of the award vested an 17 February 2015 This also includes 5157 NV and PLC shares granted on 18 February 2013 and 144 NV
shares and 159 PLC shares from reinvested dividends accrued in 7013 These shares will vest, subject to performance conditions, on 18 February 2014

" Rellects reinvested dividend equivalents accrued during 2014 and subject 1o the same performance condibions as the underlying matching shares

72 Governance Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014




GLOBAL SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN [AUDITED)
The following condittonal shares were granted during 2014 and were cuistanding at 21 December 2014 under the GSIP

Balance of Balance of
conditional thares Conditional shares conditional shares
at 1 January 2014 awarded in 2014 at 31 December 2014

Additional

Performance period Dividend shares shares

Share 1January20iite Priceat  sccruedduring  Vestedin earnedin  Priceat

type Original award 31 December 2014 award the year*d 2014 2014 vesting Mo of shares
Paul Palman RV 134,444 43,700 €2770 4,702 47,362 14,735 €27.70 130,219
PLC 135,378 63,700 {£23.49 5,054 468,111 14,899 £23469 130,920
Jean-Marc Huet NV 93,3194 27,031 €2770 3,178 456,645 10,203 €27.70 87,0846
PLC 93,979% 27,031  £23.49 3,416 47,165 10,319 £23 49 87,580

W Each award of conditional shares vests three years after the date of the award, subject to performance conditions [further detaits can be found on pages 65
to 4] The 2014 award was made on 14 February 2014 [vasting 14 February 2017)
®This includes a grant of 47,173 of each of NV and PLC shares made on 14 March 2011 (128% of which vested on 14 March 2014) a grant of 38 476 of each
of NV and PLC shares made on 17 February 2012 {121% of the award vested on 17 February 2015| a grant of 39,698 of each of NV and PLC shares made on
18 February 2013 [vesting 18 February 2016) and 8 897 NV shares and 9 83} PLC shares from reinvested dividends accrued m prior years in respect of awards
k This includes a grant of 32 6565 of each of NV and PLC shares made on 14 March 2013 [128% of which vested on 14 March 2014}, a grant of 29798 of each of NV
and PLC shares made on 17 February 2012 (121% of the award vested on 17 February 2015) a grant of 24 556 of each of MY and PLC shares made on
18 February 2013 Ivesting 18 February 2018) and 6 300 NV shares and & 940 PLC shares [rom rainvested dividends accrued in prior years in respact of awards
¢ Reflects reinvested dividend equivalents accrued during 2014 and subject to the same performance conditions as the underlying GSIP shares
1" The 14 March 2011 grant vested on 14 March 2014 at 128% In accordance with Unilever s Rermuneration Policy [www unitever com/ara2014/downloads)
Execulive Directors are able o choose whether they receive any shares that are due Lo vest under GSIP in PLC or NV shares or keep the 50/50 mix
Paul Polman elected lor share choice and chose to receive his shares in the form of 100% NV shares Therefore upon vesting, his 14 March 2011 PLC award
was cancelled and converted and delivered to him as 47 755 NV shares [resulbing In a total vesting for the 14 March 2011 grant of 137 117 NV shares)

On 13 February 2015, Paul Polman received an award of 346 497 NV and 36,497 PLC performance-related shares and Jean-Marc Huel
received an award of 22,576 NV and 22,576 PLC performance-related shares under the GSIP

SHARE SAVE PLAN {AUDITED]

The Unilever PLC 2005 Share Save Planis a UK tax-qualified, all-employee, savings-related share option scheme under which
employees can save up lo a imit of £250 per month with an option to buy PLC shares at the end of a five-year vesting period [subject
to continued employment]

Balance of
Balance of options at  Grantedin options at First
Share type 1 January 20144 2014 31 December 2014 exercisabte date Final expiry date
Paul Polman PLC 1,042 - 0 01/10/2014 01/04/2015

! Option price al grant was €14 92
4 Paul Polman exercised hus 1 042 options on 25 Novermnber 2014

There are no further outstanding awards under this plan and no further awards will be granted

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

Starting dates of our Executive Directors service contracts

CEO 1 Qctober 2068 [signed on 7 October 2008,

CFQ 1 February 2010 {signed on 1% March 2010)

Both service contracts shall end upon termination and are available to shareholders to view at the AGMs or on request fram the Group Secretary

Service contracts can be terminated with 12 months notice from Unilever or six months notice from the Executive Directar A payrent
in Lieu of nottce can be made of no mare than one year s base salary fixed allowance and other benefits unless the Boards, at the
proposal ef the Committee, find this manifestly unreasonable given the circumstances or unless dictated by applicable law Other
payments that can be made to Executive Directors in the event of loss of office are disclosed i our Remuneratian Policywhich 1s
available on our website

www unilever com/ara2014/downloads

PAYMENTS TO FORMER DIRECTORS [AUDITED)
There have been no payments to former Direclors during the year

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE (AUDITED}
There were no payments for loss of office
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
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IMPLEMENTATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY IN 2015 FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-Executive Director fee levels were reviewed in 2014 and no changes were made Lo the sterling reference with the exception of
the Vice Chairman position With effect from the 2015 NV and PLC AGMs the fees of the Vice Chairman will be based on the modular fee
structure set out below, including a fee of £30,000 for the Vice Chairman s responsibiliies The Non-Executive Directors fees are set at
a reference potnt in sterling [£) and then 50% 1s pard in sterting (€] by PLC and 50% 1s paid in euros [E] by NV at a E/€ exchange rate
which 1s reviewed peniodically to ensure that the balance between the fees rernams appropriale We reviewed the exchange rate used
In this calculation in 2014 and updated the amount paid by NV in euros to reflect the moverment in exchange rates since 2011 when the
balance was last set The table below outlines the updated 2015 fees

Reference
sterling total

Role fees NV PLC
Chatrman £550000  €352.474 and £275000
Vice Chairman £30 000 €19 224 and £15 000
Basic Non-Executive Director fee £75 000 €48,065 and £37500
Membership of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Compensation

and Management Resources or Corporate Respansibility Commuttee £10 000 €4,409 and £5000
Membership of the Audit Committee £15,000 €9 613 and E7500
Chairman of the Nominating and Cerporate Governance Compensalion

and Management Resources or Corporate Responsibility Committee £20 000 €12,817 and €10,000
Chairman of the Audit Committee €30 000 €19 224 and £15 000

' With the exception of the Vice Chairman the overall fees are unchanged since 2012 and 50% of the overall fee 1s paid in euras and 15 converted to euros from
sterling using Unilever s Controller s department third quarter 2014 closing exchange rate €1 = £0 7802 at the date of the review

All reasonable travel and other expenses incurred by Non-Executive Directors i the course of performing their duties are considered
1o be business expenses Non-Executive Directors also recaive expenses relating to the attendance of the Director s spouse or partner,
when they are invited by Unilever

SINGLE FIGURE OF REMUNERATION IN 2014 FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS [AUDITED}
The table below shows a single figure of remuneration for each of our Non-Executive Dhrectors, for the years 2013 and 2014

2014 2M3

Total Total

Fees™  Banefits™ remuneration Fees!d Benefits™ remuneration

Non-Executive Director € 000 €'000 €009 € 000 €000 £ 00U
Michael Treschows! 654 3 657 637 t 638
LauraCha 101 - 1™ 62 - 62
Lowse Frasco® n3 - 13 106 - 104
Ann Fudge 101 1" 12 103 17 120
Charles Golden'® 42 - [¥3 101 14 15
Byran Grote™ 125 - 125 127 2 129
Mary Ma 107 - 107 6 - 6
Sumi Bharti Mittals! - - - 32 ~ 32
Hixorua Nyasulu 107 - 107 102 12 14
Sir Maleotm Rifkind 101 - 101 103 - 103
John Rishion 107 - 107 66 - 66
Feike Stjbesma 15 1 16 nfa nfa nfa
Kees Stormi? 194 3 199 191 - 191
Paul Walsh® 13 2 115 ne - 119
Total 1,882 20 1,902 1815 46 1,861

® This includes fees received from both NY in euros and PLC in sterting for both 2013 and 2014 respectively Inciudes basic Non-Executive Direclor fee
and Commuttee chawrmanship and/or membership

" The only benefil received relates to travel by spouses or pariners where they are invited by Unilever

Y Chairman

" Chair Corporate Responsibility Commuttee

* Chose not to put umsell forward for re-election at the May 2014 AGMs

M Chair Audit Committee

9 Chose not to put himself forward for re-election at the May 2013 AGMs

Myice-Chairman and Chair of the Normnating and Corporale Goevernance Commiltee

o Chair Compensation Commitiee

In 2013, the Dutch government applied an addittonal crisis tax charge of 16% aver 2013 taxable income above €150,000 This tax charge
for Unilever NV for Michael Treschow over 2013 ts €26,171 This tax 1s an expense to Unilever NV and therefore notincluded in the
table above and 1s no longer applicable in 2014

We do not grant our Non-Executive Directors any personal loans or guarantees, nor are they entitled to any severance payments
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' INTERESTS [N SHARES [AUDITED)
Non-Executive Directors are encouraged to build up a personal shareholding of at least one times thewr annual fees over the five years
from ¥ January 2012 lor appointment i later}

The table shows the interests in NV and PLC ordinary shares of Non-Executive Directors and their connected persons as at
31 Decemnber 2014 There has been no change in these interests between 31 December 2014 and 25 February 2015, other than
Feike Sijbesma who purchased 1,500 NV shares on 20 January 2015 at a share price of €34 50

Shares Shares
Shares held at hetd at Shares held al held at
1Janvary 31 December 1January 31 December
Share type 2014 s Share type 2014 2014
Michael Treschow NV 15158 15,158 Hixonra Nyasulu NV 600 600
PLC 15000 15,000 PLC 750 750
Laura Cha NV - - Malcolm Rifland NV - -
PLC 200 200 PLC 2700 3,000
Louise Fresco NV 1800 1.800 John Rishton NV 1700 3,340
PLC - - PLC - -
Ann Fudge NV NY - - Feike Sijbesmalty NV nfa 2,500
PLC ADRs 3950 3,950 PLC nfa -
Charles Golden®™ NV NY 1000 1,000 Kees Storm NV 7500 7,500
PLC ADRs - - PLC - -
Byron Grote NV NY 6500 8,200 Paul Walsh NV - -
PLC ADRs 5500 7,200 PLC 2,000 2,000

Mary Ma NY - - * Chose not to put imself forward for re-election at May 2014 AGMs

PLC - 400 b Appointed at May 2014 AGMs with effect from 1 November 2014

NON-EXECUTIVE OIRECTORS’ LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT
All Non-Executive Directors were reappotnted to the Boards at the 2014 AGMs, with the exception of Feike Sybesma who was appointed
for the first time with effect from 1 November 2014 and Charles Gelden who chose not lo put imself forward for re-election

Date first Effactive date
appointed to of current lotter
Non-Executive Director the Board of appointment*
Michael Treschow 16 May 2007 14 May 2014
Laura Cha 15 May 2013 14 May 2014
Louise Fresco 14 May 2009 14 May 2014
Ann Fudge 14 May 2009 14 May 2014
Chartes Golden 0% May 2006 nfa
Byraon Grote 09 May 2004 14 May 2014
Mary Ma 15 May 2013 14 May 2014
Hixoma Nyasulu 16 May 2007 14 May 2014
Sir Malcotm Rifkind 12 May 2010 14 May 2014
John Rishten 15 May 2013 14 May 2014
Feike Sijbesma 01 November 2014 01 November 2014
Kees Storm 09 May 2004 14 May 2014
Paul Walsh 14May 2009 14 May 2014

* The unexpired term for all Non-Executive Directors letters of appointment 15 the period up to the 2015 AGMs as they all unless they are retiring submt
themselves for annual re-etection

OTHER DISCLOSURES RELATED TO DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

SERVING AS A NON-EXECUTIVE ON THE BOARD OF ANOTHER COMPANY

Executive Direclors serving as non-executive directors on the boards of ather companies are permitied to retain all remuneration and fees
earned from outside directorships subject to a maximum of one outside listed directorship [see Independence and Conflicts on pages42to
43 for further detalls)

Paul Polman i1s a nen-executive director of The Dow Chermical Company and received an annual fee of €84,239 [US $115.000 based on
the average exchange rate over the year €1 = US $1 3335} In addition, he received a restricted award of 2,760 ordinary shares with a
nominat value of US $2 50 per share in the capital of The Dow Chemical Company The shares include the rights 1o vote and 1o receve
dividends thereon The shares cannot be sold or transferred until Paul Polman leaves the board of directors aof The Dow Chemical
Company. and in any case not earlier than 16 May 2014

Jean-Marc Huet 1s a non-executive director of the unlisted company Delta Topco Lirnited and recewved an annual fee of €179.978 (US
$240,000) Furthermore, Jean-Marc Huet was appointed as a non-executive director of Heineken NV from 24 April 2014 and received
an annual fee of €51 510

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014 Governance 75




DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
REPORT coNTINUED

SIX-YEAR HISTORICAL TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

(TSR} PERFORMANCE

The table below includes

» growth tn the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over six
years FTSE 100 compartson based on 30-trading-day average
values, and

+ growth n the value of a hypathetical €100 investment over six
years AEX cormparison based on 30-trading-day average values

The Commuttee has decided to show Unitever s performance
aganst the FTSE 100 Index, London and also the Euronext 100
index (AEX], Amsterdam as these are the most relevant indices in
the UK and the Netherlands where we have our principat listings
Unilever 15 a constituent of both these indices

CEO SINGLE FIGURE SIX-YEAR HISTORY
The tabte below shows the six-year history of the CEO single
figure of total remuneration

2009 2010 20M 2012 2013 2014

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR
UNDERTAKING THE ROLE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The table below shows the percentage change from 2013 10 2014
for base salary, bonus and benefits lexcluding pensionl {or both
Paul Polman and all UK and Dutch management in Unilever

The subset of UK and Dutch management has been used as a
fair representation of our dual listing status

CEOD
Single figure of total
remuneration (€ 000}

3859 6292 6010 7852 7740 9,581

Annuat bonus award
rates against maxmum

opporiunity 82% 80% 468% 100% 78% 4%

GSIP performance
shares vasting rales
against maximum

opportunity nfa &%  44%  5O%  64% 81%

MCIP performance
shares vesting rates
against maximum
opporiunity

n/a n/a nfa nfa nfa 81%

Share Matching Plan
vesting rates against
maximum opportunity’

100% 100% n/a nfa nfa nfa

Shown n year of award
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inot including

% change from 2013 to0 2014 Salary  Bonus pension|

CEQu! 52% -114&% 12 4%

UK and Dutch management ¢t 34% 4T7% -80%
W Calcutated using the data {from the Executive Directors single figure lable

on page 67

M The CEO s increase of salary of 5 2% as reflected in the table1s due to
movements in the presentational currency rather than a change in base
salary which was £1 010 000 in both 2013 and 2014 Movements in the
presentational currency also had a similar impact on benehts and bonus

""While the lable shows that the average base salary costs for all employees
creased by 3 4%, this 1s driven by a propertionately larger increase in the
total headcount during the year The average increase was approximatety
6 2% 17 the 2013 UK and Dutch management population remain constant
The same applies for both benefits and bonus numbers where ona
constant basis, the average benefit provision increased by approximately
22 8% rather than decreased by 8% and the bonuses increased by 21 8%
rather than 6 7%

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

The chart below shows the relative spend on pay compared

with dividends paid to Unilever shareholders and core earnings
Core earnings represent the net profit attributable to Unilever
shareholders, adjusted for non-core items Over time, both core
earnings and core earnings growth provide a good reference pont
to compare spend on pay

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

During 2014, the Commuttee comprised four Non-Executive
Directors Paul Walsh [Committee Chairman] Michael Treschow
Ann Fudge and Kees Storm

The Committee reviewed its terms of reference during the year
The Commuttee s revised terms of reference are cantained within
The Governance of Unilever and are also set out on our website

www unilever com/corporategovernance
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In the context of the external Board evaluation, carried out in 2014,
the Boards evaluated the performance of the Commuttee The
Committee also carried out a self-assessment of its performance
Both assessments conctuded that the Committee is performing
effectively Based on its self-assessment, the Committee decided
that to enhance the overall knowledge of the Board on the key
issues that the Committee ts engaged with, it would add a specihic
remuneration module to the induction program for Non-Executive
Directors and conduct a remuneration knowtedge session for the
Boards

ADVISERS

While it is the Cormmittee s responsibility to exercise independent
judgement, the Commuttee does request advice from management
and professional advisers, as appropriate, to ensure that its decisions
are fully informed given the internal and external environment

The Committee appeinted Delostte LLP to provide independent
advice on various matters it considered During the year, Deloitte
also provided other services to Unilever primarily in relation to
the Directors Remuneration Report The wider Deloitte firm has
also provided tax and consultancy services including expatriate
tax advice, tax compliance, transfer pricing, R&D and grant
claims, financial advisory and transformation, IT, HR and data
analytics consultancy and sourcing strateg:es advice to Urilever

Deloitte 1s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and,
as such, voluntarily operates under the code of conduct in relation
to executive remuneration consulting in the UK, which 1s avarlable
al www rernuneratienconsultantsgroup com

www remunerationconsultantsgroup com

The Commitiee 15 satishied that the Delaitte LLP engagement
partner and team, which pravide remuneration advice ta the
Comrttee de not have cennections with Unilever NV or Unilever
PLC that might impatr their independence The Committee
reviewed the petential for conflicts of interest and judged that
there were appropriate safeguards agamst such conflicts The
fees paid to Deloitte LLP in relation to advice provided to the
Comrruttee n the year up to 31 December 2014 were £23,500 This
figure s calculated based en time spent and expenses incurred
for the majority of advice provided, but on occasion for specific
projects a fixed fee may be agreed The Commuittee would like to
thank Delostte for thetr assistance throughout 2014

Atter a thorough interview process the Committee appointed
Tom Gosling of PwC to become the independent remuneration
advisorin 2015

During the year, the Commuttee algo scught input trom the

Chief Executive Officer [Paut Polman), the Ctuef Human Resources
Offrcer [Doug Barllie] and the SVP Global Head of Reward

[Peter Newhouse] on various subjects including the remuneration
ot senior management No individual Executive Director was
present when their own remuneration was being discussed lo
ensure a conflict of interest did not artse The Comrmittee also
recewved legal and governance advice from the Group Secretary
[Tania Lovell]
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CLARIFICATION STATEMENT

After publicatron of our Directors Remuneration Report 2013 the
Commmuttee 1ssued a clarification stalement on our website at the
request of The investmert Association (previously IMA and ABY)
The statement 15 available on our website The statement
conlirms that we will not make share awards higher than the
maximum awards stated in our Policy for existing and newly hired
Executive Directors without prior sharehoider approval it turther
clarifies that awards to newly hired Executive Directors to buy out
remuneration items on leaving the previous employer as provided
in the new hires policy will be done under the GSIP Consequently
under such exceptional circumstances, the aggregated GSIP
share awards for a newly hired Executive Director may be hugher
than the maxirnum annual award set out in the Remuneration
Policy As stated in the Remuneration Policy in relation to new
hires, we will inform shareholders of any such buyout awards
when annguncing the appointment

www unilever com/ara2014/downloads

SHAREHOLDER VOTING

Unilever remans committed to ongoing shareholder dialogue
and takes an active interest in voting outcomes In the event

of a substantial vote against a resotution in relatron to Directors
remuneration Unilever would seek to understand the reasons
for any such vote and would set out in the following Annual Report
and Accounts any aclions in response o it

The fotlowing table sets out actual voting in respect of our
previous report

Voting outcome (% of votes) For  Agamst
2014 Directors Remuneration Policy 2014 AGMW PLC 9751% 2 49%

2014 Directors Remuneration Policy (2014 AGMI® NV 98 37%  1463%

2013 Directors Remunerat:on Report
{excluding the Directors Remuneration Policy)
(2014 AGM)* PLC 9914% 086%

* 7 606,237 voles were withheld [approximately 0 6% of share capttall
® 4 188,993 votes were withheld (approimately 0 27% of share capitall
k 25,507 947 voles were withhetd (approximately 2 D% of share capitall

The Directors Remuneration Report is not subject to a sharehotder
vote in the Netherlands

The Directors Remuneration Report has been approved by the
Boards and signed on their behalt by Teria Lovell, Group Secretary

(Lox9d

IS
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

The Directors are required by Part % of Book 2 of the Civil Code
in the Netherlands and the UK Compantes Act 2006 to prepare
accounts for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Unilever Group, and the NV and PLC
enliies as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or
loss and cash flows for that year

The Directors consider that, in preparing the accounts the Group
and the NV and PLC entities have used the most appropriate
accounting polictes, consistently appbed and supported by
reascnable and prudent judgements and estimates, and thai all
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU
and as 1ssued by the Internattonal Accounting Standards Board

lin the case of the consolidated financiat statements), UK
accounting standards {in the case of the PLC parent company
accounts) and Dutch law [in the case of the NV parent company
accounts) which they consider to be applicable have been followed

The Directors have responstbility for ensuring that NV and PLC
keep accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
their financial position and which enable the Directors 1o ensure
that the accounts comply with the relevant legislation They also
have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group,
and to prevent and detect fraud and ather irregularities

Thts statement, which should be read in ¢onjunction with the
Independent Auditors reperts, (s made with aview to
distinguishing for shareholders the respective responsibilities
of the Directors and of the auditors in relation to the accounts

A copy of the financial statements of the Unilever Group 13

placed on our website at www unitever com/investerrelations

The maintenance and integrity of the website are the respansitility
of the Directors, and the work carnied aut by the auditors does not
involve consideration of these matters Accordingly the auditors
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred
tothe financial statements since they were intially placed on the
website Legislation in the UK and the Netherlands governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from tegistation in other junsdictions

UK law sets out additional responsibilities for the Directors of PLC

regarding disclosure of information to auditers Disclosure in
respect of these responsibilities 1s made on page 48
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Each of the Directors confirms that, to the best of his or her

knowledge

* The Annual Report and Accounts taken as awhole, Is fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group s performance,
business model and strategy,

* The financial statements which have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EU and as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board in the case of the conseolidated
financial statemnents) and UK accounting standards [in the
case of the PLC parent company accounts| and UK accounting
standards and Part ¥ of Bock 2 of the Dutch Crvil Code [in the
case of the NV parent company accounts|, give a true and fair
view of the assets, Llabiliies financial position and profit ar
loss of the Group and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole and

¢ The Strategic Repert includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the Group
and the undertakings included in the censolidation taken as a
whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face

The Directors and thesr roles are Usted on pages 41and 54

GOING CONCERN

The activities of the Group, together with the factors likely to
affectts future development, performance, the inancial position
of the Group, its cash flows, Liquidity position and borrowing
facilities are described 1n the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 35
In addition we describe in notes 15 to 18 on pages 109 to 123 the
Group s objectives, palictes and processes for managing its
capital, its financral risk management objectives, details of its
financial Instruments and hedging activities and 1ts exposures

to credit and Liquidity risk

The Group has considerable financial resources together with
established business relationships with many custormers and
suppliers in countries throughout the world As a consequence,
the Directors believe that the Group s well placed to manage Its
business risks successfully despite the current uncertain outlook

After making enquires, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
eperational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they
coniinue to adopt the geing concern basis in preparing this Annual
Report and Accounts

INTERNAL AND DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND
PROCEDURES

Please refer to pages 49 10 53 for a discussion of Urilever s
principal risk factors and to pages 50 to 53 for commentary
on the Group s approach to risk management and control
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORTS

NETHERLANDS - KPMG ACCOUNTANTS N.V.

T0: THE GENERAL MEETING OF UNILEVER N.V.

UNITED KINGDOM ~ KPMG LLP
T0: THE MEMBERS OF UNILEVER PLC ONLY

For the purpose of these reports, the terms we and our denote KPMG Accountants NV in relation to the Nethertands responsibilities
and reporting obligations to the General Meeting of Unilever NV and KPMG LLP in relation to UK responsibilities and reporting obligations
to the members of Unilever PLC The Unitever Group [ the Group | consists of Unilever PLC, Unilever NV and the entities they controlled during
the financial year The reports of KPMG Accountants NV and KPMG LLP are presented in the teft and right hand columns of this repart

respectively Where separate colurmns are not presented the content of the reports of KPMG Accountants NV and KPMG LLP are identical

The financial statements | the Financial Statements | comprise

» the consolidated financial statements of the Group [ the Consolidated Financial Statements |

» the parent company financial statements of Urulever NV (the NV Company Accaunts ], and
* the parent company financial statements of Unilever PLC | the PLC Company Accounts ],

each of which are defined below

OPINIONS AND CONCLUSIONS ARISING FROM QUR AUDIT !

1 OUR OPINIONS ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE UNMODIFIED

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes

i equity and cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the Conselidated Financial Staternents including a summary of the
sigmficant accounting policies and other explanatory information In addition, KPMG Accountants NV has audited the NV Company
Accounts [which comprise the company balance sheet as at 31 December 2014, the company profit and lass account for 2014 and
the notes comprising a summary of the sigmificant accounting polictes and other explanatory inforration] and KPMG LLP has
audited the PLC Company Accounts (which comprise the company balance sheet as at 31 December 2014 and the notes to the

PLC Company Accounts, including the summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information)

In our apinion

* the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair
wiew of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and of its result and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRS as
adopted by the EUl and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civil Code and

+ the NV Company Accounts give a true and fair view of the
financial position of Unilever NV as at 31 December 2014,
and of its result for 2014 1n accordance with United Kingdom
accounting standards and Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civil Code

Basis for our opimion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law,
including the Outch Standards on Auditing Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor s
responsibilities section of our report

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed 1s
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
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In aur opinion

» the Consolidated Financial Statements and the PLC
Company Accounts give a true and fair view of the state of
the Group s and of Unilever PLC s affairs as at 31 December
2014 and of the Group s profit for the year then ended

+ the Consolidated Financial Statements have been property
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reparting Standards as adopted by the Eurapean Union
{IFRS as adopted by the EU),

¢ the PLC Company Accounts have been properly preparad in
accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards and

* both the Consclidated Financial Statements and the PL.C
Company Accounts have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Consobidated Financial Statements, Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation

Separate opinion in relation to IFRS as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB!

As explained in the accounting policies set out In the
Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group, in addition to
cormplying with its legal obligation to apply IFRS as adopted
by the EU, has also applied IFRS as issued by the |ASB

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Staternents comply
with IFRS as 1ssued by the JASB

Financial statements 79




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORTS
CONTINUED

2 QUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

In arriving al our audit opinion abave on the Financial Statements the risks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect
on our audit [key audit matters] were as set out below

These are the matters that, in our professional judgment, had the greatest effect cn the overall audit strateqy, the allocation of resources
in our zudit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team We have commumicated these matters to the Audit Commuttee Our
audit procedures relating lo these matters were designed in the context and solely for the purposes of our audit of the Financial
Staternents as a whole, and 1n forming our opinion thereon, and we do not express discrete opinions on these matters

Revenue tecognition

* The nisk - Revenue 1s measured taking account of discounts, incentives and rebates earned by customers on the Group s sales
Due to the mulutude and variety of contractual terms across the Group s markets, the estimation of discounts, incentives and
rebates recognised based on sales made during the year 1s considered to be complex

Revenue is recognised when the risks and rewards of the underlying products have been transferred 1o the customer

There Is 2 risk that revenue may be overstated because of fraud resulting from the pressure local management may feel to
achieve performance targets The Group focuses on revenue as a key performance measure which could create an incentive
for revenue to be recognised before the risks and rewards have been transferred

+ Ourresponse - Our audit procedures included considering the appropriateness of the Group s revenue recognitron accounting
poticies including those relating to discounts, Incentives and rebates and assessing compliance with the policies in terms of
applicable accounting standards We tested the effectiveness of the Group s controls over calculation of discounts, incentives
and rebates and carrect timing of revenue recognition

We assessed sales transactions taking place at either side of the balance sheet date as well as credit notes 1ssued after the year
end date to assess whether that revenue was recognised n the correct pertod We also developed an expectation of the current
year revenue balance based on trend analysis information taking into account historical weekly sales and returns mformation
and our understanding of each market We then compared this expeciation to actual results

We also considered the adequacy of the Group s disclosures (in note 2] in respect of revenue

Indirect tax pravisions and contingencies

* The nsk - Provisions for indirect tax require the Birectors to make judgments and estimates in relation to the issues and
exposures In Brazil [one of the Group s {argest markets) the complex nature of the lacal tax regulations and jurisprudence
make this a particular area of significant judgment

¢ Ourresponse - Our procedures included using our own indirect tax and legal specialists te consider the level of provisions
required in light of the nature of the Group s exposures, applicable regulations and the Group s correspondence with the
authonities We also assessed relevant historical and recent judgments passed by the court authorities in considering any
legal precedent or case law as well as assessing legal opinicns fram third party lawyers We also gained an understanding
of the Group s provisioning methodology and challenged assumptions using the knowledge znd experience of our own
speclabists In addition, we obtained formal confrmations fram the Graup s external counsel where approgriate

We also considered the adequacy of the Group s disclosures (in note 19) made In relation to tndirect tax provisions and
contingencies

Direct tax provisiens and contingencies

» The nsk - The Group has extensive international operations and in the normal course of business the Directors make
Judgments and estimates in relation to tax 1Issues and exposures This s a key judgment due to the Greup aperating ina
number of tax jurisdictions the complexities of transfer pricing and other tax legislation

* Ourresponse - Qur audit procedures included testing the effectiveness of the Group s controls around the recording and
conlinuous re-assessment of tax provisions

Our own tax specialists performed an assessment of the Group s correspondence with relevant tax authorities, to consider

the completeness of tax provisions for all relevant nsks We also challenged the assumptions used taking into corsideration
our own tax specialists knowledge and experience Inaddition we assessed relevant judgments passed by relevant authorities
In considering any need for a provision as well as assessing relevant opinions from third parties

We atso considered the adequacy of the Group s disclosures (in note 20] in respect of tax and uncertain tax positions

For each risk noted above refer to related disclosure within the Report of the Audit Committee [page 54], accounting policies and
binancial disclosures within the notes to the Consolidated Fancial Statements
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3 OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Materiality

Based on our professional judgment the materiality for the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole was set at €350 mullion,
deterrmined with reference to a benchmark of Group profit before taxation lof which it represents 4 6%) We also take
misstaterments into account that are in cur opinion material for gualitative reasons

We agreed with the Audit Committee to report 10 it any corrected and uncorrected identitied misstatements exceeding €25 miltion
in addition to other identfied misstaternenis that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

Scope of our audit

The Group operates through a sigruficant number of legal entities, each of which 1s a reporting component We perfarmed audsis for
Group reporiing purposes of 13 components as well as audits of revenue and the related accounts recervable balances at a further
% components The latter were not individually financially sigruficant enough te require an audit for Group reporting purposes but
were included in the scope of our Group reporting work in order to provide further coverage over the Group s revenue

The Group has 5 centralised operating centres that perform accounting and reporting activities alongside related controls
Together these operating centres process a substantial portion of the Group s transactions The outputs from the ceniralised
operating centres are included In the financial infermation of the component entities they service and therefore they are not
separate reporting components Each of the aperating centres 1s subject to specified audit procedures Further avdit procedures
are performed at each reperting component to cover matters naot covered at the centralised operating centres Together this
results in audits for Group reporting purposes on those reporting components

The percentages of the Graup s Revenue, Profit before Taxation and Total Assets represented by the components within the scope
of our work and procedures performed at corporate level are as follows

The remaining 37% of Graup Revenue and 30% of Group Profit before Taxation 1s represented by a significant number of cut-of-
scope reporting components, none of which indwvidually represents more than 2% of Group Revenue and/or Group Profit before
Taxation A substantial portion of these out-of-scope compenents utilise the five operating centres and are tharefore subject to
audit procedures performed at these operating centres In addivion, for these out-of-scope components, we performed anatysis
[focusing specifically on revenue and operating margens| at the aggregated Group level to re-examine cur assessment that there
are no significant risks of material misstatement within these components

For the in-scope components the Group audit team Instructed component auditers as to the sigmificant areas to be covered,
ncluding the signihicant risks detaited above and the information to be reported back The Group audi team approved component
materiality levels which ranged from €5 million to €275 million, having regard to the mix of size and risk profile of the Group
across the components The work on all components was performed by component auditors

The Group audit team visited component locations in the USA, the UK, the Netherlands, India Indonesia, Switzerland, Brazil, South
Africa Germany, Turkey, Russia, Singapore, China, Mexico and Argentina Telephone and/ar online meetings were atso held with the
auditors of these components and the majority of all ather components The findings reported to the Group audit tearm were discussed
in more detail with component auditors and any further work required by the Group audit team was then performed by the
compenent auditor
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INDEPENDENT AUBITORS REPORTS
CONTINUED

4 OTHER REPORTING

Our report on the Report of the Directors and the other

information 1sunmodified

Pursuant o the legal requirement under Part ¢ of Book 2 of

the Netherlands Civil Code

s We have no deficiencies to report as a result of our
examination whether the Report of the Directors, tc the
extent we can assess has been prepared In accordance
with Part 9 of Bock 2 of this Code, and whether the
information as required under Part ¥ of Book 2 has been
annexed, and

« Further we report that the Report of the Directors, to the
extent we can assess, Is consistent with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the NV Company Accounts as
required by Article 2 391 sub 4 of the Netherlands Civil Code

Engagement

We have been engaged by the General Meeting at 14 May 2014
as auditor of Unilever NV since the audit of year 2014 and we
are the statutory auditor since that date up until today

Independence

We are independent of the Unilever Group in accordance with the
Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants by

assurance-opdrachten [ViO)and ather relevant independence
regulations in the Netherlands Furthermore we have
cornplied with the Verordening gedrags- en bercepsregels

accountants (VGBA]
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Qur opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006 1s unmodified

In our opinion

*+ the part of the Directors Remuneratian Report to be audited
has been property prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, and

» the infermation given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors Report for the financial year for which the Financial
Statements are preparad s consistent with the Consolidated
Financial Staterments and the PLC Company Accounts

We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which
we are required to report by exception

Under {SAs [UK and [reland) we are required to repart to you If,
based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit we have
dentified other information in the annual report that contains
a materiat iIngensistency with either that knowledge or the
Consolidated Financiat Staternents and/cr the PLC Company
Accounts a material misstatement of fact, or that 1s

otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to report to you If

* we have [dentified material inconsistencies between the
knowledge we acquired durming our audit and the Directors
statement that they consider that the Annual Report and
Financial Statements taken as a whale 1s fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group s performance, business
model and strategy or

* the Report of the Audit Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repart to you

if inour opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by Unilever
PLC or returns adequate for cur audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us or

s the PLC Company Accounts and the part of the Directors
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns or

= certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for cur audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required 0 review

» the Directors statement, set out an page 78, in relation to
going cencern, and

* the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 46
to 48 relating to the company s compliance with the ten
provistons of the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities
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SCOPE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ and Audit Committee’s responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for

* the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated
Financial Staternents 1in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the EU and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code and
for the preparation of the Report of the Directors in accordance
with Part 7 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Cade

» the preparation and fair presentation of the NV Company
Accounts in accordance with United Kingdom accounting
slandards and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Cvil
Code, and

¢ suchinternal control as management determines 15
necessary to enable the preparaiion of the Financial
Statements ihat are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are
respansible for assessing the Group s and Unilever NV s ability
to continue as a going concern Based en the financial reporting
frameworks mentioned, the Directors should prepare thae
Consolidated Financial Statements and NV Company Accounts
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to iquidate the Group andfor Unilever NV or

to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do

5o The Directors should disclose in the Financial Statements
events and circumstances that may cast significent doubt

on the Group s and/or Unilever NV s ability to continue as
agoing concern

The Audit Committee 1s responsible for overseeing the Group s
financial reporting process

Auditor's responsibilities
Our responsibilities are set oup
Iincorporated into this reporjf
to provide an understandipg

page 136 which are
et out In full and should be read

Amsterdam
3 March 2015
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Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully inthe Directors Responsibilities
Statement [set out on page 78, the Directors are responsible
far the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
and the PLC Company Accounts and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view

Scope of an audit of financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements
1s provided on the Financial Reporting Council s website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

This report 1s made solely to the Cornpany s members as a body
and s subject to important explanations and disclaimers
regarding our responsibilities which can be accessed on our
website via www kpmg com/uk/auditscopeukco2014b, and are
tncorporated into this report as (f set outin full and should be
read io provide an understanding of the purpose of this report,
the work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions

He work we have undertaken / :
SIGNING

Paul Korolkiewicz

(Senior Statutory Auditer)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

3 March 2015
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNILEVER GROUP

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December

€ million € million € million
Notes 2014 2013 2012
Turnover 2 48,436 49797 51324
Operating profit 2 7,980 7517 4977
Alter [chargingl/crediting nan-core ilems 3 950 501 173)
Net finance costs 5 &rn (5300 (5351
Finance income 17 103 134
Finance costs (500] [500) (5268)
Pensions and similar obligations 94) (133] {145)
Share of net profit/lloss) of joint ventures and associates 1 98 13 105
Other income/(loss] from non-current investments 45 14 (i4)
Profit hefore taxation 7,648 714 6533
Taxatian sA 231 {1851 (1497
Net profit 5,515 5243 4836
Atlributable to
Nen-controlling interests 344 421 448
Shareholders equity 5,171 4,842 4,368
Combined earnings per share 7
Basic earnings per share {€] 1.82 17 154
Diluted earnings per share [€] 1.79 166 150

References in the consolidated income statement consolidated staternent of comprehensive income consclidated staternent of
changes 1n equity, consolidated balance sheet and consolidated cash flow statement relate to notes on pages 88 to 130, which form
an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 Decernber

€ mullion € million € million
Notes 2014 2013 202
Net profit 5,515 5263 4834
Other comprehensive Income 6C
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension plans net of tax 158 {1,250) 697 1497)
Iterns that may be reclassified subsequently to proht or loss
Currency retranslation gains/liosses| net of taxt® 158 (25) (999) [316)
Fair value gains/ilosses) on iinancial instruments net of tax 158 [85) 106 (125)
Total comprehensive income 4,155 5,067 3898
Attributable to
Non-contrelling interests 404 339 Lhd
Shareholders equity 3,751 4728 3454

“Includes fair value gains/|losses| on net investment hedges and exchange differences in net investments in foreign aperatiens of €412 mitlion [2013 €(275)
million, 2012 €(160i million]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

€ million € mullion € million € million € miition € mutlion € million
Called up Share Non-
share premum Other Retained controlling Total
Cansolidated statement of changes in equity capital account reserves profit Total interasts equity
31 December 2011 484 137 (6004 19874 14491 628 15119
Profit or loss for the period - - - 4348 4,368 468 4836
Other comprehensive income net of tax
Fair value gains/llosses) on financial mstruments - - 1125 - {125) - (125l
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension plans
net of tax - - - (497 (497] - (497)
Currency retranslation gans/[losses) - - [249) (43) 1292] (24) (316)
Tolal comprehensive income - - 1374) 3,828 3454 A4 3898
Dividends on ardinary capital - - - [2 498 (2 696) - (2 696)
Movements in treasury stock®! - - 182 (130 52 - 52
Share-based payment credit™ - - - 153 153 - 153
Odends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - {464) [464)
Currency retranslation gans/llosses] net of tax - 3 (i} - 2 [4) (2)
Other movements in equily - - 1 [65) [64) (&7t (111)
31 Decernber 2012 48B4 140 16196) 20964 15392 557 15,949
Profit or toss for the period - - - 4842 4842 421 5243
Other comprehensive income net of tax
Fairvalue gains/{losses] on financial instruments - - 106 - 106 - 104
Remneasurement of defined benefit penston plans
net of tax - - - 697 697 - 697
Currency retranslation gans/[losses) - - (788) nz9) (917) (82} (9991
Total comprehensive income - - (682] 5410 4728 339 5,067
Dividends on ordinary capital - - - 2981) [2981) - (2.981)
Movements in treasury stock™ - - 12 (a3 29 - 29
Share-based payment credit® - - - 242 242 - 242
Diwndends paid to non-controlling tnterests - - - - - (367 (307}
Currency retranslation gains/(losses| net of tax (5 - - [5) 5] (10}
Other movements in equity®! - 3 20 (3,084) {3061) (113) (3 174}
31 December 2013 484 138 (6746) 20,468 14,344 AN 14,815
Profit or toss for the period - - - 517 5171 k144 5,515
Other comprehensive incame net of tax
Fair value gains/ilosses) on financialinstruments - - (85) - (85] - (85)
Remeasurement of defined Denefit pension plans
net of tax - - - [1,253) 1,253] 3 11,250}
Currency retranslation gains/(losses) - - 290) 208 (82 57 (25]
Total comprehensive ncome - - 1375) 4,128 3,751 404 4,155
Dividends on ordinary capital - - - (3,196) (3,194) - (3,194)
Movements in treasury stock®! - - (235) (217) [452) - 452)
Share-based payment credith - - - 188 188 - 188
Dwidends paid to nan-conirolling interests - - - - - (342} 3421
Currency retranslation gains/(losses] net of lax - 7 - - 7 2) 5
Olher movements in equity!® - - 1182) (809) 1991 81 (910)
31 December 2014 4B4 145 (7,538] 20,540 13,651 812 14,263

¥includes purchases and sales of reasury stock and transfer from treasury stock to retained proft of share-settled schemes arising from prior years and
differences between exercise and grant price of share options
" The share-based payment credii relates to the non-cash charge recarded against operating profit in respect of the fair value of share options and awards

granted to employees

%2014 includes the impact of the purchase of Estate shares [see note 24) 2013 includes the impact of the acquisition of nen-controlling interests
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNILEVER GROUP coNTINUED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 December

€ millson € millhon
Notes 2014 2013
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 9 14,642 13917
Intangible assets 9 7,532 6,987
Property plant and equipment 10 10,472 9,344
Pension asset for funded schemes in surplus 4B 376 991
Deferred tax assets 4B 1,286 1084
Financial assels 174 715 505
Other non-current assets 1 657 563
35,680 3339
Current assets
Inventories 12 4,168 3937
Trade and other current receivables 13 5,029 4831
Current tax assets 281 217
Cash and cash equivalents 174 2,151 21285
Other financial assets 174 &7 740
Non-current assets held for sale 22 L7 92
12,347 12122
Total assets 48,027 45513
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities 15C 5,536 4010
Trade payables and other current Liabitities 14 12,604 11735
Current tax Liabilities 1,081 1254
Provisions 19 418 arn
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 22 1 4
19,642 17382
Non-current habilities
Frnantial iatblies 15C 7184 7491
Non-current tax liabilities 161 145
Pensions and post-retirement healthcare Liabilities
Funded schemes in deficit 4B 2,222 1,405
Unfunded schemes 4B 1,725 1,563
Provisions 19 16 892
Deferrediax Labilities 4B 1,534 1,524
Other non-current Liabilities 14 378 294
14,122 13316
Total Labilities 33,784 30,698
Equsty
Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capttal 154 484 484
Share premiurmn account 145 138
Other reserves 158 (7,538) [6 746)
Retained profit 20,540 20 468
Shareholders’ equity 13,651 14 A4é
Non-contrelling interests 612 471
Total equity 14,263 14 815
Total Liabilities and equity 48,027 45513

These financial statements have been approyéd by the Directors

The Board of Directors
3 March 2015

MicHAEL TRESCHOW
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December

€ mitlion € million € million
Neotes 2014 2013 maz2
Net proht 5,51% 52463 4836
Taxation 2131 1851 1697
Share of net profit of joint ventures/associates and other income/(loss) from
non-current Investments 1143) 1127 197)
Net finance costs 5 477 530 535
Operating profit 7,980 7517 5977
Depreciation amortisation and impairment 1,432 1151 1199
Changes inworking capital 8 200 822
Inventories 147 148 19)
Trade and other recetvables 82 917) 1
Trade payables and other liabilities (27) 949 830
Pensions and similar obligations less payments (364) (383 (369]
Provisions less payments 32 126 143)
Ekrmanation of (profisl/losses on dispasals (1,4501 (725) (236}
Nen-cash charge for share-based compensation 188 228 153
Other adjustments 38 [i5} 13
Cash flow from operating activities 7,854 8099 8516
Income tax paid (2,31 [1805) 11,680}
Net cash flow from operating activities 5,543 6294 5,836
Interest received 123 100 146
Purchase of intangible assets 1359) (377 [405)
Purchase of property plant and equipment (1,893 (1,791 (1,975]
Disposal of property plant and equipment 207 141 237
Acquisition of group companies joint ventures and associates 1313) (142) (133
Disposal of group companies joint ventures and associates 1.741 1,063 246
Acquisitian of other non-current invesiments {82] [273] [?1]
Drsposal of other non-current iInvestments &9 302 g8
Dividends from joint ventures associates and other non-current investments 162 136 128
{Purchasel/sale of inancial assets 4 (310 1004
Net cash flow [used in)/from investing activities 1341) (1151] (7951
Dividends paid on ardinary share capial 13,189} 2,993) 12,699)
Interest and preference dividends paid (521) {511) 1506)
Acquisition of non-controtling interests - (2901) -
Purchase of Estate shares 2 880} - -
Net change in short-term borrowings 338 350 (870)
Additional [inancial Liabilities 5,174 4219 1,441
Repayment of financial Liabilities (5.305) 13 294) [3565)
Capital element of finance (ease rental payments (&) 1) (15)
Other movements on ireasury stock (&67) 26 48
Diner financing activities 1324) 12731 1456
Net cash flow (used in)/from financing activities (5,190) {5 390) l6 £22)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12 {257] (541)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,044 2217 2978
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes . 1146) 84 |220)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 174 1,910 2044 227

The cash flows of pension funds [other than contributions and other direct payments made by the Group in respect of pensions

and similar obligations] are not included n the Group cash flow statement

Acguisition of non-controlling interests in 2013 inctudes varieus transachions to acquire non-controlling interests, primarily an outflow
of £2,515 mullien to increase the Group s ownership of Hindustan Unilever Limited from 52% to 7% Refer to note 158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNILEVER GROUP

1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are Lhe same as those which
were applied for the previous financial year, except as set out
below under the heading Recent accounting developments

UNILEVER

The two parent companies NV and PLC together with the:r group
cempanies, nperate as a single economic entity (the Unilever
Group also referred to as Unilever or the Group] NV and PLC
have the same Directors and are linked by a series of agreements,
including an Equalisation Agreement which are designed so that
the positions of the shareholders of both companies are as closely
as possible the same as if they held shares in a single company

The Equalisation Agreement provides that both companies adopt
the same accounting principles It also requires that dividends
and other rights and benefits attaching to each ordinary share

of NV, be equal in value to those rights and benefits attaching to
each ordinary share of PLC, as If each such unit of capital formed
part of the ordinary share capital of one and the same company

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Due to the operational and contractual arrangements referred to
above, NV and PLC form a single reporting entity for the purposes
of presenting consolidated financial statements Accordingly, the
financial staterments of Unilever are presented by both NV and
PLC as their respective consolidated financial statements Group
companies included in the consolidation are those companies
controlled by NV or PLC Control exisis when the Group has the
power lo direct the activittes of an entity so as to affect the return
on investrment

The net assets and results of acquired businesses are included in
the consolidated financial statements from their respective dates
of acquisition, being the date on which the Groug ebtains control
The results of disposed businesses are included in the
consolidated financial staterments up to their date of disposal,
being the date control ceases

Intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated

The company incorne statement for NV 15 included in the
consolidated financial statements An abbreviated income
statement has been disclosed in the NV company acceunts on
page 131 1n accordance with Article 2 402 of the Dutch Civil Code

COMPANIES LEGISLATION AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards [IFRSI
as adopted by the European Union [EU}, IFRIC Interpretations and in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the UK
Companres Act 2006 applicable to companies reparting under IFRS
They are also In cormpliance wath IFRS as 1ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board [lASB)

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention unless otherwise indicated

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies are included in the relevant notes to the
consolidated financial statements These are presented as text
highlighted in grey on pages 90 to 128 The accounting policies
below are applied throughout the financial statements

88 Financial statements

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The conscltdated financial statements are presented ineures

The functional currencies of NV and PLC are euros and sterling |
respectively Items included in the financial statements of
indwidual group companies are recorded in their respective
functionat currency which 1s the currency of the primary
economic environment in which each entity operates

Foreign currency transactians in individual group companies are
translated into funchienal currency using exchange rates at the
date of the transaction Foreign exchange gains and losses

fram settlement of these transactions and from translation

of monetary assets and Liabilties at year-end exchange rates,
are recognised In the Income statement except when deferred

in equity as qualifying hedges

In preparing the consolidated financial staterments, the balances

in indwidual group companies are translated from their functional

currency Into euros The income statement the cash flow

statement and all other movements in assets and liabitities

are translated at average rates of exchange as a proxy for the

transaction rate, or at the transaction rate itself if more

appropriate Assets and liabilities are translated at year-end

exchange rates ‘

The ordinary share capital of NV and PLC is translated in
accordance with the Equalisation Agreement The difference
between the value for PLC and the value by applying the
year-end rate of exchange i1s taken to other reserves (see note
158 on page 111]

The effect of exchange rate changes during the year on net assets
of foreign aperations is recorded in equity For this purpose net
assets include loans between group companies and any related
foreign exchange contracts where settlerment s neither planned
nor Likely to occur in the foreseeable future

The Group applies hedge accounting to certain exchange
differences arising between the functional currencies of a foreign
operation and NV or PLC as appropniate, regardless of whether
the net invesiment is held directly or through an intermediate
parent Differences arising on retranslation of a financial bability
designated as a foreign currency net investment hedge are
recorded in equity to the exient that the hedge is effective These
differences are reported within profit or lass to the extent that the
hedge is inefiective

Cumulative exchange differences arising since the date of
transition to IFRS of 1 January 2004 are reported as a separatle
cormponent of other reserves In the event of disposal or part
disposal of an interest in a group company either through sale or
as a result of a repayment of capital, the cumulative exchange
difference I1s recognised in the iIncome statement as part of the
profit or loss on disposal of group companies

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of financial staterents requires management to
make judgernents, esimates and assumptions In the application
of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses Actual results may differ from
these esimates Estimates and judgements are continuously
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable Revisions te accouniing estimates are
recognised in the peried in which the estimate 1s revised and

in any future period affected
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1.

ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES

CONTINUED

The Group Is currently assessing the impact of the following new

slandards that are not yet effective and are yet to quantify the

potential impact

Informaticn about critical judgements in applying accounting

polrcies, as well as estimates and assurptions that have the most

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and babilities within the next financial year
are included in the following notes

¢ separate preseniation of items In the income statement — note 3,

* measurement of defined benefit obligations - note 48

* keyassumptions used in discounted cash flow projections -
note 9,

« utilisation of tax losses and recognition of other deferred tax
assets - note 6B

e lkelihocd of cccurrence of provisions and contingencies,
including direct and indirect tax investigations and audits —
notes 12 and 20 and

= measurement of consideration and assets and Uabilities
acquired as part of business cambinations ~ note 21

RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS

ADOPTED BY THE GROUP

The following new and amended standards are relevant to the

Group and have been adopted for the first time in these financial

statements, with no material iImpact

* Amendments to |AS 32 Financial nstruments Presentation
provides additional guidance on when financial assets and
babilities can be offset

« Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement provides relief from discontinuing hedge
accounting when a hedge dervative I1s novated

* Amendment to [FRS 12 Fair value measurement clarifies that

short term recevables and payables with no stated interest
rates can he measured at Invoice amounts when the effect of
discounting 1s immaterial

s IFRIC Interpretation 21 Lewies clarifies that an entity
recognises a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by refevant tegrslation occurs

NOT ADOPTED BY THE GROUP

All of the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations are effective from 1 January 2015 unless
otherwise stated Standards have not yet been endorsed by the
EU unless atherwise stated

The Group does not currently believe adoption of the following

new standards would have a maternial impact on the cansolidated

results or financial pesition of the Group

* IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts permits first ime
adopters of IFRS to continue to account for amounts related
to rate regulation m accordance with their previous GAAP
The standard does not apply to the Group

= Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits simplifies the
accounting for contributions that are independent of the
number of years of employee service These amendments
have been endorsed by the EU

* Amendments to |IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and
1AS 38 Intangible Assets cover clarificatron of the principle
of the basis of depreciation and that revenue based
depreciation methods are no longer permiited Effective
from 1 Janvary 2016

Unilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014

* [FRS ¢ Financial Instruments reflects all phases of the

financial instruments project and reptaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments Reccgnition and Measurement The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting IFRS 91s
eifective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 We expect the adoption of IFRS 9 to impact the
classification and measurement of financial assets but have na
impact an financial liabilities

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is applicable
to all entities and supersedes all existing revenue recogrition
requirements under IFRS It applies to all iransactions to
provide goods and services except those in the scope of other
standards Either full or modified retrospective applicauon s
required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNILEVER GROUP coNTINUED
2. SEGMENT INFORMATION

SEGMENTAL REPORTING
Personal Care - including sales of skin care and har care products, deodorants and oral care products

Foods - including sales of soups, bouillons, sauces, snacks, mayonnaise, salad dressings margarines and spreads
Refreshment -including sales of ice cream tea-based beverages and weight-management products
HomeCare - including sales of home care products, such as powders, Liguids and capsules, soap bars and a wide range

of cleamng products

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Turnover comprises sales of goods after the deductian of discounts, sales taxes and estimated returns It dees notinclude sales
between group companies Discounts given by Unitever include rebates, price reductions and incentves given to customers,
promotional couponing and trade communication costs

Turnover Is recognised when the rnisks and rewards of the underlying products have been substantially transferred to the customer
Depending on mdividual custamer terms this can be at the time of dispateh, delivery or upon formal custemer acceptance

CORE OPERATING PROFIT

Core operating profit represents our measure of segment profit or loss as it1s the primary measure used for the purpose of making
decisions about allocating resources and assessing performance of segments Core operating margin is calcylated as care
operating profit divided by turnover

€ million €mittion € million €million € million
Personal Refresh- ,
Notes Care Foods ment  Home Care Totai
2014
Turnaver 17,739 12,341 9172 2,164 48,436
Operating profit 3,259 3,607 538 576 7.780
Non-core items 3 66 (1,302) 273 3 (9601
Core operating profi 3,325 2,305 en 579 7,020
Share of net profit/lloss) of joint ventures and associates ( 3 6 - 98
Depreciation and amortisation 307 257 IN 192 1,127
Impairment and other nen-cash charges® ™ 198 122 a3 100 813
2013
Turnover 18 056 13 426 9,369 8946 49797
Operating profit 3078 3064 851 524 7517
Non-core items 3 128 (687 5 53 (501)
Core operaling profit 3,206 2377 854 577 7014
Share of net profit/(loss| of joint ventures and associates 5 9 96 3 13
Depreciation and arnortisation 327 293 330 20 1,151
Impairment and other non-cash charges™ 267 139 97 179 682
2012
Turnover 18097 14 444 9726 g057 51324
Operating profit 2925 2601 908 543 6977
Non-core tems 3 160 731 - 4] 73
Core operating profit 3085 2528 908 529 7050
Share of net profit/{loss! of joint ventures and associates 1 5 99 - 105
Depreciation and amortisation 336 Kib} 340 212 1199
Impairment and other non-cash charges® 189 141 106 128 564

WSee note 3 for further information
®Bther non-cash charges nclude charges to the income statement during the year in respect of the share-based compensation and provisions

Transactions between the Unilever Group s repertable segments are immaterial and are carried out on an arm's length basis

The Untlever Group 1s not reliant on revenues from transactions with any single external customer and does not receive 10% or more
of its revenues from transactions with any single external customar
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION CcONTINUED

Segment assets and labiliies are not provided because they are not recewved or reviewed by our chief operating decision-maker,
which s the Unilever Leadership Executive [ULE] as explained in the Corporate Governance section

The heme countries of the Unilever Group are the Netherlands and the United Kingdem Turnover and non-current assets for these
iwo countries combined, United States [being the largest country outside the home countries] and all other couniries are

€ million € mitlion € millien € mitbion
Netherlands/
United United

2014 Kingdom States Others Total
Turngver 3,851 6,604 37,901 48,436
Non-current assets® 3921 7.6468 21,714 33,303
2013
Turnover 3872 7084 38 B4l 49,797
Non-current assetsid 33%0 7624 19794 30810
2012
Turnover 3980 7834 39510 51,324
Non-current assets'd 3353 8 470 19 674 314699

Elpgn-currant assets excluding financial assets deferred lax assets and pension assets for funded schemes in surplus

No other couniry had turnover or non-current assets [as shown abovel greater than 10% of the Group total

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION BY GEOGRAPHIES

Althaugh the Group s operations are managed by preduct area we provide additional informatian based an geographies The analysts of
turnover by geographical area 1s stated on the basis of origin Sales between geographical areas are carried out at arm s length and were

not material

€ million €million € multion €million
Asia/ The

AMET/RUB¥  Amernicas Europe Total
2014
Turnover 19,703 15,514 13,21% 48,434
Operating profit 2,626 3,233 2121 7.980
Non-core items 111] (959) 14 (9601
Core operating proiit 2,611 2,274 2,135 7,020
Share of net prafit/(loss] of joint ventures and associates - 68 30 98
2013
Turnover 20085 16,204 13,506 49797
Operating profit 2765 2859 1,893 7517
Non-core items (85} (542) 126 (501
Core gperating profit 2 480 2,317 2019 7014
Share of net profit/[loss) of joint ventures and associates 1 43 5t 13
2012
Turnover 20 357 17,088 13879 51324
Operating profit 2637 2432 1908 6977
Non-core items 30 (13) 54 73
Core operating profit 2667 2419 1964 7050
Share of net profit/{loss] of joint ventures and associates [2) 68 39 105
i Refers 1o Asia, Alrica, Middle East, Turkey Russia Ukraine and Belarus
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNILEVER GROUP conTINUED

3. GROSS PROFIT AND OPERATING COSTS

RESEARCH AND MARKET SUPPORT COSTS

Expenditure on research and market support such as advertising, 1s charged to the income statement as incurred

NON-CORE ITEMS

Disclosed on the face of the Income statement are costs and revenues relating to business disposals acquisition and disposal
related costs, impairments and other one-off items which we coltectively term nan-core items due to their nature and frequency
of occurrence These itemns are material in terms of nature and/or amount and are relevant to an understanding of our financial

performance

Business disposals generate both gains and losses which are not reflective of underlying performance Acguisition and disposal
related costs are charges directly attributable to the acquisition or disposal of group companies

€ mitlion € million € million

2014 203 2012

Turnover 48,438 49,797 51 324

Cost of sales {28,387) [29 065} (30 530)
of which Disiribution costs ( (3,0791 3139 13 264 J

Gross profit 20,049 20,732 20794

Selling and administrative expenses® [12,049] (13,215) 13 817)
of which Brand and Marketing Investmenth! [ (7,168) (7383) {7311) J

Research and Development 19551 [1040) 11,003]

Operating protit 7.980 7517 6977

8 Advertising and Prometions are renamed to Brand and Marketing {nvestment [BMI] alter moving sales equipment costs from cost of sales to BMI and

moving cost of merchandisers and consumer engagement centres frem Overheads to BM!

NON-COREITEMS

Nen-core itemns are disclosed on the face of the income staterment Lo provide additional informatien to users to help them betier

understand underlying business performance

€ mullion € mitlion C million
2014 203 2012
Acquisition and disposal related costs (971 2 (190]
Ganflloss) on disposal of group companies 1,392 133 17
Impairments and other ane-off items! (335] (120] -
Non-core jtems befare tax 960 501 (73)
Tax impact of non-core items (423) [266) (14]
Non-core items after tax 537 23% 87
Attributable to
Non-controlling interests - - -
Shareholders equity 537 235 (87]

182014 includes an impairment charge of €305 million on assets related to the Sim Fast business These assets were subsequently sold [see note 21]
2014 includes €30 mullion charge for legal cases pertaining to a number of investigations by local competition regulators (2013 €120 milbonl

OTHER

Other significant cost items by nature within operating costs include

€mulllon € million € million
Notes 2014 2013 2012
Staff costs vy (6,054) (6,194) (6 303)
Raw and packaging materials and goods purchased for resale (19,818) {20 149) {20998)
Amortisation of firite-life intangible assets and software 4 (180) {is7) 213
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 0 (9471 984 (984}
Exchange gains/llosses] 12 (35) [118)
On underlying transactions 15 148) (941
On covering forward contracts (3 13 (22
Lease rentals (535) [489) (558!
Mintmum operating lease payments 544 1523) {558]
Contingent operating lease payments - (5} (8]
Less Sub-leasencome relating to operating lease agreements 9 39 8

92 Financial statemeants
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4. EMPLOYEES

4LA. STAFF AND MANAGEMENT COSTS

€ million € muthon € siluon

Staff costs 2014 2013 2012
Wages and salaries [4,992] {5 002) (5,133
Socsal secunty costs 15861 (4311 (6591
Other pension costs (288) (333 (358)
Share-based compensalion costs 1188) {228) (153}
[6,054) (6,194) (6 303]

oo ooe 000

Average number of employees during the year 2014 2013 2012
AsiafAMET/RUB 99 97 %
The Americas 42 63 43
Europe 32 34 35
173 174 172

€ millien € milkien € million

Key management compensation 014 2013 amz2
Salaries and short-term employee henefits (28] (30] (28)
Non-Executive Directors fees (2] (2} (2
Post-employment benefits 4} )] 12
Share-based benefits (19 {17) (301
isol {50) 42)

Ofwhich

Executive Directors (151 (1) 112)
Non-Executive Directors (2) {2} (2
Othert! [33) [33) 28]
1501 [50) {42)

i gther includes all members of the Unilever Leader ship Executive other than Executive Directors

Key management personnel are defined as the members of the Unilever Leadership Executive [ULE] and the Non-Executive Directors

Details of the remuneration of Directors are given in the parts noted as audited i the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 62 ta 77

4B PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

For defined benefit plans, operating and finance costs are recognised separately in the income statement The amount charged to
operating cost in the income statement ts the cost of accruing pension benefits prormised to employees over the year, plus the costs
of ndividual events such as past service benefit changes, settlements and curtarlments [such events are recogmsed immediately in
the Income statement] The amount charged or credited to finance costs I1s a net interest expense calculated by applying the liability
discount rate to the net defined benefit Lability or asset Any differences between the expected interest on assets and the return
actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in assumptions or experience within the plans are

recogrused immediately in the staternent of comprehensive income

The defined benefn plan surplus er deficit on the balance sheet comprises the total for each plan of the fair value of plan assets less
the present value of the defined benefit Uabilitres [using a discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds, or a suitable alternative

where there i1s no active corporate bond market]

All defined beneft plans are subject to regular actuarial review using the projected unit method enther by external cansultants or by
actuaries employed by Unilever The Group policy is that the most imporiant plans, representing approximately 84% of the defined

benefit liabilities, are formally valued every year Other major plans, accounting for a further 13% of the Labiliies have their

liabilities updated each year Group policy for the remaining plans requires a full actuanal valuation at least every three years
Asset values for all plans are updated every year

For defined contribution plans, the charges to the Income statement are the company contributions payzble asthe company s
obligation s limited to the contributions paid into the plans The assets and Liabilit:es of such plans are not included in the balance

sheet of the Group
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNILEVER GROUP CONTINUED

4B PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

DESCRIPTION OF PLANS

The Group increasingly operates a number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are held in external funds Incertam
countries the Group operates defined benefit pension plans based on employee pensionable remuneration and length of service

The majority of defined benefit plans are either career average, final salary or hybrid plans and operate on a funded basis Benefis are
determined by the plan rules and are linked to inflation in some countries The Group also provides other post-employment benefits,
mainly post-employment healthcare plans in the United States These plans are predominantly unfunded

GOVERNANCE

The majority of the Group s externatly funded plans are established as trusts, foundations or similar entities The operation of these
entities 1s governed by local regulations and practice in each country, as is the nature of the relationship between the Group and the
Trustees [or equivalent) and their composition Where Trustees (or equivalent) are in place to operate plans they are generally required
to act on behalf of the plan s stakeholders They are tasked with periodic reviews of the solvency of the fund in accordance with local
legislation and ptay a role 1n the long-term investment and funding strategy The Group alse has an internal body, the Pensions and
Equity Commuitee, that 1s responsible for setting the cormpany s pelicies and decision making on plan matters, inctuding but not limited
to design, funding investments, risk management and governance

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The Group s Investment strategy in respect of its funded plans 15 implemented within the framework of the various statutory
regquirements of the territories where the plans are based The Group has developed policy guidelines for the allocation of assets to
different classes with the objective of controlling risk and maintaining the nght balance between risk and long-term returns in order to
Limit the cost to the Group of the benefits provided To achieve this investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any single
investment would not have a material impact on the overall level of assets The plans continue to Invest a good proportien of the assets
in equities, which the Group believes offer the best returns over the long term commensurate with an acceptable level of risk The plans
expose the Group to a number of actuarial risks such as investment rtsk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and, in certain markets
inflation risk There are no unusual entity or plan specific risks to the Group For risk control the pension funds also have significant
investments 1n liability matching assets [bonds) as well as in property and other alternative assets, additionatly, the Group uses
derwatives Lo further mitigate the immpact of the risks cutlined above The majority of assets are managed by a number of external fund
managers with a small proportian managed in-hause Urulever has a pooled investment vetucle (Univest] which it believes offers its
pension ptans around the world a simplified externally managed investment vehicle to implement their strategic asset allocation
models currently for bonds, equities and alternative assets The aim is to provide high quality, well diversified, cost-effective, risk-
controlled vehicles The pension plans investments are overseen by Unilever s internal investment company the Univest Comnpany

ASSUMPTIONS

With the objecive of presenting the assets and liabilities of the pensions and other post-employment benefit plans at their fair value on
the balance sheet assumptions under |AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date The actuarial assumptions
used to ¢alcutate the benefit Labilities vary according o the country in which the plan s situated The following table shows the
assumptions, weighted by liabilities, used to value the principal defined benefit plans [which cover approximately 97% of total pension
habilities) and the plans providing other post-employment benefits

31 Decernber 2014 31 December 2013
Principal Other Principal Other
defined benefit post-employment defined beneft  post-employment
pension plans benefit plans pension plans benefit plans
Discount rate 3 1% 4.4% 4 2% 52%
Inflation 2% nfa 26% n/a
Rate of increase in salaries 2 8% 3.1% 31% 31%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment [where provided] 22% n/a 25% nfa
Rate of increase for pensions in deferment [where provided) 2 5% nfa 28% nfa
Long-ierm medical costinftabior nja S5.4% nfa 5 4%

The valuations of other post-employment benefit plans generally assume a higher imitial level of medical cost inflatien, which falls from 7%
to the long-term rate within the next five years Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
healthcare plans
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4B PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS cONTINUED

For the most important pension plans representing approximately 84% of all defined benefit plans hiabilities, the assumptions used at

31 December 2014 and 2013 were

United Kingdom Netherlands United States Germany
2014 23 014 2013 2014 2013 2014 203
Discount rate 35% 4 5% 19% 35% 38% 4 7% 19% 35%
Inflation 29%% 33% 17% 18% 23% 23% 17% 18%
Rate of increase in salaries 29% 3 6% 22% 23% 30% 30% 27% ?28%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment
[where provided) 27% 31% 17% 18% - - 17% 18%
Rate of increase for pensions in deferment
[where provided) 28% 32% 17% 18% - - - -
Number of years a current pensioner is
expected te live beyand age 45
Men 22 4 223 21é 220 214 205 1?4 194
Women 245 26 4 236 236 238 228 230 230
Number of years a future pensioner currently
aged 4515 expecled to live beyond age 65
Men 234 236 238 236 233 226 194 194
Wamen 263 261 258 256 255 248 230 230

Demographic assumptions, such as mortality rates are set having regard to the latest trends in life expectancy lincluding expectations
of future improvements|, plan experience and other relevant data These assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part
of the periedic actuarial valuation of the pension plans The years of life expectancy for 2014 above have been translated from the

following tables

+ UK theyear of use S1 series all pensioners [ 51PA ) tables have been adopted, which are based an the experience of UK pension
schemes over the period 2000-2006 Scaling factors are applied reflecting the experience of our pensien funds appropriate to the
member s gender and status Future improvermnents in longevity have been allowed for in line with the 2012 CMI core prejections

and a 1% pa long-term improvement rate

* The Netherlands the Dutch Actuanal Society s AG Prognosetafel 2014 table 1s used with correction factors to allow for the

typically longer Life expectancy for fund members relative 1o the general population This table has anin-built allowance for

future iImprovements in longevity

* United States the table RP-2014 with MP-2014 generational moriality improvement This table has an in-built allowance for future

tmprovements in longevity

* Germany fund specific tables are used which broadly equate to the Heubeck 2005 generational table projected to 2030

Assumptians for the remaining defined benefit plans vary considerably, depending an the economic conditions of the countries where

they are situated

INCOME STATEMENT
The charge to the iIncome statement comprises
€ million Emillion Emillien
Notes 2014 203 2012
Charged to operating profit
Delined benefit pension and other beneiit plans
Current service cost 12599 (301) [2%0)
Employee contributions 16 18 18
Special termination benefits (27 (18] 17
Past service cost including [lessesl/gains an curtailments 87 89 47
Settlements 10 - -
Defined contribution plans (115) 121 Mmel
Total operating cost 4A (288) (333 [358]
Finance income/lcost) 5 (94) (133] 45}
Net impact on the income staterment [before tax} (382) 466 (503
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NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNILEVER GROUP CONTINUED

4B. PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Amounts recognised In the statement of comprehensive Income on the remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability

€ mitlson € mitlion €million
2014 2013 2012
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net inance income/lcost) 1,316 934 1371
Actuanial gains/{losses| arising from changes in demographic assumptions (28] (158) (1483
Actuanal gains/[losses] arising from changes in financial assumptions 13,076) 235 1 678)
Experience gans/llosses) arising on pension plan and other benefit plan liabilities 78 169 [156)
Tolal of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (1,710 942 (&1}
BALANCE SHEET
The assets, liabilities and surplus/[deficit] pesition of the pension and other post-employrment benefit plans at the balance sheet date were
€ millien €million
2014 2013
Other post- Other post-
Penslon  employment Pension  employment
plans benefitplans plans  benefitplans
Fairvalue of assets 20,466 18 8313 6
Present value of rabilities 123,439 (616) 19758l {538
Net labilities 2,973 (598) [t 445) (532]
Pension Liability net of assets (2,973) 1598] {1,445] (532)
Ofwhichin respect of
Funded plans in surplus
Liabilities 17,069) - (6 048] -
Assets 7,642 3 7056 3
Aggregate surplus 73 3 988 3
Pension asset net of habilities 373 3 988 3
Funded plans in defictt
Liabilities (15,223) (38] 12 649) [14]
Assets 13,024 15 1 257 3
Pension lablity net of assets (2,199 {231 11,392 (13)
Unfunded plans
Pension liability (1,147] (578) (1041] 522)
RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Movements in assets and liabilities during the year
£ million € milben € milllen € million € million € mithon
Assets Assels Liabilitles Liabilities Total Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2004 m3
1 January 18,319 17673 (20,296) (21 018) 1,977 (3342)
Current service cost - - {259 1304 (259} (301}
Employee contributions 16 18 - - 16 18
Special termination benefits - - 27 (18] {27 {18)
Past service costs including losses/[gains} on curtailments - - a7 89 87 89
Settlements (3 - 13 - 10 -
Actual return on plan assets [excluding amounts in net finance
income/charge) 1,M46 934 - - 1,314 934
Interest cost - - (874) (793 {8%4) 793)
Interest income 780 660 - - 780 660
Actuarial gain/lloss) ansing from changes in dermographic assumptions - - (28) (158} (28) {158)
Actuarial gain/(loss] anising from changes in financial assumptions - - [3,074) 235 [3,075) 235
Actuanial ganv/(less) arising from experience adjustments - - 78 169) 78 169]
Employer contributions 537 593 - - 537 593
Benefit payments (1,251) (1198) 1,251 1196 - -
Reclassifrcation of benefits® 3 23 (14) (23] 7] -
Currency retranslaton 773 (384) (910) 561 (137] 175
31 December 20,484 18319 (24,055) |20 294) 13,571 (1977)

WiCertan liabilibies have been reclassified as employee benelit Labihities
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4B. PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

The actual return on plan assets during 2014 was €2,096 million, being the sum of €1,316 millon and €780 mllion from the table above
{2033 €1,5% million]

The duration of the principal defined beneft liabilities at 31 December 2014 1s between 9 and 19 years (2013 § and 17 years]
The Uabilinies are split between different categories of plan participants as follows

e acuive members 19 6% (2013 19 1%l

= deferred members 23 1% (2013 21%l

+ retired members 57 3% (2013 59 9%)

ASSETS

The fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period for our magor and principal plans for each category are as follows
€ mullion € millian
31 Decetnber 2014 31 December 2013
Other post- Otherpost-
employment employment
Pension benefit Pension benefit
plans plans plans plans
Total Assets 20,466 18 18 313 b
Equities Total 8,336 - 7383 -
- Europe 2,957 - 2904 -
- North America 3,086 - 2,433 -
- Other 2,293 - 2,046 -
Fixed Income Total 8,864 17 7075 5
- Government bonds 4,637 17 3,541 2
- Investment grade corporate bonds 2,749 2,336 -
- Other fixed income 1,478 - 1198 3
Derwvatives (1,182) - 18 -
Private Equity 762 - 704 -
Property and Real Estate 1,384 - 1230 -
Hedge Funds 1,080 - 936 -
Other 962 1 693 1
QOther plans 290 - 272 -

The fair values of the above equity and hixed income instruments are deterrmined based on quoted market prices in active markets
The fair value of private equity, properties, derivatives and hedge funds are not based on quoted markel prices in active markets

The Group uses swaps to hedge some of its exposure to inflation and interest rate nisk Foreign currency exposures in part are also
hedged by the use of forward foreign exchange contracts Assets included in the Other category are commodities cash and insurance
contracts which are alsg ungquoted assets

Equity securities include Unilever securtties amounting te €71 million (0 3% of total plan assets] and €467 rmullion [0 4% of toial plan
assets] at 31 December 2014 and 2013 respectively Property includes property occupied by Unilever arounting te €15 rullion at
31 December 2014 and 2013

The penston assets above exclude the assets in a Special Benefits Trust amounting to €86 millien (2013 €84 myrllion) ta fund pension
and similar Liabilities 1n the Urited States [see also note 17A on page 120)

SENSITIVITIES
The sensilivity of the overall pension liabilities to changes in the weighted key assumptions are

Change in assumption Change in LiabiLties
Discount rate Increase by 0 5% 7%
Inflatton rate Increase by 0 5% +5%
Life expectancy Increase by 1 year +4%
Long-term medical cost inflation'™ Increase by 1 0% +1%

An equivalent decrease in each assumption would have an equal and opposite impact on lrabilities

" Long-term medical cost inflation anly relates to post retirement medical plans

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasanably possible changes of the respective assurptions accurcing
at the end of the reporting pertod and may not be representative of the actual change It1s based on a change i the key assumption
while holding all other assumptions constant When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the same method used to calcutate
the Liability recognised in the balance sheet has been applied The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis did not change compared with the previous period
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNILEVER GROUP conTINUED

4B PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

CASHFLOW

Group cash flow in respect of pensions and similar post-employment benefits comprises campany contributions paid to funded
ptans and benefits paid by the company in respect of unfunded plans, as set out in the fellowing table [including the current estimate
of contributions for 2015}

€ mill:on €million € million € million
M5 2014 2013 202
Estimate
Company contributions te funded plans
Defined benefit 390 386 453 435
Defined contributions 140 1S 121 14
Benelils paid by the company in respect of unfunded plans
Defined benefit 150 151 141 170
Group cash flow in respect of pensions and similar benefits 700 &52 715 721

The Group s funding policy is to periodically review the centributions made to the plans while taking account of local legislation

4C SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The fair value of awards at grant date 15 calculated using appropriate pricing models This value is expensed over their vesting
period, with a corresponding credit to equity The expense 1s reviewed and adjusted to reflect changes 1o the level of awards
expected to vest, except where this arises from a failure to meet a market condition Any cancellaticns are recognised immedately
in the income statement

As at 31 December 2014 the Group had share-based cormpensation plans in the form of performance shares, share options and other
share awards

The numbers in this note include those for Executive Directors shown in the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 62 to 77 and
those for key management personnel shown in note 4§A on page 93 Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any of the share-

based compensation plans

The charge in each of the last three years Is shown below, and relates tc equity settied plans

€million £millien € millioh

Income statement charge 2014 2013 2012
Performance share plans (18s] [221] |147)
Other plans (2) (7] (&)
(188) (228) [153)

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLANS

Performance share awards are made under the Management Co-Investment Plan (MCIP) and the Global Share Incentive Plan [GSIP]
The MCIP allows Unilever s managers te (nvest up to 0% of their annual bonus in shares in Unilever and to recewve a corresponding
award of performance-related shares Under GSIP Unilever s managers receive annual awards of NV and PLC shares The awards
of both plans will vest after three years between 0% and 200% of grant level, depending on the satistaction of performance metrics

The performance metrics of both MCIP and GSIP are underlying sales growth, operating cash flow and core operating margin
improvemnent There is an additional target based on relative total shareholder return (TSR] for senior executives

A summary of the status of the Performance Share Pians as al 31 December 2014 2013 and 2012 and changes during the years ended
on these dates 1s presented below

2014 2013 2012

Number of Number ot Nuymber of

shares shares shares

Outstanding at 1 January 18,909,204 18031107 18 642 656
Awarded 9,724,184 7780730 7036 147

Vested (9,347,225) [5823102) {6 277057

Forferted (1,817,874 11079 525) {1,370 645)
Outstanding at 31 December 17,468,291 18909 204 18,031101
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4C SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS CONTINUED

2015 2013 202

Share award value information
Fair value per share award during the year €27.80 €28 91 £2502

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
At 31 December 2014, shares and options in NV or PLC tatalling 19,428 540 (2013 23 326,247 were held in respect of share-based
compensation plans of NV, PLC and its subsidiaries including Narth American plans

To satisfy the opttens granted, certain NV group companies hold 18,622,613 12013 16,615,698] ordinary shares of NV or PLC, and trusts
in Jersey and the United Kingdom hold 1,053,470 (2013 nil] NV or PLC shares Shares acquired during 2014 represent 0 442% of the
Group s catled up share capital The balance of shares held tn connection with share plans at 31 December 2014 represented 0 7%
(2013 0 5%) of the Group s called up share capital

The book value of €647 million (2013 €507 million) of all shares held in respect of share-based campensation plans for both NV and
PLC s eliminated on consolidation by deduction from other reserves Their market value at 31 December 2014 was €654 million
{2013 €489 million)

At 31 December 2014 the exercise price of 167 479 PLC options [NV nill were above the market price of the shares At 31 December
2013, the exercise price of 192,447 PLC options [NV ril] were above the market price of the shares

Shares held te satisfy options and related trusts are accounted far in accordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation
and SIC 12 Consolidation of Special Purpose Entities  All differences between the purchase price of the shares held to satisfy aptions
granted and the proceeds recelved for the shares, whether on exercise or lapse, are charged to reserves The basis of the charge to
operating profit for the economic value of options granted is discussed on page 98

Between 31 December 2014 and 25 February 2015 [the latest practicable date for inclusion in this report), 4,343,415 shares were
granted and 7 840,032 shares were vested or forfeited related to the Performance Share Plans

5. NET FINANCE COSTS

Net finance costs are comprised of finance costs and finance Income cluding net finance costs n relation to pensions and
similar obligations

Finance income includes income on cash and cash equivalents and income on other financial assets Finance costs include interest
costsin relation to financial babilities

Borrowing costs are recognised based on the effective interest method

Cmillion € million € rrullign

Net finance costs Nates 2014 M3 2012
Finance costs (500) (300 (524
Bank loans and overdrafts {571 (38) (89]
Interest on bonds and other loans®! (425) [457) |451)
Dividends paid on preference shares ta} (4) (4)
Net gain/lloss] on derivatives far which hedge accounting 1s not applied® [14) (3 (2]
On fereign exchange dervatives (655} 348 (19}
Exchange difference on underlying items &41 (371 17
Finance income n7 103 136
Pensions and similar obligations 4B 194) 133 (145)
1477) {530 (535)

la} Interest on bonds and other loans tnclude the impact of interest rate derwvatives that are part of a fair value hedge accounting relationship and the recycling

of results from the cash flow hedge accounting reserve relating to derivatives that were part of a cash flaw hedge accounting relation
ol For further details of derivatives for which hedge accounting is not applied please refer to note 16C on page 119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNILEVER GROUP coNTINUED

6. TAXATION
6A INCOME TAX

Income tax an the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax Income tax 1s recogntsed in the iIncome statement except
lo the exient that n relates 1o nerns recognised directly in equity

Current tax 1s the expecied tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years

Current tax in the consotidated iIncome statement witl differ from the iIncome tax paid In the consolidated cash flow statement

primarily because of deferred tax arising on temporary differences and payment dates for income tax occurring afier the balance
sheet date

€ million € million € mitlien
Tax charge in income statement 2014 2013 2012
Current tax
Current year 2,111 i2 320) {1859
Over/lunder] provided n prior years &8 232 (139)
(2,043) (2 088] (1,994
Deferred tax
Onigination and reversal of temporary differences (112) 177 164
Changes in iax rates 4 7 81
Recognition of previously unrecognised losses brought forward 20 53 52
(88) 237 297
2,131 (1 851} 11 697)

The reconciliation between the compulted weighted average rate of Income tax expense, which 1s generally applicable to Unitever
companies, and the actual rate of taxation charged s as follows

*% % %
Reconcibiation of effective tax rate 2014 2013 2012
Computed rate of tax'! 27 28 26
Differences due to
Incentjve tax credits {5) (4] [5]
Withhelding tax on dividends 2 2 2
Adjustments to previous years - 4] -
Expenses not deductible for lax purposes 1 2 2
COther 3 2 1
Effective tax rate 28 26 26

lIThe computed tax rate used is the average of the standard rate of tax applicable in the countries in which Undever operates welghted by the amount of profit

before taxation generated in each of those countries For this reason the rate may vary from year to year accordmg to the rmux of prefit and retated tax rates

6B DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax i1s recogrised using the rability method on taxable temporary differences between the tax base and the accounting
base of items included n the balance sheet of the Group Certain temporary differences are not provided for as follows

¢ goodwill not deductible for tax purposes

* themtial recognivion of assels or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and

+ differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that 1t 1s probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabiliies using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the year end

A deferred tax asset s recogrused only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available aganst wiich

the asset can be utilised Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be reslised
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6B DEFERRED TAX CONTINUED

€ mutlion £ mitlion € mittion Cmillion € mittton £ mittion € mithon € mitlion
Asal As at Asat Asat
1 January Income 31 Dacember 1 January Income 31 December
Movements in 2014 and 2013 2014  statement Other 2014 2013 statement Gther 2013
Pensions and simitar obligations 440 138) 470 874 750 5 {318] 440
Provisions 672 19 &) 457 519 94 [43) 472
Goodwill and intangible assets (1,163) 1] 128) [1,292) [1438) 221 52 [1,163)
Accelerated tax depreciation (497) (30 (26) (753) (623 (66) (8] [697)
Tax losses 147 3 127 123 134 12 i 147
Fair value gains n7 [ 1 101 [21) (3l 7 {171
Fair value losses (51 S 10 10 i2 1171 - (5]
Share-based payments 173 (2] 1 172 172 8 g 173
Other 10 (24) 1s) (291 29 3l (16) 10
[440) (88) 280 (248] (364) 237 (313 [440)

Atthe balance sheet date the Group has unused tax losses of 2,664 rmilbon 12013 €2,066 ithion] and tax credits amounting te

€441 milion (2013 €390 mitlion) available for offset against future taxabte profits Deferred tax assets have not been recogrused in
respect of unused tax losses of €2,371 million (2013 €1,641 million] and tax credits of €441 mullion (2013 €3%0 mullion], as 1t 1s not
probable that thera will be future taxable profits within the entiies against which the losses can be utilised The majority of these tax
losses and crediis arise in tax jurisdictions where they do not expire with the exception of €1 192 mitlion {2013 €181 millien) comprising

corporate Income tax losses in the Netherlands which expire between now and 2023 and state and federal tax losses in the US which
expire between now and 2034

Qther deductible temporary differences of €67 mullion (2013 €72 million] have not been recogmised as a deferred tax asset There s
no expiry date for these differences

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences asscciated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recogrised was €1,566 million (2013 €1,306 million] Ne Liability has been recognised in

respect of these differences because the Group Is tn a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences, and
1t1s prabable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets and iabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax habilitres and when the deferred income taxes relaie to the same fiscal authority The following amounts, determnined
after appropriate offsetiing are shown in the consolidated balance sheet

€ million € million € million £ million € million £ mitlion

Assets Assets Liabilities Lrabilities Total Total

Deferred tax assets and Labilities 2014 203 2014 2013 2014 2013
Pensions and similar obligations 564 368 310 72 874 440
Provisions 515 532 142 140 457 472
Gooedwill and intangible assets 127 58 (1,419 [1221) 1,292} 11,163)
Accelerated tax depreciation 113} (176) (640} (521) (753) 1697)
Tax losses 88 142 35 5 123 147
Fair value gains 14 10 24 (28) o (18]
Farvalue losses 18) (11 18 7 10 (4
Share-based payments 85 96 87 77 172 173
Other 14 65 [43) [55] (29) 10
1,286 1084 (1,534) {1,524) [248) [440)

Of which deferred tax to be recovered/[settled) after

more than 12 months 1,037 894 (1,586] (1 563] (549) {647]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNILEVER GROUP conTINUED

6C TAX ON OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Income tax 1s recognised In other comprehensive income for items recognised direcily in equity

Tax effects of the components of other comprehensive income were as follows

€ mullion € milbon €nmillion C rmullion € mittion € milbon

Tax Tax
Before [chargel/ After Before Ichargel/ Aiter
tax credit tax tax credil 1ax
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
Fair value gains/{losses] on financial Instruments n10) 25 (85} 121 (15) 106
Remeasurements of defined beneft pensien plans (1,710) 460 {1.250) 942 (245) 697
Currency reiranslation gains/llosses) (18 @ (251 (980l 191 9991
1,834) 476 (1,360} 83 279) (198)

7. COMBINED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The combined earnings per share calculations are based en the average number of share units representing the combined ordinary
shares of NV and PLC in 1ssue during the period, less the average number of shares held as treasury stock

In calculating diluted earnings per share and core earnings per share, a number of adjustments are made to the number of shares
principally [l conversion into PLL ordinary shares in the year 2038 of shares in a group company [refer below) and [ the exercise of

share options by employees

On 19 May 2014 a subsidiary of Unilever PLC purchased the shares convertible to ordinary shares in 2038 [see note 24] Due to the
repurchase, the average number of combined share units 1s not adjusted for these shares from 20 May 2014 te 31 December 2014 The
adjusted average number of share units 1s caiculated based on the number of days the shares were dilutive during the year ended

31 December 2014

€ € €

Combined earnings per share 20014 203 2012
Basic sarnings per share 182 17 154
Diluted earnings per share 1.79 (RT3 150
Core EPS 181 158 153
Millions of share units

Calculation of average number of share units 2014 2013 2012
Average number of shares NV 1,714 7 V47 1714 7
PLC 1,310 2 13102 1,310 2

Less shares held by employee share trusts and companies 1184 4) 186 8) (1961
Cernbined average number of share units 2,8405 28381 28288
Add dilutive impact of Leverhulme shares 26.8 709 709
Add dilutive effect of share-based compensation plans 15.3 i50 142
Diluted combined average number of share units 2,882.4 29240 29159
€ million € mitlion € million

Calculation of earnings 2014 2013 2012
Net profit 5,515 5,263 4 836
Non-controlling interests (344) (421) (468)
Net profit attributable to shareholders equity 5171 4 842 4 348
€ million C million € million

Calculation of core earnings Notes 2014 2013 2012
Net profit attrbutable to shareholders equity 517 4842 4,368
Post-tax rmpact of non-core items 3 (537) [235] 87
Core profit attributable to shareholders equily 4,634 4 607 4 455
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8. DIVIDENDS ON ORDINARY CAPITAL

Dividends are recognised on the date that the shareholder s right to receive payment s established This 1s generally the date when
the dividend 15 declared

€million € million € mullion
Mhvidends on ordinary capital during the year 200 203 2012
NV dividends 1,757) 11 438] 1,482
PLC dividends (1,439 113431 (1,214)

(3,196) {2981 12,696)

Four quarterly interim dividends were declared and paid during 2014 totalling €112 (2013 €1 053] per NV ordinary share and £0 91
(2013 €0 89 per PLC ordtnary share

Quarterly dwidends of €0 29 per NV ordinary share and £0 22 per PLC ordinary share were declared on 20 January 2013 to be payable
tn March 2015 See note 26 Events after the balance sheet date on page 128 Total dividends declared in relation to 2014 were €1 14
{2013 €108) par NV ordinary share and £0 96 (2013 £0 91] per PLC ordinary share

9. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL
Goodwill s initially recognised based on the accounting policy for business combinations [see note 21) Goodwill 1s subseguently

measured at cost less amounts provided for impairment The Group s cash generating units [CGUs) are based on the four product
categories and the three geographical areas

Goodwill acguired in a business combination 15 allocated 1o the Group s CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination These rmight not always be the same as the CGUs that include the assets and Liabilities of the acquired
business Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill 1s allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill
15 monitored for internal management purposes and is not larger than an operating segment

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Separately purchased Intangible assets are initially measured at cost On acquisition of new interests in group companies Unilever

recognises any specifically identifiable intangible assets separaiely from goodwill Intangible assets are imstially measured at fair
value as at the date of acquisition

Finite-life intangible assets mainly comprise patented and non-patented technology, know-how and software These assets are
capitalised and amortised on a straight-tine basis in the Income statement over the period of their expected useful Lives, or the
period of legal rights if shorter None of the amartisation periods exceeds ten years Indefinite-life intangibtes mainly comprise
trademarks and brands These assets are capitalised at cost but are not amortised They are subject to a review for impairment

annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate this 1s necessary Any impairment Is charged te the income
statement as it arises

Internally produced intangibles generally are not capitalised unless it can be demonstrated that the recognstion criteria are met

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Development expenditure is capitalised only If the costs can be reliably measured, future econemic benefits are probable the
product s technically feasible and the Group has the intent and the resources to complete the project Research expenditure is
recagrised in profit or loss as incurred
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9. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

€ million € million € million € million €million
Indefinite-Lfe Finite-lde
ttangible tntangible

Movements during 2014 Gogdwll assets assets Software Total
Cost
1 January 2014 14,890 6,266 641 1,715 23,512
Acguisitions of group companies 184 356 20 - 550
Disposals of group companies (207) (587) - 4]} (795)
Reclassed to held for disposal - 411 - - 11
Additions - 36 - 328 364
Disposals - (2] - 9 mj
Currency retranslation 858 304 24 103 1,291
31 December 2014 15,725 6,364 685 2,136 24,910
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
1 January 2014 973) (2271 (613) (795) (2,408)
Disposals of group companies - 566 - - 566
Amortisation/impairment far the year - (305) (2] {178) (485)
Chspasals - 1 - ¢ 10
Currency retranslation (110) 1471 (29) 33 1219)
31 Decernber 2014 (1,083] 12 (644) (997) (2,734)
Net book value 31 Decernber 2014 14,642 6,352 41 1,139 22,174
Movements during 2013
Cost
1 January 2013 19,635 6536 670 1480 24 321
Acquistions of group companies 42 45 5 - 12
Cisposals of group companies (62 (131 - - [75)
Reclassed to held for disposal (3] - - - (3}
Additicns - 2 - 375 377
Disposals - {5) (10 (54) (69
Currency retranslation {742) 1299} [24) (84} (1151
31 December 2013 14 890 5,266 641 1715 23512
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
1 January 2013 [1014) (238} (641) (708) (2,603
Amorusation for ihe year - - 14} 1163) he7)
Disposals - - 9 26 35
Currency retranslation 43 n 23 50 127
31 Decernber 2013 1973) (227) [613) (795) (2 608)
Net book value 31 Decernber 2013 13N7 6039 28 920 20 904
There are no significant carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets that are allocated across multiple cash generating units
IMPAIRMENT CHARGES
We have tested all material goodwill and indefinite-tife intangible assets for impairment During the year an impairment of
€305 million has been recognised in relation to the assets related te the Slim Fast business These assets were subsequently sold
[see note 21) No ather iImpairments were identified
SIGNIFICANT CGUS
The goodwill and indefinite-life intangtble assets held in the three CGUs relating to Foods across the geographical areas are considered
significant wathin the total carrying amounts of goodwill and indefinite-life Intangible assets at 31 Decernber 2014 interms of size headroom
and sensitmily to assumptions used No other CGUs are considered sigificant in this respect
The goodwill and indefinite-life ntangible assets held in the significant CGUs are
€ billion € illon € billian £ billion
2014 2014 013 M3
Indefinite- Indefinite-
Ufe Lte
Goodwill intangibles Goodwll  intangibles
Foods Europe 59 14 58 16
Foods The Americas 37 15 36 13
Foods Asia/AMET/RUB 16 04 14 04

Value 1n use has been calculated as the present value of projected future cash flows A pre-tax discount rate of 74% (2013 7 4%)
was used

104 Financial statements Umilever Annual Report and Accounts 2014




9. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

For the significant CGUS, the following key assumpiions were used in the discounted cash flow projections

Foods Foods Foods

The Asta/

Europe Americas AMET/RUB
Longer-term susiainable growth rates 05% 1 7% A%
Average near-term nominal growth rates 07% 5.4% 7.6%
Average operating margins 19-20% 20-22% 16-18%

The growth rates and margins used to estimate future perfermance are based on past performance and our experience of growth rates
and margins achievable in our key markets

The projectians covered a period of five years, as we believe this to be the most appropriate imescale over which to review and consider
annual performances before applying a fixed terminal value multiple to the hinal year cash flows

The growth rates used are consistent with the prudent end of the range of assumptions from our annual planning and strateqic
planning processes

We have performed sensitivity analyses around the base assumptions and have concluded that no reasonable possible changes in key
assumptions would cause the recoverable amount of the significant CGUs to be less than the carrying vatue

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, pltant and equiprment 1s measured st costincluding eligibte borrowing costs less depreciabion and accumulated
impairment losses

Depreciation s provided on a straight-line basis over the expected average useful lives of the assels Residual values are reviewed
at teast annually Estimated useful lives by major class of assetis are as follows

¢ Freehold buildings {no depreciation on freehold land) 40 years

* Leasehold land and buildings 40 years or Lfe of {ease If less}

+ Plant and equipment 2-20years

Property, plant and equipment ts subject to review for impairment f triggering events ar circumstances indicate that thiss
necessary If anindicatien of impairment exists, the asset s or cash generating unit s recoverable amount 1s estimated and any
impairment loss is charged to the income statement as It arises

€ million € million €mlllen
Landand Plant and

Movements during 2014 buildings  equipment Tatal
Cost
1 January 2014 3,847 13,382 17,22%
Acquisitions of group companies 21 20 41
Disposals of group companies (501 (191 (241
Additions 304 1,593 1,899
Disposals (109 619) [728)
Currency retranslation 155 523 478
Reclassification as held for sale 30 [ 36
3t December 2014 4,200 14,714 18,914
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2014 1,254) [6,631) [7,885)
Disposals of group companies 27 108 135
Depreciation charge for the year (102 (845) (947)
Drsposals N 516 547
Currency retranslation [52) (243) (295)
Reclassification as held for sale 4 (4]} 3
31 December 2014 1,346) (7,094) (8,442)
Net book value 31 December 2014 2,854 7,618 10,472
Includes payments an accaunt and assets m course of construction 283 1,499 1752

Blncludes €259 million (2013 €235 mitlion] of freehold land

The Group has commitment to capital expenditure of €640 mullion (2013 €649 million) - see note 20
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UNILEVER GROUP coNTINUED

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED

€ million € million € million
Land and Plantand 1
Movements during 2013 bulldings  equipment Total |

Cost

1 January 2013

Acquisitions of group companies
Disposals of group companses
Additions

hsposals

Currency retranslation
Reclassification as held for sale
Other adjustments

31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2013 (1.286] (6 778) [8 D44}
Disposais of group companies 3 17 20
Depreciation charge for the year 110) (874) 1984}
Dispasals b4 494 520
Currency retranslation 63 436 499
Reclassification as held for sale 2 117 131
Gther adjustments (4] (3} {7
31 Decemnber 2013 [ 254] (6 631] (7885]
Net book value 31 December 2013 2593 6751 9344
Includes payments an account and assets in course of construction 191 1315 1,506

4,004 13,503 17,509

14 36 50
[4) (24) (28]
281 1583 1864
{89 1545 634}
[288) 1 014) [1300)
(75] (154] (231]

- (i (i)
3,847 13382 17229

11. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Jointventures are undertakings inwhich the Group has aninterest and which are jointly controlted by the Group and one or mere
ather parties Associates are undertakings where the Group has an investment in which it does not have control or joint contral but

can exercise significant influence

Interests in joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method and are stated in the consolidated balance sheet
at cost adjusled tor the movement in the Group s share of their net assets and Labilities The Group s share of the profit or loss after
tax of joint ventures and associates is included in the Group s consolidated profit before taxation

Where the Group s share of losses exceeds its interest in the equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of the investment is
reduced to zero and the recagnition of further losses s disconttinued, except ta the extent that the Group has an cbligation to make

payments on behall of the investee

Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell with any changes recognised in the income statement

€ million € mtllion

2014 2013

Interest in net assets of joint ventures 52 57
Interest in net assets of associates 42 38
Long-term trade and other receivables 25 207
Fair value of biological assets L2 34
Other nan-financial assetskl 256 227
457 563

“Other non-Hnancial assets mainly relate 1o tax deposis pard
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11. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS CONTINUED

€mllion € milbon
Movements during 2014 and 2013 2014 2013
Joint ventures™
1 January 57 32
Additions I'A 25
Dwidends recewed/reductions (1231 (1001
Share of net prefit 103 105
Currency retranslation 1 {5}
31 December 52 57
Associates™
1 danuary 38 51
Additions 2 18
Diwidends receved/freductions 5 [42]
Share of net [loss)/proft (5) 8
Currency retranslation 2 3
31 December 42 38

4 Qur principal joint ventures are Unilever Jerdrnimo Martins in Portugal Pepsi Lipton international in the UK and the Pepsi/Lipton Partnership in the US
b Associates as at 31 December 2014 primarnily comprise our investments tn Langholm Capital Partners Other Unilever Yentures assets are included under
Other nen-current non-financial assets

The joint ventures and associates have no significant contingent Liabilities to which the Group 1s exposed, and the Group has no
significant contingent Liabilities 1n relation to 1is interest in the Joint ventures and associates

The Group has no putstanding capital commitments to joint ventures

QOutstanding balances with joint ventures and associates are shown in note 23 on page 127

12. INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct costs and, where
appropriate a proportion of attributable production overheads Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale

€ million € million

Inventories 2014 2013
Raw materials and consurmnables 1,364 1286
Finished goods and goods for resale 2,804 2,451
4,148 3937

Inventories with a value of €76 mullion (2013 €204 million! are carried at net realisable value this being lower thar cost During 2014
€126 million [2013 €198 million] was charged to the Income statement for damaged, obsolete and lost inventeries [n 2014, €120 million
{2013 €155 million) was utibsed or released to the income statement from inventory provisions taken in earlier years

13. TRADE AND OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Trade and other recewvables are imitially recagnised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs Subsequently these
assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest method and net of any impairment losses

We do not consider the fair values of trade and other receivables to be significantly different from their carrying values Credit terms
for customers are determined in individual territories Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade recewvables are imited, due
to the Group s customer base being large and diverse Our histarical experience of collecting recevables, supperted by the tevel of
default, 1s that credit risk s law across territories and so trade recewables are considered 1o be a single class of financial assets
Balances are considered for impairment on an individual basis rather than by reference to the extent that they become overdue
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13. TRADE AND OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES CONTINUED

€ malbion € milion

Trade and other current receivables 2014 2013
Due within one year

Trade recevables 2,827 2852

Prepayments and accrued income 540 516

Other receivables 1,662 1443

5,029 4831

Other recevables comprise financial assets of €425 million {2013 €588 milion), including supplier and customer deposits, employee
advances and certain derwvatives, and non-financial assets of €1,237 mullion [2013 €875 mullian), Including tax depesits and
reclaimable sales tax

€ million € millon
Ageing of trade receivables 2014 2013
Total trade recevables 2,956 2989
Less impairment provision for trade recevables 129 (137}
2,827 2 852
0f which
Not overdue 2,156 2194
Past due less than three months 584 53%
Past due more than three months but less than six menths 70 105
Past due more than six months but less than one year 46 59
Past due more than one year 100 92
Impairment provision for trade recewvables 129 (t37]
2,827 2852
€ mitlion € million
Impairment provision for trade and other receivables ~ current and non-current impairments 2014 2013
t January 149 15
Charged to iIncome statement 30 38
Reductions/releases [38) (30
Currency retransiation 2 {10
31 December 145 149

14. TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Trade payables and other Liatnlities are initially recognised at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs Subsequently
these Liabilities are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest method

We da not consider the fair values of trade and other payables to be significantly different from their carrying values

€ mitlion € milion
Trade payables and other labilities 2014 2013
Due within one year
Trade payabtes 7,636 4995
Accruals 3172 3269
Secial security and sundry laxes 555 631
Others 1,243 840

12,606 1735

Due after more than one year

Accruals 109 59
Others 269 237

378 296
Total trade payables and other Labitities 12,984 12037

Included in others are third party royalties, certain derivatives and dividends to non-controlling interests
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15. CAPITAL AND FUNDING

ORDINARY SHARES
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly atiributable to the 1ssue of ordinary shares are recognised
as a deduction from equity net of any tax effects

INTERNAL HOLDINGS

The ordinary shares numbered 1 to 2,400 [inclusive] n NV [ Special Shares | and deferred stock of PLC are held as to one hail

of each class by NV Elma - a subsidiary of NV - and one half by United Holdings Limiuted - a substdiary of PLC This capital is ‘
eliminated on consolidation

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
The Group operates a number of share-based compensatian ptans involving options and awards of ordinary shares of NV and PLC
Full details of these plans are given in note 4C on pages 98 and 99

OTHER RESERVES
Other reserves include the fair value reserve, the foreign currency translation reserve, the capitat redemption reserve and
treasury stock

SHARES HELD BY EMPLOYEE SHARE TRUSTS AND GROUP COMPANIES

Certain PLC trusts, NV and group companies purchase and hold NV and PLC shares to satisfy performance shares granted, share
options granted and other share awards (see note 4C) The assets and liabilities of these trusts and shares held by group companies
are included in the consolidated financial statements The book value of shares held 1s deducted from other reserves, and trusts
borrowings are included in the Group s habiities The costs of the trusts are included tn the results of the Group These shares are
excluded from the calculation of earnings per share

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial Llabilities are initially recagnised at fair value, less any directly related transaction costs Certain bonds are designated
as bewng part of a fair value hedge relationship In these cases, the bonds are carried at amortised cost, adjusted for the fair value
of the risk being hedged, with changes in value shown in profit and loss Other financial liabilites excluding dervatives, are
subsequently carried at amortised cost

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group s use of, and accounting for derivative iInstruments 15 explained in nole 16 on page 114 and on pages 118 to 119

The Group s Treasury activities are designed to

* maintain a comnpetitive balance sheet In line with A+/A1 rating (see below)

secure funding at lowest costs for the Group s aperations, M& A activity and external dividend payments [see below!
protect the Group s financial results and pasition from financial nisks [see note 18),

maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while opttmising returns [see note 14| and

protect the Group s financial investments, while maximising returns [see note 17]

The Treasury department provides central deposit taking funding and foreign exchange management services for the Group s
operations The department 1s governed by standards and processes which are approved by Unilever Leadership Executive (ULE)
in addition to guidelines and exposure Limits, a system of authorities and extensive Independent reporting covers all major areas
of actvity Performance 1s manitored closely by senior management Reviews are undertaken periodically by carporate audit

Key instruments used by the department are

¢ short-term and long-term borrowings

+ cash and cash equivatents, and

= planvanilla derivatives including interest raie swaps and FX contracts

The Treasury department maintains a list of approved financial instruments The use of any new instrument must be approved
by the Chief Financial Officer The use of leveraged instruments 1s not permiited
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15. CAPITAL AND FUNDING CONTINUED

Unilever considers the following compenents of its balance sheet to be managed capital

¢ total equity - retained proht, other reserves, share capital, share premium, non-controlling interests [note 154 and 15B],
= short-term debt - current financial Liabibities (note 15C) and

» long-term debt - non-current bank loans, bonds and other loans [note 15C)

The Group manages its capital so as to saieguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders
through an appropriate balance of debt and equity The capital structure of the Group 1s based on management s judgement of the
appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs We constder the amount of capital in propartion
to nisk and manage the capital structure 1n ight of changes in ecanormic conditions and the risk charactenstics of the underlying assets

Qur current long-term credit rating 1s A+/A) and our short-term credit rating 15 A1/P1 We aim to maintain a competitive balance sheet
which we consider to be the equivalent of a credit rating of A+/Al in the long terrm This pravides us with

* appropriate access 1o the debt and equity markets,

« suffiicient flexibility for acquisitions

* sufficient resilience against econormic and financial uncertainty while ensuring ample liquidity, and

* optimal weighted average cost of capital given the above constraints

Unilever moniters the qualitative and quantitative factors utilised by the rating agencies Thisinformation is publicly available and
1s updated by the credit rating agencies on a regular basis

Unilever will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capitat structure Unilever is not subject to financial
covenants In any of iis sigmificant financing agreements

15A SHARE CAPITAL

Isgued, Issued

called up called up

and and

Authorised™  fullypad™ Authorised™  fully paid®

2014 2014 20i2 2013

Unilever N V €million € million € million Cmillion
NV ordinary shares of €0 16 each 480 274 480 274
NV ordinary shares of £428 57 each [shares numbered 1 to 2,400 - Special Shares 1 1 i 1
Internal holdings eliminated on consolidation (€428 57 shares] - (1 - m
481 274 481 274

Unilever PLC € million € rndlion
PLC ordinary shares of 3/5p each 40.8 408
PLC deferred stock of £1 each 01 01
Internal holding eliminated on consolidation (€1 stock] (01) o
408 408

€million € mullion

Euro equivalent in rullions (at £1 00 = €5 143 210 210
Unilever Group € million € million
Ordinary share capital of NV 274 274
Ordinary share capital of PLC 210 210
484 484

WAL31 December 2014 Unidever NV had 3 000 600 000 {2013 3 000,000 000} authorised ordinary shares The requirement for 3 UK company to have an authorised
share capital was abolished by the UK Companies Act 2004 In May 2010 Unilever PLC shareholders approved new Arlicles of Association to reflect this

BlAt 31 December 2014, the following quantilies of shares were in 1ssue 1714 727 700 of NV ordinary shares 2 400 of NV Special Shares 1 310,156,361 of PLC
ordinary shares and 100 000 of PLC deferred stock The same quantities were in 1ssue at 3% December 2013

Kl Conversion rate for PLC ordinary shares nominal value to Euro (s £1 = €5 143 [which s calculated by dividing the nominal value of NV ordinary shares by the
nominal value of PLC ordinary shares]

For information on the rights of shareholders of NV and PLC and the operation of the Equalisation Agreement see the Corparate
Gavernance report on page 41

A norminal dnvidend of 6% per annum 1s paid on the deferred stock of PLC, which 1s not redeemable
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15B EQUITY

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Unileveris the majarity shareholder of all material subsidiaries and has control in all cases Infermation in relation to ali of the Group s
significant investrments 1s provided on page 129 to 130

SUBSIDIARIES WITH SIGNIFICANT NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Unilever has one subsidiary company which has a material non-controlling interest Hindustan Unilever Lirmited [HUL) Summary
financial infermation in relation to HUL 1s shown below

€ million € million
HUL Balance sheet as at 31 December 2014 2013
Non-current assets 636 432
Current assets 1,093 1,002
Current Liabilities (911} (797
Non-current Labilities 771 (101)
HUL Comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
Turnover 3,529 3,341
Profit after tax 445 429
Total comprehensive income 519 384
HUL Cash flow for the year ended 31 December
Netincrease f{decrease] in cash and cash equivatents 66 {106)
HUL Non-controlling interest
1 January (221) [291)
Share of [profit)/loss for the year ended 31 December [145) [172)
Other comprehensive income 1 (3
Dvigends paid to the nen-controlling interest 130 92
Other changes in equity - 108
Currency retranslation [23] 45
31 December (258) [221]

UNILEVER'S INCREASED INTEREST IN HINDUSTAN UNILEVER LIMITED

On 18 July 2013, the Group acquired 14 78% ot Hindustan Unilever Limited for a consideration of INR 192 billion [€2,515 million),
increasing the Group s interest in Hindustan Unitever Limited from 52 48% to 67 26% Accordingly €104 mullion previously shown as
attributabte to non-controlling interests within equity became attributable to shareholders and the resulting loss on the acquisition
recorded in retained earnings was €2 411 million

ANALYSIS OF RESERVES FOR THE GROUP

€ million € millicn € million

Total Total Total

Other reserves as at 31 December 204 2013 2012
Fairvalue reserves (198) (13 219
Cash flow hedges (234) [162) 1241)
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 35 49 22
Currency retranslation of group companies (2,901) [2 611) [1,843)
Adjustment on translation of PLC s ordinary capital at 3vsp = €0 16 [164) [164) 1164}
Capital redemption reserve 32 32 32
Book value of treasury stock [4,125) {3 890) (4 002)
Other®! (182) - -
(7,538) (6,746) (6196

12! Relates 1o option on purchase of subsidiary for non-controlling interest

Unilever acquired 7,304,993 [2013 34,077] NV ordinary shares and 6 058,733 {2013 330 000) PLC shares through purchases on the
stock exchanges during the year These shares are held as treasury stock as a separate component of other reserves The total number
held 21 31 December 2014 was 153,928 997 (2013 153 027 466] NV shares and 34,204 709 (2013 31,845,853) PLC shares Of these,

12 368,348 NV shares and 7507715 PLC shares were held in connection with share-based compensation plans [see note 4C on pages
98 and 99)
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15B EQUITY CONTINUED

€ milben € million
Treasury stock - movements during the year 2014 2013
1 Jarwary (3,890 {4 002)
Purchases and other utilisations 1235) 12
31 December (4,125) {3 890

€ million € million
Currency retranslation reserve - movements during the year 2014 2013
1 January 12,611) 11843
Currency retranslation during the year (626) 1496)
Movement n nel investment hedges and exchange differences in net investmentis in {oreign eperations 412 275)
Recycled to income statement [76) 3
31 December (2,501) [2 611)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME RECONCILIATION

€ million € million
Fair value gains/[tosses] on financial instruments — movement during the year 2014 2013
1 January 13) (219)
Mavermnent during the year (85] 106
31 December {198) 13

Refer to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 84, the consolidated statement of changes In equity on page 85 and note 6C on page 102

€ mitllon € million
Actuarial gains/(losses) on pension schemes - movement during the year 2004 013
1 January 1,107) 11 804]
Mavement during the year (1,250] 697
31 December (2,357} {1107

Refer to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page B4, the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 85 note 4B from page 93 to
78 and note 6C on page 102

€ million Cmillion

Currency retranslation gains/{losses) - movement during the year 2014 2013
1January (3.006) [2 007)
Currency retranslation during the year

Other reserves [290] {788)

Retained profit 208 (129)

Nan-contrelling interest 57 (82
31 December (3,031) (3008)
15C FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

€ million € million € million € milion € millon € million
Current  MNon-current Total Current  Non-cusrent Total
Financial Uabilities™™® Notes 2014 2014 2014 2093 2013 2013
Preference shares - &8 68 - 48 68
Bank loans and gverdrafts 568 526 1114 491 576 1067
Bonds and other loans 4,428 6,145 10,573 3037 6,557 9594
Finance lease creditors 20 13 184 199 14 190 204
Derwvatuves 277 73 350 199 100 299
Other financial iabiliries 230 188 418 269 - 269
5,534 7,188 12,722 4010 7491 11501

b For the purposes of notes 15C and 17A financial assets and Labilities exclude trade and other current receivables and trade payables and other babilities which are
covered In notes 13 and 14 respectively
B Financral labilitres include €1 million {2013 €6 millien) of secured Liabitities
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15C FINANCIAL LIABILITIES cONTINUED

ANALYSIS OF BONDS AND OTHER LOANS

€ millien € mitlion

Total Total

2014 2013
Unitever NV
3 375% Bonds 2015 [€] 764W 777
1750% Bonds 2020 (€] Thb 746
3 500% Notes 2015 [Swiss francs] 291 285
2 950% Notes 2017 [Renminbi) 40 -
1150% Notes 2014 iRenminbi) - 36
Commercial paper 2,739 1008
Total NV 4,580 2852
Unitever PLC
4 750% Bonds 2017 (€] 511 478
2 000% Notes 2018 (£} 37 -
4 000% Bonds 2014 (£} - 419
Commercial Paper - 670
Total PLC 828 1547
Other group companies
Switzerland
Other 24 5
United States
4 250% Notes 2021 (US $) 819 722
5900% Bonds 2032 {US ) 812 6
4 800% Notes 2019 (US §) 816 543
2 200% Notes 2019 (US §) 410 537
0 B50% Notes 2017 [US $I 449 395
2 750% Notes 2015 [US $) n 362
0 650% Nates 2015 [US ) 370 326
7 250% Bonds 2026 [US $] 237 209
& 629% Bonds 2028 (US $) 185 161
5 150% Notes 2020 [US $ 132 17
7000% Bonds 2017 (US 3) m 107
5 600% Bonds 2097 (US $) 74 b4
3 £50% Motes 2014 (US4 - B4h
Commercial paper (US $] 255 341
Other - 16
Other countries 50 8
Total other group companes 5,165 5175
Total bonds and other loans 10,573 95%4

W Qfwhich €14 milbon [2013 €28 millicn) relates to a fair value adjustment following the fair value hedge aceaunting of a fix-to-float interest rate swap
b1 0f which €(2) million (2013 ril) relates 1o a fair value adjustment following the fair value hedge accounting of a fix-to-float interest rate swap

Information in relation to the derivatives used to hedge bonds and other loans within a fair value hedge relationship 1s shown in note 16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNILEVER GROUP coNTINUED

16. TREASURY RISK MANAGEMENT

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING
Derwvatives are measured at fair value with any related transaction costs expensed as incurred The treatment of ¢changes in the
value of derivatives depends on their use as explained below

(1) FAIR VALUE HEDGES*!

Certain dervatives are held to hedge the nisk of changes in value of 2 specific bond or other loan In these situations the Group
designates the Liability and related derivative to be part of a fair value hedge relationship The carrying value of the bond 1s adjusted
by the fair value of the nisk being hedged, with changes going to the income staternent Gains and losses on the corresponding
derivative are also recogntsed in the income staterment The amounts recognised are offset 1n the iIncame statement ta the extent
that the hedge 15 effective When the relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the fair value hedge adjustment
made to the bond 15 amortised to the income statement using the eifective interest method

{11) CASH FLOW HEDGES™

Dervatives are also held to hedge the uncertainty in timing or amount of future forecast cash flows Such dervatives are classified
as being part of cash flow hedge relationships Foran effective hedge gains and losses from changes in the fair value of derivatives
are recognised in equity Any ineffective elements of the hedge are recognised in the income statement If the hedged cash flow
relates to a non-financial asset, the amount accumulated in equity 1s subsequently included within the carrying value of that asset
For other cash flow hedges, amounts deferred in equity are taken to the iIncome statement at the same time as the related cash flow

When a derivative no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or toss remains in equity until the related cash flow
occurs When the cash flow takes place, the cumulative gain or loss is taken to the income statement If the hedged cash flow s no
longer expected to occur the cumulative gain or loss 1s taken to the iIncome statement immediately

(1) NET INVESTMENT HEDGES"
Certain dervatives are designated as hedges of the cyrrency Fisk on the Group s investment in foreign subsidiaries The accounting
policy for these arrangements s set outin note 1

(IVI DERIVATIVES FOR WHICH HEDGE ACCOUNTING IS NOT APPLIED
Derwatives not classilied as hedges are held in crder to hedge certain balance sheat iterns and commodity exposures No hedge
accounting 15 applied to these derivalives which are carried at fair value with changes being recogrused n the income statement

4 Applying hedge accounting has not led to material ineffectiveness being recognised in the income statement for both 2013 and 2014

The Group 15 exposed to the following risks that anse frem its use of financial instruments the management of which s described
in the tollowing sections

« lLiquidity risk [see note 16A),

* market risk [see note 16B] and

+ creditrisk [see note 178)

16A MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

Lriquichty nisk is the nisk that the Greup will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial babiliies The Group s approach
to managing liquidity 15 to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabiliies when due without iIncurring unacceptable losses
In doing this management considers both normal and stressed conditions A material and sustained shortfall in our cash flow could
undermine the Group s credit rating, :mpair invester cenfidence and also restrict the Group s ability to raise funds

The Group maintained a cautious funding strategy, with a pasitive cash balance throughout 2014 This was the result of cash delivery
from the business, coupled with the proceeds from bond issuances This cash has been invested conservatively with low risk counter-
parties at maturities of less than six months

Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds Lo service the financing of financial Liabilities on & day-to-day basis
The Group seeks to manage its liquidity requirements by maintaining access to global debt markets through short-term and
long-term debt pragrammes In addition Unilever has commutted credit facilities for general corporate use

On 31 December 2014 Urilever had undrawn revolving 364-day bilateral credit facilities in aggregate of US $4,550 million

(2013 US %6 400 milhion] with a 364-day term out As part of the regular annual process the intention Is that these facilities will
again be renewed 1n 2015
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16A MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK CONTINUED

The fatlowing table shows Unilever s contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows, including expected interest payments which are
payable under financial Liabilities at the balance sheet date

€ millicn €mitlon € millien € million € million € million € millian € million
Net
carrying
Due Due Due Due amount as
Due between between between between Due shownn
within 1and 2and 3and 4and after balance
Undiscounted cash flows Notes 1year 2years 3years &Lyears 5years Syears Total sheet
2014
MNon-derivative financial
Liabilities
Prelerence shares 14) 4 [4) 14) 14) i72) (LFd) 168)
Bank loans and overdralts [601) [257) 1272) - - - (1,130] 11,114)
Bonds and other loans [4,758) (6471 (1,289] [511) [1,418]) 14,513) 113,136) (10,573)
Finance lease creditors 20 [25) {48] 123} 1191 [18) 172 (305) (199)
Other financial labilities [230) - - - - (1e8) (418) [418)
Trade payables excluding soctat
security and sundry taxes 14 [12,051) (378l - - - - 112,429] (12,429)
Issued financial guarantees (11 - - - - - {11} -
(17,680) 11,334) 1,588} (534) 1,440) (4,945) (27,521] 124,801)
Derivative financial labilities
Interest rate derivatives
Dervative contracts - receipts 289 229 230 17 - - 765
Derivative contracts -
payments 1629) 1255} 277 {19} - - (980}
Foreign exchange derivatives
Derivative contracts - receipts 9,957 2 - 347 - - 10,304
Dervative contracts —
payments 10,284) (2) - (304) - - (10,5%0]
Commodity derivatives
Dervative contracts - receipts 405 - - - - - 405
Derivative contracts -
payments 421 - - - - - 421)
(483) [26) (47) 4 - - 1515) (514)
Total 18,163) 11,350) [1.635) 1493) 1,440) (4,945) (28,0361 125,315)
2013
Non-derivative financial
Labilities.
Preference shares (4] l4) (4) 14] (4) (72l (92 (68)
Bank loans and overdrafts {515 [42) (2586) (274] (1 - (1088} (1067
Bonds and other loans (3333) [1607] {571 (1184} {165] (5324 (12,188 (9594)
Finance lease creditars 20 [25) [24) [43) (221 (18] [180) 1312) (204)
Other financial liabilities (269 - - - - - (269} (249}
Trade payables excluding sacial
security and sundry laxes 14 11104 (296 - - - - (13 400} (11 400)
Issued financial quarantees N2 - - - - - N2l -
[15252) (1973 (874) (1488] (188 (5,578) (25 361] 122 402)
Derivative financial labiities
Interest rate dervatives
Dervative contracts - receipts 275 194 167 1 - - 637
Derivative contracts -
payments 1312) [254) 12971 M - - (776}
Foreign exchange derivatives
Derivative contracts - receipts 18,186 - - - - - 18,186
Derwative contracts -
payments (18,415) - - - - - 118,415)
Commodity derivatives
Derwative contracts — receipts 86 - - - - - Bé
Dertvative contracts -
payments 189) - - - - - (89)
(269} (621 (40) - - - (371 {3951
Total {15531) (2 035 1914) (1 488) {188] [5578) [25,732) (22 997
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNILEVER GRCUP CONTINUED

16A MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK CONTINUED

The following table shows cash flows for which cash flow hedge accounting 1s applied The dervatives in the cash flow hedge relationships
are expected to have animpact on profit and loss in the same pertods as the cash flows occur

€ millien € mithon € million € million €million € mitlion €million € millien
Net
Due Due Due Due carrying
Due between between between hetween Due amount of
within 1and2 2and3 3andé kand 5 after related
1 year years years years years Syears Total derivativesWw
2014
Foreign exchange cash inflows 1,506 2 - 7 - - 1,855
Foreign exchange cash outflows (1.503) 2) - (304) - - (1,809) 34
Interest rate cash flows 197 - - - - - 97 (1c0)
Commaodily contracts cash flows 1421 - - - - - 421 15)
2013
Foreign exchange cash inflows 1088 - - - - - 1,088
Foreign exchange cash outflows (509 - - - - - {509] 1
Interest rate cash flows i2] (1] 12 () - - (118] [41]
Commodity contracts cash flows (3131 - - - - - (313 14

lalSee note 16C on page 118

168 MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK

Unilever s size and operations resultsn it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments

+ commodity price risk,
* currency risk, and
= Interest rate risk

The above risks may affect the Group s Income and expenses, or the value of its financial nstruments The objective of the Group s
management of market risk 1s to mantain this risk within acceptable parameters, white optimising returns Generally, the Group
applies hedge accounting to manage the valatiity in profit and loss arising from market risk

The Group s exposure to and management of these risks (s explained below [t often includes derwvative financial instruments

the uses of which are described 1in note 16C

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK

1) COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The Group ts exposed to the risk of
changes in commodity prices in relation
to1ts purchase of certain raw materials

Al 31 December 2014 the Group had
hedged its exposure to future commaodity
purchases for €197 million (2013 €318
million] with commodity dervatives

MANAGEMENT POLICY AND
HEDGING STRATEGY

The Group uses commodity forward
contracts to hedge against this risk

All commodity forward contracts hedge
future purchases of raw materials and
the contracts are settled either in cash
or by physical delivery

Commodity derivatives are generally
designated as hedging nstruments In

cash flow hedge accounting relations

All commodity forward contracts are done
in Line with approvals from the Global
Commedity Executive which 1s chaired by the
Unitever Chief Supply Chain Officer [CSCO)

SENSITIVITY TO THE RISK

A 10% increase in commodity prices as

at 31 December 2014 would have led to

an €18 million gatn on the commodity
dervatives in the cash flow hedge reserve
(2013 €32 million gainn the cash flow
hedge reservel Adecrease of 10%n
commodity prices on a full-year basis
would have the equal but opposite effect

1] CURRENCY RISK

Currency risk on sales, purchases
and berrowings

Because of Unilever s global reach, it is
subject io the risk that changes in foreign
currency values impact the Group s sales
purchases and borrowings

114 Financial statements

The Group manages currency exposures
within prescribed limits, mainly through the
use of forward foreign currency exchange
contracts

Operaling companies manage foretgn
exchange exposures within prescribed Limits
Local compliance is monitored centrally

As an estimation of the appraximate impact
of the residual risk, with respect to financial
instruments the Group has calculated the
impact of a 10% change n exchange rates
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16B MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK coNTINUED

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK

At 31 December 2014, the unhedged
exposure 1o the Group from companies
holding financial assels and liabiities other
than in their functional currency amounted
to £76 milhion {2013 €44 mullion)

Currency risk on the Group s net
Investments

The Group s alse subject lo exchange risk
inrelation to the translation of the net
investments of its foreign operations into
euros for inclusion in its consolidated
hinancial statements

These netinvestments include Group
financial loans which are monelary items
that {orm part of our net investment in
foreign operations of €70 illien {2013

£0 8 bsllion), of which €4 0 billion 12013 €0]
1s denorminated in GBP In accordance with
IAS 21, the exchange differences on these
financial loans are booked through
reserves

Part of the currency exposure on the

Group s investments is also managed using
net investment hedges with a nominal value
of €2 7 billion (2013 €3 9 billion] Most of
these hedges were US $/€ contracts

At 31 December 2014 the net exposure of
the net investmentsin foreign currencies
amounts to €10 4 biltion [2013 €3 4 billion]

MANAGEMENT POLICY AND
HEDGING STRATEGY

Exchange risks related to the principal
amountls of the US $ and Swss franc
denorminated debt either form part of hedging
relationships themselves or are hedged
through forward contracts

The aim of the Group s approach to
management of currency risk 1s to leave the
Group with no material residual nisk This
aim has been achteved in all years presented

Unilever aims to minimise thts foreign
investment exchange exposure by borrowing
In local currency in the operating comparues
themselves In some locations however the
Group s ability to do this (s inhibited by tocal
reguiations lack of local Liguidity or by local
market conditions

Where the residual risk from these countries
exceeds prescribed limits, Treasury may
decide on a case-by-case basis to actively
hedge the exposure This is done either
through additional borrowings in the related
currency or through the use of forward
foreign exchange contracts

Where local currency berrowings or forward
contracts are used to hedge the currency
nisk in relalion to the Group s net investment
in foreign subsidiaries these relationships
are designated as net investment hedges for
accounting purposes

SENSITIVITY TO THE RISK

A 10% strengtherung of the euro against key
currencies to which the Group 1s exposed
would have led to approximately an
additional €8 million gawn in the income
statement [2013 €4 million gain) A 10%
weakening of the eure against these
currencies would have led te an equal but
opposite effect

A 10% strengiherung of the euro against
all other currencies would have led o a
€946 million negative retranslation effect
(2013 €313 miltion negative retranslation
effect} A 10% weakening of the euro against
thase currencies would have led to a
€1157 millson positive retranslation effect
(2013 €382 mullion positive retranslation
effect] In line with accepted hedge
accounting treatment and our accounting
policy for financial loans, the retranslation
differences would be recognised in equity

1) INTEREST RATE RISK'™

The Group 1s expased to market interest
rate fluctuations onits floating rate debt
Increases in benchmark interest rates
could increase the interest cost of our
floating-rate debt and increase the cost of
future borrowings The Group s abslity to
manage Interest costs also has an impact
on reported results

Taking into account the impact of interest
rate swaps, at 31 December 2014 interest
rates were fixed on approximately 70% of
the expected net debt for 2015 and 67%
for 2016 (87% for 2014 and 79% for 2015

al 31 December 2013)

The average Interest rate on short-term
borrowings in 2014 was 1 2% (2013 1 0%]

Unilever s interest rate management
approach aims for an optimal batance
between fixed and floating-rate interest
rate exposures on expected net debt The
objective of this approach 1 to minimise
annual interest costs after tax and to
reduce volatility

This I1s achweved either by 1ssuing fixed or
floating-rate long-term debt, or by modifying
interest rate exposure threugh the use of
nteresl rate swaps

Furthermore, Unilever has interest rate
swaps {or which cash flow hedge accounting
15 applied

WSee the split in fixed and floating-rate interestin the foltowing table

Unilever Annuat Report and Accounts 2014

Assuming that all other variables remain
constant a 10 percentage point increase

in floating interest rates on a full-year basis
as at 31 December 2014 would have led to
an additional €26 millien of finance costs
(2013 €7 million additignat finance costs)

A 10 percentage point decrease in floating
interest rates on a full-year basis would
have an equal but opposite effect

Assuming that all other variables remain
constant a1 0 percentage point Increase

in floating interest rates on a full-year basis
as at 31 December 2014 would have led to
an additional €37 million credit in equity
from derivatives in cash flow hedge
relationships (2013 €36 million credit)

A 10 percentage point decrease in floating
interest rates on a full-year basis would
have led to an additional €42 million debit 1n
equily from derivatives in cash flow hedge
relationships (2013 €39 million debit]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNILEVER GROUP CONTINUED

16B MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK cONTINUED

The follewing table shows the split in fixed and {loating rate interest exposures, taking into account the impact of interest rate swaps

and Cross-currency swaps

€ million € million
2014 2013
Cash and cash equwvalents 2,151 2285
Current cther financial assets &7 760
Current financial labilities [5,536) [4 ¢10)
Non-current financial Liabilities (7,1864) (7 491)
Net debt (9,9001 (8 458)
0f which
Fixed rate (weighted average amount of fixing for the following year) (7.2971 [7764]
Floating rate 12,603) 1692}
(9,900) (8,456)

16C DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING

The Group does net use derivative financial instruments fer speculative purposes The uses of derivatives and the related values

of derivatives are summarised in the following 1able

€ million € milbon € million € million €million € million
Other Trade Non-
Trade current payables Current current
and other financsal and other tinancial financial
receivables assets liabilities liabitities liabiities Total
31 December 2014 ]
Foreign exchange derivatives
Fair value hedges é - f} - - 5
Cash flow hedges ¢ 28 (3 - - 34
Hedges of net investments tn foreign operations - 3560 - (23] - 333
Hedge accounting not applied 106 (225 144} {196) - (359)
Cross-currency swaps
Hedge accounting not applied - 137 - (58] 7 8
Interest rate swaps -
Farrvalue hedges - - - - 2] (2
Cash flow hedges - - (100} - - nom
Hedge accounting not applied - - - - - -
Commodity contracts
Cash flow hedges - - {15) - - 15
Hedge accounting not applied - - )] - - 4]
121 296 (&4) (277] (73 197
Totalassets 417 L Total babiliies (514} 197
31 December 2013 A b ]
Foreign exchange derivatives
Fair value hedges 2 - i) - - (4)
Cash flow hedges 16 - (15) - - i
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations - i - (69) - (65)
Hedge accounting not applied 48 16 (32 198) - 34
Cross-currency swaps
Hedge accounting not applied - 174 - (32) {(100) 42
Interest rate swaps
Fair value hedges - - - - - -
Cash flow hedges - - (81 - - 141)
Hedge accounting net applied - - - - - -
Commeodity contracts
Cash flow hedges 16 - (2) - - 14
Hedge accounting not applied - - - - - -
82 294 [94) {199) {100 (19)
[Total assets 376 J L Totak iabilities 1395}/ 119 |

WSwaps that hedge the currency risk on intra-group loans and offset C356 milbon wilhin Hedges of net investments in foreign operalions are included within

Hedge Accounting not applied
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16C DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING CONTINUED

MASTER NETTING OR SIMILAR AGREEMENTS

A number of legal entilies within our Group enter into derivative transactions under Internattonal Swap and Derivatives Association
[ISDA) master netting agreements In general, under such agreements the amounts owed by each counter-pariy on a singte day in
respect of all transactions outstanding :n the same currency are aggregated into a single net amount that 1s payable by one party to the
other In certain circumstances such as when a credit event such as a default occurs, all outstanding transactions under the agreement
are terminated, the terrmination value 15 assessed and only a single nel amount 1s payable in seitlement of all transactions

The ISDA agreements do not meet the criteria tor ofisetting the positive and negative values in the consolidated balance sheet
This 1s because the Group does not have any currently legally enforceable night to offset recogmised amounts between vanious Group
and bank affiliates because the right to offset 1s enforceable only on the occurrence of future credit events such as a default

The column Related amounts not set off in the balance sheet - Financial instruments shows the netting impact of our ISDA
agreements, assuming the agreemenis are respected in the relevant jurisdiction

(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS
The following financial assets are subject to offsetting enforceable master netting arrangemenis and similar agreements

Related amounts not set off
In the balance sheet

Cmillion € million € million € million € million € million
Gross amounts of
recognised Net amounts of
Grossamountsof financial liabilities financial assots
recagnised setoffinthe presanted in the Financial  Cashcollateral
As at 31 December 2014 financial assets halance sheet batance sheet Instruments roceived Net amount
Dervative financial assets 773 (358) &17 1248) (24) 147
Asat 2] December 2013

Derivative financial assets 376 - 376 (82 15) 289

(B) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following hinancial liabilities are subjecl to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements

Retated amounts not set off
in the balance sheet

€ mullion € miluon € million € million € million €millon
Gross amaounts of Net amounts of
Gross amounts of recognised financial
recognised financiatlabilities llabilitles
financial setoff inthe presentedin the Financial  Cash collateral
As at 31 December 2014 Liabilities balance sheet balance sheet instr pledged Net amount
Derivabve financial babilities 870 (356) 514 [248) - 268
As at 31 December 2013
Dervative financial liabilities 395 - 395 (82} - 313

17. INVESTMENT AND RETURN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet include deposits, investments in money market funds and highly liquid Investments
To be classified as cash and cash eguivalents, an asset must

« be readily convertible into cash,

= have aninsignificant nisk of changes In value, and

* have a matunity peried of three months or less at acquisition

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement also include bank overdrafts and are recorded at amortised cost

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other financial assets are first recogmsed on the trade date At that point they are classified as
Il held-to-maturity mvestments,

[nl loans and recevables

(i) available-for-sale financial assets or

[ivlfinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNILEVER GROUP coNTINUED

17. INVESTMENT AND RETURN CONTINUED

(1) HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
These are assets with set cash flows and fixed maturities which Unilever intends to hotd to maturity They are held at cosi plus
interest using the eifective interest method, less any impairment

{1t LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

These are assets with an established payment profile and which are not listed on a recognised stock exchange They are imually
recognised ai fair value, which s usually the original invoice amount plus any directly related transaction costs Afterwards, loans
and receivables are carried at amorused cast, less any imparment

{1i1) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Any financial assets not classified as either loans and receivables or financial assets at fair value through profitor loss are
designated as available-for-sale They are initially recognised at fair value, usually the ariginal invoice amount plus any directly
related transaction costs Afterwards, they are measured at fair value with changes being recognised in equity When the
investment is sold or iImpaired the accumulated gains and losses are moved from equity to the income statement Interest and
dividends {rom these assets are recognised in the income statement

(IV) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
These are dervatives and assets that are held for trading Related transaction cosis are expensed as incurred Unless they
form part of a hedging relationship these assets are held at fair value, with changes being recognised n the income statement

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Eachyear, the Group assesses whether there is evidence that financial assets are impaired A significant or prolonged fall in value
below the cost of an asset generally indicates that an asset may be impaired If impaired, financial assets are written down to their
estimated recoverable amount Impairment losses on assets classified as loans and recewvables are recognised in profit and loss
When a later event causes the smpairment losses to decrease the reduction in imparrment loss 15 also recognised in profit and loss
Impairment losses on assels classified as avallable-for-sale are recogrised by moving the loss accurnulated in equity to the income
statement Any subsequent recovery in value of an available-for-sale debt security 1s recognised within profit and loss However,
any subsequent recovery In value of an equity security 1s recognised within equity and 1s recorded at amortised cost

17A FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group s treasury function aims to protect the Group s financial Investments, while maximising returns The Group s cash resources
and other financial assets are shown below

€ mitlion €mitlien € millien € million € million € miltion
Non- Non-
Current current Total Current current Total
Financial assets™™ 2014 2014 2014 03 2013 2013
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand 1.3%0 - 1,390 834 - 834
Short-term deposits with maturity of less than three months 540 - 540 1340 - 1360
Other cash equivalents 221 - 221 91 - 9N
2,151 - 2,151 2285 - 2,285
Other financial assets
Held-to-rmaturity investments 17 72 a9 72 3 75
Loans and receivablest 180 28 208 100 4 104
Available-for-sale financial assets 157 514 Lyal 274 486 760
Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss
Derwvatives 294 - 296 294 - 294
Other 21 101 122 20 12 32
&7 715 1,388 7560 505 1265
Total 2,822 75 3,537 3,045 508 3550

For the purposes of notes 15C and 17A financial assets and Uzbiities exclude trade and other current receivables and trade payables and ather habilities
which are covered in netes 13 and 14 respectively

% Current loans and receivables include short-term deposits with banks with maturities of lenger than three months

@ Current avalable-for-sale hnantial assets include government secunities and A- or higher rated money and capital market instruments Non-current
available-for-sale financial assets predominantly consist of investrments in a number of companies and financial nsututions in Europe india and the US
including €86 million (2013 €84 million] of assels in a trust lo fund benefit obligations in the US [see also note 4B on page 97
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17A FINANCIAL ASSETS CONTINUED

€ milhion € milion
Cash and cash equivalents reconcibiation to the cash flow statement 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents per balance sheet 2,151 2285
Less bank overdrafts (241) (241}
Cash and cash eguivalents per cash flow statemnent 1,910 2044

Approximately €1 7 bilion (or 81%] of the Group s cash and cash equivalents are held in foreign subsidiaries which repatriate
distributable reserves on a regular basis For most countries this s dene through dividends free of tax In a few countries we face
cross-border foreign exchange controls and/or other legal restrictions that inhibit aur ability to make these balances available In any
means for general use by the wider business The amount of cash held In these countries was €452 mitlion (2012 €243 million) The
cashwill generally be invested or held in the relevant country and, given the other capital resources available to the Group, does not
significantly afiect the ability of the Group to meet its cash obligations

178 CREDIT RISK

Credit risk 1s the risk of inancial loss 1o the Group If a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations Additional
infarmation in relation to credit risk on trade recevables is given in note 13 These risks are generally managed by local controllers
Credit risk related to the use of treasury instruments 1s managed on a Group basis This risk arises from transactions with financial
nstitutions involving cash and cash equivalents, depesits and denivative financial instruments The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of financial assets To reduce this risk, Unilever has concentrated its main
activities with a imited number of counter-parties which have secure credit ratings Individual nisk Limiis are set for each counter-
party based on financial position credit rating and past experience Credit imits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored
by the Group s treasury department Netting agreements are also put in place with Unilever s principal counter-parties Inthe case of
a default, these arrangements would allow Unilever to nel assets and Liabilities across transactions with that counter-party To further
reduce the Group s credit exposures on derivative financial instruments, Unilever has collateral agreements with Unilever s principal
counter-parties in relation to derwative financial instruments Under these arrangements, counter-parties are required 1o deposit
securiies and/or cash as a collateral for their obligations in respect of derivative financial instruments At 31 December 2014 the
collateral held by Unitever under such arrangernents amounted to £24 miltion (2013 €% million), of which €24 millien (2013 €5 mitlion)

wasIn cash and €nit(2013 €4 million] was 1n the form of bond securittes The non-cash collateral has not been recognised as an asset
in the Group s balance sheet

Further details in relation to the Group s exposure to credit risk are shown in note 13 and note 16A

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FAIR VALUE RISK

The Group 1s exposed to the risks of changes in fair value of its financial assets and babilities The following table summarises the fair
values and carrying amounts of financial instruments

€ million € million € million € million
Fawr Fawr Carrying Carrying
value value amount amount
Fair values of financial assets and financial Labilities 2014 2013 2014 2013
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,151 2285 2,151 2285
Hetd-to-maturity investments 89 75 8y 75
Loans and recevables 208 104 208 104
Avallable-for-sale financial assets &M 760 Y4l 760
Financial assets at fair value through profit or logs
Derwvatives 296 294 296 294
Gther 122 32 122 32
3,537 3550 3,537 3550
Financial iabilties
Preference shares {108) [114) (68) [68])
Bank loans and overdrafts (1,119) 1067 [1,114) {1,067
Bonds and otherloans 11,417) [10182] 110,573) [9 594)
Finance lease creditors (224) (217) o9 (204}
Derwalives (350) (299 [350) (299)
Other financial Liabilities [418) (2691 (418) {269

13,636) 2128) 12,722} (11 501)

The fair value of trade recewvables and payables is censidered to be equal to the carrying amount of these items due to their short-term
nature The instruments that have a fair value that is different from the carrying amount are classified as Level 2 for both 2013 and 2014
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FAIR VALUE RISK CONTINUED

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The fair values shown above have been classified into three categories depending an the inputs used i1n the valuation technique
The categories used are as follows

* Level | guoted prices for identical instruments,

* level2 directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs, and

* Level 3 inputs which are not based on observable market data

For assets and liabilities which are carried at fair value, the classification of fair value calculations by category 1s summarised below

€ millien € milhion € million € millian € million £ million € million € million
Totalfair Total tair
Level 1 Level 1 Level 2 Level2 Level 3 Level 3 value value
Notes 2014 2013 2014 2m3 2014 2013 2014 2013
Assets at fair vatue
Other cash equivalents VA - - 221 91 - - 221 N
Available-for-sale financial assets  17a 15 8 158 276 498 476 &7 760
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derwvatives® 16C - - 417 37 - - 417 376
Other 17A 1¢ 25 - - 3 7 122 32
Liabities at fair value
Derwvatives®! Wwe - - {514) (395) - - {514} 1395}

Wincludes €121 million (2013 €82 mitlion] derivatives, reported with:n trade receivables thal hedge trading activities
®nctudes €(144) million (2013 €(98]) million] derivatives, reported within trade payables that hedge trading activities

There were no significant changes in classtfication of fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities since 31 December 2013
There were also no significant movernents between the fair value hierarchy classifications since 31 Decermnber 2013

The fair value of trade receivables and payables 1s considered to be equal to the carrying amount of these items due to therr
short-term nature

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets is given betow

€ million € million
Reconciliation of movements in Level 3 valuations 2014 2013
1 January 483 506
Gains and losses recognised in profit and less 13 2
Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income 17 (5)
Purchases and new 1ssues [ 29
Sales and settlements - {49}
Transfersinto Level 3 - -
Transfers out of Level 3 - -
31 December 501 483

SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS USED IN LEVEL 3 FAIR YALUES

The anly indwidually material asset valued using Level 3 techniques 1s a particular unlisted investrment with a carrying value at year end
of €189 miltion (2013 €190 mutlion] A change in one or more of the inputs to reasonably possible alternative assumptrons would not
change fair value sigmificantly

CALCULATION OF FAIR YALUES
The fair values of the financial assets and tiabiblies are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset ar paid to transfer

a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measuremnent date Methods and assumptions used {o estimate
the fair values are consistent with these used in the year ended 31 December 2013

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE

* The fair values of quoted investments falling into Level 1 are based on current bid prices

* The fair values of unquoted available-far-sale financial assets are based on recent trades in Liguid markets, observable market
rates, discounted cash flow analysis and statstical modelling techniques such as Monte Carlo simulation If all stgnificant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument 1s included in Level 2 If one or more of the significant inputs
15 not based on observable market data, the instrument 1s included in Level 3

*+ Derwatves are valued using valuation techmgues with market observable inputs The models iIncorporate various inputs including
the credit quality of counter-parties foreign exchange spot and forward rates, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the
underlying commodities

» For listed securities where the market is not iquid, and for unlisted securities, valuation techniques are used These include the use of
recent arm s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantally the same and discounted cash flow calculations
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FAIR VALUE RISK cONTINUED

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES [FAIR VALUES FOR DISCLOSURE PURPOSES ONLY])
* Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current recewables, bank loans and overdrafts, trade payables and other current
tiabibties have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts due to their short-term nature
¢ The fair vatues of preference shares and listed bonds are based an their market value
» Non-listed bonds, other loans, bank loans and non-current receivables and payables are based on the net present value of the
anticipated future cash flows associated with these instruments using rates currently available for debt an similar terms credit risk

and remaining matunties

» Fairvalues for finance lease creditors have been assessed by reference to current market rates for comparable leasing arrangemenis

POLICIES AND PROCESSES USED IN RELATION TO THE CALCULATION OF LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUES
Assets valued using Level 3 valuation techniques are primarily made up of long-term cash receivables and unlisted investments
Valuation technigues used are speciiic te the circumstances involved Unlisted investments include €134 mitlion (2013 €132 million)
of investments within Unilever Ventures Limited These investments are governed and adrministered by a dedicated management
team The remaining assets In this category are held across several locations and vatuations are managed {ocally with oversight

from corporate management

19. PROVISIONS

Prowvisions are recognised where a legal or constructive abligation exists at the balance sheet date, as a result of a past event
where the amount of the abligation can be reliably estimated and where the outflow of economic benefit 1s probable

€ million € million
Provisions 2014 2013
Due within one year 418 379
Due after one year 916 892
Total provisions 1,334 1271
€ milion € mitlion € mithion € miltion € millton
Disputed
Movements during 2014 Restructuring Legal indirect taxes Other Total
1 January 2014 236 167 6846 182 1,271
Income statement
Charges 216 a9 404 &7 756
Releases (58) (18) (328) (301 [424)
Utilisation (1901 n2) 154} 120 (27¢)
Currency translation n 2 21 6 17
31 Decemnber 2014 215 228 705 185 1,334

The provision for legal includes provisions related to compeittion cases [see also note 20

The prowision for disputed indirect taxes 15 comprised of 3 number of small disputed items The largest elements relate to disputes
with Brazilian authorities Due to the nature of the disputes the timing of pravision utilisation and any cash outflows 1s uncertain

The majority of disputed items attract an interest charge

No indmdual items within the remaining provisions are significant Unilever expects that the issues relating to these restructuring,
legal and other provisions will be substantively resolved within five years
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20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assels held under finance leases are initially recognised at the lower of fair value at the date of commencement of the lease and the
present value of the minimum lease payments Subseqguent to imtial recogmition these assets are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy relating to that specific asset The corresponding liability 1s included in the balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation Lease payments are appartioned between finance costs In the incame statement and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the hiability

Lease payments under operating leases are charged to the iIncome statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
Contingent Liabilities are either possible gbligations that will probably not require a transfer of economic benefits, or present

obligations that may but probably will not, require a transfer of economic benefits It 1s not appropriate to make provisions for
contingent liakiliies, but there 1s a chance that they will result in an obligation in the future

€ millron € millien € million € million € million € million

Future Future

minlmum minimum
lease Finance Present lease Finance Present
payments cost vatue payments cost value
Long-term finance lease commitments 2004 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
Buildings®! 283 102 181 290 103 187
Plant and machinery 22 4 18 22 5 V7
305 106 199 312 108 204

The commitments fall due as follows

Within 1 year 25 12 13 25 10 15
Laterthan 1year but not later than 5 years 108 36 72 107 34 n
Later than Syears 172 58 114 180 &2 18
305 106 199 312 108 204

W All leased land 15 classified as operating leases
The table below shows the net book value of property plant and equipment under @ number of finance lease agreements

€ mittion € mallion €mllion

Plantand
Net book value Buildings  equipment Total
Cost 218 148 346
Accumulated deprecialion (691 n24) (193)
31 December 2014 149 24 173
Cost 21 141 352
Accumulated depreciation [57] msl [174]
31 December 2013 154 22 174

The Group has sublet part of the leased properties under finance leases Future minimum sublease payments of €38 million
2013 €30 million) are expected to be recewved

€ milbion € million

Long-term operating lease commitments 2014 2013
Land and bulldings 1,903 1,328
Plant and machinery 424 459
2,327 1787

Cmiltion € milbon €mithion € mullion

Other Other

Operating Operating commut- commit-

leases leases ments ments

Operating tease and other commitments fall due as foltows: 2014 2013 2014 2013
Within 1 year 390 335 1,034 904
Later than 1year but not later than 5 years 1M 913 950 778
Laterthan Syears 764 539 4 25
2,327 1787 2,025 1709
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20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES coNTINUED

The Group has sublet part of the leased properties under operating leases Future minimum sublease payments of £7 million
(2013 €12 mullion) are expected to be received

Other commitments principally comprise commitments under contracts to purchase materials and services They do not include
commitments for capital expenditure which are reported in note 10 on page 105

Contingent Liabilities anse in respect of Liigation against group companies, Investigattans by competition regulatory and fiscal

authorities and obligations ansing under environmental legistation The estimated total of such contingent liabitities at .
31 December 2014 was €1,406 million (2013 €719 rmillion] of which €1,250 rullion (2013 €561 mullion] represents the maximum !
exposure related to assessments in Brazil regarding a local corporate reorganisation in 2001 as explained further below The Group

does not believe that any of these contingent liabilities will result in a material loss

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Group is involved from time to time 1n legal and arbitration proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business

As previously disclosed along with other consurmer products companies and retail customers, Unilever 1s involved 1n a number af ongoing
investigations by nationat competition authorities These proceedings and investigations are at various stages and cancern a variety of
product markets |n the second half of 2013 Unilever recognised provisions of €120 million related to these cases, disclosed within
non-core items n the second half of 2014 these provisions were increased by a further €30 midlion

Ongoing compliance with competition laws is of key iImportance to Unilever It1s Unulever s policy to co-operate fully with competition
authorities whenever questions erissues arise Inaddition the Group continues to reinforce and enhance our internal competition law
compliance programme on an ongoing basis As disclosed above, where specific 1ssues arise provisions are made and contingent
Liabiliies disclosed to the extent appropriate

Ouring 2004 1n Brazil and in cormmon with many other businesses operating in that country one of our Brazilian subsidiaries received a
notice af infringement from the Federal Revenue Service The notice alleges that a 2001 reorgamisalion of cur local corporate structure
was underlaken without valid business purpose The 2001 rearganisation was comparabte with restructurings done by many companies
in Brazi The original dispute was resolved in the courts in the Group s favour However, i 2013 a new assessment was raised in respect of
a similar matter Addiionally during the course of 2014 another notice of infringement was 1ssued based on the same grounds argued in
the previous assessments The Group believes that the likelihood of a successful challenge by the tax autharities s low, hawever, there can
be no guarantee of success in court

Inmany markets there is a high degree of cornplexity involved in the local tax regimes In cammon with other businesses operating in this
environment, the Group 1s required to exercise jJudgement In the assessment of any potential exposures in these areas Where appropriate
the Group will make provisions or disclose contingencies in accordance with the relevant accounting principles

21. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Business combnations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the acquisition date, which 1s the date at
which control s transferred to the Group

Goodwill 1s measured at the acquisition date as the fair value of consideration transferred, plus non-controlling interests and the fair
value of any previously held equity interests less the net recognised amount [which 1s generally fair valuel of the identifiable assets
and liabilitres assurned Consideration translerred does notinclude amounts related to settement of pre-existing relationships
Such amounts are generally recognised in net profit

Transachian costs are expensed as Incurred, other than those incurred in relation to the 1ssue of debt or equity securities Any contingent
consideration payable 1s measured at fair value ai the acquisition date Subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent
consideration are recognised in net profit

Changes in ownership that de not result (n a cthange of control are accounted for as equity transactions and therefore do not have
any impact on goodwill The difference between consideration and the non-contrelling share of net assets acquired 1s recogrised
within equity

2014

On 16 January 2014 the Group signed an agreement to sell its Rayal pasta brand in the Philippines to RFM Corparation, for
US $48 multion

On 7 March 2014 the Group acquired a 55% equity stake in the Qinyuan Group, a leading Chinese water purification business for an
undisclosed amount

On 1 April 2014 the Group completed the sale of its meat snacks business including the Bifi and Peperarni brands, to Jack Link s
far an undisclosed amount
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21. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS CONTINUED

On 30 June 2014 the Group completed the sale of its global Ragu and Bertolli pasta sauce business to Mizkan Group for a total cash
consideration of approximaiely US $2 15 illion

On 10 July 2014 the Group sold its Slim Fast brand to Kaines Capital for an undisclosed amount Unilever will retain a minority stake in
the business

On 2 December 2014 the Group acquired Talent Gelato & Sorbetio for an undisclosed amount

0n 22 December 2014 the Group announced the purchase of the Camay brand globally and the Zest brand outside of North America and
the Caribbean from The Procter & Gamble Company The transactien, for an undisclosed amount, 1s expected to close during the first
half of 2015 subject to necessary regulatory approvais

2013

Gn 3 January 2013 the Group announced that it has signed a defiritive agreement to sell its global Skippy business to Hormel Foods
for a total cash consideration of approximatety US $700 million The transaction completed on 31 January 2013 excluding the poruon
operated out of China, which completed on 26 November 2013

On 8 April 2013 Unilever Czech Republic signed an agreement to acquire the SAVO and other consumer brands from Bochemie
This completed on 1 July 2013

On 26 July 2013 Unilever signed an agreement to sell its Unipro bakery & industrial oils business in Turkey to AAK for an undisclosed
sum This completed on 2 September 2013

On 6 September 2013 Unilever announced that it has entered into a definitive agreement to acquire T2 a premiwum Australian tea
business, for an undisclosed amount This completed on 3 October 2013

On 1 October 2013 the Group completed the sale of its Wish-Bone and Western dressings brands to Pinnacle Foods Inc for a total cash
consideration of approximately US $580 mitlion

On 19 November 2013 Unilever signed an agreement fer the sate of its Soft & Beautdul, TCB and Pro-Line Coemb-Thru brands to
Strength of Nature for an undisclosed amount The sale excludes TCB s business in Africa

The table below shows the impact of all disposals during the year on the Group The results of disposed businesses are included in the
consalidated financial statements up to their date of dispesal

€ million € million Cmiluen

Disposals 2014 2013 2012
Goodwiil and intangible assets 229 189 29
Other non-current assets 1046 43 35
Current assels 50 59 38
Trade creditars and other payables 151 (8 (2]
Net assets sold 380 283 100
[Gainlfloss on recyeling of currency retranslation on disposat (78) - -
Profit on sale attributable to Unilever 1,392 733 n?
Consideration 1,696 1,016 217
Cash 1727 1030 229
Cash balances of businesses sold (4) - -
Financial assets, cash deposits and financial Liabilities of businesses sold - - (9}
Non-cash items and deferred consideration (27) 4] (3}

The following table sets out the effect of acquisiions in 2014, 2013 and 2012 on the consclidated balance sheet The fair values currently
established for all acquisitions made in 2014 are provisional The goodwill arising on these transactions has been capitalised and 15 subject
to an annual review for impasrment (or more frequently if necessaryl in accordance with our accounting policies as set out in note % on

page 103 Any impairment s charged to the Income statement as it arises Detailed infarmation retating to goodwilt 1s given in note ¢ on
pages 103 to 105

€million € million € million
Acquisitions 2014 2003 2012
Net assets acquired 240 S5 10
Goodwill arising in subsidiartes 184 62 10
Consideration 424 17 20
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22. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and groups of assets and liabilities which cornprise disposal groups are classified as held for sale when all of
the following criteria are met a decision has been made o sell the assets are available for sale immediately, the assets are being

aclively marketed, and a sale has been agreed or 1s expected to be concluded within 12 months of the balance sheet date

Immedately prior to classification as held for sale the assets or groups of assets are remeasured in accordance with the Group s
accounting policies Subsequently assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are valued at the lower of book value or

fair value less disposal costs Assets held for sale are not depreciated

€mitlion € million
2014 2013
Groups of assets held for sale
Goodwill and intangibles 12 3
Property plant and equipment 4 24
Inventories 1 1
¥rade and other receivables 1 1
Other 5 3
23 32
Non-current assets held for sale
Property plant and equipment 24 40
Liabilities held for sale
Liabilittes associated with assets held for sale 1 4

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Arelated party 1s a person or entity that 1s related to the Group These include both people and entities that have, or are subject to

the influence or control of the Group

The following retated party balances existed with asscciate or joint venture businesses at 31 December

€ million E million
Related party balances 2014 2013
Trading and other balances due from joint ventures 105 130
Trading and other balances due from/[tol associates - -

JOINT VENTURES

Sales by Unilever group cempantes to Unilever Jerénimo Martins and Pepsi Lipton joint ventures were £106 million and €51 million in
2014 (2013 €92 million and €51 million] respectively Sales from Unilever Jeronimo Martins and from Pepsi Lipton joint ventures to
Unilever group companies were €46 million and €54 mullion in 2014 (2013 €43 miluon and €52 million] respectively Balances owed by/
(to] Unulever Jeronimeo Martins and Pepsi Lipten joint ventures at 31 December 2014 were £112 mullien and €£6) millron (2013 €117 millien

and €[4] million} respectively

ASSOCIATES

Langholm Camital Partners invesis in private European companies with above-average longer-term growth prospects Langholm
Capital Il was launched 1n 2009 Unilever has invested E35 million in Langholm [, with an outstanding commitment at the end of 2014

of €40 mullion 12013 €42 mullion]
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24. PURCHASE OF ESTATE SHARES CONVERTIBLE TO UNILEVER PLC SHARES IN 2038

The first Viscount Leverhulme was the founder of the company which became Unilever PLC When he died in 1925, he left in bus will
alarge number of PLC shares in various trusts When the will trusts were varied in 1983 the interests of the beneficiaries of his will
were also preserved Four classes of special shares were created in Margarine Union [1930) Limited a subsidiary of PLC

One of these classes of shares | Estate shares | has rights that enable 1t to be converted at the end of the year 2038 to 70 875,000
Unilever PLC ordinary shares Before this date, these shares have no rights to dividends nor do they allow early conversion There
are 20,000 Estate shares with a nominal value of £0 01 each

On 19 May 2014 Unilever PLC purchased all of the Estate shares for a cash consideration of £715 million plus transaction costs The
resulting loss of £880 mitlion, being the difference between the nominal value and the amount paid, has been recorded In retained
earnings Unilever intends to cancet these shares

25. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

This note includes all amounits paid to the Group s auditors, whether in relation to their audit of the Group or otherwise

Following a competitive tender process KPMG LLP and KPMG Accountants NV [together referred to as KPMG”) were appointed as the
Group s auditor for the year ended 31 December 2014 at the Annual General Meetings on 14 May 2014 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
and PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants NV [together referred to as PricewaterhouseCoopers | served as Group auditor for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 Remuneration of the Group s auditor 1n respect of 2014 was payable to KPMG while in respect
of 2013 and 2012 remuneration was payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers

During the year the Group including its subsidiaries] obtaned the fellowing services from the Group auditor and its associates

€ million € million € million
2014 2013 202
Fees payable to the Group s auditor for the audit of the consolidated and parent
campany accounts of Unilever NV and Urilever PLC 5 [ 7
Fees payable to the Group s auditer for the audit of accounts of subsidiaries of
Unilever NV and Unilever PLC pursuant te legislation®! 9 10 11
Total statutery audit fees® 14 16 18
Audit-related assurance services —tdt 3 2
Other taxation advisory services —ah 1 1
Services relating te corporate finance transactions - - -
Other assurance services W - -
All other non-audi services =l 1 -
WOf which

€1 million was payable ta KPMG Accountants NV (PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants NV 2013 €1 million and 2012 €1 miltion] and €4 million was
payable to KPMG LLP [PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 2013 €5 mullion 2012 €46 mitlion]

kIComprises fees payable to the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative lor audit work on statutory
financial statements and Group reporting returns of subsidiary companies in 2014 {2013 and 2012 PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited)

'd Amaunt payable to KPMG in respect of services supplied ta associated pension schemes was less than €1 million individually and 1n aggregate
[PricewaterhouseCoopers 2013 €1 million and 2012 €1 millign)

14 Amounts paid in relation to each lype of service are less than £1 million individually and in aygregate

26. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of condttions that existed at the end of the reporting period
the impact of these events is adjusted within the financial statements Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of & material
size or nature are disclosed below

On 20 January 2015 Unilever announced a quarterly dividend with the 2014 fourth quarter results of €0 2850 per NV ordinary share and
€0 2177 per PLC ordinary share

On 3 February 2015 Unilever issued a €750 rnillion G 50% fixed rate bond which wilt mature in seven years
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27. PRINCIPAL GROUP COMPANIES %

QOwnership
AND NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 6’"{6 ChieSA )
nilever Chile
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 —
Fell C d
The companies tisted below and on page 130 are those which Unilever Services tHe Fei) Co Limite 2
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the amount France
of profit and assets shown in the Unilever Group financial 99 Unilever France d
statements The Directors consider that those companies not Germany
Listed are not sigrficant in relation to Unitever as a whele Maizena Grundsiucksverwaltung
GmbH & Co OHG g
Fullinformation as required by Articles 2 379 and 2 414 of Ptanni GmbH & Co OHG Stavenhagen d
the Dutch Cwil Code has been filed by Unilever NV with the g:lteze: geu:sc:{ang Emm GrmbH :
Commercial Registry in Rotterdam In this filing a list of Dutch Un:l:v:r Dgzlzzhl::d Immobgmen Leasing
companies has been included for which NV has issued a GmbH & Co OHG h
declaration of assumption of Liability in accordance with Article Unilever Deulschland Produktions GrbH & Co QHG d
2403 of the Duteh Civil Code Unilever Deutschland iPR GmbH & Co OHG d
Greece
Particulars of PLC group companies and other significant A
holdings as required by the UK Companies Act 2006 will be Elars Unilever Hellas 5 2
annexad to the next Annual Return of Unilever PLC India
67 Hindustan Unilever Ltd ¥ b
Unless otherwise indicated, the companies are incorporated and indonesia
principally operate in the countries under which they are shown 85  PT Unilever Indonesia Thk d
Italy
The aggregate percentage of equity capital directly or indirectly Unilever ltaly Holdings Srl a
held by NV or PLC 1s shown in the margin, except where it 15 100% Japan
Allthese percentages are rounded to the nearest whole number Unilever Japan K K a
The percentages of Unilever s shareholdings held either directly Mexico
or indirectly by NV and PLC are identified In the tables according Unilever de MexicoS deR L de€V d
to the following code The Netherlands
Mixhold BV d
NV 100% a Unilever Finance International BY a
PLC 100% b Unilever N v
NV 55% PLC 45% ¢ Unilever Nederland BY a
NV 65%, PLC 35% d UNUS Holding BV c
NV 15% PLC 85% e Poland
:¥ :j?; gil:lé gg;f;: ; Unilever Polska S A b
o, o
NV 66%, PLC 34% h Russia
NV 6% PLC $4% | 000 Unilever Rus f
Singapore
Due to the inclusion of certain partnerships in the consolidated Unilever Asia Private Limited a
group financial statements of Unilever para 264(b] of the German South Africa
trade law grants an exemption from the duiy to prepare inddual 74 Unilever South Africa [Pty] Limited e
statutary financial statements and management reports in Spain
accordance with the requirements for imited Liability companies Unilever Espaiia S A a
and to have these audited and published Sweden
GROUP COMPANIES Unilever Sverige AB a
Switzerland
Unilever Americas Supply Chain Comnpany AG a
% Quwnership Unilever Finance International AG a
Argentina Unilever Supply Chain Company AG a
Unilever de Argenting 5 A d Unilever Schweiz GmbH a
Australia
Thailand
Unilever Australia Ltd b Unilever Thar Trading Ltd d
Belgium Turkey
Unilever Belgium NV/SA a 99  Unilever Sanay ve Ticaret Turk A S, d
B;?l‘e'jer Brasi Lida W As at 31 December 2014 Unilever PLC directly hetd 1114 370 148 INR 1 00
ordinary shares of Hindustan Unilever Limited
Canada W See Basis of consolidation in nole 1 on page 88
Unitever Canada In¢ d
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27. PRINCIPAL GROUP COMPANIES
AND NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

% Ownership

United Kingdom
Unilever UK Ltd 1
Unilever PLCM

Unilever U K Holdings Ltd
Unilever UK & CN Holdings Ltd

United States of America
Alberto - Culver USA Inc
Conopco Inc

Unilever Capital Carporation
Unilever Unuted States, Inc

nAhr NN

"See Basis of consolidalion in note 1.on page 88

Joint ventures

% Ownership

Portugal
55 Unilever Jeronirme Martins Lda b

United States of America
50  Pepsi/Lipten Partnership c
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In addition, we have revenues either from our own operations

or atherwise in the following locations Albania, Algena, Andorra,
Angola, Antigua, Armenia Austria, Azerbayan Bahamas Bahrain,
Bangladesh, Barbados, Belarus Belize Benin, Bolivwa Bosnia and
Herzegovina Botswana, Bruner, Bulgaria, Burkina Faso, Burunds,
Cambedia, Cameroon, Cape Verde, Central African Republic, Chad,
Colombia, Comaros, Congo, Costa Rica, Céile d ivoire Croatia, Cuba,
Cyprus Czech Republic, Democratic Republic of Conga, Denmark
Dpboutt Derminica Dominican Republic, Ecuador Egypt, EL
Salvador, Equatorial Guinea Errtrea, Estorta Ethiopia, Fip Finland,
French Guiana, Gabon Gambia Georgia, Ghana, Grenada
Guadeloupe, Guatermnala, Guinea, Guinea-Bissau, Guyana, Haiti,
Honduras, Hong Kong, Hungary Iceland Iran, Iraq, Ireland, Israel,
Jamaica Jordan, Kazakhstan, Kenya, Kinbati Kuwait, Kyrgyzstan,
Lao People s Democratic Republic, Latwia, Lebanon Lesotho,
Liberia, Libya, Liechtenstein Lithuania, Luxembourg, Macao,
Macedonia Madagascar, Malawi, Malaysia Mal), Malta, Martinigue,
Mauritarwa, Mauritius, Micrenesia [Federated States of] Moldova
[Repubtic of), Monace, Mongolta, Mantenegre, Morocco,
Mozambigue Myanmar, Namibia, Nepal, New Zealand, Nicaragua,
Niger, Nigeria, Norway, Oman, Pskistan, Palay, Palestine, Panama,
Papua New Gutnea, Paraguay, Peru, Philippines, Portugal, Qatar,
Romania Rwanda, Saint Kitts and Nevis Saint Lucia, Saint Vincent
and the Grenadines, Samoa, San Marino, Saudi Arabia, Senegal,
Serbig, Seycheltes, Sierra Leone, Slovakia, Slovenia, Solomon
Islands, Somalia, South Korea South Sudan, $n Lanka, Sudan,
Suriname, Swaziland, Syria, Taiwan, Tajikistan, Tanzania, Timor-
Leste, Togo, Tonga, Trinidad & Tobago, Tunisia, Turkmenistarn,
Uganda Ukraine, United Arab Emirates Uruguay, Uzbekistan
Vanuatu Venezuela, Vietnarmn, Yemen Zambia and Zimbabwe
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COMPANY ACCOUNTS
UNILEVER NV

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER

€ million € million

2014 2013

Intangible assets 1,217 131
Investments in subsidiarias 29,240 28 381
Debtors due after more than one year 782 -
Total non-current assets 31,239 29492
Debtors due within one year 4,462 4960
Deferred taxation - 19
Cash at bank and i hand 5 3
Total current assets 4,467 4,982
Liabilities due within one year (24,1811 [24 561)
Net current assets/[Labibities) [21,714) [19579)
Total assets less current labilittes 9,525 10113
Liabilities due after more than ene year 864 1865
Provisions for Liabilities and charges (excluding pensions and simitar obligations) 75 97
Net pension Liability 17 100
Capntal and reserves 8,469 8,051
Called up share capital 275 275
Share premium account 20 20
Legal reserves 146 14
Other reserves [3,325) [3,237)
Profit retained 11,483 10977
Total capital employed . 9,525 10113
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

€ million € million

2014 2013

Income from fixed investments after taxation 2,064 1558
Other income and expenses 157 124
Profit for the year 2,221 1482

For the information required by Article 2 392 of the Dutch Civil Code, refer to pages 135 and 136 Pages 132 to 134 are part of the notes

to the Unilever NV company accounts

The company accounts of Urilever NV are included in the conselidated accounts of the Unilever Group Therefore, and in accordance
with Article 2 402 of the Dutch Cvil Code, the profit and loss account enly reflects the income from fixed investments after taxation and
cther income and expenses after taxes Under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 1 [revised 1996) Cash Flow Statements [FRS 1i
a cash flow statement s not included as the cash flows are included in the consolidated cash flow statement of Unilever Group
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY ACCOUNTS
UNILEVER NV

ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The company accounts of Unilever NV comply in all material
respects with legislation in the Netherlands As allowed by Article
23621 of the Dutch Civil Code, the company accounts are
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom accaunting
standards unless such standards conflict with the Cwil Code in
the Netherlands which would in such case prevail

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention
unless otherwise indicated, in accordance with the accounting
potictes set out below which have been consistently applied

ADOPTION OF FRS 101 IN 2015

In 2012 the FRC being the standard setting body in the UK,
published FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framewerk which i1s
avallable to qualifying entities that prepare their annual report
and accounts under EU adopted IFRS [International Financial
Reporting Standards] This outlines a reduced disclosure
framework available to qualifying entities and all UK entities will
be required to adept this or an alternative standard in 2015

Unilever NV intends to prepare (ts accounts under FRS 101 for
the first time in 2015 The consolidated accounts for the Group will
continue to be prepared under full IFRS The Board considers that
It 15 in the best interests of the Group for Unilever NV to adopt
FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

A shareholder or shareholders holding in aggregate 5% or more
of the total allotted shares in Unilever NV may serve objections to
the use of the disclosure exemptions on Unilever NV, inwriting,
1o Its registered office (Weena 455, PC Box 760 3000 DK
Rotterdam, The Netherlands) not later than 30 June 2015 and,

If so receved, Unilever NV may not use these disclosure
exemptions

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies are as follows

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are amortised in the profit and loss account over
their expected useful lives of up to a maximum of 20 years These
assets are held at cost less accumulaied amartisation They are
subject to review for impairment in accordance with United
Kingdom Financial Reporting Standard 11 Impairment of Fixed
Assets and Goodwill [FRS 11] Any impairment 1s charged to the
profit and loss account as it arises

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Shares in group companies are stated at cost less any amounts
written off to reflect a permanent impairment Any impairment

1s charged to the profit and loss account as it arises In
accordance with Article 2 385 & of the Dutch Civil Cede, Unilever
NV shares held by Unilever NV subsidiaries are deducted irom
the carrying value of those subsidiaries This differs irom the
accounting treatment under UK GAAP, which would require these
amaunts to be included within investments in subsidiaries

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

NV accounting policies under United Kingdom generally accepted
accounting principles {UK GAAP] namely FRS 25 Financtal
Instruments Presentation FRS 26 Financial Instruments
Measurernent and FRS 29 Financial Instruments Disclosures
are the same as the Unilever Group s accounting policies under
IFRS namely 1AS 32 Financial Instruments Presentatian, |AS 39
Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement and
IFRS7 Financial Instruments Disclosures
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The policies are set out under the heading Capttal and funding
In note 15 to the consolidated accounts on pages 109 and 110
NVis taking advantage of the exemption for not providing atl the
hinancial instruments disclosures, because |[FRS 7 disclosures
are given In note 15 to note 18 Lo the consolidated accounts on
pages 109 to 123

DEFERRED TAXATION

Full pravision 1s made for deferred taxation on atl significant
timing differences arising from the recognstion of items for
taxation purposes in different perieds from those in which they
are included In NV accounts Full provision 1s made at the rates
of tax prevailing at the year end unless future rates have been
enacted or substantively enacted Deferred tax assets and
Liabilities have not been discounted

OWN SHARES HELD

Own shares held by NV are accounted for in accordance with
Dutchtaw and UK GAAP, nametly FRS 25 Financial Instruments
Presentation All differences between the purchase price of the
shares held to satisfy options granted and the proceeds receved
for the shares, whether on exercise or lapse, are charged io other
reserves Inrespect to option plans disclosures are given in note
4C to the consolidated accounts on pages 98 and 99

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Unilever NV has accounted for pensions and similar benefits
under the United Kingdom Financial Reporting Standard 17
Retirement benefits (FRS 17] The eperating and financing costs
of defined benefit plans are recognised separately in the profit
and loss account, service costs are systematically spread over
the service lives of employees, and financing costs are recogmsed
In the periods in which they arise Vanations from expected costs,
arising from the experience of the plans or changes in actuarial
assumpuions are recogrntsed immediately in equity The costs of
indvidual events such as past service benefit enhancements,
settlements and curtailments are recognised immediately in the
profitand loss account The biabilities and, where applicable the
assets of defined benefit plans are recognised at fair value in the
balance sheet The charges to the profit and loss account for
defined contribution plans are NV contributtons payable and

the assets of such plans are not included in NV s balance sheet

DIVIDENDS

Under Financial Reporting Standard 21 Events after the Balance
Sheet Date [FRS 21] proposed dividends do not meet the
definition of a bability until such ime as they have been approved
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting Therefore, we do
not recogmise a liability in any period for dividends that have been
proposed but will not be approved until after the balance sheet
date This holds for external dividends as well as intra-group
dividends paid to the parent company

TAXATION

Unilever N V together with certain of Its subsidiaries is part of a
tax group for Dutch corporate income tax purposes Unilever NV
15 the head of the fiscal umty The members of the fiscal unity are
jointly and severally Liable for any taxes payable by this group The
external payable to or recewvable from the Duteh Tax Authorities,
15 only included in the books of Unilever NV and this amount
relates to the fiscal umity comprising all entities except for
Unilever Nederland Holdings BV, Univest Company BV and
Unilever Insurances NV The amounts for the other entities are
settled between Unilever NV and these entities via intercompany
transactions
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PROVISIONS

Provisions are recegnised where a legal or constructive abligation
exisis at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event where
the amount of the obligaiton can be reliably estimated and where
the outflow of economic benefit 1s probable Provisions are
measured on the basis of the best estimate of the amounts
required to settle the obligations at the balance sheet date Unless
indicated otherwise, provisions are stated at the face value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the abligations

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee centracts to
guarantee the indebtedness of sther companies within its group,
the company considers these te be insurance arrangements and
accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the
guarantee contract as a contingent Lability until such time as 1t
becomes probable that the Cornpany will be required to make a
payment under the guarantee

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
€ million € million
2014 2043

1 January 1,IM 1010

Additions® 109 398

Decreases? (108} -

Amariisation {951 97
31 Decemnber 1217 1,31

“The increase and decrease In intangible assets relates to the transfer of the
econcrmuc awnershup of trademark rights

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

€millbon € million

2014 2013
1 January 28,381 28 400
Additions® 859 10
Decreases - [29]
31 December 29,240 28381

BIThe increase relates 1¢ the investment in shares in a group company
In respect 1o the bist of group companies disclosures are given in note
27 to the consoldated actounts on pages 129 and 130

DEBTORS
£million € million
2014 013
Due within one year
Loans ta group compantes' 3,801 3120
Other amounts owed by group companies!d 548 1754
Other 78 Bé
Taxation 35 -

4,462 4,960

Due after more than one year
Loans to group companies’ 782 -
782 -

I Amounts owed by group companies include balances with several group
companies which are interest bearing at market inlerest rates and are
unsecured and repayable on demand
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CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND
There was no cash at bank and 1in band for which payment notice
was required at either 31 December 2014 or 31 December 2013

LIABILITIES

€mllion € million

2014 2013
Due wathin one year:
Other amounts owed to group companies®™ 20,623 21593
Loans from group companiesh! 1,775 1753
Bonds and other loans 3,777 1044
Taxation and social security - 15
Other 206 196

246,181 24 56

Due after more than one year

Bonds and other loans 789 1780
Accruals and deferred income 7 17
Preference shares é8 48

864 1865

W Amounts owed to group Companies include balances with several group
companies which are interest bearing at market interest rates and are
unsecured and repayable on demand

Creditors due after five years amount to £68 million
(2013 €68 million] [Article 2 375 2 of the Dutch Civil Code)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Crmilbon € million
2014 2013
Company accounts Unilever NV 8,469 8051

Unilever Group shareholders equity 13,651 14344

The equity of Unilever Group €13,651 melbon [2013 €14,344 miltion}
includes the equity of the parent Umiever NV €8,44% mitiion

[2013 €8,051 mullion), the equity of parent Unilever PLC

£1,247 mullien [2013 £2,065 million) The remaining difference
arises from recognising investments in subsidiaries in the NV
accounts at cost less any amounts written off to reflect a
permanent impairment, not eliminating intra-group balances and
transactions and not performing other consolidation procedures
which are performed for the Unitever Group financial statements

ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

The called up share capital amounting to €275 mullion consists

of 1714,727 700 NV ardinary shares and 2,400 NV ordinary special
shares These special shares numbered 1to 2 400 are held by

a subsidiary of NV and a subsidiary of PLC each holding 50%
Further details are given in note 15A to the consolidated accounts
on page 110 153,681,322 2613 152,979 295} of the ordinary
shares are held by Un:lever NV [see disclosure Other reserves |
and 247,675 (2013 48 171) ordinary shares are held by other

group companies

SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

The share premium shown in the balance sheet 1s not available
for the issue of bonus shares and for repayment witheut incurring
withhotding tax payable by Unilever NV
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY ACCOUNTS
UNILEVER NV CONTINUED

LEGAL RESERVE

In 2006 the NV ordinary shares were split in the ratio 3to 1 and
at the same time the share capital, previously denominated in
Dutch guilders, was converted into euros Due to rounding the
new nominal value per share differs from the value expressed
in Dutch guilders As a result, the reporied share capital issued
at 31 December 2008 was €16 mitlion lower than n 2005

OTHER RESERVES
€mltlon  Crrillion
2014 2013
1 January [3,237) (3 3301
Change during the year la8| 93
31 December (33251 3,237

Unilever NV holds 153 681,322 (2013 152 979,295) of its own
ordinary shares These are included in other reserves

PROFIT RETAINED

Cmillion € mslion

2014 2013
1 January 10,977 10 872
Profit for the year 2,221 1682
Duadends 1,7871  (1638)
Realised profit/lloss) on shares/certificates held
to meet employee share options 44 50

Other charges 2 1
31 December 11,483 10,977

Unilever NV has approved the waiver by one of its subsidiaries of
dividends receivable of €547 million in 2014 The profits for the
year (in that subsidary are reduced by this armount

Unilever NV has approved a transfer of assets being a receivable
amounting to €2,929 million through a gift from a subsidiary of
Unilever NV 1o a subsidiary of Unilever PLC

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
(EXCLUDING PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS)

Cmilllon € muluon

2014 2013

Deferred taxation 62 84
Other provisions 13 13
75 97

Of which due within one year ? g

At the balance sheet date, Unilever NV has unused tax credits
amounting to €300 million (2013 €267 million] available for offset
against future tax profits Deferred tax assets have not been
recogmised for an amount af €300 mullion (2013 €247 million] as
it 15 not probable that there will be {uture taxable profits against
which the credits will be utiised

NET PENSION LIABILITY
Cmilbon € million
2014 203
Funded retirement [benefiti/lability 8 )
Unfunded retirement Liability 109 1M
117 100

In respect of the key assumptions for the Netheriands, disclosures
are given 1n note 4B to the consolidated accounts an pages 93 to 98
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

NV has rssued joint and several liabibty undertakings, as defined
in Article 2 403 of the Dutch Civil Code, for almost all Dutch group
companies These written undertakings have been filed with the
office of the Company Registry in whose area of jurisdiction the
group company concerned has Its registered office

Contingent Liabilities are not expected to give nise to any material
loss They include guarantees given for group companies and joint
guarantees with Unilever PLT and Unilever United States, relating
to the long-term debt and commercial paper issued by Unilever
PLC and/or Unilever Capital Corporation Inc The fair value of such
guarantees was not significant in either 2014 or 2013 The guarantees
ssued to other companies were unmatertal

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS
For details of the remuneration of the auditors please refer to
nots 25 on page 128

PROFIT FOR THEYEAR
€million € millicn
2014 013
Company accounts Unilever NV 2,221 1,682
Unitever Group excluding non-centroliing interest ~ §,171 4842

The net profit of Unilever Group of €5,171 mullion {2013 €4,842
milion) in¢cludes the net profit of parent Unilever NV €2,221 million
(2013 €1 482 rmillion] and the net profit of parent Unilever PLC

£1 093 milkson [2013 £1.183 milbon) The rernaining difference arises
from the recegnition in NV s accounts of investments in subsidiaries
al cosl less any amounts written off to reflect a permanent
impairiment, intra-group balances and transactions are not
eliminated and other consolidated procedures are not performed

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Infarmation about the remuneration of Directors 1s given in the
tables noted as audited in the Directors Remuneraton Report
on pages &2 to 77, incorporated and repeated here by reference

Information on key rmanagement compensation is provided in note
4A to the consolidated group financial statements on page 93

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

During 2014 16 ernployees were employed by Untlever NV, of
whom 15 worked abroad

The Board of Directors
3 March 2015
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FURTHER STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION

UNILEVERNYV

THE RULES FOR PROFIT APPROPRIATION IN THE
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION [SUMMARY OF ARTICLE 38)

The profit for the year 1s applied firstly to the reserves required

by law or by the Equalisation Agreement secondly to coverlosses
of previous years f any, and thirdly to the reserves deemed
necessary by the Board of Directors Dimdends due to the holders
of the Cumulative Preference Shares, including any arrears in
such dividends are then paid 1f the profitis insufficient for this
purpose, the amount available 1s distributed to them In proportion
to the dividend percentages of their shares Any prefit remaining
thereafter shall be distributed to the holders of ordinary shares

in proportion to the norminal vatue of their respective holdings of
ordinary shares The General Meeting can only decide to make
distributions from reserves on the basis of a propesal by the
Board and in compliance with the taw and the Equalisation
Agreement

PROPOSED PROFIT APPROPRIATION

€mittion € rmithion

2014 2013
Profit for the year [available for distributionj 1,859 1682
Dwvidend 3371 12800
To profit retained 522 422
CORPORATE CENTRE
Unilever NV
Weena 455
PO Box 760

3000 DK Rotterdam
The Netherlands
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 20 January 2015 the Directors announced a dividend of

€0 285 per Unilever NV ordinary share The dividend 15 payable
from 11 March 2015 to sharehalders registered at close of
business on 6 February 2015

SPECIAL CONTROLLING RIGHTS UNDER THE
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
See note 15 to the consolidated accounts on pages 109 to 113

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
on 29 April 2015 for the appointment of KPMG Accountants N V
as audiiors of Unilever NV The present appointment will end
at the conclusien of the Annual General Meeting
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF KPMG ACCOUNTANTS NV

This page sets out the respansibilities of KPMG Accountant NV
as referred to in the audit opinion on pages 79 to 83

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit assignment

in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence for our opimion

Our audit has been performed with a high but not absotute
level of assurance, which means we may not have detected
all errors and fraud

We have exercised professipnal judgement and have maintained

professianal skepticism throughout the audit, In accordance with

Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and

independence requirements

Our auditincluded e g

¢ ldentifying and assessing the nisks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due te fraud or error
designing and performing audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that 1s sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 15
higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentronal omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control,
¢ Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, bus not for the purpose of expressing an
opimion on the effectiveness of the company s internal control,

* Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polictes used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management
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Concluding on the appropriateness of management s use of
the going concern basis of accounting, and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related te events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the company s ability to continue as a going concern |f we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention sn our auditor s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate to modify our epinion Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor s report However future events or conditions may
cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern,
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content

of the financial statements, including the disclosures and
Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the
vnderlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant findings in
internal control that we identify during our audit

We provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasanably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance i the audst
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters We describe these matters in our auditor s
report unless law or regulation prectudes public disclosure about
the matter or when, 1n exiremely rare circurnstances, not
communicating the matter)s in the public Interest
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COMPANY ACCOUNTS
UNILEVER PLC

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER
£million £ mitlian
2014 2M3
Fixed assets
intangible assets 176 189
Investmenis in subsidiaries 8,372 8115
8,548 8304
Current assets
Debtors due within one year 598 248
Liabititres due within ane year 7,256) [6 081}
Net current assets/(Labilties} [4,658) {5833
Total assets less current Labilities 1,890 2,47
Liambities dua after more than one year 648 398
Proviston for Liabslities and charges (excluding pensions and similar obligations) s 8
Capital and reserves 1,247 2065
Called up share capital 41 41
Share premium account 9% 94
Capstal redemption reserve 1" "
Other reserves (394) 1367)
Profit retained 1,495 2,286
Total capital employed 1,890 247

The financial statements on pages 137 to 139 were approved by the Board of Directors an 3 March 2015 and signed on 1ts behatf by
M Treschow and P Polman

As perritted by Section 408 of the United Kingdom Companies Act 2006, an entity profit and loss account s not included as part of
the published company accounts for PLLC Under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 1 [rewised 1996] Cash Flow Statements

{FRS 1 a cash flow statement s not included, as the cash flows are included in the consolidated cash flow statement of the
Unilever Group

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

M Treschow
Chairman

P Polman

Chief Executive Officer
3March 2015
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NQTES TO THE COMPANY ACCOUNTS
UNILEVER PLC

ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis and n
accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards
and the UK Companies Act 2006

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention
except for the revaluation of inancial assets classified as
available-for-sale investments or fair value through profit

or loss, and derwvative financial instrurments in accordance
with the accounting policies set out below which have been
consistently applred

ADOPTION OF FRS 101 IN 2015

In 2012, the FRC, being the standard setting body 1n the UK,
published FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework whichis
available to qualifying entities that prepare their annual report
and accounts under EU adopted IFRS [International Financial
Reporting Standards] This outlines a reduced disclosure
frarnework available to qualifying entities and all UK entities will
be required to adopt this or an alternative standard in 2015

Unilever PLC intends to prepare its accounts under FRS 101 for
the first tme in 2015 The consolidated accounts for the Group
will conttnue to be prepared under full IFRS The Board considers
that it 1s 1in the best interests of the Group for Unitever PLC to
adopt FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

A shareholder or shareholders holding in aggregate 5% or more
of the total allotted shares in Uniever PLC may serve objections
lo the use of the disclosure exemptions on Unilever PLC n
writng, to its corporate office (100 Victorta Embankment, London,
EC4Y ODY] not later than 30 June 2015 and, if so recewved Unilever
PLC may not use these disclosure exemptions

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies are as follows

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets comprise trademarks purchased after

1 January 1998 and are amortised in the profit and loss account
over thew expected useful lives of up to a maximum of 20 years
These assets are held at cost less accumulated amortisation
They are subject 1o review for impairment in accordance with
United Kingdom Financial Reporting Standard 11 lrmpairment of
Fixed Assets and Goodwill {FRS 11} Anyimparment s charged
to the profit and loss account as it arises

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIOIARIES

Shares in group companies are stated at cost less any amounts
writien off to reflect a permanent impairment Any impairment
1s charged to the profit and loss account as it arises

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company s accounting policies under United Kingdom
generally accepted accounting principles [UK GAAP] namely
FRS 25 Financial Instruments Presentaticn FRS 26 Financial
Instruments Measurement and FRS 29 Financial Instruments
Disclosures, are the same as the Unilever Group s accounting
policres under International Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS)
namely IAS 32 Financial instruments Presentation, IAS 39
Financial Instruments Recognttion and Measurement and
IFRSY Financial Instruments Disclosures The policies are set
out under the heading Capital and funding n note 15 to the
consolidated accounts an pages 105 and 110 PLC 1s taking the
exernption for financrat instruments disclosures because IFRS 7
disclosures are given 1n notes 15 to 18 to the consolidated
accounts on pages 109 to 123
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DEFERRED TAXATION

Full provision 15 made for deferred taxation on all significant
urming differences arising from the recognition of items for
taxation purposes in different perods from those in which they
are included in PLC accounts Full pravision 1s made at the rates
of tax prevailing at the year end unless future rates have been
enacted or subsiantively enacted Deferred tax assels and
liabiities have not been discounted

SHARES HELD BY EMPLOYEE SHARE TRUSTS

Shares hetd to sat/siy options are accounted for in accordance
with UK GAAP, namely FRS 25 Financial Instruments
Presentation, FRS 20 Share Based Payments and Urgent |ssues
Task Force abstract 38 Accounting for ESOP Trusts [UITF 38! All
differences between the purchase price of the shares held to
satisfy options granted and the proceeds recerved for the shares,
whether an exercise or lapse, are charged to other reserves

DIVIDENDS

Under FRS 21 Events after the Balance Sheet Date, proposed
dividends do not meet the definition of a labulity until such time
as they have been approved by sharehalders at the Annual
General Meeting Therefore, we do not recognise a Liability in
any perioed for dividends that have been proposed but will not
be approved until after the balance sheet date This holds for
external dividends as well as intra-group dividends paid to

the parent company

TAXATION

Current tax Is the expected tax payable on the taxable incoma for
the period, using tax rates enacted or substantvely enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any ad)ustment to tax payable in respect
of previous periods

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised where a legal or constructive ebligation
exists at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, where
the amaunt of the obligation can be reliably estimated and where
the outflow of economic benefitis probable Provisions are
measured on the basis of the best estimate of the amounts
required to settle the obligations at the balance sheet date Unless
Indicated otherwise, provisions are stated at the face value of the
expenditure expecied to be required to setite the obligations

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

Where the Company enters inte financial guarantee contracts to
guarantee the indedtedness of other companies within its group,
the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements and
accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the
guarantee contract as a contingent liability unt! such time as it
becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a
payment under the guarantee
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY ACCOUNTS
UNILEVER PLC coNTINUED

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Emitien £ million
2014 2013
1 January 189 &4
Additions - L4
Amortisation 13) 121)
31 December 176 189

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

€midlion £ million
2014 2013

Shares in group compamiesh! 8,372 8115

slinvestments in subsidiaries inctude equity shares in Hindustan Unilever
Litruted, a subsidiary of the Group with a cost of £2 197 rillion
12013 £2,197 million} The shares are listed on the Bombay Sieck Exchange
and had a markel value of £8 594 rutuon 12013 €6 222 rithion) at
31 December 2014 The carryng value of the tnvestrents 1s supported by
therr underlying net assets

DEBTORS
€million £ million
2014 2013
Due within one year
Amounts due from group comparues®! 569 198
Taxatron and social security 26 45
Other 3 5
598 248

™ Amounts due Irom group companies include balances with several group
compantes which are interest bearing at market interest rates and are
unsecured and repayable on demand

LIABILITIES
Emillion  Cmilbon
2014 2013
Due within one year
Amounts due 1o group campanies'® 7,245 5162
Bonds and other loans™ - 907
Accruals and deferred iIncome " 11
Other - 1
1,256 6081
Due after more than one year
Bonds and other toans'™ 648 398

lameunts due to group companies include balances with several group
compantes which are interest beartng at market intérest rates and are
unsecured and repayable on demand

9 This included a £350 millioh 4% note issued in 2009 which matured in
December 2014 and commercial paper

* This includes a £400 million & 75% note 1ssued in 2009 matur:ng In June
2017 [year-end value amortised cast £398 million} and 3 £250 million 2 %
note 1ssued in 2014 maturing December 2018 |year-end value amortised
cost £24% million)

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
{EXCLUDING PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS)

€mition £ millon

2014 2013

Deferred taxation (5] 7
Other provisions - i
5] 8

Ofwhich due within one year - 1
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ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

The called up share capital amounting to £41 million

(2013 £41 million] consists of 1310 156,361 (2013 1 310,156,361]
PLC ordinary shares and 100 000 {2013 100,000) PLC deferred
stock 50% of the deferred stock of Unitever PLC are held by NV
Elma - a subsidiary of Unilever NV and 50% owned by United
Holdings Lirited - a subsidiary of Unilever PLC Further details are
given in note 15 to the consalidated accounts on pages 109 to 113

OTHER RESERVES
The own ordinary shares hetd by PLC amount to 27,750,464
[2013 26,696,994) and are included in Other reserves

Emilllon € million

2016 2013
1 January (3871 (381
Movements m shares 1zn 14
31 December [394) (357}

PROFIT RETAINED

Cmillion £ million

2004 2013
1 January 2,286 2,23
Prafit for the year 1,092 1183
Other movements'! (721) 17
Dividends paid's! 1,163} 1145)
31 Decernber 1,495 2,286

W Further details are given in note 24 to the consolidated accounts on page 128
kIFurther detaits are given in note 8 to the consclidated accounts on page 103

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent Liabitities are not expected to give rise to any material
loss They include guarantees given for group companies and
jeint guarantees with Unilever NV and Unilever United States
relating ta the long-term debt and commercial paper issued by
Untlever NV and/or Unilever Caprtal Corporation In¢ The fair
value of such guarantees was not significant in either 2014 or
2013 The guarantees issued to other companies were immaterial

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

The parent company accounts of Unilever PLC are required to
comply with The Companies (Disclosure of Auditor Remuneration]
Regulations 2009 Auditors remuneratian in respect of Unilever
PLC 1s Included within the disclosures 1n note 25 on page 128

PROFIT APPROPRIATION

Emillion £ million

2014 2013
Profit for the year [available for distributiont 1,093 1183
Dividends™ (878) (883)
To profit retained 217 300

M The dividend to be paid 1n March 2015 [see post balance sheel event] s nat
included in the 2014 dvidend amount

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 20 January 2015 the Directors announced a dividend of

EQ 2177 per Unilever PLC ordinary share The dwvidend 1s payable
from 11 March 2015 to shareholders registered at close of
business on é February 2015
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Thus docurnent may contain lorward-looking slatements including ferward-looking statements within the meaning of the Unuted States Privale Secunties
Ltvigation Reform Act of 1995 Words suchas will aim, expecls, antictpates intends looks, believes, wision or the negalive of these terms and other
similar expressions of lulure performance or resulls and Lherr negalives, are intended toidentily such lorward-looking stalements These lorward-looking
slatements are based upon current expectations and assumplions regarding anticipated developments and other lactors affecting the Group They are not
historicat facts nor are they guarantees of future performance

Because these forward-locking statements invaolve risks and uncertainuies there are impartant factors that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those expressed or implied by these torward-locking stalements Amongother risks and uncertainties the material or princepal factors which cause
actual results to differ materiatly are Umlever s global brands not meeting consumer preferences Unilever s ability to innovate and remain competitive
Unitever s tnvestment choices inits portfelto management inability to find sustainable solutions to support long-term growth customer relationships, the
recruitment and retention of talented employees disruplions in our supply chamn, the cost of raw matenials and commodities the production of safe and high
quality products, secure and reliable IT inlrastructure successful execution of acquisilions divestitures and business transformation projects economic
and poliical nisks and natural disasters [mancial risks, fadure ta meet tugh and ethical standards and managing requlatory tax and legal matters Further
details of potential risks and uncertainties affecting the Group are described in the Group s hilings with the London Stock Exchange Euronext Amsterdarn and
the U5 Securities and Exchange Comnusston includimg in the Group 5 Annual Report on Farm 20-F for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the Annual
Report and Accounts 2014 These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this documen! Except as required by any applicable law or
regulation the Group expressly disctaims any obligation or underiaking to release publicly any updates o revisions (o any forward-locking statements |
contained herein to reflect any change in the Group s expectations with regard thereto of any change in events canditions or circumstances on which any

such statement is based

This document is not prepared in accordance with US GAAR and should not therefore be relied upon by readers as such The Group s Annual Report on
Form 20-F for 2014 15 separately ited with the US Securities and Exchange Commission and 1s available on our corperate website www umlever com

In additien a printed copy of the Annual Report on Form 2D-F s available, free of charge, upon request to Unilever Investor Relations Department,
100 Victorsa Embankment Lendon EC4Y ODY, United Kingdom

This repert comprises regulated information within the meamng of Sections 11 and 5 25¢ of the Act on Finangial Supervision [“Wet op het financieel toezicht
{Witl"] in the Netherlands

The brand names shown in this report are trademarks owned by or licensed 10 companies withen the Unilever Group

References in this docurnent Lo information on websites (and/or social media sites) are included as an aid to their location and such information 1s not
incorporaled in, and does not form part of the Annual Report and Accounts 2014 or Annual Report on Form 20-F with the exception of the explanations and
disclaimers which can be accessed via KPMG s website www kpmg com/uk/auditscopeukeo?014b which 1s incorporated tnta the Auditor s Reportin the
Annuasl Report and Accounts 2014 asf sef outin full
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Designed and produced by Unitever Communications in conjunction with Addison Group at www addtson-group nei
Printed at Pureprint Group 150 14001 FSC® certified and CarbonNeutral®

This decument is printed on Amadeus 100% Recycled Silk and Gffset These papers have been exclusively supplied by Denmaur Independent Papers which has
oltset the carbon produced by the production and delivery of them to the printer

These papers are 100% recycled and manufactured using de-inked post-consumer waste All the pulp is bleached using an elemental chlorine free process
{ECF) Printed in the UK by Pureprint using ils alcofree® and pureprint® environmentat printing technology Vegetable inks were used throughout Pureprint 1s
a CarbonNeutral® company Both the manulaciuring rtl and the printer are registered o the Environmental Management System 150 14007 and are Forest
Stewardship Council® [FSC} chain-of-custody certified

il you have finished with this document and no tonger wish to retain it, please pass it on to other interested readers or dispose of it tn your recycled paper
waste Thank you
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FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ABOUT
UNILEVER, PLEASE VISIT OUR WEBSITE:

WWW.UNILEVER.COM

BRINGING SANITATION TO THE WORLD'S POOREST CONSUMERS

In India around 400 milkion peaple, Like Saritadevi [pictured*], do not have access to a tailet in
their house, leaving them no choice but to use tocat fields Uniever 1s committed to helping
25 mitlion people gain improved access to a toilet by 2020, by promaoting the benefits of using
clean toilets and making toilets accessible

We are warling with multiple partners, including UNICEF, to create sustatnable approaches to
better sanitation by promoting good hygiene practices to improve the health and well-being of
communities and helping to create demand for access to tailets

We are also working with Water & Sanitation for the Urban Poor [WSUP! to develop innovative
samtation businesses and promote hygiene cornmunications to milbons of the poorest
consumers in Ghana, Bangladesh, Kenya and Zambia

And we are providing support through the Domestos Toilet Academy, a market-based model that
improves sanitation in India and Vietnam By the end of 2014 there were ten Domestos Toilet
Acadermies open, eight in India and two in Vietnam The Academies train entrepreneurs to form
businesses supplying, tnstalling and mantaining hygienic toilets The inttiative will train 250
entrepreneurs and supply 51,000 toitets by the end of 2015

*The phiotograph of Saritadevi was taken for WSUP by Atul Loke
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